A meeting of the CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PANEL will be held
in CIVIC SUITE 0.1A, PATHFINDER HOUSE, ST MARY'S STREET,
HUNTINGDON, PE29 3TN on WEDNESDAY, 9 MARCH 2016 at
7:00 PM and you are requested to attend for the transaction of the
following business:-

APOLOGIES
MINUTES (Pages 5 - 12)

To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on
2" December 2015.

APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIRMAN

Following changes to the membership of the Corporate Governance
Panel, to appoint a Vice-Chairman for the remainder of the municipal
year.

MEMBERS' INTERESTS

To receive from Members declarations as to disclosable pecuniary
and other interests in relation to any Agenda ltem.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PANEL PROGRESS REPORT
(Pages 13 - 20)

To receive the Corporate Governance Panel Progress Report.
EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2015/16 (Pages 21 - 46)

To consider a report regarding the External Audit Plan for 2015/16.

GRANT CERTIFICATION 2014/15 (Pages 47 - 60)

To receive the External Auditor's Annual Certification Report 2014/15

CODE OF FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND CODE OF
PROCUREMENT FOR 2016/17 (Pages 61 - 96)

To consider a report on the Code of Financial Management and the
Code of Procurement.

Contact
(01480)

M Sage
388169

M Sage
388169

C Mason
388157
O Corbert
388067

C Mason
388157
J Taylor
388119
A Burns
388122

C Mason
388157
N Arkle



8. REVIEW OF THE CONSTITUTION (Pages 97 - 310)
To consider a report by the Service Director (Resources).

9. INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE: INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2016-17
(Pages 311 - 318)
To receive a report detailing Internal Audit’s annual planning process
and to approve the Internal Audit Plan for the 1% April 2016 to 31>
March 2017.

10. ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL
REPORT 2015/16 (Pages 319 - 326)
To approve the amendments required to the existing accounting
policies.

11. PROGRESS ON ISSUES ARISING FROM THE 2014/15 ANNUAL
GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (Pages 327 - 332)
To report on progress to date regarding the introduction of two key
improvement areas contained in the 2014/15 Annual Governance
Statement.

12. IMPLEMENTATION OF AUDIT ACTIONS (Pages 333 - 338)
To consider a report providing performance information regarding the
implementation of internal audit actions for the year ending 31°
January 2016.

Dated this 1 day of March 2016
Head of Paid Service
Notes
1. Disclosable Pecuniary Interests

388104

J Slatter
388301

D Harwood
388115

C Mason
388157
R Maxwell
388117

D Harwood
388115

D Harwood
388115

(1) Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests and unless you
have obtained dispensation, cannot discuss or vote on the matter at the meeting and

must also leave the room whilst the matter is being debated or voted on.
(2) A Member has a disclosable pecuniary interest if it -

(a) relates to you, or
(b) is an interest of -

(i) your spouse or civil partner; or
(i) a person with whom you are living as husband and wife; or
(iii) a person with whom you are living as if you were civil partners

and you are aware that the other person has the interest.

(3) Disclosable pecuniary interests includes -



(a) any employment or profession carried out for profit or gain;

(b) any financial benefit received by the Member in respect of expenses incurred carrying
out his or her duties as a Member (except from the Council);

(c) any current contracts with the Council,

(d) any beneficial interest in land/property within the Council's area;

(e) any licence for a month or longer to occupy land in the Council's area;

(f) any tenancy where the Council is landlord and the Member (or person in (2)(b) above)
has a beneficial interest; or

(9) a beneficial interest (above the specified level) in the shares of any body which has a
place of business or land in the Council's area.

Non-Statutory Disclosable Interests

(4) If a Member has a non-statutory disclosable interest then you are required to declare that
interest, but may remain to discuss and vote providing you do not breach the overall
Nolan principles.

(5) A Member has a non-statutory disclosable interest where -

(a) a decision in relation to the business being considered might reasonably be regarded
as affecting the well-being or financial standing of you or a member of your family or a
person with whom you have a close association to a greater extent than it would affect
the majority of the council tax payers, rate payers or inhabitants of the ward or
electoral area for which you have been elected or otherwise of the authority's
administrative area, or

(b)it relates to or is likely to affect a disclosable pecuniary interest, but in respect of a
member of your family (other than specified in (2)(b) above) or a person with whom
you have a close association, or

(c) it relates to or is likely to affect any body —

(i) exercising functions of a public nature; or

(i) directed to charitable purposes; or

(i) one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion or policy
(including any political party or trade union) of which you are a Member or in a
position of control or management.

and that interest is not a disclosable pecuniary interest.
Filming, Photography and Recording at Council Meetings

The District Council supports the principles of openness and transparency in its decision
making and permits filming, recording and the taking of photographs at its meetings that are
open to the public. It also welcomes the use of social networking and micro-blogging
websites (such as Twitter and Facebook) to communicate with people about what is
happening at meetings. Arrangements for these activities should operate in accordance with
guidelines agreed by the Council and available via the following link filming,photography-and-
recording-at-council-meetings.pdf or on request from the Democratic Services Team. The
Council understands that some members of the public attending its meetings may not wish to
be filmed. The Chairman of the meeting will facilitate this preference by ensuring that any
such request not to be recorded is respected.

Please contact Mrs Melanie Sage, Democratic Services Team, Tel No. 01480 388169/e-
mail Melanie.Sage@huntingdonshire.gov.uk if you have a general query on any
Agenda Item, wish to tender your apologies for absence from the meeting, or would
like information on any decision taken by the Committee/Panel.

Specific enquiries with regard to items on the Agenda should be directed towards the
Contact Officer.

Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting as observers except during
consideration of confidential or exempt items of business.



http://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/SiteCollectionDocuments/HDCCMS/Documents/Democratic%20Services%20documents/filming,photography-and-recording-at-council-meetings.pdf
http://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/SiteCollectionDocuments/HDCCMS/Documents/Democratic%20Services%20documents/filming,photography-and-recording-at-council-meetings.pdf

Agenda and enclosures can be viewed on the District Council’'s website —
www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk (under Councils and Democracy).

If you would like a translation of Agenda/Minutes/Reports or
would like a large text version or an audio version please
contact the Elections & Democratic Services Manager and

we will try to accommodate your needs.

Emergency Procedure

In the event of the fire alarm being sounded and on the instruction of the Meeting
Administrator, all attendees are requested to vacate the building via the closest emergency
exit.




33.

34.

35.

36.

Agenda ltem 1

HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

MINUTES of the meeting of the CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PANEL held in Civic Suite, Pathfinder House, St Mary's Street,
Huntingdon, PE29 3TN on Wednesday, 2 December 2015.

PRESENT: Councillor M Francis — Chairman.

Councillors T D Alban, E R Butler,
Mrs P A Jordan and R J West.

MINUTES

The Minutes of the meeting held on 16th September 2015 were
approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

MEMBERS' INTERESTS

There were no declarations of interest received from those Members
that were present.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PANEL PROGRESS REPORT

The Panel received and noted a report (a copy of which is appended
in the Minute Book) of actions taken in response to previous
decisions.

Having considered the report the Panel agreed to the deletion of
those items indicated as being removed from future reports.

The Chairman noted that he had agreed the Council’s response with
the Internal Audit and Risk Manager to the Chartered Institute of
Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) consultation paper on
Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: A Framework,
which had been submitted on 24th September 2015.

CORPORATE FRAUD WORKPLAN AND PROSECUTION POLICY

The Panel received a report from the Benefits Manager (a copy of
which is appended in the Minute Book) regarding the Workplan for the
Corporate Fraud Team following the transfer of Housing Benefit fraud
investigations to the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP).

In May 2015 the responsibility for investigating allegations of Housing
Benefit fraud transferred to the DWP. Three Investigating Officers
transferred to the DWP and the in-house team now consisted of a
Team Leader, one Investigating Officer and an Intelligence Officer.

It was explained to the Panel that the Workplan had been developed
around the types of fraud that currently formed the majority of the
work for the Team, as well as new and emerging threats, including
Council Tax Support fraud; Council Tax discount fraud; Housing
Tenancy fraud and Business Rates fraud. The Corporate Fraud
Team had been working with service areas across the Council and

5



other partners to determine the level of fraud risk they encountered to
establish how the Corporate Fraud Team could assist in reducing risk
and investigating allegations of fraud.

In addition the Council had been the lead authority representing
Cambridgeshire in securing funding from the Department for
Communities and Local Government to establish a countywide
initiative called the Cambridgeshire Anti-Fraud Network (CAFN). The
principle aim of CAFN had been the creation of a central data-sharing
hub across Cambridgeshire to assist in the detection and
investigation of tenancy fraud and other fraud identified/reported
across the County. Although CAFN was still in its infancy, it was
noted that as a result of Cambridgeshire authorities working together
over £1 million of fraud had been identified across the County.

With different types of fraud being investigated, required the Fraud
Prosecution Policy to be amended to include reference to the
legislation used in prosecuting these new areas. The Panel endorsed
the recommendations to the Cabinet on the Fraud Prosecution Policy
that established the legislation and process that Investigating Officers
must adhere to when considering the action to take following fraud
investigation.

The Panel had previously agreed that the subject of a new Fraud
Working Group would not be considered until the Work Programme of
the Corporate Fraud Team had been agreed. The Corporate Fraud
Team’s remit focused on Council services most at risk from fraud and
loss and as the Team had been in its new format since May 2015, it
was still establishing priorities for the future. The work of the
Corporate Fraud Team was reported to the Corporate Governance
Panel on an annual basis. In addition, monitoring the delivery of the
Workplan was to be overseen by the Executive Councillor for
Customer Service. The Panel concurred that this was sufficient and
that the formation of the Fraud Working Group would not add further
value at this time.

The Panel considered whether it wished to receive reports on a more
frequent basis. However, as the Annual Report on the Corporate
Fraud Team was scheduled to be presented to the Panel in June
2016, the Panel were satisfied with this approach.

Having noted that a number of new and emerging frauds had been
identified including Right To Buy (RTB) fraud, it was explained to the
Panel that proposed changes to legislation could mean that Housing
Associations would become increasingly at risk from RTB fraud. In
order to combat this, the Corporate Fraud Team were working with
Housing Association partners to establish whether their procedures
for processing RTB applications were robust and how the Corporate
Fraud Team could assist to ensure that only genuine applications
were accepted.

Allegations of fraud were encouraged to be reported to the Council
via a number of methods including a 24-hour telephone line
(automated voicemail system) that was checked daily; email; on-line
referral forms; and at any of the Council’s offices or in writing.

Prosecutions were regularly publicised in the local press as both a

6



37.

deterrent to prospective fraudsters and as a way of encouraging
further referrals.

It was explained to the Panel that fraud was identified via data
matching using various databases such as Council Tax, Electoral Roll
and that information was shared via CAFN and other partners such as
the Police.

The Panel acknowledged that despite changes within the Team, that
performance during 2015/16 had demonstrated that it continued to be
a valuable asset to the Council in combating fraud. The Panel
enquired whether the reduced size of the Corporate Fraud Team
could leave the Council at risk and how it compared to other
authorities. In response the Panel was informed that the size of the
Fraud Team varied amongst authorities, particularly as Government
funding had ceased. Having a Corporate Fraud Team was a
deterrent and also generated income via prosecutions. It was
considered that the size of the Corporate Fraud Team was currently
sufficient to address its Workplan and that data matching allowed for
joint working and information from a variety of sources to be
compared. As a consequence surveillance was not required as a tool
for identifying fraud.

Having fully considered the report, the Panel
RECOMMENDED
that the Cabinet:

i. approve the Corporate Fraud Team Workplan 2015/17,
attached as Appendix 1 of the Officer’s report;

ii. approve the revised Fraud Prosecution Policy, attached
as Appendix 2 of the Officer’s report; and

iii. endorse the recommendation that monitoring of the
delivery of the Workplan be overseen by the Executive
Councillor for Customer Services alongside annual
reports to the Corporate Governance Panel.

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL STRUCTURE: CHANGES TO
THE CONSTITUTION

By way of a report from the Policy, Performance and Transformation
Manager (a copy of which is appended in the Minute Book), the Panel
considered the proposed changes to the Council’'s Constitution to
amend the structure of the Council’s Overview and Scrutiny Panels.

Having noted that the proposed changes had recently been endorsed
by the Overview and Scrutiny Panels, the Corporate Governance
Panel agreed with the Officer's recommendation, subject to the
removal of ‘MTP’ from paragraph 1.5 as detailed in Appendix 1 of the
Officer’s report. Whereupon, the Panel

RECOMMENDED
that the Council approve the amendments to the

Constitution to reflect the new structure for the Council’s
Overview and Scrutiny Panels, as detailed in Appendix 1 of

7



38.

39.

the Officer's report, with effect from 1st January 2016,
subject to the removal of MTP as follows:

‘1.5 Overview and Scrutiny Panel (Finance and
Performance)

Will contribute to the development of, and review the
effectiveness of, the Council's Financial Strategy, MTPR;
Treasury Management and annual budget.’

EXTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER 2014/15

The Panel received a report by the Head of Resources (a copy of
which is appended in the Minute Book) regarding the 2014/15 Annual
Audit Letter. The 2014/15 audit of the Council’s Annual Financial
Report, the Annual Governance Statement and relevant grant claims
had been completed. Consequently, the Panel noted the Council’s
External Auditor’s, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (PwC), Annual Audit
Letter which they were required to issue. The Annual Audit Letter
was a digest of the Auditor’s findings, recommendations and fees in
respect of 2014/15 and concluded the annual audit process.

Referring to the concluding page of the Annual Audit Letter regarding
the final fees for conducting the audit, the Panel commended Officers
as no additional work had been required and therefore the Council
had not incurred any additional fees to that budgeted.

In noting that the Annual Audit Letter was easy to understand, the
Panel hoped that the Council’'s new Auditors would replicate the high
standards of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (PwC), and

RESOLVED
to note the 2014/15 Annual Audit Letter.
INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE: INTERIM PROGRESS REPORT

By way of a report by the Internal Audit and Risk Manager (a copy of
which is appended in the Minute Book) the Panel received details on
the work completed by the Internal Audit Service during the period
April to October 2015, together with associated performance issues.

The Panel was informed of key issues that had impacted on the work
of the service including that no IT audit reviews had been completed
in the period. This was due to the IT audit contract that ended in
January 2015 not being re-let. The Internal Audit and Risk Manager
had decided not to re-let the contract on account of uncertainty as to
which authority would be the employing authority for the IT service
under the shared services project and the work to examine options for
developing an alternative internal audit service delivery model.

The Council had since become the employing authority for IT staff
and responsible for the delivery of IT services to the three Councils.
However, the Internal Audit Service had been considered for inclusion
in phase two of the shared service project and the Internal Audit and
Risk Manager had led on reviewing alternative service delivery
options for internal audit across the three partner Council’s. As yet no

8



decision had been taken as to the preferred method of delivery.

It was reported that once the shared service decision was known, and
if it was appropriate to do so, contractors would be appointed to
undertake IT audit reviews during the current financial year. This
would leave the option available to seek a longer term partner from
2016/17 onwards who would not only provide IT audit services but
also provide advice on developing an alternative service delivery
model.

Whilst the lack of IT audit was a concern, the Panel had been
informed that some of the risks associated with the lack of audit
reviews had been mitigated by the Cabinet Office renewing the
Council’s Public Services Network (PSN) compliance certificate.
Therefore the Council had demonstrated that its infrastructure was
sufficiently secure and that its connection to the PSN did not present
an unacceptable risk to the security of the network.

Having referred to the debts that remain uncollected through the
accounts receivable process and the risk that debts might not be
pursued, recovered or might become time—barred, the Panel had
been assured that the Head of Resources was aware of the matter
and was undertaking work to resolve the issue.

The Panel expressed concern at the declining service delivery target
for ‘complete audit fieldwork by date stated on the audit brief,
currently at 33%. It was explained that due to the variable hour
contracts that the Internal Audit Team worked, it was difficult to
reschedule meetings cancelled at short notice and this was impacting
upon the target. It was further explained that the Head of Resources
had emailed Managers to explain the importance of these meetings
and would be closely monitoring progress, looking to see an
improvement by the time the Annual Report of the Internal Audit
Service was presented to the Panel. Subsequently the Panel tasked
the Head of Resources to improve the declining service delivery
target and that progress be reported to the next meeting of the Panel.
Whereupon it was

RESOLVED
that the Panel:

i. notes the Internal Audit and Risk Managers ‘adequate
assurance’ opinion over the internal control environment and
system of internal control;

ii. notes that whilst no IT audit reviews had been completed in
the financial year to date, the assurance that could be
obtained from the Council obtaining Public Sector Network
compliance;

ii. notes that a replacement audit actions monitoring system was
to be purchased; and

iv. tasks the Head of Resources to improve the declining service
delivery target regarding ‘complete audit fieldwork by date
stated on the audit brief’ and that progress be reported to the
next meeting of the Panel.



40.

41.

IMPLEMENTATION OF AUDIT ACTIONS

The Panel received and noted a report by the Internal Audit and Risk
Manager (a copy of which is appended in the Minute Book) which
provided performance information regarding the implementation of
agreed internal audit actions for the year ending 31st October 2015.

Four actions had not been introduced, but despite targets not being
achieved performance was improving. The Internal Audit and Risk
Manager expressed appreciation to the Panel for the support they
have given to achieve this level of performance.

In response to questions by the Panel it was explained that since the
publication of the report one of the four outstanding actions, relating
to the procedure notes for One Leisure Impressions, was how
complete, which would be included in the next report the Panel
received.

The three outstanding actions related to cross Council arrangements
for CCTV; overtime arrangements; and the identification of post
holders responsible for circulating details on changes to legislation.
Previously this was the responsibility of Legal. However, as Legal
Services was now part of LGSS it was suggested that Managers
should be responsible for updating Officers regarding changes to
legislation. Whereupon it was

RESOLVED
that the Panel note the report.
WORK PROGRAMME AND TRAINING

By way of a report by the Internal Audit and Risk Manager (a copy of
which is appended in the Minute Book) the Panel received and
approved details of their anticipated work programme for the ensuing
year.

The Panel was informed that a Special Meeting of the Corporate
Governance Panel was required to consider the Review of the
Constitution and of the tentative date scheduled prior to the Special
Meeting of Council in February 2016. Due to existing commitments of
the Panel, it was agreed that the Special Meeting of the Corporate
Governance Panel would be held on Monday 25th January 2016.

As a result of the requirement for a Special Meeting it was agreed that
the Chairman would discuss the Panel’s future training with the
Internal Audit and Risk Manager.

Prior to concluding the meeting the Panel were introduced to Mr Rob
Murray, from Ernst and Young, the Council’s new External Auditors,
who had been seated in the public gallery. Whereupon the Panel
RESOLVED

to note the programme of work and the proposed training.

10



Chairman

11



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 4

Public
Key Decision - No

HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
Title/Subject Matter:  Progress on issues arising from the 2014/15 Annual
Governance Statement
Meeting/Date: Corporate Governance Panel — 9 March 2016
Executive Portfolio:  Resources: Councillor J A Gray
Report by: Internal Audit & Risk Manager

Ward(s) affected: All Wards

Executive Summary:

The 2014/15 Annual Governance Statement (AGS) included two areas for
improvement.

The two areas for improvement identified are:
i.  Develop robust and effective reporting arrangements for shared services; and
i. Improve project management practices including Officer compliance with the
project management toolkit.

Details of the action that has been taken against each improvement area is
contained in the main report.

Due to the good progress that has been made across both improvement areas it
is considered that they will be ‘achieved’ prior to the preparation of the 2015/16
AGS.

Recommendation(s):

It is recommended that the Panel note and take into account the progress that has

been made in introducing the key improvement areas arising from the 2014/15 AGS
when undertaking their 2015/15 governance review.

13




11

2.1

3.1

WHAT IS THIS REPORT ABOUT/PURPOSE?

This report informs the Panel of the progress that has been to date in
introducing the two key improvement areas that were contained in the 2014/15
Annual Governance Statement (AGS).

WHY IS THIS REPORT NECESSARY/BACKGROUND

The Panel need to be assured that sufficient action has been taken to deal
with the two areas for improvement identified.
i.  Develop robust and effective reporting arrangements for shared
services; and
ii.  Improve project management practices including Officer compliance
with the project management toolkit.

OPTIONS CONSIDERED/ANALYSIS

The current position is set out below. The deadline set for delivering both
areas for improvement was 31 March 2016.

i. Develop robust and effective reporting arrangements for shared
services.

Governance arrangements for Shared Service continue to develop. In July
2015 the Council approved governance arrangements as set out in the
Shared Services Overview report as follows:

It was agreed that a Joint Committee (to be called the Shared Services
Joint Group) should be established to oversee the operation of Shared
Services, supported by an officer Board, but the committee would not have
delegated powers or functions. This will formalise existing arrangements
but without any partner council delegating power to another entity. This
arrangement has the benefit of being a collaborative arrangement with all
parties represented equally, without favouring or representing the interests
of one particular.

The remit of the Joint Group is to provide advice, oversight, challenge and
endorsement of the shared services business plans and budget. It is
important to note that without any delegation or discharge of functions and
powers, they act as an advisory body to the three Councils only.

This means that each participating council would retain Executive decision-
making powers for their shared service functions. The Joint Group will
receive regular updates on the operation of the shared services and will
take reports and recommendations for decision to their respective
Executives (and full council, if appropriate), at agreed points and with the
engagement of each council’'s Scrutiny committees.

Meetings of the Joint Group are to be held in public from April 2016,
forming part of each council’s calendar of meetings. Membership would be
the Leaders of each Council with a nominated deputy/alternate attending in
their absence.

Following the July report further work has been undertaken to confirm the

Governance arrangements and the Joint Group is meeting in Shadow Form
from February 2016.

14



It is proposed to take the Terms of Reference for the Shared Service Joint
Group (Leaders’ Group) to Cabinet for approval in the April meeting cycle,
as part of the “shared service report pack”.

Initial drafts of the Shared Service business plans have now been
completed and are being considered by the Shadow Joint Group in
February 2016. They will then be reported through each Council’'s
committee cycle, during March and April 2016.

Work is continuing on the Shared Services partnership agreement and an
initial interim agreement will be taken forward to provide some clarity and

protection to all parties involved in shared services. There is some further
work ongoing for example on recharges and identification of assets, which
will form part of annexes to the initial agreement.

The Partnership Board comprising of Chief Executives/ Manging Directors
and the three Corporate Director leads continues to meet to provide
strategic oversight and develop recommendations for consideration and
approval by the Member Joint Group.

In addition a new 3C Management Board (Director-led) is now in place as
part of the governance structure. This is meeting monthly and is having a
positive impact in ensuring that operational decisions are made (within the
agreed parameters) at the right level and that consistency in leadership is
given across the shared services.

Shared Service budgets will be subject to approval by partner Councils
through the Council’s budget setting process in line with the agreed
Governance arrangements.

ii.  Improve project management practices including Officer
compliance with the project management toolkit.

Overview and Scrutiny Panel (Economic Well-Being) received a report in
November 2014 that raised a number of concerns about the project and
financial management of two large capital schemes. Following a further
review in January 2015 the Panel's five recommendations for improvement
were agreed by Cabinet in April 2015.

An update report was presented to the Panel in October 2015 when it was
reported that 4 of the 5 recommendations had been introduced:
¢ Project management guidance has been amended to require original
business case documentation to remain ‘live’
e Project updates are included in quarterly performance reports to the
Panel
e The Panel has received information on the role of the Programme
and Projects Manager.
e Updating of the Panel on progress with current projects, including
procurement processes and the effectiveness of highlight reports.

The remain recommendation - a review of project financial reporting and
the post-delivery stage — is being reported to the Panel meeting on 3
March.

In addition to the above, the following enhancements to the project
management process have been introduced.

15



3.2

4.1

5.1

6.1

7.1

Enhanced approval process

Projects funded from the approved Capital Plan are re-evaluated by the
Finance Governance Board to ensure that they remain ‘fit for purpose’ and
fully funded before commencement.

A pre-project proposition form is in place to ensure resources are allocated
to delivering Council priorities and objectives.

Oversight and review

All projects are reported quarterly to Corporate Management Team
followed by the relevant Overview and Scrutiny Panel before being
presented to Cabinet. Reporting includes a ‘RAG’ status that reflects both
the progress of the project and the completeness of the projects internal
monitoring site.

The Programme and Project Manager has monthly meetings with the
Managing Director to discuss progress of projects and ensure the
completeness of the projects list.

The Project Management Governance Board meets monthly to review
progress on individual projects, question lead officers when appropriate to
do so and generally oversees Project Managers compliance with the
agreed procedures as set-out with the project toolkit.

The Corporate Management Team are satisfied that the action taken to date
addresses the concerns recorded in the AGS.

KEY IMPACTS/RISKS?
HOW WILL THEY BE ADDRESSED?

If sufficient and timely action is not taken, this may lead to the actions having
to be repeated in the 2015/16 annual governance statement and
e adverse comments being reported by the external auditor;
e poor governance procedures remaining in place which may affect the
delivery of the Council’s objectives.

WHAT ACTIONS WILL BE TAKEN/TIMETABLE FOR IMPLEMENTATION
Action has already been taken.

LINK TO THE CORPORATE PLAN

Good corporate governance structures underpin everything that the Council
does. Effective delivery of the Corporate Plan requires sound procedures and
processes to be in place. These seek to ensure that decision making complies
with laws, regulations and proper governance practices.

REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDED DECISIONS

The Panel require assurance that the areas for improvement identified during
the 2014/15 annual governance review process are being addressed.

16



BACKGROUND PAPERS

Annual Governance Statement 2014/15

Report to Overview & Scrutiny Panel (Economic Well-being), 8 October 2015. Project
Management Select Committee — Six Month Review.

CONTACT OFFICER

David Harwood, Internal Audit & Risk Manager
Telephone: 01480 388115

17



This page is intentionally left blank



67

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PANEL PROGRESS REPORT

Panel Decisions Date for Action Action Taken Offlce_r Delete fr'om
Responsible future list
23/07/2014 | Review of effectiveness
. . . Internal Audit & Yes
. The financial systems that monitor .
éfgre(iﬁeto Lénldoegtakiga;efr\rl]lsr\:\i December 2015 3106 funding are being replaced. It Risk Manager
Advisory Group during was mtend(_ad to undertake an
2014/15 internal auqllt review of thfe S106
: process prior to undertaking the
effectiveness  review of the
Advisory Group. The review was
postponed until December 2015 so
as to allow the new financial
system and associated reporting
systems to be introduced. These
systems are still not operational. It
is proposed that the effectiveness
review be postponed until the
internal audit review (included in
the 2016/17 Audit Plan) has been
completed.
26/11/2014 | Training The Corporate Director (Services)
has been asked to consider this as Corporate Yes
The Panel are of the opinion part of her review of the Director
that there is a need for Constitution (Services)
mandatory training for
Members of the Corporate
Governance Panel.
02/12/2015 | Internal Audit Service:
Interim Progress Report The Panel tasked the | The Head of Resources contacted Head of Yes
Head of Resources to |the Senior Management Team and Resources

The Panel expressed concern
at the declining service delivery
target for ‘complete audit

improve  the  declining
service delivery target and
that progress be reported

reminded them of the importance
of keeping to pre-agreed meeting
dates. Internal audit staff were




0¢c

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PANEL PROGRESS REPORT

Panel

Decisions

Date for Action

Action Taken

Officer
Responsible

Delete from
future list

fieldwork by date stated on the
audit brief’, currently at 33%. It
was explained that due to the
variable hour contracts that the
Internal Audit Team worked, it
was difficult to reschedule
meetings cancelled at short
notice and this was impacting
upon the target. The Head of
Resources had emailed
Managers to explain the
importance of these meetings
and  would be closely
monitoring progress, looking to
see an improvement by the
time the Annual Report of the
Internal Audit Service was
presented to the Panel.

to the next meeting of the
Panel.

requested to keep a record of the
number of meetings that were
cancelled. The number  of
cancelled meetings has reduced
markedly.




Agenda Iltem 5

Public
Key Decision - No

HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Title: External Audit Plan 2015/16

Meeting/Date: Corporate Governance Panel
9 March 2016

Executive Portfolio:  Resources: Councillor J A Gray
Report by: Head of Resources

Ward(s) affected: All Wards

Executive Summary:

Ernst and Young have been appointed as the Council’'s external auditors
commencing with the 2015/16 audit. The Council's previous auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers had been with the Council since 2010/11 until 2014/15.

In preparation for the 2015/16 audit, Ernst and Young are required to inform those
charged with governance, how they plan to undertake the audit. The plan is attached
as Appendix 1, and outlines:

How the auditors expect to complete the audit and give an opinion.
The risks the auditors will consider during the audit.

Their approach to fraud detection.

The tools and approaches they will use during the audit.

The level of materiality.

The scope and timetable of the audit.

The audit teams.

The audit fee.

Recommendation(s):

It is recommended that the Panel reviews the attached External Audit Plan 2015/16
(Appendix 1) and:

o Comments on the plan in general.

e Comments on the level of comfort with the updates the Panel will receive
during the audit process.

21




11

1.2

1.3

14

2.1

2.2

3.1

3.2

PURPOSE

Ernst and Young have been appointed as the Council’s external auditors, this is
the first year that Ernst and Young are the Council’s auditors, having taken over
from PricewaterhouseCoopers, who were the Council’s auditors from 2010/11
to 2014/15.

Ernst and Young are required to detail how the audit will be carried out, and this
report describes their approach to the audit. Attached as Appendix 1 is Ernst
and Young’s audit plan. The audit plan includes;

How the auditors expect to complete the audit.

The financial statement risks they will consider.

Their responsibilities relating to fraud.

Which value for money risks they will consider.

The scope and timetable of the audit.

The audit fees.

The audit team.

The audit plan has been designed to take into account several key inputs;
e Strategic, operational, and financial risks relevant to the financial
statements.
Developments in financial reporting and auditing standards.
The quality of systems and processes.
Changes in the business and regulatory environment.
The management’s view on all of the above.

At the completion of the audit, Ernst and Young will issue an audit report giving
their opinion on whether the Council’s financial statements give a true and fair
view of the Council’s financial position as at the 31 March 2016.

BACKGROUND

In order for Ernst and Young to get to an opinion on whether the financial
statements give a true and fair view, the scope of the work they will complete is:
¢ Review and report on the Council’s financial statements.
e Review and report on the Council’s arrangements for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in the use of its resources.
¢ Review and report to the National Audit Office (NAO) on the Whole of
Government Accounts (WGA) return.

The review will take place under the International Standards on Auditing (UK
and Ireland).

RISKS

Ernst and Young have assessed the risks that the Council is subject to, through
discussion with those charged with governance and council officers. The risks
can be broken down into two categories, financial statement risks and
significant value for money risks.

The financial statement risks that the Council is subject to include:

i) Property, plant and equipment risks

Risks result from;
e Large asset values.

22



3.3

3.4

4.1

4.2

5.1

¢ The estimation that is needed to get to these values.
i) Pension liability risk

Risks result from;
¢ The size of this liability on the balance sheet.
e |ts valuation involves a significant amount of estimation.

iii) Revenue recognition risk

Risks result from;
e Improper recognition of revenue.
¢ Manipulation of expenditure recognition.

iv) Management override

Risks result from;
e Manipulation of accounting records.
e Management override of financial controls.

When assessing the value for money risks Ernst and Young will determine
whether the Council has in place proper arrangements to secure economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in the use of its resources. Proper arrangements
comprise:

e Take informed decisions.

¢ Deploy resources in a sustainable manner.

e Work with partners and third parties.

When considering the arrangements Ernst and Young will also draw on the
requirements of the CIPFA/SOLACE framework for local government to ensure
that their assessment is made against a framework that should already be in
place.

FRAUD

The primary responsibility to prevent and detect fraud lies with management,
with those charged with governance having oversight of this. The responsibility
of external auditors is perform audits that give reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free of material misstatements,
whether caused by error or mistake. The audit plan is designed to consider
such risks.

Based on the requirements of the auditing standards the approach to fraud
detection will be:
e Understanding the oversight of those charged with governance.
Identifying fraud risks during the planning stage.
Enquiry of management about risks and control.
Consideration of the effectiveness of management controls.
Determining an appropriate strategy to identify risks of fraud.
Performing mandatory procedures regardless of risks.

AUDIT APPROACH 2015/16
The audit will cover the following:

i) Analytics

23



5.2

5.3

5.4

Ernst and Young will use computer-based analytics tools to capture
whole populations of financial data, the data will then be subject to
testing to identify exceptions and anomalies. This type of analysis will
give an increased likelihood of identifying errors over random sampling.

i) Internal Audit

Internal Audit’'s work in documenting the financial systems and controls,
will be used to update Ernst and Young’s understanding, and to carry
out walk-throughs of those systems.

i) Use of Specialists

When auditing key judgements, reliance will be placed on specialists,
who have expertise not possessed by the core audit team. The
specialists will be used to, analyse source data, assess assumptions,
and judge whether the findings are reflected in the accounts.

iv) Mandatory Audit Procedures

Ernst and Young will also address the risk of fraud and error, review
significant disclosures and corporate controls, report on inconsistencies
in the financial statements and address auditor independence.

In this way the auditors will be able to assess key controls, identify significant
risks and carry out substantive testing on transactions and balances.

Materiality

The level of materiality is defined as the magnitude of an omission or
misstatement that individually or in aggregate could be expected to influence
users of the accounts.

The materiality level for 2015/16 has been set at £1.75m based on 2% of gross
revenue expenditure. In addition misstatements greater than £88,000 will be
reported. It is possible that the level of materiality may change during the audit.

At the end of the audit Ernst and Young will form an audit opinion by reference
to all matters that could be significant to users of the accounts, including the
effect of misstatements.

Timetable

The timetable below show the key dates for the audit and also the dates at
which Corporate Governance Panel (CGP) will receive reports and updates.
The full detail of the required communications to those charged with
governance are shown in Appendix B of the Audit Plan.

Audit Phase Timetable CGP Update Deliverables

High level planning April 2015 9 March 2016 Audit Fee Letter
January 2016 Audit Plan

Risk assessment and | January 8 June 2016 Progress Report

scope setting

Testing procedures February/March | 8 June 2016 Progress Report

Year-end audit July/August September 2016

24



those
with

Completion of audit September September 2016 | Report  to
charged
governance
Audit Report
Audit Completion
Certificate

Report to NAO on

WGA

Conclusion of reporting | October tbe Annual Audit Letter

Auditor Independence

5.5 The Ethical Standards require that Ernst and Young communicate with the
Council on a timely basis on all significant matters that bear on their
independence and objectivity. The aim of this is to ensure full and fair disclosure
to those charged with governance.

Ernst and Young have highlighted within the Audit Plan threats to their
independence and how they expect to mitigate these. The threats include:
e Self-interest threats — other on-going relationships.
o Self-review threats — fees payable to Ernst and Young are disclosed in
the financial statements.
¢ Management threats — making decisions for the Council.
¢ Other threats — advocacy or intimidation.
6.0 AUDIT TEAM
6.1 The audit team leaders will comprise:
e Executive Director - Rob Murray
e Assistant Manager — Tony Poynton

7.0 AUDIT FEES

7.1 The total audit scale fee for 2015/16 is £71,372. This is a reduction of 55%
since 2011/12. The reduction in fees for 2015/16 was required by Public Sector
Audit Appointments.

Audit Fee
Actual | Actual Actual Actual Scale Reduction | Reduction
2011/12 | 2012/13 | 2013/14 | 2014/15 | 2015/16 since since
2011/12 2011/12
£ £ £ £ £ % £

Audit work 124,301 | 77,768 83,834 78,481 53,236 (57) (71,065)

performed

under the

Code of Audit

Practice (*)

Certification of | 35,000 | 24,484 26,269 18,380 18,136 (48) (16,864)

Claims and

Returns

Total 159,301 | 102,252 | 110,103 | 96,861 | 71,372 (55) (87,929)

*This includes audit work relating to the Annual Financial Report, Value for Money
and Whole of Government Accounts

25




7.2

7.3

8.1

9.1

10.

10.1

10.2

11.

111

12.

12.1

13.

13.1

14

14.1

15.

15.1

It is possible the fee may change if additional work is required because

misstatements lead to extra testing, any changes to fees will be discussed with

the Council in advance. The fee levels are based on the following assumptions:
e Officers meeting agreed timetable.

Reliance can be placed on the work of Internal Audit.

Accounts and value for money conclusions are unqualified.

Appropriate quality of documentation is provided.

The Council has an effective control environment.

Fees for consideration of correspondence from public and formal objections will
be an additional charge.

KEY IMPACTS/RISKS

The risks associated with the actions in this report are financial statement risks
and value for money risks, these risks are addressed in section 3.

WHAT ACTIONS WILL BE TAKEN/TIMETABLE FOR IMPLEMENTATION

The plan including key dates and milestones that are necessary in order to
complete the audit successfully are included in paragraph 5.4.

LINK TO CORPORATE PLAN

Empower local communities — by providing an Annual Financial Report that
provides accurate information on the Council’s finances.

Become more business-like and efficient in the way we deliver services — by
ensuring that the audit is well planned and executed.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no direct legal implications arising from this report.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

The 2015/16 budget for External Audit Fees is £90,000. The estimated fee for
2015/16 is £71,372, and therefore the budget should be sufficient to allow for
any additional charges that arise during the audit.

OTHER IMPLICATIONS

No other implications.

REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDED DECISIONS

It is recommended that the Panel reviews the attached External Audit Plan
2015/16 (attached as Appendix 1) and;

e Comments on the plan in general.
e Comments on the level of comfort with the updates the Panel will receive
during the audit process.

LIST OF APPENDICES INCLUDED

Appendix 1 — Huntingdonshire District Council Audit Plan 2015/16

26



BACKGROUND PAPERS
Ernst and Young Audit Plan
CONTACT OFFICERS

Clive Mason, Head of Resources
01480 388157

Oliver Colbert, Principal Accountant
01480 388067

27



This page is intentionally left blank



Huntingdonshire District

Council
Year ending 31 March 2016

Audit Plan
2 February 2016

Ernst & Young LLP

EY

Building a better
working world

29



P
JZES N

Y

\

Y
<

Ernst & Young LLP Tel: + 44 1223 394400
One Cambridge Business Park Fax: + 44 1223 394401
Cambridge ey.com !

\

A

S
Building a better cBaowz INVESTOR IN PEOPLE
working world
Corporate Governance Panel 2 February 2016

Pathfinder House
St Mary's Street
Huntingdon
Cambridgeshire
PE29 3TN

Dear Panel Members

Audit Plan

We are pleased to attach our Audit Plan which sets out how we intend to carry out our responsibilities as
auditor. Its purpose is to provide the Corporate Governance Panel with a basis to review our proposed
audit approach and scope for the 2015/16 audit in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit
and Accountability Act 2014, the National Audit Office’s 2015 Code of Audit Practice, the Statement of
Responsibilities issued by Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) Ltd, auditing standards and other
professional requirements. It is also to ensure that our audit is aligned with the Panel’s service
expectations.

This plan summarises our initial assessment of the key risks driving the development of an effective
audit for the Council, and outlines our planned audit strategy in response to those risks.

We welcome the opportunity to discuss this Audit Plan with you on 9 March 2016 and to understand
whether there are other matters which you consider may influence our audit.

Yours faithfully

Rob Murray

Executive Director
For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP
Enc

The UK firm Ernst & Young LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wa h registered number OC300001 and is a member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
Alist of members’ names is available for inspection at 1 More London Place, London



Contents

Contents

L OVBIVIBW ettt ee ittt ettt oo oottt et e e e e oo skt b b et e e e e e e e e e abbb b e e e e e e e e e annnbbbreeeaaeeaaannns 1
2. Financial StatemeNnt MSKS .......uuuiiiiiiii ittt e e e e e e e e e e 2
3. Value for MONEY FISKS c.iiiiiiiiiiiiieeeee e 4
4. Our audit ProCeSS aNd STIALEQY . .uuuuuuuururrrurrirurrrerrrrrrrerreererrrrreerrerrrrrrrer——————————.. 5
B INAEPENUENCE. ... it 9
AP PENAIX A F BB ittt 11

Appendix B UK required communications with those charged with governance ....12

In April 2015 Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) issued “Statement of responsibilities of auditors and
audited bodies 2015-16'. It is available from the Chief Executive of each audited body and via the PSAA website
(www.psaa.co.uk)

The Statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of engagement between appointed auditors and audited
bodies. It summarises where the different responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies begin and end, and what is
to be expected of the audited body in certain areas.

The ‘Terms of Appointment from 1 April 2015’ issued by PSAA sets out additional requirements that auditors must
comply with, over and above those set out in the National Audit Office Code of Audit Practice (the Code) and statute,
and covers matters of practice and procedure which are of a recurring nature.

This Audit Plan is prepared in the context of the Statement of responsibilities. It is addressed to the Corporate
Governance Panel, and is prepared for the sole use of the audited body. We, as appointed auditor, take no
responsibility to any third party.

Our Complaints Procedure — If at any time you would like to discuss with us how our service to you could be
improved, or if you are dissatisfied with the service you are receiving, you may take the issue up with your usual
partner or director contact. If you prefer an alternative route, please contact Steve Varley, our Managing Partner, 1
More London Place, London SE1 2AF. We undertake to look into any complaint carefully and promptly and to do all
we can to explain the position to you. Should you remain dissatisfied with any aspect of our service, you may of
course take matters up with our professional institute. We can provide further information on how you may contact
our professional institute.

EY |i

31



Overview

Overview

This Audit Plan covers the work that we plan to perform to provide you with:

» Our audit opinion on whether the financial statements of Huntingdonshire District Council
give a true and fair view of the financial position as at 31 March 2016 and of the income
and expenditure for the year then ended; and

»  Our conclusion on the Council’'s arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and
effectiveness.

We will also review and report to the National Audit Office (NAO), to the extent and in the
form required by them, on the Council's Whole of Government Accounts return.

Our audit will also include the mandatory procedures that we are required to perform in
accordance with applicable laws and auditing standards.

When planning the audit we take into account several key inputs:

» Strategic, operational and financial risks relevant to the financial statements;
» Developments in financial reporting and auditing standards;

» The quality of systems and processes;

» Changes in the business and regulatory environment; and,

» Management's views on all of the above.

By considering these inputs, our audit is focused on the areas that matter and our feedback is
more likely to be relevant to the Council.

We will provide an update to the Corporate Governance Panel on the results of our work in
these areas in our report to those charged with governance scheduled for delivery in
September 2016.

EY |1

32



Financial statement risks

Financial statement risks

We outline below our current assessment of the financial statement risks facing the Council,
identified through our knowledge of the Council’s operations and discussion with those

charged with governance and officers.

At our meeting, we will seek to validate these with you.

Significant risks (including fraud risks)

Our audit approach

Valuation and Impairment of Property Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) represent the
largest asset values on the Council’'s balance sheet.

Land and buildings are initially measured at cost and
then revalued to fair value. Council dwellings are
revalued annually whilst other land and buildings and
investment property are revalued on a 5 year rolling
basis.

This is carried out by an external expert valuer and is
based on a number of complex assumptions. Annually
assets are assessed to identify whether there is any
indication of impairment.

ISAs (UK and Ireland) 500 and 540 require us to
undertake procedures on the use of external experts and
assumptions underlying fair value estimates.

We will obtain an understanding of and evaluate key
controls over the valuation of PPE and Investment
Property.

Where asset valuations are undertaken in-year we will:

e agree the source data used by your valuer to
supporting records;

e  assess the work of your valuer; and

e agree the outputs to your fixed asset register and
statements

Where the Council proposes significant changes to
valuation bases we will evaluate the rationale.

Where assets are not revalued in-year, we will review
the Council's impairment assessment and consideration
of whether the carrying value of these assets remain
appropriate.

Pension Liability

The Council operates a defined benefits pension
scheme. Accounting for this scheme involves significant
estimation and judgement. The Pension liability is the
largest balance on the balance sheet. Due to the nature,
volume and size of the transactions we consider this to
be a significant risk.

We will obtain an understanding of and evaluate key
controls over the valuation of the pension liability.

We will consider:
» the expertise of the Actuary used by the Council;

» thereasonableness of the estimations and
judgements used; and

» the completeness and accuracy of the data provided
to the Actuary

Risk of fraud in revenue recognition

Under ISA240 there is a presumed risk that revenue
may be misstated due to improper recognition of
revenue.

In the public sector, this requirement is modified by
Practice Note 10, issued by the Financial Reporting
Council, which states that auditors should also consider
the risk that material misstatements may occur by the
manipulation of expenditure recognition.

Risk of management override

As identified in ISA (UK and Ireland) 240, management
is in a unique position to perpetrate fraud because of its
ability to manipulate accounting records directly or
indirectly and prepare fraudulent financial statements by
overriding controls that otherwise appear to be operating
effectively. We identify and respond to this fraud risk on
every audit engagement.

33

We will
» Review and test revenue and expenditure
recognition policies

» Review and discuss with management any
accounting estimates on revenue or expenditure
recognition for evidence of bias

» Develop a testing strategy to test material revenue
and expenditure streams

» Review and test revenue cut-off at the period end
date

Our approach will focus on:

» Testing the appropriateness of journal entries
recorded in the general ledger and other
adjustments made in the preparation of the financial
statements

» Reviewing accounting estimates for evidence of
management bias, and

» Evaluating the business rationale for significant
unusual transactions

EY |2



2.1

Financial statement risks

Responsibilities in respect of fraud and error

We would like to take this opportunity to remind you that management has the primary
responsibility to prevent and detect fraud. It is important that management, with the oversight
of those charged with governance, has a culture of ethical behaviour and a strong control
environment that both deters and prevents fraud.

Our responsibility is to plan and perform audits to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free of material misstatements whether
caused by error or fraud. As auditors, we approach each engagement with a questioning
mind that accepts the possibility that a material misstatement due to fraud could occur, and
design the appropriate procedures to consider such risk.

Based on the requirements of auditing standards our approach will focus on:

» Identifying fraud risks during the planning stages;

» Enquiry of management about risks of fraud and the controls to address those risks;

» Understanding the oversight given by those charged with governance of management'’s
processes over fraud;

» Consideration of the effectiveness of management’s controls designed to address the risk
of fraud;

» Determining an appropriate strategy to address any identified risks of fraud, and,

» Performing mandatory procedures regardless of specifically identified risks.

EY |3

34



Value for money risks

Value for money risks

We are required to consider whether the Council has put in place ‘proper arrangements’ to
secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness on its use of resources. For 2015-16 this is
based on the overall evaluation criterion:

“In all significant respects, the audited body had proper arrangements to ensure it took
properly informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable
outcomes for taxpayers and local people”

Proper arrangements are defined by statutory guidance issued by the National Audit Office.
They comprise your arrangements to:

» Take informed decisions;
» Deploy resources in a sustainable manner; and
» Work with partners and other third parties.

In considering your proper arrangements, we will draw on the requirements of the
CIPFA/SOLACE framework for local government to ensure that our assessment is made
against a framework that you are already required to have in place and to report on through
documents such as your annual governance statement.

We are only required to determine whether there are any risks that we consider significant,
which the Code of Audit Practice defines as:

“A matter is significant if, in the auditor’s professional view, it is reasonable to conclude that
the matter would be of interest to the audited body or the wider public”

Our risk assessment supports the planning of sufficient work to enable us to deliver a safe
conclusion on arrangements to secure value for money and enables us to determine the
nature and extent of further work that may be required. If we do not identify any significant
risks there is no requirement to carry out further work.

Our risk assessment has therefore considered both the potential financial impact of the
issues we have identified, and also the likelihood that the issue will be of interest to local
taxpayers, the Government and other stakeholders. This has not identified any risks which
we view as relevant to our value for money conclusion.

EY |4

35



4.1

4.2

Our audit process and strategy

Our audit process and strategy

Objective and scope of our audit

Under the Code of Audit Practice our principal objectives are to review and report on the
Council’s:

» Financial statements; and

» Arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources
to the extent required by the relevant legislation and the requirements of the Code.

We issue an audit report that covers:
1. Financial statement audit

Our objective is to form an opinion on the financial statements under International Standards
on Auditing (UK and Ireland).

We report to you by exception in respect of your governance statement and other
accompanying material as required, in accordance with relevant guidance prepared by the
NAO on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General.

Alongside our audit report, we also review and report to the NAO on the Whole of
Government Accounts return to the extent and in the form they require

2. Arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness (value
for money)

We are required to consider whether the Council has put in place ‘proper arrangements’ to
secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness on its use of resources.

Audit process overview

Our audit involves:
» Assessing key internal controls where we have identified significant risks;

» Reviewing the work of Internal Audit where appropriate to inform the identification of risk
and our work on the Annual Governance Statement;

» Reliance on the work of valuation experts in relation to areas such as pensions,
property; the NDR appeals provision; and financial instruments;

» Substantive tests of detail of transactions and amounts

Analytics

We will use our computer-based analytics tools to enable us to capture whole populations of
your financial data, in particular journal entries. These tools:

» Help identify specific exceptions and anomalies which can then be subject to more
traditional substantive audit tests

» Give greater likelihood of identifying errors than random sampling techniques.

EY |5

36



Our audit process and strategy

Internal audit

To the fullest extent permissible by auditing standards, we intend to consider internal audit's
work in documenting your financial systems and controls. This will enable us to more
efficiently update our understanding of your systems and carry out the walkthrough of those
systems as required under auditing standards. Our intention is to carry out a fully substantive
audit in 2015/16 rather than rely on the operation of controls as we believe this to be a more
efficient approach.

We will review internal audit plans and the results of their work. We will reflect the findings
from these reports, together with reports from any other work completed in the year, in our
detailed audit plan where they raise issues that could have an impact on the year-end
financial statements.

Use of specialists

When auditing key judgements, we are often required to rely on the input and advice
provided by specialists who have qualifications and expertise not possessed by the core audit
team. The areas where either EY or third party specialists provide input for the current year
audit are:

Area Specialists

Property valuations Expert valuer

Pension Liability valuation Actuary / EY Pensions team
Financial Instruments valuations Expert Valuer

NDR Appeals Provision Expert Valuer

In accordance with Auditing Standards, we will evaluate each specialist's professional
competence and objectivity, considering their qualifications, experience and available
resources, together with the independence of the individuals performing the work.

We also consider the work performed by the specialist in light of our knowledge of the
Council’'s environment and processes and our assessment of audit risk in the particular area.
For example, we would typically perform the following procedures:

» Analyse source data and make inquiries as to the procedures used by the expert to
establish whether the source date is relevant and reliable;

» Assess the reasonableness of the assumptions and methods used;

» Consider the appropriateness of the timing of when the specialist carried out the work;
and

» Assess whether the substance of the specialist’s findings are properly reflected in the
financial statements.

Mandatory audit procedures required by auditing standards
and the Code

As well as the financial statement risks (section two) and value for money risks (section
three), we must perform other procedures as required by auditing, ethical and independence
standards, the Code and other regulations. We outline below the procedures we will
undertake during the course of our audit.

EY |6

37



4.4

4.5

4.6

Our audit process and strategy

Procedures required by standards

» Addressing the risk of fraud and error;
» Significant disclosures included in the financial statements;
» Entity-wide controls;

» Reading other information contained in the financial statements and reporting whether it
is inconsistent with our understanding and the financial statements;

» Auditor independence.

Procedures required by the Code

» Reviewing, and reporting on as appropriate, other information published with the
financial statements, including the Annual Governance Statement and the Annual Report

» Reviewing and reporting on the Whole of Government Accounts return, in line with the
instructions issued by the NAO.

Finally, we are also required to discharge our statutory duties and responsibilities as
established by the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014.

Materiality

For the purposes of determining whether the financial statements are free from material error,
we define materiality as the magnitude of an omission or misstatement that, individually or in
aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence the users of the financial statements.
Our evaluation requires professional judgement and so takes into account qualitative as well
as quantitative considerations implied in the definition.

We have determined that overall materiality for the financial statements of the Council is
£1.75 million based on 2% of gross revenue expenditure in the provision of services. We will
communicate uncorrected audit misstatements greater than £88,000 to you.

The amount we consider material at the end of the audit may differ from our initial
determination. At this stage, however, it is not feasible to anticipate all the circumstances that
might ultimately influence our judgement. At the end of the audit we will form our final opinion
by reference to all matters that could be significant to users of the financial statements,
including the total effect of any audit misstatements, and our evaluation of materiality at that
date.

Fees

The duty to prescribe fees is a statutory function delegated to Public Sector Audit
Appointments Ltd (PSAA) by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government.
PSAA has published a scale fee for all relevant bodies. This is defined as the fee required by
auditors to meet statutory responsibilities under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in
accordance with the NAO Code. The indicative scale fee for the audit of Huntingdonshire
District Council is £53,236 (2014/15: £70,981).

Your audit team

The engagement team is led by Rob Murray, who has significant experience of Local
Government audit. Rob is supported by Tony Poynton who is responsible for the day-to-day
direction of audit work and is the key point of contact for the Finance Manager.

EY |7

38



4.7

Our audit process and strategy

Timetable of communication, deliverables and insights

We have set out below a timetable showing the key stages of the audit, including the value
for money work and the Whole of Government Accounts. The timetable includes the
deliverables we have agreed to provide to the Council through the Corporate Governance
Panel’s cycle in 2015/16. These dates are determined to ensure our alignment with PSAA's
rolling calendar of deadlines.

From time to time matters may arise that require immediate communication with the
Corporate Governance Panel and we will discuss them with the Chair as appropriate.

Following the conclusion of our audit we will prepare an Annual Audit Letter to communicate
the key issues arising from our work to the Council and external stakeholders, including
members of the public.

Corporate

Governance
Audit phase Timetable Panel Deliverables
High level planning April 2015 - Audit Fee Letter

Risk assessment and
setting of scopes

Testing routine
processes and
controls

Year-end audit

Completion of audit

Conclusion of
reporting

January 2016

January

February / March

July / August

September

October

9 March 2016

8 June 2016

8 June 2016

September 2016
September 2016

thc

Audit Plan

Progress Report

Progress Report

Report to those charged with governance via the
Audit Results Report

Audit report (including our opinion on the
financial statements; [our opinion on the
regularity of your expenditure and income]; and,
[by exception] overall value for money
conclusion).

Audit completion certificate
Reporting to the NAO on the Whole of
Government Accounts return.

Annual Audit Letter

In addition to the above formal reporting and deliverables we will seek to provide practical

business insights and updates on regulatory matters.

39

EY |8



5.1

5.2

Independence

Independence

Introduction

The APB Ethical Standards and ISA (UK and Ireland) 260 ‘Communication of audit matters
with those charged with governance’, requires us to communicate with you on a timely basis
on all significant facts and matters that bear on our independence and objectivity. The Ethical
Standards, as revised in December 2010, require that we do this formally both at the planning
stage and at the conclusion of the audit, as well as during the audit if appropriate. The aim of
these communications is to ensure full and fair disclosure by us to those charged with your
governance on matters in which you have an interest.

Required communications

Planning stage Final stage

» The principal threats, if any, to objectivity and » A written disclosure of relationships (including the
independence identified by EY including provision of non-audit services) that bear on our
consideration of all relationships between you, your objectivity and independence, the threats to our
affiliates and directors and us; independence that these create, any safeguards that

» The safeguards adopted and the reasons why they we have put in place and why they address such
are considered to be effective, including any threats, together with any other information
Engagement Quality Review; necessary to enable our objectivity and

independence to be assessed,;
The overall assessment of threats and safeguards;
Information about the general policies and process
within EY to maintain objectivity and independence.

» Details of non-audit services provided and the fees
charged in relation thereto;

Written confirmation that we are independent;
Details of any inconsistencies between APB Ethical
Standards, the PSAA Terms of Appointment and

your policy for the supply of non-audit services by
EY and any apparent breach of that policy; and

» An opportunity to discuss auditor independence
issues.

During the course of the audit we must also communicate with you whenever any significant
judgements are made about threats to objectivity and independence and the appropriateness
of our safeguards, for example when accepting an engagement to provide non-audit services.

We also provide information on any contingent fee arrangements, the amounts of any future
contracted services, and details of any written proposal to provide non-audit services;

We ensure that the total amount of fees that EY and our network firms have charged to you
and your affiliates for the provision of services during the reporting period are disclosed;
analysed in appropriate categories.

Relationships, services and related threats and safeguards

We highlight the following significant facts and matters that may be reasonably considered to
bear upon our objectivity and independence, including any principal threats. However we
have adopted the safeguards below to mitigate these threats along with the reasons why they
are considered to be effective.

Self-interest threats

A self-interest threat arises when EY has financial or other interests in your entity. Examples
include where we have an investment in your entity; where we receive significant fees in
respect of non-audit services; where we need to recover long outstanding fees; or where we
enter into a business relationship with the Council.

At the time of writing, there are no long outstanding fees.

EY |9

40



5.3

Independence

We believe that it is appropriate for us to undertake permissible non-audit services, and we
will comply with the policies that the Council has approved and that are in compliance with
PSAA Terms of Appointment.

At the time of writing, the current ratio of non-audit fees to audit fees is approximately 25:75.
No additional safeguards are required.

A self-interest threat may also arise if members of our audit engagement team have
objectives or are rewarded in relation to sales of non-audit services to the Council. We
confirm that no member of our audit engagement team, including those from other service
lines, is in this position, in compliance with Ethical Standard 4.

There are no other self-interest threats at the date of this report.

Self-review threats

Self-review threats arise when the results of a non-audit service performed by EY or others
within the EY network are reflected in the amounts included or disclosed in the financial
statements.

There are no other self-review threats at the date of this report.

Management threats

Partners and employees of EY are prohibited from taking decisions on behalf of management
of your entity. Management threats may also arise during the provision of a non-audit service
where management is required to make judgements or decisions based on that work.

There are no management threats at the date of this report.

Other threats

Other threats, such as advocacy, familiarity or intimidation, may arise.
There are no other threats at the date of this report.

Overall Assessment

Overall we consider that the adopted safeguards appropriately mitigate the principal threats
identified, and we therefore confirm that EY is independent and the objectivity and
independence of Rob Murray, the audit engagement Director and the audit engagement team
have not been compromised.

Other required communications

EY has policies and procedures that instil professional values as part of firm culture and
ensure that the highest standards of objectivity, independence and integrity are maintained.

Details of the key policies and processes within EY for maintaining objectivity and
independence can be found in our annual Transparency Report, which the firm is required to
publish by law. The most recent version of this report is for the year ended June 2015 and
can be found here:

http://www.ey.com/UK/en/About-us/EY-UK-Transparency-Report-2015

EY |10

41



Fees

Appendix A  Fees

A breakdown of our agreed fee is shown below.

Planned Fee Scale fee Outturn fee
2015/16 2015/16 2014/15 Explanation
£ £ £
Opinion Audit and VFM 53,236 53,236 70,981 Decrease due to 25%
Conclusion reduction in fees required
by PSAA

Total Audit Fee — Code work 53,236 53,236 70,891
Certification of claims and 18,136 18,136 18,380
returns *
Local risk work - - 7,500 None planned in 2015/16
Non-audit work 18,136 18,136 25,880

All fees exclude VAT.

The agreed fee presented above is based on the following assumptions:

» Officers meeting the agreed timetable of deliverables;

» We can rely on the work of internal audit as planned;

» Our accounts opinion and value for money conclusion being unqualified;
» Appropriate quality of documentation is provided by the Council; and

» The Council has an effective control environment.

If any of the above assumptions prove to be unfounded, we will seek a variation to the agreed
fee. This will be discussed with the Council in advance.

Fees for the auditor’s consideration of correspondence from the public and formal objections
will be charged in addition to the scale fee.

! Our fee for the certification of grant claims is based on the indicative scale fee set by the PSAA.

EY |11

42



UK required communications with those charged with governance

Appendix B UK required communications with those charged
with governance

There are certain communications that we must provide to the Corporate Governance Panel. These are
detailed here:

Required communication Reference

Planning and audit approach » Audit Plan
Communication of the planned scope and timing of the audit including any limitations.

Significant findings from the audit » Report to those charged with
» Our view about the significant qualitative aspects of accounting practices including accounting governance
policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures
» Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit
» Significant matters, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed with management
» Written representations that we are seeking
» Expected modifications to the audit report
» Other matters if any, significant to the oversight of the financial reporting process
Misstatements » Report to those charged with
» Uncorrected misstatements and their effect on our audit opinion governance
» The effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods
» Arequest that any uncorrected misstatement be corrected
» In writing, corrected misstatements that are significant
Fraud » Report to those charged with
» Enquiries of the Corporate Governance Panel to determine whether they have knowledge of any governance
actual, suspected or alleged fraud affecting the entity
» Any fraud that we have identified or information we have obtained that indicates that a fraud may
exist
» Adiscussion of any other matters related to fraud
Related parties » Report to those charged with
Significant matters arising during the audit in connection with the entity’s related parties including, governance
when applicable:
» Non-disclosure by management
» Inappropriate authorisation and approval of transactions
» Disagreement over disclosures
» Non-compliance with laws and regulations
» Difficulty in identifying the party that ultimately controls the entity
External confirmations » Report to those charged with
» Management's refusal for us to request confirmations governance
» Inability to obtain relevant and reliable audit evidence from other procedures
Consideration of laws and regulations » Report to those charged with
» Audit findings regarding non-compliance where the non-compliance is material and believed to be governance

intentional. This communication is subject to compliance with legislation on tipping off

» Enquiry of the Corporate Governance Panel into possible instances of non-compliance with laws
and regulations that may have a material effect on the financial statements and that the Corporate
Governance Panel may be aware of

EY |12

43



UK required communications with those charged with governance

Required communication Reference
Independence » Audit Plan
Communication of all significant facts and matters that bear on EY’s objectivity and independence » Report to those charged with

Communication of key elements of the audit engagement director’s consideration of independence
and objectivity such as:

» The principal threats

» Safeguards adopted and their effectiveness

» An overall assessment of threats and safeguards

» Information about the general policies and process within the firm to maintain objectivity and
independence

Going concern >

Events or conditions identified that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to continue as a
going concern, including:

» Whether the events or conditions constitute a material uncertainty

» Whether the use of the going concern assumption is appropriate in the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements

» The adequacy of related disclosures in the financial statements

Significant deficiencies in internal controls identified during the audit >
Fee Information >
» Breakdown of fee information at the agreement of the initial audit plan >
» Breakdown of fee information at the completion of the audit

>
Certification work >

» Summary of certification work undertaken

governance

Report to those charged with
governance

Report to those charged with
governance

Audit Plan

Report to those charged with
governance

Annual Audit Letter if
considered necessary

Annual Report to those
charged with governance
summarising grant
certification, and Annual Audit
Letter if considered necessary

44

EY |13



EY | Assurance | Tax | Transactions | Advisory

Ernst & Young LLP

© Ernst & Young LLP. Published in the UK.
All Rights Reserved.

The UK firm Ernst & Young LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales
with registered number OC300001 and is @ member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited.

Ernst & Young LLP, 1 More London Place, London, SE1 2AF.

ey.com

45

EY |14



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 6

Public
Key Decision - No

HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Title/Subject Matter:  Grant Certification 2014/15

Meeting/Date: Corporate Governance Panel 9 March 2016
Executive Portfolio:  Resources: Councillor J A Gray

Report by: Finance Manager

Ward(s) affected: All Wards

Executive Summary:

In 2014/15, the Council received £35m in Housing Benefit grant from central
government. This grant is subject to external audit as part of the control framework,
and the Council auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers complete this work.

The auditors are required to report their findings to “those charged with governance”
through the Annual Certification Report, which is attached as Appendix 1.

Minor errors were identified resulting in additional testing. The consequential impact
of this additional testing is an additional charge of £4,983.

Recommendation(s):

It is recommended that the Panel comment on the content of the external auditor’'s
Annual Certification Report 2014/15.

a7




11

2.1

3.1

4.1

4.2

5.1

WHAT IS THIS REPORT ABOUT

To report to the Panel, as those charged with governance, the conclusions
and recommendations of the Annual Certification Report 2014/15.

BACKGROUND

In 2014/15 the Council received £35.3m of Housing Benefit grant. This
scheme is subject to external audit by the Councils appointed external auditor.
The findings are required to be reported to “those charged with governance”,
which is the Corporate Governance Panel. The report is attached as
Appendix 1.

ANALYSIS

Certification results

The testing performed by the Councils external auditor identified two issues in
respect of the Council's compliance with the scheme regulations, both of these
are discussed below:

Errors in the classification of overpayments were identified during the
initial testing of 20 samples and the total of these errors amounted to
£171.91. Further sample testing of 40 cases identified no further
misclassifications. Extrapolating the error rate across the claim resulted
in additional subsidy of £3,090 being paid to HDC.

In the additional sample testing of 40 rent allowances cases, errors of
£44.43 were identified from 8 cases. This had no subsidy/financial
impact.

The total value of the 2014/15 error is £216: when compared to the:

total benefits budget of £35m, the error is tiny.
to the preceding year (the total error was £205), the 2014/15 error is not
out of line.

KEY IMPACTS/RISKS?
HOW WILL THEY BE ADDRESSED?

Members should note that there is no materiality on external audit grant
certification work for the Department of Works and Pensions. If an error is
identified, the audit instructions require that additional testing must be
undertaken and this will attract an additional charge.

The original indicative fee for the audit of the Housing Benefits Scheme grant
claims was £18,380. However, as errors were found in the initial testing there
was a requirement to undertake additional testing, this has resulted in a further
charge of £4,983 giving a total audit cost of £23,363, £818 less than in
2013/14.

WHAT ACTIONS WILL BE TAKEN/TIMETABLE FOR IMPLEMENTATION
The Benefits Section undertakes on-going accuracy checks and carries out
monthly training sessions for the team in order to minimise the number of

errors and this process will continue. Within the context of the overall claim,
the number and value of the errors identified are minimal.

48



6.1

7.1

8.1

9.1

10.

10.1

11

111

12.

LINK TO THE CORPORATE PLAN

The Annual Certification Report is a regulatory requirement.
CONSULTATION

No consultation is required for this report.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no direct legal implications arising from this report.
RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

The external audit budget for 2014/15 was £116,000 and accommodated this
additional cost of £4,983.

OTHER IMPLICATIONS

No other implications are known at this time

REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDED DECISIONS

The findings from the Annual Certification Report are required to be reported
’::())a r’:gﬁse “charged with governance”, which is the Corporate Governance

LIST OF APPENDICES INCLUDED

Appendix 1 — Annual Certification Report 2014/15

BACKGROUND PAPERS

None

CONTACT OFFICER

Rebecca Maxwell, Accountancy Manager

=
@a

01480 388117

John Taylor, Head of Customer Services

=
a

01480 388119

Amanda Burns, Benefits Manager

o=

01480 388122

49



This page is intentionally left blank



www.pwc.co.uk

Annual
Certification
Report 2014/15
Huntingdonshire
District Council
-
pwc

51



Annual Certification Report 2014/15 to those charged with governance — Huntingdonshire District Council

The Members of the Corporate Governance Panel

Huntingdonshire District Council
Pathfinder House

St Marys House

Huntingdon

PE29 3TN

5 January 2016

Ladies and Gentleman
Annual Certification Report (2014/15)
We are pleased to present our Annual Certification Report which provides members of the Corporate
Governance Panel with a high level overview of the results of the Housing Benefit certification work
we have undertaken at Huntingdonshire District Council for the financial year ended 31 March 2015.
Our work has been undertaken in accordance with our appointment by Public Sector Appointments
Ltd (PSAA) as external auditor. The PSAA is the replacement body of the Audit Commission as at 1
April 2015 and from this date only the Housing Benefit Subsidy claim was subject to certification
under this new arrangement. Independent reporting on any other grant claim or return fell outside
of the PSAA arrangement and as such is not included within this report.
We ask the Corporate Governance Panel to consider:

e the results of Housing Benefit certification work; and

e the adequacy of progress made by the Council in implementing the prior year action plan in
Appendix B.

Yours faithfully,

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

PwC 52 Page 2 of 9



Annual Certification Report 2014/15 to those charged with governance — Huntingdonshire District Council

Table of Contents

Results of Certification Work 4

BENo01 Housing Benefit Subsidy Claim for year ended 31 March 2015

a) Introduction

c) Fee

4
4
b) Summary information 4
5
d) Summary of matters arising 5

6

e) Prior year matters

Appendix A 7

Management Action Plan: Prior year issues (2013/14) — progress made 7

Glossary
Scope of Work

Statement of Responsibilities

®w 0 o @

PSAA Definitions for Certification work

PwC 53 Page 3 of 9



Annual Certification Report 2014/15 to those charged with governance — Huntingdonshire District Council

Results of Certification Work

BENo01 Housing Benefit Subsidy Claim for year ended 31
March 2015

a) Introduction

Local authorities responsible for administering housing benefit (HB) for tenants of a local authority and rent
allowances for private tenants, claim subsidy from the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) in
accordance with section 140 of the Social Security Administration Act 1992 and the Income-related Benefits
(Subsidy to Authorities) Order 1998, SI 562 as amended. With the exception of certain areas of benefit spending
where authorities have the most scope to monitor and control costs, subsidy is paid at the full rate of 100 per
cent. The final claim form (MPF720A) reflects the Authorities annual position for subsidy owed to / from DWP.
DWP use the results of auditor certification on this claim form as part of their determination in the annual
settlement or claw back with an Authority.

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (previously known as the Audit Commisison) require that all matters
arising are either amended for (where appropriate) or reported within a qualification letter which follows a
prescribed format. The certification approach which is to be applied by auditors (acting as agent to PSAA) is
defined by the PSAA and they have agreed guidance with the DWP.

The Council claim required amendments to the original claim form as submitted to the DWP in April 2015 in

respect of six benefit cases. There were also four qualifiation letter matters. The most important of these
matters are summarised in section d) below.

b) Summary information

CI Scheme Title | Form Original Final Amendment | Qualification
Reference Value Value
BENoO1 Housing Benefit | MPF720A £35,281,703 | £35,317,772 | Yes Yes

Subisdy

The difference between the original and final values of the above claim was an increase in subsidy due to the
Council amounting to £36,069. £7 of this amount related to errors identified during the certification. The
remaining difference was due to manual adjustments identified by the Council prior to the commencement of
the certification work.

PwC 5 4 Page 4 of 9




Annual Certification Report 2014/15 to those charged with governance — Huntingdonshire District Council

c) Fee

The fees for certification of each claim and return are set out below:

Claim/Return 2014/15 2014/15 2014/15 2013/14 Comment
Indicative Variation** Proposed Billed Fee
Fee * Final Fee**
£ £ £ £
BENoO1 Housing | £18,380 £4,983 £23,363 £24,181 The 2014/15 indicative fee is
Benefit Subsidy based upon the 2012/13

certification and the level of
errors identified during that
year. Two sets of extension
testing were required in
2012/13. Eight sets of
extension testing were
required in both 2013/14 and
2014/15. The fee 2014/15
variation reflects the costs of
this increased extension
testing.

The fee reflects the Council’s current performance and arrangements for Housing Benefit certification.

* Indicative fees may subsequently be updated for PSAA approved variations; for example where there was a
change in the level of work required.

** Fee variations which are pending PSAA approval.

d) Summary of matters arising

The most important matters we identified through our Housing Benefit claim certification work are
summarised below.

BENo1 Housing Benefit Subsidy Claim

Our testing identified a number of errors in relation to the Council’s compliance with Housing Benefit
regulations. In a number of cases it was possible to quantify these errors and make appropriate amendments to
the claim form. However, we also reported a number of matters to the DWP in a qualification letter where no
amendment could be agreed which would be representative of the whole population.

In summary, the most significant matters reported to the DWP related to:
e Rent allowances: Classification of overpayments

Testing of the initial sample of 20 rent allowance cases identified one case (total value £2,298.30)
where the Council had incorrectly classified expenditure between overpayment cells. The impact of the
error was to overstate cell 114 eligible overpayments, and understate cell 113 LA error / administrative
delay overpayments by £171.91. Testing of the additional sample of 40 cases from the sub-population of
eligible overpayments identified no further cases where the Council had misclassified expenditure.

Our qualification letter included an extrapolated error with eligible overpayments being overstated and

LA error / administrative delay overpayments understated by £5,150. Eligible overpayments attract
subsidy at a rate of 40%; LA error / administrative delay overpayments are eligible for 100% subsidy

PwC 55 Page 5 of 9



Annual Certification Report 2014/15 to those charged with governance — Huntingdonshire District Council

provided that the upper threshold for those overpayments is not exceeded. Therefore, the gain in
subsidy for the Council in the DWP’s final settlement was £3,090, being the remaining 60% of the value
of the extrapolated overpayment.

We have not included a similar finding in our qualification letter in previous years.

e Rent allowances: Calculation of earned income

In the prior year, we reported that under and overpayments of benefit had been identified as a result of
the Council’s miscalculation of earned income within rent allowance cases. No similar errors were
identified in our initial sample of 20 cases for 2014/15. In order to determine whether similar errors
were present in the rent allowance population, we have performed additional testing of 40 cases with
earned income calculations which identified:

1) Two cases where benefit had been underpaid as a result of the Council miscalculating the claimant’s
earned income;

2) Five cases where benefit had been overpaid as a result of the Council miscalculating the claimant’s
earned income; and

3) One further case where the Council miscalculated the Council’s earned income, which had no
impact on subsidy.

The total value of the overpayments was £44.43. The impact of the overpayment errors is to overstate
detailed cells 099, 102 and 103 with a corresponding understatement of cell 113 (LA error /
administrative delay overpayments). Our qualification letter included an estimated error extrapolation
of £3,072 as a result of the overpayments identified.

As there is no eligibility to subsidy for benefit which has not been paid, the two underpayments
identified do not affect subsidy and have not, therefore, been classified as an error for subsidy purposes.

A similar finding was included in our qualification letter for the previous two years.

The extended testing following our initial testing of benefit cases was performed this year by the Council in the
respect of each of the above matters. We are pleased to report that this testing was of good quality. No issues
arose from our reperformance of an element of this work.

The gain of subsidy to the Council as a result of all our findings is a net impact of £3,097. This reflects the final
settlement details from DWP and includes the £7 difference in the final subsidy identified in section (a) above,
and £3,090 resulting from the overpayment misclassification highlighted in section (d) above

e) Prior year matters

We have reviewed the progress made by the Council in implementing the certification action plan for 2013/14;
details can be found in Appendix A. No new recommendations have arisen from our 2014/15 certification.

PwC 56 Page 6 of 9



Annual Certification Report 2014/15 to those charged with governance — Huntingdonshire District Council

Appendix A

Management Action Plan: Prior year issues (2013/14) —

progress made

BENo1 Housing Benefit Subsidy Claim (deadline 30 November 2014)

Issue

Prior year
Recommendation

2013/14 Management
response

Recommendation
Status 2014/15

Several errors were identified
during our testing which related to
the Council’s manual assessment of
claimant circumstances.

One miscalculation was identified
in the assessment of a claimant’s
rent liability. In addition, errors
were also noted over the
assessment of claimant income in
five cases.

One further error was noted where
a claimant’s earned income and
child and working tax credits had
been incorrectly not applied.

Following the errors identified, we
were required to report a number of
matters to the DWP in a
qualification letter.

As a result of the increase
in the number of errors
identified since the prior
year, the Council should
review the training
offered to staff and
ensure that the checks
currently performed over
benefit assessments are
sufficient.

The Benefit Section currently
undertakes monthly
training/refresher sessions for
assessment officers in order to
ensure officers are kept up to
date with the latest rules and
procedures and that areas
where issues have been
identified are addressed in
order to prevent any
recurrence. Additionally, 10%
of new claims and changes of
circumstances are checked for
accuracy and earnings cases
are specifically identified
within this checking regime.
Having reviewed the checks
currently in place and
considering the high volumes
of cases handled by assessors
every year, it is considered the
value of errors identified
(£205.21) is not unreasonable.

We are pleased to
note that the number
of errors identified
within the 2014/15
claim has reduced
from 2013/14. As
noted above,
however, there were
some instances where
previous errors had
also occurred in
2014/15, including in
respect of earned
income calculations.
The Council should
continue to focus on
this area to help
reduce the error rate.

The Council’s benefits system,
Northgate, is unable to automate a
few types of transaction. The
Council is therefore required to
manually amend the system to
ensure that the correct benefit is
awarded to claimants.
Corresponding manual adjustments
are also required to the subsidy
claim report extracted from
Northgate.

Most Councils complete manual
adjustment procedures prior to the
submission of the final claim, which
simplifies our certification work.

With due regard for the
end of April claim
submission deadline, we
recommend that the
Council put in place
proportionate measures
to limit the number of
manual adjustments to
the final claim.

Manual adjustments are
checked by a senior officer
before being entered onto the
Northgate benefits system.
This check not only validates
the accuracy of the adjustment
but also whether it is
necessary, thus controlling the
number of adjustments
created. However, whilst every
attempt is made to complete
this work prior to the claim
submission, this is not always
possible due to the extremely
tight deadlines.

Whilst we note the
pressures on the
benefits team around
the submission
deadline, in 2014/15
the Council continued
to process manual
adjustments
subsequent to the end
of April claim
submission deadline.

PwC

57

Page 7 of 9




Glossary

Scope of Work

Each year the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) requests certification by an appropriately qualified
auditor, of the Housing Benefit subsidy claim as submitted to them by local authorities each April. Certification
arrangements are made by the PSAA (tranistional body for the Audit Commission from 1 April 2015) under
Section 28 of the Audit Commission Act 1998 and allows for the DWP to obtain assurance about an authority’s
entitlement to Housing Benefit subsidy in respect of their administering of housing benefit (HB) for tenants of a
local authority and rent allowances for private tenants.

Certification work is not an audit but a different type of assurance engagement which reaches a conclusion but
does not express an opinion. This involves applying prescribed tests, as set out within HBCOUNT Modules and
BENoO1 Certification Instruction (CI) issued to us by the PSAA; these are designed to provide assurance, for
example, that the Authority claim is fairly stated and in accordance with specified terms and conditions.

Our role is to act as ‘agent’ of the PSAA when undertaking this certification work. We are required to carry out
work and complete an auditor certificate in accordance with the arrangements and requirements set by the
PSAA.

We also consider the results of certification work when performing other Code of Audit Practice work at the
Authority, including our conclusions on the financial statements and value for money.

International Standards on Auditing UK and Ireland (ISAs), the Auditing Practices Board’s Practice Note 10
(Revised) and the PSAA’s Code of Audit Practice do not apply to certification work.

Statement of Responsibilities

The PSAA publishes a ‘Statement of responsibilities of grant-paying bodies, authorities, the PSAA and
appointed auditors in relation to claims and returns’ this is available from the PSAA website. It summarises the
Commission's framework for making certification arrangements and highlights the different responsibilities of
grant-paying bodies, authorities, the PSAA and appointed auditors in relation to claims and returns.

PSAA Definitions for Certification work

Abbreviations used in certification work are:-

‘appointed auditor’ is the auditor appointed by the PSAA
(previously known as the Audit Commission) under section 3 of the

‘claims’ includes claims for grant or subsidies and for contractual
payments due under agency agreements, co-financing schemes or
Audit Commission Act 1998 to audit an authority’s accounts who, otherwise;
for the purpose of certifying claims and returns under section 28 of
the Act, acts as an agent of the Commission. In this capacity, whilst
qualified to act as an independent external auditor, the appointed
auditor acts as a professional accountant undertaking an assurance
engagement governed by the Commission’s certification instruction

arrangements;

‘assurance engagement’ is an engagement performed by a
professional accountant in which a subject matter that is the
responsibility of another party is evaluated or measured against
identified suitable criteria, with the objective of expressing a
conclusion that provides the intended user with reasonable
assurance about that subject matter;

‘Commission’ refers to either the PSAA or the Grants Team of
the Audit Policy and Regulation Directorate of the Commission
which is responsible for making certification arrangements and for
all liaison with grant-paying bodies and auditors on certification
issues;

58



‘auditor’ is a person carrying out the detailed checking of claims
and returns on behalf of the appointed auditor, in accordance with
the Commission’s and appointed auditor’s scheme of delegation;

‘HBCOUNT Modules ’ are written instructions and a set of
mandated tools from the Commission to appointed auditors on the
certification of the Housing Benefit claims and returns;

‘authorities’ means all bodies whose auditors are appointed
under the Audit Commission Act 1998, which have requested the
certification of claims and returns under section 28(1) of that Act;

‘grant-paying bodies’ includes government departments,
public authorities, directorates and related agencies,

requiring authorities to complete claims and returns;

‘certification instructions’ (‘CIs’) are written instructions
from the Commission to appointed auditors on the certification of
claims and returns;

‘Statement’ is the Statement of responsibilities of grant-paying
bodies, authorities, the PSAA and appointed auditors in relation to
claims and returns, available from www.audit-commission.gov.uk;

‘certify’ means the completion of the certificate on a claim or
return by the appointed auditor in accordance with arrangements
made by the Commission;

‘underlying records’ are the accounts, data and other working
papers supporting entries on a claim or return.

In the event that, pursuant to a request which Huntingdonshire District Council has received under the Freedom of
Information Act 2000, it is required to disclose any information contained in this report, it will notify PwC promptly and
consult with PwC prior to disclosing such report. Huntingdonshire District Council agrees to pay due regard to any
representations which PwC may make in connection with such disclosure and Huntingdonshire District Council shall apply
any relevant exemptions which may exist under the Act to such report. If, following consultation with PwC,
Huntingdonshire District Council discloses this report or any part thereof, it shall ensure that any disclaimer which PwC has
included or may subsequently wish to include in the information is reproduced in full in any copies disclosed.

This document has been prepared for the intended recipients only. To the extent permitted by law, PricewaterhouseCoopers
LLP does not accept or assume any liability, responsibility or duty of care for any use of or reliance on this document by
anyone, other than (i) the intended recipient to the extent agreed in the relevant contract for the matter to which this
document relates (if any), or (ii) as expressly agreed by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP at its sole discretion in writing in

advance.

© 2016 PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. All rights reserved. 'PricewaterhouseCoopers' refers to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
(a limited liability partnership in the United Kingdom) or, as the context requires, other member firms of
PricewaterhouseCoopers International Limited, each of which is a separate and independent legal entity.

59



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 7

Public
Key Decision — No

HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
Title: Code of Financial Management and Code of
Procurement update for 2016/17
Meeting/Date: Corporate Governance Panel
9 March 2016

Executive Portfolio:  Resources: Councillor J A Gray

Report by: Finance Manager
Procurement Manager

Ward(s) affected: All Wards

Executive Summary:

The Code of Financial Management and the Code of Procurement are reviewed on
an annual basis to ensure that they reflect current legislation and the changing needs
of the Council. These policies underpin financial governance in the Council and are
annexes to the Council’s Constitution.

The Code of Financial Management is the Council’s primary financial policy which
sets out the financial responsibilities and is updated on an annual basis to ensure
that the Code provides clear and updated guidance of responsibility and
accountability for the 2016/17 financial year.

The Code of Procurement provides the Council with policy and rules for compliance
with public procurement legislation. EU directives have changed the thresholds
applicable to public procurement (effective from 1 January 2016) and clarified
processes relating to concessions and some types of social services contracts. The
Code has also introduced processes to manage potential conflicts of interest in the
procurement process and simplified procedures for receipting tenders.

Recommendation(s):
It is recommended that the Panel agrees the report and recommends to Council the
approval of:

e The Code of Financial Management, Appendix 1
o The Code of Procurement, Appendix 2

61




11

2.1

2.2

3.1

WHAT IS THIS REPORT ABOUT/PURPOSE

The Code of Financial Management and the Code of Procurement are reviewed on an
annual basis to ensure that they reflect current legislation and the changing needs of the
Council. These policies underpin the financial governance of the Council and are
incorporated in the Constitution.

WHY IS THIS REPORT NECESSARY/BACKGROUND

The Code of Financial Management is the Council’s primary financial policy and sets out
the financial responsibilities, financial and service planning, control of financial plans,
cash and credit management and accounting procedures.

The Code of Procurement provides the framework for compliance with current legislation

as well as the basis for ‘best practice’. Procurement documentation and training will be
revised to comply with the changes detailed at paragraph 3 below.

OPTIONS CONSIDERED/ANALYSIS

Code of Financial Management
The main changes to the Code of Financial Management are included in the table below.

Para. @ Section Summary of the Changes
1.1 General Removal of reference to Responsible Financial Officer,
widening the responsibility for informing financial
implications to relevant officers accountable for budgets.
1.7, Budget Assigning of accountability to budget managers/managers
1.8 Managers and and relevant Executive Councillors.
'\Eﬂfggﬁf\}: & Being responsible for planning for the budgetary cycle, so
) far as it relates to their budgets.
Councillors
1.19 Budget Revised vacant post authorisation.

Managers . : .
Inclusion of requirement to report fraud and corruption to
the Internal Audit & Risk Manager.

Increasing accountability for delivery of services etc and
financial performance, including comparisons to service
standards and organisational comparators.

3.2, Controlling On a monthly basis financial and overall performance will

3.3 financial plans be reviewed by the budgets managers and relevant
Executive Councillor.
Removal of the specific compilation of the Financial
Performance Monitoring Suite to facilitate improvements
during the year.

3.8, Controlling Increase in additional spending with net impact from

3.9, financial plans £350,000 to £500,000

3.10

3.14 Controlling Clarifying the limitations and increasing the budget virement

financial plans from £4,000 to £5,000.
3.15 Controlling Increase in CMT budget virement approval limit from

financial plans

£150,000 to £250,000.

62



3.2

3.3

3.16 Controlling Increase in Cabinet budget virement approval limit from
financial plans £350,000 to £500,000.

3.17 Controlling Inclusion of Cabinet approval for Earmarked Reserve
financial plans allocation if within net budget.

3.20,  Controlling Update on the approval of capital schemes process.

321 financial plans

5.3 Accounting Clarified budget manager responsibility in respect of
requirements financial record keeping and removed reference to contract

processing in the financial management system.

5.8 Accounting Clarification on the approval for write offs
requirements

511 Accounting Earmarked reserves will be operated in line with the
requirements Earmarked Reserves Strategy.

5.12 Accounting Section 6 Assets has been incorporated into section 5 as
requirements the detail is now included within the Disposals and

acquisition policy with the approval limits noted within 5.14

The Code of Procurement
There are 3 significant changes to this Code:

(@)

(b)

(©

The EU has issued revised thresholds (effective 1st January 2016) and clarified the
how the thresholds apply to concessions and certain types of service contracts.
Described as a “Light Touch Regime Services” these service contracts are
principally health and social related services and now benefit from higher threshold
values.

Although rare, the potential for conflicts of interest exists in procurement and the
Code had been silent on the subject. The Public Procurement Regulations 2015 are
not prescriptive but the expression “might be perceived to compromise their
impartiality and independence” sets a high standard for the legal test. Should a
potential conflict of interest be identified the new paragraph seeks to isolate the
affected Officer from the process to protect both the Council and the individual.

The Code duplicated information contained in the Procedure for the Receipt of
Tenders and Formal Quotations. Following a review and revisions of the Procedure
for the Receipt of Tenders and Formal Quotations the duplicated sections have been
removed from the Code.

There are some minor changes including to layout. The table below sets the proposed
changes for 2016/2017

Para. Section Summary of the Change

2.2.

Advertising The EU thresholds change on 1 January 2016

2 specific process Concessions and the “Light Touch
Regime Services” are now subject to differing thresholds.

Both are now incorporated into the table.

63



4.1

4.2

5.1

6.1

7.1

8.1

9.1

10.

2.3 Advertising The wording of this paragraph has now been simplified and
included in paragraph 2.2.

13.2 Contracts The paragraph now mandates the use of the Council’s
Standard Terms and Conditions (T&Cs) except where the
value is greater than £75k, or there is appreciated risk to
delivery or performance, or specific T&Cs are needed for the
category. Exceptions remain subject to approval by the
Legal Services Officer.

16 Contract Award  The amendment clarifies the need to announce low value
Notices contract awards.

20 Conflict of The new paragraph seeks to manage any identified potential
Interest conflict of interest by ensuring independent oversight in

specification writing and evaluation of lower value
procurements (less than £75k) and maintaining an arm’s
length approach to higher value procurements (greater than
£75k).

KEY IMPACTS/RISKS?
HOW WILL THEY BE ADDRESSED

The emphasis of this report is to recognise the risks that underpin the financial operation
of the Council and ensure that these are kept relevant to the organisation.

The Finance Governance Board (FGB), an officer led governance arrangement adds an
additional level of control in mitigating financial risks with its scrutiny and challenge.

WHAT ACTIONS WILL BE TAKEN/TIMETABLE FOR IMPLEMENTATION

Upon approval, these codes will be the requirements for financial and procurement
operations.

LINK TO CORPORATE PLAN

The Codes of Procurement and Financial Management come under the “Ensuring we
are a customer focused and service led council delivering value for money services”
aspect of the corporate plan, and enabling the Council to “Become more business-like
and efficient in the way we deliver services”.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

The Code of Procurement and the Code of Financial Management have been updated to
reflect current legislation and regulations, aiding the Councils’ compliance.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

There are no direct cost implications arising from this report, however the both of these
codes promote best practice and best value in the management of the Councils
resources.

OTHER IMPLICATIONS
There are no known other implications at this time.

REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDED DECISIONS
64



10.1 The Code of Financial Management and the Code of Procurement support the internal
governance framework of the Council, they also form part of the Councils constitution.
This annual review seeks to ensure that they continue to be relevant and up to date,
reflecting any new statutory regulations or changes in local management and practice.

11. LIST OF APPENDICES INCLUDED

Appendix 1 — Changes to Code of Financial Management
Appendix 2 — Changes to Code of Procurement

BACKGROUND PAPERS
Working papers in Resources.

CONTACT OFFICER

Clive Mason, Head of Resources
@ 01480 388157

Rebecca Maxwell, Finance Manager
@ 01480388117

Nigel Arkle, Procurement Manager
@ 01480388104

65



This page is intentionally left blank



Huntingdonshire District Council

CODE OF
FINANCIAL
MANAGEMENT

6%

APPENDIX 1




Code of Financial Management

1.

1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

1.4

1.5.

1.6.

Financial responsibilities

General

Before any proposal that affects the Council’s financial position is made the
body or person(s) responsible for making that decision, or for making a
recommendation to that body or person(s), shall consider a written report,
approved by the officer accountable for the appropriate budget, detailing the
financial implications.

The Council

Will:

e determine the Council's Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS),
approve the annual budget and set the level of the council tax.

e approve the Council’s treasury management strategy (TMS) and
prudential indicators.

e approve changes to this code.

The Corporate Governance Panel

Will:

e ensure that the financial management of the Council is adequate and
effective.

e ensure that the Council has a sound system of internal control including
arrangements for the management of risk.

e consider the Council’s code of corporate governance and approve the
annual statement.

e approve the internal audit charter and the annual internal audit plan and
comment on the external audit plan.

e approve the Council’'s Annual Financial Report (AFR), which includes the
statutory accounts.

e consider reports from the external auditor.

¢ recommend changes to this code to the Council.

The Cabinet:

Will propose to the Council:

e the MTFS.

¢ the annual budget and council tax level.

e acombined annual report including the TMS, treasury management
policy, and the prudential, treasury management and commercial
investment strategy indicators.

e after considering the views of the appropriate Overview and Scrutiny
panel and representatives of the business community, set financial
priorities, allocate and re-allocate resources in accordance with the limits
in this code, monitor and review financial performance.

e approve the risk management strategy.

Overview and Scrutiny Panels
Will contribute to the development of, and review the effectiveness of, the
Council's MTFS, treasury management and annual budget.

Cabinet and Committees (and sub-committees)

Will ensure that all decisions within their remit are made within the relevant
budgets and are consistent with achieving the Council’s corporate plan and

68



1.7

1.8

1.9.

1.10.

1.11.

1.12.

1.13.

1.14.

1.15.

adopted policies. If they wish to make proposals that will require additional
resources, these will need to be subject to officers, the Cabinet or the Council
making these available through the normal process.

Budget Managers and Executive Councillors

Will own and manage the budgets within their responsibility. Specifically, they
will effectively plan and control financial activity to ensure efficient and
effective use of resources. Budget managers should ensure that the full
financial implications of all decisions are properly assessed and highlighted to
decision makers.

Will take lead responsibility for planning the budgetary cycle, including
monitoring and forecasting of revenue activity so far as it is related to those
budgets.

Members and Employees

Will contribute to the general stewardship, integrity and confidence in the
Council's financial affairs and comply with this code and any systems,
procedures, or policies relating to the financial management of the Council.

Specifically, they shall bring to the attention of the Responsible Financial
Officer (RFO) any act or omission that is contrary to the provisions of this code
or the maintenance of high standards of financial probity, and provide
information or explanation on matters within their responsibility to him/her, the
Monitoring Officer (MO), Internal Audit Service or the Council’s external
auditors.

Any member or employee who is involved in a transaction with the Council, or
who has an interest in a transaction between a third party and the Council,
shall declare the nature and amount to the MO before any decision on the
matter is made by the Council. The MO will advise the member or employee of
any actions they should or must take.

For the purpose of this section an interest also includes any interest of a
member of your family or a close associate or acquaintance. This shall be
interpreted as anyone whom a reasonable member of the public might think
you would be prepared to favour or disadvantage.

The Monitoring Officer (MO) or, in their absence, the Deputy Monitoring
Officer (DMO).

Will report to the Council on any proposal, decision or omission that in their
view is likely to result in a contravention of the law or any code of practice
enacted under it, fails to comply with a legal duty, represents
maladministration or is unjust, in accordance with section 5 of the Local
Government and Housing Act 1989.

For these purposes he/she shall have full and unrestricted access to all
Council assets, systems, documents, information, employees and Members.

The Responsible Financial Officer (RFO) or, in their absence, the Deputy
Responsible Financial Officer (DRFO).

Will be responsible for the proper administration of the Council's financial
affairs, prescribe appropriate financial systems, protocols, procedures and
policies, maintain an internal audit service and report to the Council in the
event of a decision or action leading to unlawful expenditure, a loss or
deficiency or an unlawful accounting entry (in accordance with section 151 of

69



1.16.

1.17.

1.18.

1.19.

the Local Government Act 1972, section 114 of the Local Government Act
1988 and the Accounts and Audit Regulations).

Will be responsible for ensuring the final accounts are completed and
published by the statutory dates and reporting the details of any material
amendments specified by the external auditor to the Corporate Governance
Panel.

For these purposes they shall have full and unrestricted access to all Council
assets, systems, documents, information, employees and Members.

The DRFO officer will be responsible for detailed and operational aspects of
the administration of the Council’s financial affairs on behalf of the RFO,
approving new financial systems and undertaking such duties as are set out in
this code.

Budget Managers (Team Managers, Heads of Service, Corporate
Directors and Managing Director)

The Council’'s management structure is based on Team Managers, Heads of
Service, Corporate Directors and the Managing Director taking responsibility
for a service and its related budget. For the purpose of this Code they are
referred to as budget managers. Whilst they retain ultimate responsibility they
will often delegate appropriate tasks to their members of staff.

The budget manager responsible for a budget:

will be responsible for proper financial and resource management and the
prevention of fraud and corruption within the services and functions under
their control and will be responsible for informing the Internal Audit & Risk
Manager of all suspected or notified cases of fraud, corruption or
impropriety.

will be responsible for preparing and submitting the capital project
appraisal form to the Finance Governance Board (FGB) for approval.

will be responsible for developing and submitting a detailed business case
to the FGB if required (following approval of the capital project appraisal
form).

may incur financial commitments and liabilities in accordance with this
Code, the Council's scheme of delegation and resources allocated in their
budgets. In particular they may make purchases of goods and services,
subject to the requirements of the code of procurement, and employ staff,
in accordance with HR policies and any CMT requirements.

will need approval from their Head of Service in consultation with
Corporate Director for appointments for vacant posts at Grade D and
below.

will need approval from CMT for the appointment to vacant posts of
Grades E and above.

will be responsible for regular and effective monitoring and forecasting of
the financial position relating to their services.

will, in accordance with the risk management strategy determine the
inherent risks within their services, to the achievement of the Council’s
priorities and establish, maintain and document adequate systems of risk
management and internal control, in consultation with the Internal Audit
service, and ensure that relevant employees or Members are familiar with
such systems.

will be responsible for providing in a timely manner, the information
necessary to ensure that the final accounts can be completed by the
statutory deadlines.

70



1.20.

1.21.

o will be responsible for improving the value for money and efficiency of
their services and in discussion with their accountant, ensuring that any
budget adjustments are included in the following years budget process.

e will be responsible for identifying opportunities and then bidding for grants
or contributions from other bodies to support the achievement of the
Council objectives through their services.

e annually review their services to identify any aspects that are not currently
charged for, but could be and the appropriateness of the current charges.

¢ annually review their fees and charges in consultation with the Executive
Councillors, with any changes being included in and approved with the
annual budget. Changes within the financial year will be subject to
consultation with the Executive Councillors and approved by the RFO. In
doing so, they:

o shall ensure that relevant legislation that specifies the charges to
be made or constrains them in any way is complied with.

o shall, after having regard to the charges of any alternative service
providers with whom the Council is competing, seek to maximise
income, net of applicable costs, unless it will have a clearly
detrimental impact on the achievement of the Council objectives.

o may introduce differential pricing to particular client groups where
these are expected to stimulate demand and generate additional
net income which would otherwise not be obtained.

o may set prices lower than could be reasonably achieved if this is
demonstrably the most cost effective way of achieving Council
objectives and the necessary funding is available. Use of this
option requires approval of Cabinet.

o may set fees and charges that allow an element of discretion if it
can be demonstrated that this will lead to an overall benefit to the
Council. It is important that any use of discretion is recorded so
that it can be clearly shown that decisions have been made fairly
and consistently.

o shall keep appropriate records to demonstrate that the required
actions have been undertaken and how the decisions were
reached.

¢ will be accountable for the delivery of services, projects, contracts within
the budgets set by the Council.

e will be accountable for financial performance and ensuring, wherever
possible, appropriate comparisons are made against service standards or
other organisational comparators.

Internal Audit

Will be responsible for providing an independent and objective opinion on
internal control, risk management and governance systems. It will act in
accordance with the internal audit charter and undertake reviews that focus on
areas of greatest risk to the Council’s control environment as contained within
a programme agreed annually by the Corporate Governance Panel after
consultation with the RFO and budget managers.

For these purposes internal audit shall have free, full and unrestricted access
to services and functions and all Council assets, systems, documents,
information, employees and Members. All employees are required to assist
internal audit to carry out its role.

71



2.2.

2.3.

2.4.

2.5.

3.1.

3.2.

3.3.

3.4.

Financial and service planning

In the Summer - Overall review

The Cabinet shall review the financial performance of the Council in the
previous year, compared with the annual budget, on the basis of the
provisional outturn report prepared by the DRFO in conjunction with budget
managers.

In the Autumn — Preparation of the draft budget and MTFS

The RFO in conjunction with budget managers will review and prepare the
draft annual budget and the MTFS for review by Cabinet after consultation
with the relevant Overview and Scrutiny panel.

In the Winter - Annual budget, MTFS and service plans

The Cabinet shall, after consultation with the relevant Overview and Scrutiny
Panel, recommend to the Council an annual budget for the next financial year
and a MTFS for the succeeding four years, incorporating both capital and
revenue expenditure, which is consistent with corporate and service
strategies. Following approval of the annual budget each budget manager
shall update their service plan(s) to reflect the approved budget and how the
resources allocated will be used to meet service objectives in the forthcoming
year.

In the Spring — Annual Financial Report (AFR)

The DRFO in conjunction with the budget managers will prepare the AFR.
The AFR includes the statutory annual accounts which subject to external
audit will be approved by both the RFO and Corporate Governance Panel.

Controlling financial plans

Financial Monitoring

Budget managers will be responsible for regular and effective monitoring and
forecasting of the financial position relating to their services. Where it is
identified that there will be a significant overspend or underspend, this will be
promptly reported to the RFO by the budget manager. If it is considered
necessary by the RFO in delivering projects or programmes, the same
discipline will apply.

On a monthly basis the financial and overall performance of the Council will be
reviewed by the budget managers and the relevant Executive Councillors.
This will include trend and forecast data and, where available comparative
data.

The CMT will review, on a monthly basis, the Financial Performance
Monitoring Suite (FPMS). The FPMS will be reported to Cabinet on a quarterly
basis. The FPMS will be prepared by the DRFO, in consultation with each
Head of Service and budget manager to include comparisons with other
service providers and local trend data.

Commitments to Expenditure in Future Years
No new commitment to expenditure beyond the current budget year may be
made unless it:

e is consistent with the achievement of the Council’s objectives and other

relevant strategies, and
e is compatible with the Council's MTFS.

P2



3.5.

3.6.

3.7.

3.8.

3.9.

3.10.

Grants, Cost Sharing and S106/CIL agreements
Where a budget manager proposes to take advantage of:

e receipts of grants, contributions and other forms of external funding, or
e enter cost sharing arrangements,

with other organisations, and where such arrangements will deliver additional
or improved services, consistent with their service plan without creating any
current or future commitment to net expenditure they may do so subject to:

e the relevant Head of Service being satisfied that the project funding meets
with corporate objectives and that the resource required to produce the
bidding documents is reasonable.

e the funds being dependent upon a particular project or service being
provided but, in the case of S106/CIL agreements, the location or some
other aspect is at the Council’s discretion.

¢ informing the DRFO of the details.

e consulting the relevant Executive Councillor(s) if the proposal exceeds
£30,000 revenue or £50,000 capital in any one year with any capital
having been previously agreed by the FGB or any discretionary element
of a S106/CIL agreement.

A budget manager may utilise sums of money received under S106/CIL, or
equivalent agreements where there is no discretion. The DRFO should be
informed of the details including:

e A copy of all information that supports the grants received (grant letter etc)
so a decision can be made in respect of the correct accounting treatment.

e Documentation confirming how they plan to meet any grant conditions,
including suitable monitoring and reporting arrangements.

Approvals for additional spending with a net impact

The Managing Director, or in their absence, the RFO, may incur expenditure
for the immediate alleviation of hardship or suffering in the case of peacetime
emergency in the district. Any exercise of this power must be reported to the
Cabinet (under £500,000) or the Council (over £500,000) at the first
opportunity.

The Managing Director, or in their absence, the RFO, may incur expenditure
of up to £500,000 for any purpose which is urgent and demonstrably in the
Council’s best interests to do so following consultation with the Executive
Leader or Deputy Executive Leader. Any exercise of this power must be
reported to the Cabinet at the first opportunity.

Approvals for additional spending with compensating savings
Proposals that require initial funding but will then result in net surpluses or
savings that are at least sufficient to produce a break-even position will be
supported in principle if they are:

e consistent with increasing the achievement of the Council’s objectives and
compatible with relevant strategies.

e achievable within the Council’'s MTFS.

e supported by a robust business case which includes a risk assessment.

e supported by the CMT.

73



3.11.

3.12.

3.13.

3.14.

3.15.

3.16.

3.17.

The RFO may approve such a scheme following consultation with the relevant
Executive Councillor for the service and the Executive Councillor for
Resources. The relevant budget(s) and MTFS will be appropriately adjusted.

Budget Virements

The process of moving budget resources between different areas within the
budget year is called a virement. The virement of resources within, or
between, any of the types of budgets is supported in principle when it will
make it more likely that the Council will achieve its service objectives and
targets or enhance value for money.

These limitations are:

e The salary budgets (pay, national insurance and pension) represent the
Councils approved establishment list. As such the salary budgets cannot
be vired to other areas of the budget. A positive salary budget variance
may be used to cover the additional temporary staffing costs incurred due
to vacant posts.

e The corporate finance budgets are those budgets that are necessary to
the operation of the Council and have limited controllability. Such budgets
included with this area are; minimum revenue provision, interest, pension
liability and levies. Changes to the corporate budget can only be made by
the RFO following consultation with the Head of Paid Service.

¢ Not from capital to revenue.

A budget manager may approve a budget virement within and between the
budgets they are responsible for providing it is:

e Consistent with increasing, or at least maintaining the achievement of
service objectives and compatible with the Council's financial and other
relevant strategies.

e Only a movement of establishment posts to another service as part of a
service restructure.

e Notified to the DRFO.

e Each virement is over £5,000.

¢ Within the following limits if between service budgets:

o Revenue to revenue £75k
o Revenue to capital £75k
o Capital to capital £75k

The CMT may, subject to the same criteria, except for the enhanced limits
shown below, approve budget virements between any budgets:

o Revenue to revenue £250k
o Revenue to capital £250k
o Capital to capital £250k

Cabinet may approve budget virements of up to:
o Revenue to revenue £500k
o Revenue to capital £500k
o Capital to capital £500k
In all cases, any previous transfers in the same financial year relating to those

budgets shall be aggregated for determining whether the limit has been
exceeded. Providing there is no increase in the “budget requirement”, Cabinet

P4



3.18.

3.19.

3.20.

3.21.

4.1.

4.2.

4.3.

4.4.

4.5.

4.6.

4.7.

can approve the application of reserves to meet additional expenditure in line
with the reserves strategy.

In all other cases the approval of the Council will be required.

Price Base Changes
Inflation will be included, if necessary during the budget process as directed
by the RFO.

Capital Programme
The FGB will review and recommend to CMT those schemes that should be
included in the capital programme, the MTFS and be approved by Cabinet.

FGB may recommend changes to existing schemes or the introduction of new
schemes during the financial year based on the performance of, or delays
incurred within the delivery of the approved capital programme plan. Changes
to the schemes in the MTFS will be approved by Cabinet.

Cash and credit management

Banking

The RFO is responsible for all Council banking arrangements and shall
maintain an account(s) with an appropriate bank(s) as defined in the TMS. All
transactions involving income or expenditure shall be dealt with through the
Council's bank account(s).

Income

All employees receiving money (including cash, cheques, credit card
payments etc.) must comply with the relevant procedures issued by the RFO
to ensure that the sums are properly recorded, receipted and banked.

No cash payment in excess of £1,000 will be accepted.

The Head of Customer Services will manage the Council Tax and Non-
Domestic Rating collection service on behalf of the Council; including the
billing and debt recovery procedures.

The DRFO shall manage a sundry debt collection service on behalf of the
Council and all sums due must be registered by raising an invoice on the
Council's financial management system.

All budget managers are required to ensure that:

¢ Invoices and invoice adjustments are raised promptly.

e Invoice queries are answered promptly.

e The Sundry debt team are informed of any information that may affect the
recovery of any invoiced sums.

e All debts are collected in a timely fashion.

e They periodically consider, in liaison with the Sundry debt team, whether
there would be a more effective or efficient way of collecting sums due
(e.g. cash in advance).

Treasury Management

All treasury management activities will be undertaken in accordance with the
Council’'s annual TMS, which includes the policies, objectives, risk
management approach, and the prudential, treasury management and
commercial investment strategy indicators. The strategy will comply with the

75



4.8.

4.9.

4.10.

4.11.

4.12.

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

Code of Practice for Treasury Management and the Prudential Code for
Capital Finance, both published by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance
and Accountancy (CIPFA), and reflect any published Government advice. The
execution and administration of treasury management is delegated to the
DRFO.

The Council shall have overall responsibility for treasury management and will
formally approve the annual TMS and receive an annual and mid-year report
on treasury management activities.

The Cabinet will be responsible for the implementation and regular monitoring
of treasury management activity. The Treasury & Capital Management Group
will include:

e the Executive and Deputy Leaders and the Executive Councillor
responsible for resources. Other members can be co-opted onto the
group at the discretion of the Executive Leader.

e the RFO and the DRFO, and as and when necessary the Managing
Director and/or Corporate Director (Services). Other officers can be co-
opted onto the group at the discretion of the Managing Director or the
RFO.

The Overview and Scrutiny (Financial and Performance) Panel will be
responsible for the scrutiny of treasury management.

Payments

All payments made by the Council must be made either:

e through the Council's purchase ledger system, with payments being made
direct to the supplier's bank account wherever this is practicable.

e by procurement card.

e by direct debits or standing orders (after agreement from the DRFO).

¢ by some other system specifically approved by the DRFO.

In each case complying fully with the relevant procedures for that system (e.g.
appropriate authorisation), particularly the requirement to obtain official VAT
receipts, as determined by the DRFO. Advice can be sought from the DRFO.

Accounting requirements

Best Practice

The Council will follow the best practice guidance contained in the Accounting
Code of Practice and other relevant publications produced by CIPFA in the
preparation and maintenance of its accounts.

Records

Each budget manager is responsible for maintaining records of their financial
transactions and commitments, that they are in the appropriate financial period
and with the appropriate account codes. Each budget manager is responsible
for ensuring that the financial management system is used only by authorised
individuals and for proper council purposes.

Retention of Documents
Documents required for the verification of accounts, including invoices, will be
retained for six years plus current year.

Contingent Assets and Liabilities

76



5.4.

5.5.

5.6.

5.7.

5.8.

5.9.

5.10.

5.11.

5.12.

5.13.

5.14.

Any officer who is aware of a material and outstanding contingent asset or
liability shall notify the DRFO, who shall include details in the Council's
accounts or in a Letter of Representation to be presented to the Council's
external auditors in respect of those accounts.

Stock

The DRFO shall determine, after consultation with the relevant budget
manager, when stock accounts shall be maintained. This will normally be
where the value of the items are significant or the items are considered to be
vulnerable to loss or theft.

In such cases the relevant budget manager shall ensure that a certified stock-
take is carried out at the end of March each year, and that records of receipt
and issue of all stock are maintained throughout the year in a manner agreed
with the DRFO.

Insurance

The Internal Audit Manager shall obtain insurance to protect the Council or
minimise its potential losses from risks including those to employees, property,
equipment and cash. Any decision not to insure significant risks must be
based on a detailed risk assessment and reported to the Executive Councillor
for resources.

Write-off of Irrecoverable Debts

The Head of Service where the debt originated or the DRFO is authorised to
write-off debt with an individual value up to £5,000. Greater than £5,000
requires consultation with the Executive Councillor for Resources.
Appropriate steps must be taken to ensure that the debt is irrecoverable or
cannot be recovered without incurring disproportionate costs.

Accounts Closure, Accounting Accruals and Estimates
The AFR will be produced in line with both statutory regulations and relevant
Codes of Practice.

The DRFO will ensure that there is appropriate liaison with service teams prior
to closure, including the hosting of relevant training and the issue of closure
guidance and timetables. The accruals de-minimis limits will be adhered to by
all services, and where estimated accruals are to be issued they are to be
supported by accurate calculation. Other accounting estimates will be
calculated by finance staff in line with professional advice.

Provisions, either for bad debts or other purposes will be calculated in line with
the guidelines approved by the DRFO. Earmarked reserves will be operated in
line with the reserves strategy.

Assets

An asset is an item of land, building, road or other infrastructure, vehicle or
plant, equipment, furniture and fittings or information and communications
technology (hardware and software) with a life exceeding one year.

The acquisition and disposal of assets will be completed in accordance with
the Disposal and acquisition policy.

The financial thresholds for both disposals and acquisitions are as follows:

i



5.15.

5.16.

5.17.

5.18.

5.19.

5.20.

5.21.

¢ Managing Director (as Head of Paid Service) & Head of Resources (as
RFO), following consultation with Executive Councillor for Resources £0 -
£500,000

e Treasury and Capital Management Group £500,000 to £2,000,000

e Cabinet £2,000,000 +

Each budget manager is responsible for ensuring that the assets relating to
their services are properly safeguarded, managed and maintained, and used
only to achieve the Council’s objectives. This will include establishing and
maintaining appropriate security, control systems and records. They will need
to consult relevant officers in relation to specialist items and, where vehicles
are concerned, the officer holding the Council’s operating certificate who has
specific statutory responsibilities.

Heads of Service must keep up to date records so a physical verification of all
capital assets, and their condition, is possible.

Once the asset is disposed of, the relevant budget manager will inform the
DRFO within 10 working days of the disposal of any asset included in the
asset register.

Capital Expenditure

The purchase or improvement of any asset will normally be treated as capital
expenditure. However, expenditure of less than £10,000 will not normally be
treated as capital expenditure unless the DRFO considers it is in the Council’s
interests to do so.

Leases
Finance and operating leases are to be used only if they are in the Council's
financial interest and with the prior formal approval of the DRFO.

Valuations

In order to comply with accounting requirements assets will need to be
revalued at regular intervals. A three year “phased” revaluation programme
will be followed, other than for:

e those assets that are categorised as “investment” properties (e.g.
industrial units), which must be revalued every year, or

e where, following significant capital investment or disinvestment in an asset
within an asset group, whereby the whole asset group will be revalued.

All capital asset revaluations for the AFR will be obtained by the DRFO.

»



Appendix 2

Huntingdonshire District Council

CODE OF
PROCUREMENT

2016

(Date)

79



Appendix 2

CODE OF PROCUREMENT
1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 The Code of Procurement defines the regulatory and legal framework for
procurement. It has been adopted in accordance with the requirements of Section 135
(2) of the Local Government Act 1972.

1.2 Throughout the Code, reference to Manager shall mean Managing Director,
Corporate Director, Head of Service or Budget Manager as appropriate. A Manager
shall be responsible for procuring all goods and services that require the quotation or
tender procedures as set out in this Code to be followed.

1.3 No Manager shall procure any goods or services valued at £5,000 or more
unless they have attended training provided by the Procurement Manager and consider
themselves to have such detailed knowledge and understanding of this Code and how
it shall be applied in respect of the total value of the procurement being considered.

1.4 This Code applies to the procurement, commissioning, hire, rental or lease of -

land and buildings, roads or other infrastructure;

vehicles or plant;

equipment, furniture and fittings;

construction and engineering works;

information and communication technology - hardware and software;
goods, materials and services;

repairs and maintenance;

® & & & O o oo o

consultants, agents and professional services.

15 This Code does not apply to purchases made from internal management units.

1.6 The Code applies also to the sale of assets and goods by the Council where the
appropriate Manager estimates that the assets, goods or services to be sold exceed
£1,000. Where the value is estimated to be less than £1,000 then the ‘Sale of
Equipment’ procedures contained within the Inventory procedures shall be followed.

1.7 The Council includes the Cabinet, Panels, Committees or other body or
person(s) acting in accordance with delegated authority on behalf of the Council.

1.8  All procurements or sales made by or on behalf of the Council shall comply with
this Code, subject to any overriding requirements of the Council’'s Rules of Procedure
and Code of Financial Management and British or European Union law or regulation.

1.9 Throughout the Code, reference to contractor(s) or sub-contractor(s) shall mean
any person, company or supplier who has -

requested to be on an approved or ad-hoc approved list of tenderers;
been approached to provide a quotation or tender;

provided a quotation or tender; or

* & & o

been awarded a contract in accordance with the provisions of this Code.

80



Appendix 2

1.10 The Corporate Director (Services) shall annually review all the financial values
contained in the Code to take account of the impact of inflation. The Corporate Director
(Services) shall inform all Managers of any amendments to the values prior to the 1st
April from which they shall be operative.

2. REPORTING AND ADVERTISING

2.1 Heads of Service shall provide the following information to the Procurement
Manager

¢ No later than the 1 April each year, details of each contract expected to
be advertised in the following year; and an estimate of the total value for
each discrete procurement area where the spend is likely to exceed
£100,000.

¢ new or additional requirements likely to meet or exceed EU thresholds
as they arise.

2.2 The Public Procurement Regulations 2015 (Statutory Instrument no. 102 2015)
requires that contracts above EU threshold are advised in the Official Journal of the
European Union and that any contract opportunity above £25,000 is advertised in the
Cabinet Office’s portal “Contracts Finder”. For requirements estimated as above
£5,000 Managers shall advertise in the Contracts Register where needed to stimulate
competition and obtain best value. There is no requirement to advertise competitions
run using frameworks or approved lists.

Threshold
Media Supplies and Works and Light Touch
Services Concessions Regime Services
Contracts Register £5,000 £5,000 £5,000
Contracts Finder £ 25,000 £ 25,000 £25,000
Official Journal of the
. £ 164,17 £ 4,104,394 £597,
European Union (OJEU) 6 6 04,39 597,609
(1 January 2016)
3. ‘BEST VALUE’ AND SOURCING POLICY

3.1 The Council seeks ‘Best Value’ in all procurement activity. ‘Best Value’ being:

The opportunity to obtain leverage (better prices and) for volume.
Regulatory compliance.
Transparent and efficient procurement processes.

Appropriate social, environmental and equality outcomes.

* & & o o

Minimum procurement overhead.

81



Appendix 2

3.2 Achieving ‘Best Value’ needs valid competition and valid competition is
dependent on the existence of an ‘open’ market with the selected contractors having
the interest, capability and capacity for the work or business being offered. Wherever
possible a minimum of three competitive tenders or quotations shall be sought. In
selecting contractors to provide a tender or quotation Managers shall ensure that
wherever possible -

¢ the selection process they are using is fair and equitable, and that no
favouritism is shown to any one contractor (e.g. the requirement is not an
extract of a contractor’s product specification).

¢ checks are made to ensure that contractors are interested in this type of
business;

¢ repeat or ‘automatic’ invitations to the ‘same’ contractor or group of
contractors are avoided, particularly where previously invited to bid and
had failed to do so;

¢ ‘new’ contractors are sought and invited to tender or quote;

¢ the geographic area of the search for potential contractors is widened;
and

¢ ‘no-bids’ are checked for the reasons for a contractor’s failure to bid.

3.3 Sourcing policy is determined by the needs of ‘Best Value’ and in order of
preference is:

(a) Adopted catalogues or framework contracts. An adopted catalogue or
framework is the preferred contract for the Council’s business within a defined category
(a type or group of goods or service). The Procurement Manager shall make available
adopted catalogues or framework contracts on the e-marketplace or publish details of
the contract or framework in Procurement Protocols & Guidelines. Managers shall
ensure that orders for such categories are placed through the e-marketplace using
appropriate ‘adopted’ catalogue or framework contract. The Procurement Manager
shall keep under review the continued suitability of any such catalogues, contracts or
framework agreements.

(b) Collaborative procurements with other public bodies or authorities.
(©) Council let corporate contracts.

34 Some categories are managed corporately by specialist areas. The
Procurement Manager shall provide a list of specialist categories and Managers shall
ensure all requirements for such categories are referred to the relevant specialist.

Market Sounding

35 Market engagement is encouraged to help achieve Best Value though trying to
understanding the market, the suppliers, their business models and their costs

3.6 Supplier Meetings/Briefings. To avoid the risk of unfair competitive advantage,
any such meeting should be structured as an open event; all questions and answers
recorded and with a minimum of 2 officers present. If pre-competition a minimum of 3
suppliers shall be invited and during a competition, all participating contractors shall be
invited.

82



Appendix 2

4. METHODS OF ORDERING
4.1 All orders shall be placed through one of the following recognised methods:

An order raised on the e-marketplace.
A procurement card order.

A manual purchase order.

* & o o

A purchase order raised on the financial management system.

4.2 Where there is an exception requirement and the relevant Corporate Director or
Head of Service considers that the work is of an emergency nature necessary to
enable the service to continue and none of the ordering methods are suitable, the
relevant Corporate Director or Head of Service shall record the details of the
exceptional requirement and the action taken for future audit.

5. CONTRACTS REGISTER

5.1 In compliance with the Local Government Transparency Code 2013, Managers
shall keep a record using the Contracts Register, for all tenders and quotes greater
than £5,000 (and subsequent contract extensions); of:

¢ the reasons (if appropriate) for not advertising on the Council's ‘Latest
Opportunities’ internet site;
all those contractors that were requested to quote or tender;

¢ the reasons why those particular contractors were selected to quote or
tender;

¢ if applicable, the reasons why less than three contractors were selected to
quote or tender;

¢ if the selected contractor is a Small or Medium Enterprise, voluntary or
third sector organisation or charity;

if the selected contractor is VAT registered;
contract renewal date (if appropriate);
summary details of a single tender/quote (if appropriate), and

* & & o

file or other reference to the contract and location of the documents and
contract.

5.2 Any procurement estimated to exceed £75,000, which is not covered by the
exceptions in paragraph 6 below, must be referred to the Procurement Manager before
the procurement process is commenced. If a Manager does not wish to accept the
Procurement Manager’s advice on any significant aspect the matter will be determined
by the relevant Corporate Director. The discussion will cover:

Scope and objectives of the procurement;

Budget and costing;

Tender methods;

Product and market information;

* & & o o

Timescales; and

83



Appendix 2

¢ Deliverables.

5.3  Where there is no adopted contract or framework, Managers shall, wherever
practicable, seek to maximise contract values with other Managers to secure lower
costs. The Council nevertheless wishes to balance the effort of going to the market with
the effort and efficiency of the procurement process. Managers after determining the
proposed contract’s total value shall then follow one of the procurement procedures
detailed below. These procedures shall be used in all procurements or sales bar those
exceptions at paragraph 6.

Estimated
Procedure Total Value of Requirement
Procurement
At least 1 written estimate or offer (e-
(a) Estimate Up to £5,000 marketplace, email, web or paper) shall
be sought and recorded.
Request for At least 3 written estimates or offer (e-
(b) Price £5,000 up to marketplace, email or headed paperwork)
(Informal £25,000 shall be sought.
Quote)
At least 3 formal quotations or offers shall
be invited, unless the Manager has
Request for complied in full with paragraph 6 of this
Code. The Manager will consider whether
Quote £25,000 to .
(© the nature of the procurement is such that
(Formal £75,000 ul titive tenderi d be likel
Quote) a full competitive tendering would be likely
to be beneficial to the Council by reducing
cost (by more than the cost of tendering)
or risk.
Competitive tenders shall be obtained
£75,000 to EU using one of the tendering options in this
(d) Tender Procurement Code, and a formal written contract
Threshold prepared in accordance with paragraph
13.2.
© EU tender iﬂ?est?old and The appropriat_e EU.procurement directive
above shall be complied with.

5.4 Total value is the cost of all elements of the procurement (e.g. installation,
testing, training, maintenance, etc). The Manager shall ensure that a procurement is
not split or otherwise disaggregated and may choose to competitively tender
requirements less than £75,000.

5.5 A Manager shall not invite quotations or tenders from any contractor or sub-
contractor who has participated in the preparation of documentation or were involved in
other preparatory work for the contract, unless they have, in writing, explained to the
Monitoring Officer why this does not constitute an unfair competitive advantage or a

84



Appendix 2

conflict of interest and obtained agreement, in writing, that the contractor/sub-
contractor may compete in the quote/tender process.

6. TENDER AND REQUEST FOR QUOTATION PROCEDURES
6.1 Exceptions. Nothing in this Code shall require tenders/quotes to be sought: -

(a) for purchases made from a Public Purchasing Body (ESPO, PRO5, Crown
Commercial Service) where:

¢ there is a single supplier ‘call-off contract' or catalogue created with fixed
prices, or
¢ the contract is created to our requirements;

(b) for purchases through local authority, government body or agency, police,
health or other similar public authority, where the procurement rules of that
organisation have been approved by the Procurement Manager and the contract is
created in co-operation, agreed joint requirements or partnership;

(© for purchases made at public auction.

6.2 Provided that a compliant procurement process is underway a contract may be
extended to complete procurement and contract negotiations by up to 3 months subject
to agreement of the Procurement Manager.

6.3 Single Tenders/Quotes. All single tenders/quotes shall be reported to and
recorded by the Procurement Manager in a register kept for that purpose.

6.4 Head of Service Approval. A Head of Service can approve a single
tender/quote:

(a) if the Head of Service considers that the work is of an emergency nature or is
necessary to enable the service to continue and is reported to the next meeting of
Cabinet.

(b) for ongoing maintenance of propriety systems provided:

¢ there is evidence that it is a propriety system;
the initial contract award was compliant with this Code;

the renewal is for a period not greater than 4 years (this is the time
interval the EU uses to calculate contract value for ongoing contracts);

¢ the total ongoing value does not exceed the EU threshold.

(©) where a single expression of interest is received for a competition run in
accordance with the quote procedures (paragraphs 5.3 (a) & (b)) provided that:

¢ a clear description of the requirement has been advertised (paragraph
2.2) for an adequate period;

¢ the sole prospective supplier is kept unaware of their status;

the process for seeking the quote is compliant.

85



Appendix 2

(d) where a new extension is proposed to a contract awarded under quote
procedures (paragraphs 5.3 (a) & (b)) provided:

¢ the value of the proposed and all previous extensions to the contract are
not greater than 10% of the advertised requirement;

the extension does not materially change the nature of the contract;
the initial contract award was compliant with this Code.
¢ the extension is recorded in the Contracts Register.

6.5 Monitoring Officer Approval. A Head of Service after consulting the
Monitoring Officer may obtain a single tender or quotation when:

(a) Prices are wholly controlled by trade organisations or government order and
no reasonably satisfactory alternative is available.

(b) Work to be executed or goods, services or materials to be supplied consist of
repairs to or the supply of parts of existing proprietary machinery, equipment, hardware
or plant and the repairs or the supply of parts cannot be carried out practicably by
alternative contractors.

(© Specialist consultants, agents or professional advisers are required and
¢ here is no satisfactory alternative; or
¢ evidence indicates that there is likely to be no genuine competition; or

¢ it is in the Council’s best interest to engage a particular consultant, agent
or adviser.

(d) Products are sold at a fixed price, and market conditions make genuine
competition impossible.

(e) The proposed contract shall form part of a serial programme. The contract
terms shall be negotiated with a contractor, using as a basis for negotiation the rates
and prices contained in an initial contract that was awarded following a competitive
tendering process that complied with this Code. No more than two serial contracts shall
be negotiated from an initial contract.

(d) No satisfactory alternative is available. If the single quote/tender option is used,
the Manager shall:

¢ seek approval of the Monitoring Officer;

¢ retain records that demonstrate that the best price or value for money has
been obtained from the negotiations with the contractor.

(e) With the Monitoring Officer's agreement, considers that it is in the Council’s
best interest in negotiating a further contract for works, supplies or services of a similar
nature with a contractor who is currently undertaking such work and is reported to the
next meeting of cabinet

7. LIST OF APPROVED TENDERERS

7.1 Tenders shall be invited from at least three contractors selected from an
approved list established in accordance with this paragraph of the Code. Vetting is not
normally required as the contractor was vetted to join the list.

7.2 The Council uses 2 types of list of approved contractors:

86



Appendix 2

(a) Third party vetted lists of contractors that are compiled and maintained by an
external organisation. Only external organisations approved by the Procurement
Manager, after consultation with other relevant Manager(s) shall be adopted. The
Procurement Manager shall ensure that the external organisation and approved list of
contractors is detailed in Procurement Protocols & Guidelines.

(b) Ad-hoc list of approved tenderers. If a Manager believes that the approved list
of tenders does not allow him to obtain sufficient competition for ‘Best Value’, the
Manager shall write to the Procurement Manager seeking approval to source additional
contractors or create an ad-hoc list of approved tenderers.

7.3 Subject to approval as required in paragraph 7.2(b) the Manager shall:
¢ issue a public notice inviting applications for inclusion on a specific

approved list for the supply of goods, services or materials.

¢ vet (as detailed at paragraph 9.1) all contractors replying to the public
notice or who have requested within the previous 12 months to be
considered for work of a similar nature;

¢ only include contractors satisfactorily completing the checks;
tell all potential suppliers how the approved list operates

ensure the ad-hoc list shall only be used for seeking tenders for the
supply of goods, services or materials specifically detailed within the
original public notice;

7.4 The Procurement Manager in conjunction with the relevant Managers shall
review the continued suitability of any List of Approved Tenderers periodically and at
least prior to the third anniversary of its initial or further adoption.

8. FRAMEWORKS

8.1 All contractors on the framework (or lot if split into lots) shall be invited to submit
a tender or quotation unless:

¢ the framework explicitly permits direct award;

¢ the proposed award is less than the tender threshold (£75,000); and

¢ the Head of Service can show both objective reasons for the selection of a
supplier and evidence of best value.

8.2 No public notice is required and general Terms & Conditions are set in the
original framework contract but additional Terms & Conditions specific to the
requirement may be permitted. Vetting is not normally required as the contractor was
vetted as part of the original framework competition.

9. COMPETITION

9.1 Shortlisting and Restricted Tenders
(a) Restricted (shortlisting) tenders are not permitted for competitions below the EU
threshold.

(b) Where allowed, the Manager shall undertake sufficient vetting to ensure that all
contractors:
¢ comply with minimum standards of Insurance;

87



Appendix 2

¢ have the necessary Health & Safety policy and performance and (where
applicable) membership of the Contractor's Health and Safety Scheme or
equivalent health and safety standard;

are financially viable based on a risk based assessment;
have an appropriate environmental policy;

comply with equalities legislation and policy; and

* & o o

possess the experience and capacity required.

(c) The Procurement Manager shall provide an appropriate questionnaire for the
purpose of vetting contractors.

(d) Managers wishing to have a Pre-Qualification Questionnaire returned in
electronic format (eg: Excel) must tell bidding suppliers to use the designated email
address “procsupport@huntingdonshire.gov.uk” and inform the Procurement Manager
of the closing date. The Procurement Manager shall forward the Pre-Qualification
Questionnaires to the Manager after the closing date.

9.2 Open Tenders/Quotes

(a) Provided the Manager complies with paragraph 2.2 and is satisfied that
Expressions of Interest received represent contractors with genuine interest and
capacity, then no further public notice is required. Otherwise public notice may be
given in one or more newspapers and/or in an appropriate trade journal. The notice
shall state the nature and purpose of the contract, where further information and
documentation can be obtained, and state the closing date for the process.

(b) An Invitation to Tender (ITT) or Request to Quote (RFQ) shall be sent to all
contractors expressing an interest. ITTs and RFQs may include an appropriate
suitability questionnaire.  The Procurement Manager shall provide a suitable
questionnaire.

9.3 Invitations to Tenders (ITT) and Requests for Quotations (RFQ)
Mangers shall ensure that all ITTs and RFQs include;

(a) approved contract terms in accordance with paragraph 13.2 of this Code;

(b) a clear statement that explains if the bid is to be evaluated on the basis of the
most economically advantageous tender (best value).

9.4 Evaluation Criteria

Except where the Cabinet decides otherwise, all formal quotations or tenders that are
being sought shall:

(a) be based on a definite written specification, which shall include consideration
(where relevant to the requirement) of:

¢ environmental performance including low energy and water consumption
and the elimination of substances hazardous to health and the
environment.

¢ delivery of social benefit (for services only)
¢ inclusion of Small & Medium sized Enterprises

(b) include award criteria,

88



Appendix 2

(© include specific weightings applied to individual award criteria, and
(d) if appropriate, include a requirement for a performance bond and liquidated
damages

9.5 Non-Traditional Procurement

If a Manager believes that by following one of the procurement procedures detailed in
paragraph 9 above that the procurement process will not provide him with the most
appropriate method of delivery, the most competitive prices, allow for continuous
improvements in delivery, or stifle innovation, then they may suggest alternative
procurement strategies.

The Manager shall produce in accordance with guidance issued by the Procurement
Manager and prior to proceeding with the procurement, a written acquisition strategy
that shall be approved by the Monitoring Officer and the Cabinet.

10. SUB-CONTRACTS AND NOMINATED SUPPLIERS

10.1 Quotations or tenders for sub-contracts to be performed or for goods, services
or materials to be supplied by nominated sub-contractors shall be invited in accordance
with this Code.

10.2 The relevant Manager is authorised to nominate to a main contractor a sub-
contractor whose quotation or tender has been obtained in full accordance with this
Code.

11. RECEIPT AND OPENING OF TENDERS AND QUOTATIONS

11.1 Contractors shall be notified that tenders or formal quotations are invited in
accordance with this Code. No tender or formal quotation will be considered unless -

(a) it has been received via the e-marketplace ‘sealed quote’ facility; or

(b) it is contained in a plain envelope/packet which shall be securely sealed and
shall bear the word “Tender” or “Quotation”, the Unique Reference Number (URN) from
the Contracts Register; and the envelope shall not bear any distinguishing matter or
mark intended to indicate the identity of the sender. Such envelope shall be addressed

¢ impersonally to the Legal Services Officer if it contains a “Tender”, or
¢ the appropriate Manager if it contains a “Quotation”; or

(©) RFQs (Formal Quotations) may be sent electronically to a specific e-mail
address, which the appropriate Manager shall obtain from the IMD Service Manager.
The IMD Service Manager shall ensure that the e-mail address is secure.

11.2  All Officers shall comply with the procedure note ‘Procedure for the Receipt of
Tenders and Formal Quotations’ which can be found on the Procurement internet
pages..

11.3 All tenders or quotations upon opening shall be recorded in writing on either a
tender or quotation opening record unless the Contracts Register is being completed
contemporaneously. The format of the opening record shall have been previously
agreed with the Monitoring Officer and Legal Services Officer.

11.4 Any tenders or quotations received after the specified time may in exceptional

circumstances be accepted by Legal Services Officer, otherwise they shall be returned
promptly to the contractor by the Legal Services Officer or his nominated officer in

89



Appendix 2

respect of tenders, or by the appropriate Manager or his hominated officer in respect of
a formal quotation.

11.5 Late tenders shall be rejected once any other tender/quotation has been
opened. The tender or quotation may be opened to ascertain the name of the
contractor but no details of the tender or quotation shall be disclosed.

12. ACCEPTANCE OF TENDERS AND QUOTATIONS

12.1 The appropriate Manager shall evaluate all the tenders or quotations received
in accordance with the award criteria set out in the bid documentation and shall accept,
subject to the provisos set out in this paragraph, the most economically advantageous
tender or quotation, as evaluated against the award criteria.

12.2 Tenders or quotations exceeding the approved estimate may only be accepted
once approval to further expenditure is obtained.

12.3 If the most economically advantageous quotation exceeds £75,000 but -

¢ is within 15% of the original estimate and budget, the appropriate Head of
Service may accept the quotation without seeking further competition; or

¢ is in excess of 15% of the original estimate then the Head of Service shall
consult the Procurement Manager and obtain the approval of the
Monitoring Officer that the quotation can be accepted otherwise a
competitive tender exercise in accordance with paragraph 9.1 above shall
be carried out.

12.4 A tender or quotation shall not be accepted -

(a) where payment is to be made by the Council and it is not the most economically
advantageous tender or quotation in accordance with the award criteria set out in the
tender or quotation documentation; or

(b) if payment is to be received by the Council and the tender or quotation is not
the highest price or value;

(©) unless —

¢ the Cabinet have considered a written report from the appropriate Head of
Service/Service Manager, or

¢ in cases of urgency, the Monitoring Officer has consulted and obtained
the approval of the relevant executive councillor. Tenders or quotations
accepted in this way shall be reported by the appropriate Manager to the
next meeting of the Cabinet.

12.6 Arithmetical Errors and Post-Tender Negotiations

(a) Contractors can alter their tenders or quotations after the date specified for their
receipt but before the acceptance of the tender or quotation, where examination of the
tender or quotation documents reveals arithmetical errors or discrepancies which affect
the tender or quotation figure. The contractor shall be given details of all such errors or
discrepancies and afforded an opportunity of confirming, amending or withdrawing his
offer.

(b) Post-tender negotiations shall not be used to degrade the original specification
unless:

90



Appendix 2

¢ the capital or revenue budget is exceeded; or
¢ other special circumstances exist;

in which case the Monitoring Officer and Procurement Manager shall decide
which of those contractors who originally submitted a tender or quotation shall
be given the opportunity to submit a further bid based upon a degraded
specification. This decision shall be recorded in writing.

(© In evaluating tenders, the appropriate Manager may invite one or more
contractors who have submitted a tender to submit a revised offer following post-tender
negotiations.

(d) All post-tender negotiations shall:

¢ only be undertaken where permitted by law and where the appropriate
Manager and Monitoring Officer and Legal Services Officer consider
additional financial or other benefits may be obtained which over the
period of the contract shall exceed the cost of the post-tender negotiation
process;

¢ be conducted by a team of officers approved in writing by the Monitoring
Officer and Legal Services Officer;

¢ be conducted in accordance with guidance issued by the Legal Services
Officer; and

¢ not disclose commercially sensitive information supplied by other bidders
for the contract.

(e) The appropriate Manager shall ensure that all post-tender negotiation meetings
are properly minuted with all savings and benefits offered clearly costed. Following
negotiations but before the letting of the contract, amendments to the original tender
submitted shall be put in writing by the contractor(s) and shall be signed by him.

13. TERMS OF BUSINESS AND THE FORM OF CONTRACTS

13.1 All orders placed by the Council shall be on the Council’'s Terms and Conditions
(T&Cs). Managers shall not use Contractor's documentation to order, acknowledge,
instruct to proceed or make any other commitment where the documentation makes
any reference to the Contractor’'s T&Cs. Where a contractor formally insists on trading
on T&Cs other than the Council’'s T&Cs, the Procurement Manager shall be informed,
except for -

¢ Any contract where the estimated total value is likely to exceed £75,000,
where paragraph 13.2 shall apply.
Any framework or contract formally adopted by the Council.

Purchasing Agency (e.g. ESPO, Crown Commercial Service) arranged
contracts and orders.

¢ Orders of a total value of less than £ 25,000 where the goods or service
are purchased on a ‘retail’ basis on terms available to the general public.

¢ Orders for software where the licence is for ‘standard’ product but not
where customisation, development or on-site service is required for the
‘standard’ product.

91



Appendix 2

13.2 Every contract that exceeds £25,000 shall use the Council’'s Standard Terms
and Conditions. If the contract value is greater than £75,000; or where significant risk
to performance or delivery is identified; or if a specialist category (eg: works, IT,
professional services, concessions), then the contract shall be in writing in a form
approved by the Legal Services Officer. Managers shall ensure that advice of the
Legal Services Officer is sought at a stage as early as practicable (normally before the
issue of an Invitation to Tender).

13.3 In the case of any contract likely to exceed £75,000 for the execution of works
or for the supply of goods, services or materials, the Manager after consulting with the
Procurement Manager and the Monitoring Officer shall consider whether the Council
should require security for its due performance and shall either certify that no such
security is necessary or shall specify in the specification of tender the nature and
amount of the security to be given. In the latter event, the Council shall require and
take a bond or other sufficient security for the due performance of the contract.

13.4 Managers shall produce the final version of all contracts in 2 copies. Where the
total value of a contract exceeds £75,000 both copies shall be presented to the Head of
Resources for signature. Once signed by the contractor, the signed contract, all original
documents, including specifications, drawings, tender documents and correspondence
relating to shall be forwarded by the Legal Services Officer. Where the total value of
the contract is less than £75,000 the relevant Manager shall make arrangements for
the retention of all the original documentation.

13.5 Managers shall maintain a record (in the form detailed in the Procurement
Protocols & Guidance) for their area of each contract or agreement (both written and
verbal agreements).

13.6 Managers shall include the specific T&Cs listed in the Procurement Protocols &
Guidance in all contracts. Where a Manager considers a term or condition
inappropriate they shall seek advice of the Legal Services Officer on the modification or
deletion of the term or condition.

14. LETTERS OF INTENT

14.1 Letters of intent provide a contractor with the authority to proceed prior to the
award of a contract. However, letters of intent have two main disadvantages:-

(a) if the contract is not awarded the contractor is entitled to payment regardless as
to whether the work was actually needed;

(b) the Council’s negotiating position is weakened as the contractor may believe
actual award of contract is a formality and therefore, the contractor may refuse to
accept conditions that are seen as disadvantageous.

14.2 Managers shall ensure that:-
(a) all letters of intent are in a form approved by the Legal Services Officer; and

(b) all letters of intent are signed by the appropriate Budget Manger with sufficient
authority for either the value of the intended contract or the estimated value of any
‘extension’ period defined in the letter of intent if below £75,000, otherwise by the Head
of Resources.

92



Appendix 2

15. POST-COMPETITION DEBRIEFS

15.1 For all contracts greater than £25,000, Managers shall maintain records of
selection and evaluation scoring and where requested by participating suppliers,
provide a suitable post-tender debrief in writing. For contracts greater than £75,000,
unsuccessful tenderers shall be advised in writing of the winning supplier, the value of
the contract awarded and the strengths and weaknesses of their tender and the advice
of the Procurement Manager shall be sought on the format and scope of the debrief.

16. PUBLISHING CONTRACT AWARDS
16.1 Contract Award Notices shall be published within 90 days of contract award in
the appropriate online system:

Contracts Register if greater than £5,000, and.

Contracts Finder if greater than £25,000 (including awards under mini-
competition using a framewaork) or if advertised in Contracts Finder, and

¢ The Official Journal of the European Union if greater than the promulgated
EU threshold.

17. LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT — COMMUNITY RIGHT TO CHALLENGE

The Local Government Act permits relevant bodies (charities, community bodies, town
& parish councils and staff) to submit Expressions of Interest to provide Council
services. The Procurement Manager shall maintain and publish a timetable for the
submission of Expressions of Interest. All Expressions of Interest received from
relevant bodies should be forwarded to the Policy, Performance and Transformation
Manager (Scrutiny).

18. RETENTION OF DOCUMENTS

18.1 Managers shall ensure that every contract or quotation is assigned the Unique
Reference Number (URN) from the Contract Register, which is to be used in all
correspondence. Any Division or reference may be included in addition to the URN
shall comprise abbreviation for the Division and year. Formal amendments to a
contract or order should also be given unique numbers showing the order in which the
amendments were made.

18.2 Documentation retention periods are dictated by the Statute of Limitations and
(where applicable) EU requirements. The following rules apply:-

(a) retention for 12 years from the date of completion of the contract for contracts
made under deed;

(b) retention for 6 years from the date of completion of the contract:-
Contract Documents

Hire/Rental Agreements

Successful Tenders

Summary of Tender Opening

Disposal Board papers

All selection and evaluation scoring and reports

® & & & o oo o

Goods Received Notes

93



Appendix 2

HM Customs and Excise Import documentation
Invitations to Tender/Quotation Requests
Maintenance/Software licence agreements
Specifications

Successful Quotations

® & & o oo o

Suppliers' Advice Notes;

(c) retention for 3 years after the last entry:-
¢ Stock and Purchase Record Cards or Registers

(d) retention for 2 years after the financial year to which the document relates:-
¢ Unsuccessful Quotations.

¢ Unsuccessful Tenders.

19. FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT 2000 (FOIA)

Managers shall ensure that the handling of requests for procurement information
complies with the detailed guidance published as Procurement Protocols & Procedures
and the general FOIA guidance published by the Council’s Freedom of Information
Officer.

20. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

20.1 Where a potential conflict is declared by an officer or otherwise recognised, the
HoS shall ensure the relevant company and businesses areas are identified. Other
business areas are exempt from the procedure.

20.2 The following procedure is applied according to value:
(a) Low value (less than £75k)
¢ HoS shall arrange for specifications/evaluation criteria written by the

affected officer to be independently vetted:;

¢ HoS shall appoint 2 independent officers to evaluations were the relevant
company participates; and

¢ HoS shall ensure independent vetting of evaluations were the relevant
company becomes the preferred bidder.

(b) High Value (greater than £75k). Where the relevant company bids or is
considered likely to bid the HoS shall ensure participation by the affected officer is
limited to providing specialist advice.

20.3 If a conflict of interest becomes apparent once a procurement is underway but
before contract award the HoS shall seek the advice of the Procurement Manager and
Legal Services Officer on how to proceed. If discovered after contract award, the HoS
shall refer the matter to the Monitoring Officer.

21. CONSULTANTS

21.1 It shall be a condition of the engagement of any consultant, agent or
professional adviser who is to be responsible to the Council for the management or
supervision of a contract on its behalf, that in relation to that contract he shall -

94



Appendix 2

¢ comply with this Code as though he were an employee of the Council;

¢ at any time during the carrying out of the contract produce to the
appropriate Manager, on request, all the records maintained by him in
relation to the contract; and

¢ on completion of the contract transmit all records that he has produced or
received that relate to the contract to the appropriate Manager.

¢ that the terms and conditions of their contract indemnifies the Council
against any costs arising from the consultant being classified an
‘employee’ under Inland Revenue rules.

21.2 The Manager responsible for appointing any consultant, agent or professional
adviser under paragraph 21.1 shall provide them with a copy of this Code.

22. PROCUREMENT TRAINING

22.1 The Procurement Manger shall create, maintain and arrange the delivery of
training for Officers undertaking procurement duties.

22.2 Managers shall ensure that all Officers routinely undertaking purchasing or
procurement duties where the gross value of the procurement is £5,000 or more shall
have undertaken appropriate training.

95



This page is intentionally left blank



naa
uc

gD

Ao
9 I

Public
Key Decision - Yes

HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Title/Subject Matter:  Constitution Review

Meeting/Date: Corporate Governance Panel — 9" March 2016
Council — 23" March 2016

Executive Portfolio: Executive Leader
Report by: Corporate Director - Services

Ward(s) affected: All Ward(s)

Executive Summary:

Under the Local Government Act 2000, local authorities were required to adopt a
written Constitution setting out its governance arrangements. Since then the Council
has continued to review its Constitution regularly. The purpose of the review is to
identify changes required to the Constitution to reflect new legislation and working
practices, to overcome any inconsistencies which may have arisen and to make
positive adjustments to improve or modify the way that the Constitution currently
operates.

The terms of reference for the Corporate Governance Panel include responsibility “to
review the Council's Constitutional arrangements and make appropriate
recommendations to the Council”. This report is therefore submitted to enable the
Panel to consider the changes arising from the current review.

Members and Senior Managers Group have been invited to highlight any issues or
areas which could be improved, clarified or revised based on experience of the
Constitution over the previous year and any submitted will be discussed in this
report.

Recommendation(s):
It is recommended that Corporate Governance Panel:

1. Consider and comment on the draft constitution and in particular on the
following changes:
a) All Committees with delegated decision making to be renamed as
Committees in line with Local Government Act requirements.
b) The revised scheme of delegations as set out in part 3 — Responsibility for
Functions
c) The introduction of Committee Procedure Rules
d) The proposal to incorporate the Standards Committee into Corporate
Governance Panel and for Standards Committee to be a sub- Committee
of CGP.
2. Endorse the draft constitution for recommendation at full Council subject to
any amendments they wish to see made to the draft attached at Appendix 1.

97

CJO




1.

11

1.2

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

3.1

3.2

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

It is good practice to regularly review the Council’s constitution to ensure that it
reflects any changes in legislation and continues to meet the Council’s needs in
supporting effective governance.

The Corporate Governance Panel has a role to consider proposals in relations
to the review of the Constitution and to make appropriate recommendations to
Council. This report provides CGP with a summary of the changes made and
the rationale for the approach taken and provides opportunity for CGP to make
changes to the draft in advance of the re[ort to full Council on 23" March.

BACKGROUND

Under the Local Government Act 2000, local authorities were required to adopt
a written Constitution setting out its governance arrangements. Since then the
Council has continued to review its Constitution regularly. The purpose of the
review is to ensure the Constitution remains up to date and fit for purpose and
to make positive adjustments to improve or modify the way that the Constitution
currently operates.

In 2015 it was agreed that a more fundamental review of the Constitution would
be undertaken. A Constitution Review Advisory Group was established to
support the Monitoring Officer in undertaking this review. Membership of the
Group included, Councillor Ablewhite, Councillor Cawley, Councillor Francis,
Councillor Bull, Councillor Shellens, Councillor Tuplin, Councillor Duffy and
Councillor Howe. Officers involved in the review are Joanne Lancaster, Julie
Slatter, Lisa Jablonska and Shirley Tracey. External advice and guidance has
also been sought from Bevan Brittan. The group has met six times since
September 2015 to undertake the review.

The Councils Constitution should enable it to carry out its business effectively. It
sets down the necessary procedures about decision making which should be
followed, and the Council must abide by it, unless it is in conflict with legislation,
which will then prevail.

Following this review the aim is that the Constitution is both compliant with
existing legislation and case law, and also provides an effective and efficient
framework within which decisions can be taken in an appropriate way, and
ensuring that Members, officers and the public are clear about the procedures
for decision making, and scrutiny process which the Council follows.

PRINCIPLES OF THE CONSTITUTION REVIEW
Recent case law has emphasised the importance of Councils observing their
Constitution when making decisions. The Constitution is owned by the Council
and it is important that members are involved in discussing the options for the
way the Constitution is developed and in the recommendations to Council as to
the most effective result.

The Constitution Review Advisory Group agreed a number of principles to be
adopted for the review as follows:

The constitution should:

* Focus on how the Council carries out its business;
* Be more streamlined and so less wordy;

98



3.3

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

* Make it easier for the council to do its business in not only a legal, but in
an efficient and timely manner

+ Contain a revised and much simpler scheme of delegation which will not
need constant revisions as statutes change and so will minimise the risk of
challenge. This involved the development of a scheme of delegation for
executive functions, and a scheme of delegation for Council functions, but
in terms of role rather than statute.

» Provide clarity about the roles of officers and members, including the role
of the portfolio holders and chairmen of Council Committees

+ Use the Local Choice functions in a way which facilitates quick and
effective decision making

* Be accessible to the public of the area

The aim being to produce a Constitution which is a readable document which
facilitates the council's decision making. It was also agreed that the Constitution
should only contain those materials that it must contain. The Council’s previous
Constitution contained much guidance material which could better be
referenced on the Council’'s website and in training and handbook guidance
materials for Councillors.

SUMMARY OF CHANGES TO THE CONSTITUTION

A number of changes have been made to the Constitution over the last year in
response to new legislation these changes have been included on the new
Constitution but are not reported again here as they have already been subject
to discussion and approval by CGP and Full Council.

In the course of the review it became clear that the Council, needed to
reconsider the naming of its Committees and panels. The legal advice to the
group was that the Local Government Act provides that delegations cannot be
made to a panel but only to a committee or sub-committee of the Council or
Cabinet. This review therefore has changed the names of those panels such as
Corporate Governance, Development Management and Licensing and
Protection panel to reflect this and they will in future be referred to as
Committees. Overview and Scrutiny panels do not have delegated decision
making and therefore are unchanged.

Part 1 - Summary and Explanation — Minor changes only to paragraph 3
maximum number of Councillors amended from 8 to 9 to reflect legislation.

Part 2 - Articles

Significant changes were made to the Articles in line with the principles above
to ensure that only that information that is required is included to the
Constitution.

Article 1 The Constitution — reference to the Corporate Plan deleted.

Article 2 Members of the Council Paragraph 2— subject to amendment and
review as part of the current Boundary Review and the decision to move to all
out Elections.

Paragraph 3 (iii) to be amended to reflect the fact that Councillors have a
responsibility to all residents of the Council’s area, and a special responsibility
to residents in their ward.

Paragraph 3 b Rights and duties to be deleted as this information is duplicated.

99



4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

411

4.12

4.13

4.14

4.15

Article 3 Citizens and the Council. Paragraph 1 (a) amended to reflect the
change in law as set out in the Localism Act.

Paragraph 1 (b) The council is no longer required to have a petition scheme.
Paragraph 1 (c ) delete this section. Agreed to allow time at meetings for public
participation but this should be reflected elsewhere in the constitution.

Article 4 The Full Council. Paragraph 1 (a) the list of policies set out in the policy
framework was reviewed and shortened. Revised list to include the
Development Plan, Corporate Plan, Licensing Act, statement of licensing policy,
Gambling Act and

Paragraph (b) — policy statements deleted

Paragraph (c ) include Budget in the policy framework list

Paragraph (d) — Housing Land Transfer deleted

Paragraph 2 (a) amended to give the Monitoring Officer powers to make
amendments to the constitution for matters of law fact and to reflect Council or
Executive decisions.

Paragraph 2 (b) — approving or adopting the policy framework — deleted
Paragraph 2 (f) insert new para re appointment to committees

Paragraph re dismissal of statutory officers amended in line with legislative
changes

Delete paragraph re casino licences.

Article 5 - Chairing the Council. It was agreed that this was a very lengthy
section which could be shortened considerably, by including much of the
content in job descriptions for example for the Chairman of the Council. A range
of job descriptions for members e.g Executive Leader, Executive Councillor are
now being developed and will be published on the Council’s website.

Article 6 - Overview and Scrutiny. The detail of the remit of the Overview and
Scrutiny Panels has been deleted from the articles. Revised wording to state
that the Council will appoint Overview and scrutiny panels as it sees fit.

Article 7- The Cabinet. Requires some updating to ensure that it is in line with
legislative changes, for example para 3 (c) to be deleted. New bullet point to be
added as set out in the version of the constitution annotated by Bevan Brittan.

Article 8 — Regulatory and Other Committees and Panels. Amend to state that
the Council will appoint such regulatory and other committees and panels as it
sees fit.

The group debated whether the section re requirement for training should be
retained in the constitution and we need to be clear what members can and
can't do. Although legally we have no ability to stop a member attending
licensing or development management and could include the requirement in
their job description Members of the Group felt strongly that retaining the
training requirement was important.

Article 9 Standards Committee — all deleted except paragraph 1 all that is
required ion the articles is that the Council establish a Standards Committee.

Article 10 — Area Committees and Forums. Amended to simply read the Council
shall appoint such area Committees or Forums as it sees fit.

Article 11 - Joint Arrangements. Arrangements to promote well being deleted —

not relevant to this section. Access to information and delegation deleted as
addressed elsewhere in the constitution.

100



4.16

4.17

4.18

4.19

4.20

4.21

4.22

4.23

Article 12- Officers. Amendments as advised by Bevan Brittan. Delete
paragraphs relating to assessment of code of conduct complaints and
conducting investigations. Delete appointment of deputy monitoring officer and
appointment of deputy chief finance officer.

Article 13 — Decision Making. Agreed need to review, amend and shorten
paragraph 3 b key decisions in light of recent changes agreed as part of the
new disposals and acquisition policy. Deleted paragraphs 7 A and 8. Paragraph
7 amended in line with procedure rules and changes arising as a result of
deleting 7A and 8.

Article 14 — Finance Contracts and Legal Matters. Amend paragraph 4 need to
change the word panel to sub-committee in line with the Local Government Act
requirements.

Article 15 — Review and Revision of the Constitution. Amended to reflect power
for Monitoring Officer to make changes arising as a matter of fact, law or
decisions made by Cabinet or Council. Delete paragraphs 2 and 3.

Article 16 — Suspension, Interpretation and Publication of the Constitution.
Minor amendment re access to the constitution, specifically reference to paper
copies deleted.

Part 3 - Responsibility for Functions

There have been significant changes made to the presentation of the
information in this section however it is important to note that this has not
resulted in any change to the scheme of delegations in itself. In practice
delegations will operate as now. The review group agreed that the current
scheme of delegations was overly lengthy and lacked clarity in terms of roles
and responsibilities and how decisions should be recorded. The external
advisors were clear that the Constitution was not fit for purpose and that listing
delegations by statute was not only unwieldy and difficult to keep up to date but
also risked challenge when it becomes out of date. The Constitution was one of
the longest they had seen, due mainly to the very lengthy scheme of
delegations which in their view does not assist the Council to effectively carry
out its functions.

The revised scheme of delegation sets out a short form of delegations to both
Committees and Officers from Council and detail of Executive functions and
delegations to Officers. The schedule detailing appointments to outside
organisations has been deleted from the Constitution as has the table detailing
Member Champions. Member Champions can be appointed by the Executive
Leader but there is no requirement to record them in the Constitution.

Part 4 — Rules of Procedure

Council Procedure Rules — minor amendments to delete reference to panels
in line with Local Government Act as at paragraph 4.2 above. Also changes to
reflect that there is no longer a requirement to have a petition scheme.
Reference to application to Committees deleted replaced by new Committee
Procedure Rules. All annexes deleted from the Constitution and to be held on
the Council’'s website. Code of Practice guidance materials are to be made
available for Members in handbook form and used as training materials as
appropriate. Content and length of speeches amended to permit speeches of no
more than 5 minutes without the consent of the Chairman. Exceptions being in

101



4.24

4.25

4.26

4.27

4.28

4.29

4.30

4.31

4.32

4.33

4.34

4.35

5.

respect of the Executive Councillor responsible for presenting the Budget and
Statutory and Non Statutory plans.

Access to Information Procedure Rules — minor amendment only for
example in relation to definition of exempt material.

Cabinet Procedure Rules — section on delegations simplified. Conflict of
interest section deleted as addressed elsewhere in the code of conduct.

Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules — these have been reviewed and
flow charts introduced to better define process.

Code of Financial Management and Code of Procurement — reviewed
annually and updated in line with changes in legislation or accounting codes.
Where possible information has been streamlined. All annexes have been
deleted as this is not required information. The details of changes to the Code
of Financial management and the Code of Procurement are reported annually
to Corporate Governance Panel and appear elsewhere on this agenda for
discussion.

Officer Employment Procedure Rules — updated to reflect changes relating to
dismissal of Statutory Officers.

Part 5 Codes and Protocols- the principles regarding including only those
things that need to be in the Constitution have been applied here and as a
result a number of codes and guidance for the Public have been taken out of
the Constitution. These materials will be made available on the Council’s
website.

Monitoring Officer Protocol — retitled code of conduct complaints. Complaints
process flowchart retained. Detail of complaints process to be published ion the
website.

Members’ planning code of good practice and Licensing Code of Good
Practice — reviewed and shortened. Fuller guide to be made available as
Member Handbook and guidance and also available on the website. There was
some discussion about whether this and the licensing code of good practice
should be included in the Constitution. The group felt it important to retain some
guidance in the Constitution and both have therefore been revised and retained.

Protocol for Community Leadership — has been deleted from the Constitution
but will be available in handbook/ guidance form as part of induction for new
Members.

Protocol of Member/ Officer relations — renamed Member/Officer Protocol.
Part 6 Members Allowance Scheme - updated to reflect recent review.
Schedule 2 deleted. Members IT and telephone support guidelines have been
deleted this information will be available to Members as part of an induction
pack.

Management structure updated. The Constitution should contain the names and
addresses of all Councillors — this will be achieved by including a link to the
Member contact details on the Council website.

KEY IMPACTS/RISKS

102



5.1

6.1

7.1

8.1

9.1

10.

10.1

10.2

It is important that the Council has an up to date and clear Constitution to
ensure that governance is effective and there is clarity about how and where
decisions are made and how meetings shall be conducted. The Constitution
must reflect relevant legislation and set out a clear framework for making and
recording decisions to mitigate the risk of successful challenge to decisions
made by the Council, Cabinet or any Committees or panels or by Officers in
accordance with the scheme of delegations.

TIMETABLE FOR IMPLEMENTATION

Subject to endorsement and any changes proposed by Corporate Governance
Panel the Constitution will be referred to full Council for approval on 23" March
for implementation at the Annual Council Meeting. The Member handbooks and
other guidance materials for new Members will be in place after the elections in
May. Training on the new Constitution will also be arranged for after the May
elections. Once the Constitution is approved the materials identified for
publication on the website will be formatted and posted.

LINK TO THE CORPORATE PLAN

A clear and well drafted Constitution supports the Council in its Corporate
objective to be an efficient and business like Council.

CONSULTATION

Members have been involved in the review through a Constitution Review
Advisory Group. The Senior Management Team has also been consulted on
the proposed changes.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

Under the Local Government Act 2000, local authorities were required to adopt
a written Constitution setting out its governance arrangements. Regular review
ensures that the Constitution reflects new legislation and supports effective
working practices and clear decision making. Various amendments have been
approved by Council during the year as a result of legislative change and these
have now been incorporated in the Constitution.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

The costs of the review of the Constitution has been met from the Monitoring
Officer Budget, there are no other direct costs arising from the review. The
Constitution incorporates the Council’'s Code of Financial Management and
procurement Code this is updated annually to ensure it reflects legislative
requirements and guidance.

The Code of Financial Management is the Council’s primary financial policy
which sets out the financial responsibilities and is updated on an annual basis
to ensure that the Code provides clear and updated guidance of responsibility
and accountability for the 2016/17 financial year. The Code of Procurement
provides the Council with policy and rules for compliance with public
procurement legislation. EU directives have changed the thresholds applicable
to public procurement (effective from 1 January 2016) and clarified processes
relating to concessions and some types of social services contracts. The Code
has also introduced processes to manage potential conflicts of interest in the
procurement process and simplified procedures for receipting tenders.

103



11 REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDED DECISIONS

11.1 The Constitution is a key document in the Council’s Governance Framework.
The Corporate Governance Panel has a role in reviewing the Constitution and
any updates. Members of the Panel are therefore asked to consider and
comment on the revisions as outlined in this report and to commend its
approval, subject to any changes that may be identified by the panel, to Council

12. LIST OF APPENDICES INCLUDED

Appendix 1 - Draft Constitution
BACKGROUND PAPERS

Constitution — the Council’s current Constitution is available for review and comparison
on the Council’s website.

CONTACT OFFICER

Julie Slatter / Corporate Director Services and Monitoring Officer
Tel No. 01480 388103

104



APPENDIX 1 , |
Huntingdonshire

DISTRIET CO UNCIL

Constitution
2016

Pathfinder House
St Mary's Street
Huntingdon
PE29 3TN

i
HDC Constitution version 0.1 26 Feb 2016

105



APPENDIX 1

HDC Constitution version 0.1 26 Feb 2016

106



PART 1

CONTENTS

SUMMARY AND EXPLANATION

PART 2

ARTICLES OF THE CONSTITUTION

Article 1
Avrticle 2
Article 3
Article 4
Article 5
Article 6
Article 7
Article 8
Article 9
Article 10
Article 11
Avrticle 12
Article 13
Article 14
Article 15
Article 16

PART 3

The Constitution
Members of the Council
Citizens and the Council
The Full Council
Chairing the Council
Overview and Scrutiny
The Cabinet

Requlatory and Other Committees and Panels

Standards Committee

Area Committees and Forums

Joint Arrangements

Officers

Decision Making

Finance, Contracts and Legal Matters

Review and Revision of the Constitution

Suspension, Interpretation and
Publication of the Constitution

RESPONSIBILITY FOR FUNCTIONS

Table 1
Table 2
Table 3
4
5

6

Responsibility for Functions
Responsibility for Local Choice Functions
Responsibility for Council Functions
Responsibility for Executive Functions
Scheme of Delegations to Officers
Council Functions

Annex A Delegations to officers
Executive Functions

Annex B Delegations to Officers

HDC Constitution version 0.3 1 March 2016

107

Page(s)
3 5
9
10 11
12 13
14 15
16
17
18 19
20
21
22
23 24
25 27
28 30
31 32
33
34
36
37
38 45
46 47
48
49 52
53 55
56 58
59 61



PART 4

PART 5

PART 6

PART 7

RULES OF PROCEDURE

Council Procedure Rules (Standing Orders)
Committee Procedure Rules

Access to Information Procedure Rules
Cabinet Procedure Rules

Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules
Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules

Code of Financial Management

Code of Procurement

Officer Employment Procedure Rules

CODES AND PROTOCOLS

The Nolan Principles
Members' Code of Conduct
Appendix A Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
Appendix B Non Statutory Disclosable Interests
Code of Conduct Complaints Process
Annex Complaints Procedure Flowchart
Members' Planning Code of Good Practice
Members' Licensing Code of Good Practice
Member / Officer Protocol
Protocol for the relationship between the
Executive Leader of the Council and
the Head of Paid Service

MEMBERS' ALLOWANCES SCHEME

Members' Allowances Scheme
Schedule 1 Special Responsibility Allowances

MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE

Management Structure
Organisational Structure

HDC Constitution version 0.3 1 March 2016

108

65
83
91
99
103
108
115
127
143

149
151
155
157
159
160
161
167
175

183

189
196

199
200

82
89
98
101
107
114
125
142
146

154
156

166
174
181

187

195
197



Summary and Explanation

Part 1

Summary and Explanation

109



Summary and Explanation

This page is intentionally left blank

110



Summary and Explanation
PART 1 - SUMMARY AND EXPLANATION

1. THE COUNCIL'S CONSTITUTION

Huntingdonshire District Council has a Constitution which sets out
how the Council operates, how decisions are made and the
procedures which are followed to ensure that these are efficient,
transparent and accountable to local people. Some of these
processes are required by the law, while others are a matter for the
Council to choose.

The Constitution is divided into 16 Articles which set out the basic
rules governing the Council's business. More detailed procedures
and codes of practice are provided in separate rules and protocols at
the end of the document.

Article 1 of the Constitution commits the Council to provide a clear
leadership in the community in partnership with citizens, business and
other organisations; efficient, effective and accountable decision
making with the active involvement of citizens; effective
representation by Councillors of their constituents; and continuous
improvements in service delivery.

Articles 2 - 16 explain the rights of citizens and how the key parts of
the Council operate. These are -

Members of the Council (Article 2);

Citizens and the Council (Article 3);

the Council meeting (Article 4);

Chairing the Council (Article 5);

Overview and scrutiny of decisions (Article 6);

the Executive or Cabinet (Article 7);

Regulatory and other committees and panels (Article 8);
the Standards Committee (Article 9);

Area committees (Article 10);

Joint arrangements (Article 11);

Officers (Article 12);

Decision making (Article 13);

Finance, contracts and legal matters (Article 14);
Review and revision of the constitution (Article 15); and
Suspension, interpretation and publication of the Constitution
(Article 16).

L 2R JER JNE JEE JEE NE JBR ZER 2R R 2R JEE JER JER 2

2. HOW THE COUNCIL OPERATES

The Council is composed of 52 Councillors with one third elected
three years in four.

Councillors are democratically accountable to residents of their Ward.
The overriding duty of councillors is to the whole community, but they
have a special duty to their constituents, including those who did not
vote for them.

111



Summary and Explanation

Councillors have to agree to a code of conduct to ensure high
standards in the way they undertake their duties. The Standards
Committee trains and advises them on the code of conduct.

All councillors meet together as the Council. Meetings of the Council
are normally open to the public. Here councillors decide the Council's
overall policies and set the budget each year. The Council appoints
and holds to account the Executive Leader, the Cabinet and other
committees and panels. It is responsible for changes to the
Constitution of the Council and the various codes and protocols
contained in it.

3. HOW DECISIONS ARE MADE

The Cabinet is the part of the Council which is responsible for most
day to day decisions. The Cabinet is made up of the Executive
Leader and up to nine councillors appointed by the Council. When
major decisions are to be discussed or made, these are published in
the Cabinet's Notice of Executive Decisions as far as they can be
anticipated. If these major decisions are to be discussed with Council
officers at a meeting of the Cabinet, this will generally be open for
members of the public to attend except where personal or confidential
matters are being discussed. The Cabinet has to make decisions
which are in line with the Council's overall policies and budget. If it
wishes to make a decision which is outside the budget or policy
framework, this must be referred to the Council as a whole to decide.

4. OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY

There are three Overview and Scrutiny Panels who support the work
of the Cabinet and Council as a whole. They allow citizens to have a
greater say in Council matters by holding enquiries into matters of
local concern. These lead to reports and recommendations which
advise the Cabinet and Council as a whole on its policies, budget and
service delivery. Overview and Scrutiny Panels also monitor the
decisions of the Cabinet. They can "call-in" a decision which has
been made by the Cabinet but not yet implemented. This enables
them to consider whether the decision is appropriate. They may
recommend that the Cabinet reconsider the decision. They may also
be consulted by the Cabinet or the Council on forthcoming decisions
and the development of a policy.

5. THE COUNCIL'S STAFF

The Council has people working for it (called "officers") to give advice,
implement decisions and manage the day to day delivery of its
services. Some officers have a specific duty to ensure that the
Council acts within the law and uses its resources wisely. A code of
practice governs the relationships between officers and members of
the Council.

6. CITIZENS' RIGHTS

112



Summary and Explanation
Citizens have a number of rights in their dealings with the Council.
These are set out in more detail in Article 3. Some of these are legal
rights, while others depend on the Council's own processes. Rural
Cambridgeshire CAB can advise on individuals' legal rights.

Where members of the public use specific Council services they have
additional rights. These are not covered in this constitution.

Citizens have the right to -

L4
L4

vote at local elections if they are registered;

contact their local Councillor about any matters of concern to
them;

obtain a copy of the Constitution;

attend meetings of the Council and its committees and panels
except where, for example, personal or confidential matters are
being discussed;

submit petitions at meetings of the Council;

petition to request a referendum for a change of governance
arrangements e.g. Mayoral form of executive;

contribute to investigations by the Overview and Scrutiny
Panels by submitting evidence and comments on the enquiries
being undertaken;

find out from the Cabinet's Notice of Executive Decisions what
major discussions are to be discussed by the Cabinet or
decided by members of the Cabinet or officers

attend meetings of the Cabinet where key decisions are being
discussed or decided; except where, for example personal or
confidential matters are being discussed

see reports and background papers specified and any record of
decisions made by the Council and the Cabinet;

complain to the Council about the standard of service provided
and any action or lack of action by the Council, its officers or
contractors;

complain to the Local Government Ombudsman if they think the
Council has not followed its procedures properly. However they
should only do this after using the Council's own complaints
process;

complain to the Council's Monitoring Officer if they have
evidence which they think shows that a Councillor has not
followed the Council's code of conduct; and

inspect the Council's accounts and make their views known to
the external auditor.

The Council welcomes participation by its citizens in its work. For
further information on your rights as a citizen please visit the
Council’'s website www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk

113


http://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/

Summary and Explanation

114



Part 2

Articles of the
Constitution

115






ARTICLE 1 -
THE CONSTITUTION

POWERS OF THE COUNCIL

The Council will exercise all its powers and duties in accordance with
the law and this Constitution.

THE CONSTITUTION

This Constitution, and all its appendices, is the Constitution of the
Huntingdonshire District Council.

PURPOSE OF THE CONSTITUTION
The purpose of the Constitution is to:-

(i)  enable the Council to provide clear leadership to the community
in partnership with citizens, businesses and other organisations;

(i)  support the active involvement of citizens in the process of local
authority decision making;

(i)  help Councillors represent their constituents more effectively;
(iv) enable decisions to be taken efficiently and effectively;

(v) create a powerful and effective means of holding decision-
makers to public account;

(vi) ensure that no one will review or scrutinise a decision in which
they were directly involved,;

(vii)  ensure that those responsible for decision making are clearly
identifiable to local people and that they explain the reasons for
decisions; and

(viii) provide a means of improving the delivery of services to the
community.

INTERPRETATION AND REVIEW OF THE CONSTITUTION

Where the Constitution permits the Council to choose between
different courses of action, the Council will always choose that option
which it thinks is closest to the purposes stated above. The Council
will monitor and evaluate the operation of the Constitution as set out
in Article 15.

117



ARTICLE 2 -
MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL

COMPOSITION AND ELIGIBILITY
(@) Composition

The Council will comprise 52 members otherwise called
councillors. Between 1 and 3 councillors will be elected by the
voters of each ward in accordance with the scheme drawn up
by the Electoral Commission and approved by the Secretary of
State.

(b)  Eligibility

Only registered voters of the Huntingdonshire District or those
living or working here will be eligible to stand for the office of
councillor.

ELECTION AND TERMS OF COUNCILLORS

The ordinary election of one third (or as near as may be) of all
councillors will be held on the first Thursday in May in each year.
Elections will be held in 2016 of one third of the Members of the
Council where the terms of office of councillors will be four years
starting on the fourth day after being elected and finishing on the
fourth day after the date of the regular election four years later. There
will be no regular elections in 2017. A whole Council election will be
held in 2018 arising from the electoral review. In December 2015
Council resolved to move to all out elections with effect from the
ordinary day of Elections in 2018.

ROLES AND FUNCTIONS OF ALL COUNCILLORS
Key Roles - All councillors will:-

()  collectively be the ultimate policy makers and carry out a
number of strategic and corporate management functions;

(i)  contribute to the good governance of the area and
actively encourage community participation and citizen
involvement in decision making;

(i)  effectively represent all residents of the Council’'s area
with special responsibility to the residents in their ward.;

(iv) respond to constituents' enquiries and representations
fairly and impartially;

(v) participate in the governance and management of the
Council;

(vi) be available to represent the Council on other bodies; and

10

118



(vii) maintain the highest standards of conduct and ethics.

CONDUCT

Councillors will at all times observe the Members' Code of Conduct
and the Protocol on Member/Officer relations set out in Part 5 of this
Constitution.

ALLOWANCES

Councillors will be entitled to receive allowances in accordance with

the Members' Allowances Scheme set out in Part 6 of this
Constitution.

11

119



ARTICLE 3 -

CITIZENS AND THE COUNCIL

CITIZENS' RIGHTS

Citizens have the following rights. Their rights to information and to
participate are explained in more detail in the Access to Information
Rules in Part 4 of this Constitution.

(@)

(b)

(€)

Voting and Petitions

Those on the register of electors may sign a petition to request
a referendum for a different form of governance in accordance
with the timetable as prescribed under legislation, and to vote in
any local referendum in respect of an increase in the local
authority’s precept.

Information

Citizens have the right to:-

(i) attend, record and report on meetings of the Council and
its Cabinet, committees and panels except where
confidential or exempt information is likely to be disclosed
and the meeting, or part of the meeting, is therefore held
in private;

(i)  find out from the Notice of Executive Decisions what key
decisions will be taken by the Cabinet and when,;

(i) see reports and background papers and any records of
decisions made by the Council and the Cabinet;

(iv) inspect the Council's accounts and make their views
known to the external auditor; and

(v) submit petitions at a meeting of the Council.

Complaints

Citizens have the right to complain to:-

(i)
(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

the Council itself under its complaints scheme;

the Local Government Ombudsman after using the
Council's own complaints scheme; and

the District Council about a breach of the Members' Code
of Conduct; and

the District Council about a breach of their respective

Members’ Code of Conduct of any town and parish
councillor in Huntingdonshire.

12

120



CITIZENS' RESPONSIBILITIES

Citizens must not be violent, abusive or threatening to councillors or
officers and must not wilfully harm things owned by the Council,
councillors or officers.

13

121



ARTICLE 4 -
THE FULL COUNCIL

1. MEANINGS

(@)

Policy Framework - the policy framework means the following
plans and strategies -

¢ Plans and alterations which together comprise the
Development Plan

¢ Council's Corporate Plan

¢ Licensing Act

¢ Gambling Act — Statement of Principles

¢ Budget - the budget includes the allocation of financial
resources to different services and projects, proposed
contingency funds, setting the Council Tax and decisions
relating to the control of the Council's borrowing
requirements, the control of the Council’s investments, the
control of its capital expenditure and the setting of virement
limits.

2. FUNCTIONS OF THE FULL COUNCIL

Only the Council will exercise the following functions:-

(@)

(b)
(c)

(d)

(€)

(f)

(9

adopting and changing the Constitution, other than Table 4 of
Part 3 — Scheme of Delegations and any changes the
Monitoring Officer makes to the Constitution to reflect changes
in legislation and decisions of the Council and the Executive
and changes of fact;

approving or adopting the policy framework and budget;

subject to the urgency procedure contained in the Access to
Information Procedure Rules in Part 4 of this Constitution,
making decisions about any matter in the discharge of an
executive function which is covered by the policy framework or
the budget where the decision maker is minded to make it in a
manner which would be contrary to policy framework or contrary
to/or not wholly in accordance with the budget;

electing the Executive Leader;

agreeing and/or amending the terms of reference for
committees and panels, (with the exception of the Licensing
Committee) deciding on their composition and making
appointments to them;

agreeing the appointment of the membership to Council
Committees;

adopting an allowances scheme under Article 2, paragraph 5;

14

122



(h)

0

(k)

()

(m)

(n)

the appointment of the electoral registration officer and the
returning officer to local government elections, power to change
the name of the District, petition for borough status and confer
honorary titles, functions relating to a change in governance
arrangements (the Council’s form of executive) and the passing
of a resolution to change the electoral scheme (the electoral
cycle);

confirming the appointment of the Head of Paid Service;

taking the final decision to dismiss the Head of Paid Service,
S151 Officer or Monitoring Officer,

making, amending, revoking, re-enacting or adopting byelaws
and promoting or opposing the making of local legislation or
personal Bills;

the functions described in Article 11, paragraphs 2 and 4
(Delegation to and from other local authorities and under joint
arrangements);

all local choice functions set out in Part 3 of this Constitution
which the Council decides should be undertaken by itself rather
than the Cabinet; and

all other matters which, by law, must be reserved to the
Council.

COUNCIL MEETINGS

There are 3 types of Council meeting:-

(@)
(b)
(©)

the annual meeting;
ordinary meetings; and

extraordinary meetings.

and they will be conducted in accordance with the Council Procedure
Rules in Part 4 of this Constitution.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR FUNCTIONS

The Council will maintain the tables in Part 3 of this Constitution
setting out the responsibilities for the Council's functions which are
not the responsibility of the Cabinet.

15

123



ARTICLE S -
CHAIRING THE COUNCIL

ROLE AND FUNCTION OF THE CHAIRMAN

The Chairman will be elected by the Council annually in accordance
with the Council Procedure Rules in Part 4 of this Constitution. The
Chairman of the Council and, in his/her absence, the Vice-Chairman
of the Council has a dual role —

. to act as the leading citizen in Huntingdonshire and to represent
the Council at the various functions of a civic nature which the
Council might host or at which it might be represented; and

. to encourage and promote high standards of debate in
meetings of the Council and to promote the role of the Council
as the forum for local democracy in Huntingdonshire.

16

124



ARTICLE 6 -
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY

TERMS OF REFERENCE OF OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
PANELS

The Council will appoint such Overview and Scrutiny Panels as it
thinks fit.

GENERAL ROLE

Within their terms of reference, the Overview and Scrutiny Panels
will:-

(i) review and/or scrutinise decisions made or actions taken in
connection with the discharge of any of the Council's functions;

(i)  make reports and/or recommendations to the full Council and/or
the Executive Leader and/or any joint committee in connection
with the discharge of any functions;

(i)  review the performance of the Council and the achievement of
performance indicators and targets;

(iv) consider any matter affecting the area or its inhabitants; and
(v) exercise the right of call-in, for reconsideration, decisions made
but not yet implemented by the Executive Leader, the Cabinet,

an individual member of the Cabinet, a committee of the
Cabinet or a key decision made by an officer.

17

125



ARTICLE 7 -
THE CABINET

THE EXECUTIVE LEADER AND CABINET

The Executive Leader is responsible for the discharge of all of the
Council's functions which are not the responsibility of any other part
of the Council, whether by law or under this Constitution. The
Executive Leader has arranged for the discharge of the executive
functions by the Cabinet which, unless the Executive Leader
otherwise directs will undertake those functions collectively or by
delegation to a panel of the Cabinet or individual executive councillors
as specified in Tables of Part 3 of this Constitution.

FORM AND COMPOSITION

The Cabinet will consist of the Executive Leader together with at least
two, but not more than nine, Councillors appointed by the Executive
Leader.

EXECUTIVE LEADER

The Executive Leader is a councillor and will be elected at an annual
meeting of the Council for a four year term and thereafter at the
annual meeting when the Executive Leader’s term of office comes to
an end. The Executive Leader will hold office from the date of his/her
election to that position until:-

(@) the first annual meeting after the Executive Leader’s normal day
of retirement as a councillor;

(b) he/she resigns from the office; or

(c)  he/she is no longer a Councillor; or

(d) he/she is removed from office by resolution of the Council.

(e) he/she is disqualified from being a councillor

The Executive Leader shall appoint a councillor to be Deputy
Executive Leader who shall be a member of the Cabinet. The Deputy
Executive Leader will hold office from the date of his/her appointment
to that position, until:-

(&) the end of term of office of the Executive Leader;

(b) he/she resigns from the office; or (© he/she is no
longer a Councillor; or

(c) he/she is removed from office by the Executive Leader.

(d) he/she is disqualified from being a councillor

18

126



OTHER CABINET MEMBERS

Other Councillors will be appointed to the Cabinet by the Executive
Leader and will hold office until the day that -

(@) they resign from office; or
(b) they are no longer Councillors; or

(c) they are removed from office, either individually or collectively,
by the Executive Leader.

(d) he/she is disqualified from being a councillor
CASUAL VACANCIES

Any vacancy in the position of the Executive Leader shall be filled by
the Council at the meeting that the Executive Leader ceases to hold
office or at a subsequent meeting. Any vacancy in the position of
Deputy Executive Leader or member of the Cabinet will be filled by
the Executive Leader and reported to Council at the next meeting.
The person(s) elected or appointed shall be subject to the term of
office described in paragraphs 3 to 5 above.

PROCEEDINGS OF THE CABINET

Proceedings of the Cabinet shall take place in accordance with the
Cabinet Procedure Rules set out in Part 4 of this Constitution.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR FUNCTIONS

(@) The Executive Leader will maintain or arrange to be maintained
a list in Part 3 of this Constitution setting out which individual
members of the Cabinet, committees appointed by the Cabinet,
officers or joint arrangements are responsible for the exercise of
particular Cabinet functions.

(b) If for any reason the Executive Leader is unable to act or that
office is vacant, the Deputy Executive Leader will act in his/her
place. If for any reason both the Executive Leader and Deputy
Executive Leader are unable to act or those offices are vacant,
the Cabinet will act in place of the Executive Leader or will
arrange for a member of the Cabinet to do so.

19

127



1.

la.

ARTICLE 8 -
REGULATORY AND OTHER COMMITTEES AND PANELS

REGULATORY AND OTHER COMMITTEES AND PANELS
The Council will appoint the committees and panels it sees fit.

No Member shall be eligible to serve on a Regulatory Committee - the
Development Management and Licensing & Protection Committees
and Licensing Committee unless or until they have undertaken
relevant training. The Elections and Democratic Services Manager
shall maintain a record of attendance at training events to ensure the
requirement has been met.

20

128



ARTICLE 9 -
STANDARDS COMMITTEE

STANDARDS COMMITTEE
The Council will appoint a Standards Committee under Section 102 of
the Local Government Act. Its composition shall be governed by

proportionality and it shall be subject to the same requirements on
confidential and exempt information as any other Committee.

21

129



ARTICLE 10 -
AREA COMMITTEES AND FORUMS

1. AREA COMMITTEES

The Council may appoint area committees or forums as it sees fit.

22

130



ARTICLE 11 -
JOINT ARRANGEMENTS

JOINT ARRANGEMENTS

(@)

(b)

(€)

(d)

(€)

The Council may establish joint arrangements with one or more
local authorities and/or their executives to exercise functions
which are not executive functions in any of the participating
authorities. (Such arrangements may involve the appointment
of a joint committee with these other local authorities).

The Executive may establish joint arrangements with one or
more local authorities to exercise functions, which are
Executive functions. Such arrangements may involve the
appointment of joint committees with these other local
authorities

Except as set out below, the Cabinet may only appoint Cabinet
members to a joint committee and those members need not
reflect the political composition of the local authority as a whole.

The Cabinet may appoint Members to a joint committee from
outside the Cabinet in the following circumstances -

. the joint committee has functions for only part of the area
of the authority, and that area is smaller than two fifths of
the authority by area or population. In such cases, the
Cabinet may appoint to the joint committee any Councillor
who is a member for an electoral ward which is wholly or
partly contained within the area;

. the joint committee is between Cambridgeshire County
Council and the Council and relates to functions of the
executive of the County Council. (In such cases, the
executive of the County Council may appoint to the joint
committee any Councillor who is a member for an
electoral division which is wholly or partly contained within
Huntingdonshire.)

In both of these cases the political balance requirements will not
apply to such appointments.

Details of any joint arrangements including any delegations to
joint committees will be found in the Council's scheme of
delegations in Part 3 of this Constitution.

The Council may delegate non-executive functions to another
local authority or, in certain circumstances, the executive of
another local authority. The Council may, upon a proposal by
the Cabinet, delegate executive functions to another local
authority or the executive of another local authority in certain
circumstances.

23

131



CONTRACTING OUT

The Council, for those functions that are not Executive functions, and
the Executive, in respect of Executive functions, may contract out to
another body or organisation functions which may be exercised by an
officer and which are subject to an order under section 70 of the
Deregulation and Contracting Out Act 1994, or under contracting
arrangements where the contractor acts as the Council’'s agent under
usual contracting principles, provided there is no delegation of the
Council’s discretionary decision making.

24

132



ARTICLE 12 -
OFFICERS

TERMINOLOGY

In this Article use of the word "officers" means all employees and staff
engaged by the Council to carry out its functions and includes those
engaged under short-term, agency or other non-employed situations.

MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE

(@) General - the Council may engage such staff (referred to as
officers) as it considers necessary to carry out its functions.

(b) Chief Officers - the Council will engage persons for the
following posts, who will be designated chief officers:-

Post Functions and areas of responsibility

Head of Paid Service | Overall corporate management and strategic
responsibility (including overall management
responsibility for all officers).

Provision of professional advice to all in the
decision making process.

Together with the Monitoring Officer, responsibility
for a system of record keeping for all the Council's
decisions.

Representing the Council on partnership and
external bodies (as required by statute or the

Council).
Corporate Director Resources, Customer Services and Operations.
(Services)
Corporate Director Development, Community, Leisure and Health.
(Delivery)

(c) Head of Paid Service, Monitoring Officer and Chief Finance
Officer - the Council will designate the following posts as

shown:-
Post Designation
Managing Director Head of Paid Service
Corporate Director (Services) Monitoring Officer
Head of Resources Chief Finance Officer and Section
151 Officer

Such posts will have the functions described in paragraphs 3 - 5
below.

(d) Structure - the Head of Paid Service will determine and
publicise a description of the overall departmental structure of

25

133



the Council showing the management structure and deployment
of officers. This is set out at Part 7 of this Constitution.

FUNCTIONS OF THE HEAD OF PAID SERVICE

(@)

(b)

Discharge of functions by the Council - the Head of Paid
Service will report to Council on the manner in which the
discharge of the Council's functions is co-ordinated, the number
and grade of officers required for the discharge of functions and
the organisation of officers.

Restrictions on Functions - the Head of Paid Service may not
be the Monitoring Officer but may hold the post of Chief
Finance Officer if a qualified accountant.

FUNCTIONS OF THE MONITORING OFFICER

(@)

(b)

(€)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Maintaining the Constitution - the Monitoring Officer will
maintain an up-to-date version of the Constitution and will
ensure that it is widely available for consultation by Councillors,
officers and the public.

Ensuring Lawfulness and Fairness of Decision Making -
after consulting with the Head of Paid Service and Chief
Finance Officer, the Monitoring Officer will report to the Council
or to the Cabinet in relation to an executive function if he or she
considers that any proposal, decision or omission would give
rise to unlawfulness or if any decision or omission has given
rise to maladministration. Such a report will have the effect of
stopping the proposal or decision being implemented until the
report has been considered.

Supporting the Standards Committee - the Monitoring Officer
will contribute to the promotion and maintenance of high
standards of conduct through provision of support to the
Standards Committee.

Proper Officer for Access to Information - the Monitoring
Officer will ensure that executive decisions, together with the
reasons for those decisions, and relevant officer reports and
background papers are made publicly available as soon as
possible.

Advising whether Executive Decisions are within the
Budget and Policy Framework - the Monitoring Officer will
advise whether executive decisions are in accordance with the
budget and policy framework and (after consultation with the
Chief Finance Officer) the budgetary framework.

Providing Advice - the Monitoring Officer will provide advice
on the scope of powers and authority to take decisions,

maladministration, financial impropriety, probity and budget and
policy framework issues to all Councillors.

26

134



(g) Restrictions on Posts - the Monitoring Officer may not be the
Chief Finance Officer or the Head of Paid Service.

FUNCTIONS OF THE CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER

(@) Ensuring Lawfulness and Financial Prudence of Decision
Making - after consulting with the Head of Paid Service and the
Monitoring Officer, the Chief Finance Officer will report to the
Council or to the Cabinet in relation to an executive function
and the Council's external auditor if he or she considers that
any proposal, decision or course of action will involve incurring
unlawful expenditure, or is unlawful and is likely to cause a loss
or deficiency or if the Council is about to enter an item of
account unlawfully.

(b) Administration of Financial Affairs - the Chief Finance Officer
will have responsibility for the administration of the financial
affairs of the Council.

(c) Contributing to Corporate Management - the Chief Finance
Officer will contribute to the corporate management of the
Council, in particular through the provision of professional
financial advice.

(d) Providing Advice - the Chief Finance Officer will provide
advice on the scope of powers and authority to take decisions,
maladministration, financial impropriety, probity and budget and
policy framework issues to all Councillors and will support and
advise Councillors and officers in their respective roles.

(e) Give Financial Information - the Chief Finance Officer will
provide financial information to the media, members of the
public and the community.

DUTY TO PROVIDE SUFFICIENT RESOURCES TO THE
MONITORING OFFICER AND CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER

The Council will provide the Head of Paid Service, Monitoring Officer
and Chief Finance Officer with such officers, accommodation and
other resources as are in their opinion sufficient to allow their duties
to be performed.

CONDUCT

Officers will comply with the Officers’ Code of Conduct and the
Protocol on Officer/Member Relations set out in Part 5 of this
Constitution.

EMPLOYMENT

The recruitment, selection and dismissal of officers will comply with
the Officer Employment Rules set out in Part 4 of this Constitution.

27

135



ARTICLE 13 -
DECISION MAKING

RESPONSIBILITY FOR DECISION MAKING

The Council will issue and keep up to date a record of what part of
the Council or individual has responsibility for particular types of
decisions or decisions relating to particular areas or functions. This
record is set out in Part 3 of this Constitution.

PRINCIPLES OF DECISION MAKING

All decisions of the Council will be made in accordance with the
following principles:-

(@) proportionality (i.e. the action must be proportionate to the
desired outcome);

(b) due consultation and the taking of professional advice from
officers;

(c) respect for human rights;

(d) apresumption in favour of openness;

(e) clarity of aims and desired outcomes;

()  the consideration of alternative options; and
(g) an explanation of the reasons for the decision.
TYPES OF DECISION

(@) Decisions Reserved to Full Council.

Decisions relating to the functions listed in Article 4.2 will be
made by the full Council and not delegated.

(b) Key Decisions

A 'key decision' means an executive decision taken by the
Cabinet, a committee of the Cabinet, an individual member of
the Cabinet or an officer or under joint arrangements which is
likely -

(i) to result in the local authority incurring expenditure which is,
or the making of savings which are, significant having
regard to the budget for the service or function to which the
decision relates; or

(i) to be significant in terms of its effects on communities living
or working in the area comprising two or more wards.

28

136



In determining the meaning of 'significant’, regard shall be had
to any guidance for the time being issued by the Secretary of
State. A key decision is any decision which would if
implemented fall in any of the following categories —

e it is not in accordance with a policy, plan or strategy
which forms part of the policy framework approved
by the Council;

e it may result in the adoption of any additional policy,
plan or strategy by the Council;

e it is not in accordance with the budget approved by
the Council;

e it may increase financial commitments in future
years above existing budgetary approvals;

o it will result in any of the following:

- the appointment of additional permanent staff
for which there is no budget provision;

- the acquisition or disposal of land or property
with a value in excess of £2,000,000;

- any budgetary virement in excess of the limits
set out in the Code of Financial Management
in Part 4 of this Constitution;

- any statutory order or scheme if it requires,
either directly or as a result of objections, the
approval of a Minister of the Crown;

- the initiation of local legislation or byelaws;

- if it is likely to be of significance in the opinion
of the decision taker

Any decision to incur expenditure or savings or realignment
of expenditure in excess of £200,000 shall be treated as
significant for these purposes. However a decision to invite
a tender or award a contract shall not be treated as a key
decision insofar as the purpose of the contract is to fulfil the
intention of any policy or scheme included in the policy
framework or budget or involves a continuation of an
existing policy or service standard.

The decision taker shall inform the Monitoring Officer of all
decisions (including those with a financial value below
£200,000) about which he/she has any doubt as to whether
the decision may or may not be significant for the purposes
of this paragraph and the Monitoring Officer may determine
the decision as a key decision.

29

137



A decision taker may only make a key decision in accordance with
the requirements of the Procedure Rules set out in Part 4 of this
Constitution.

DECISION MAKING BY THE FULL COUNCIL

The Council meeting will follow the Council Procedure Rules set out
in Part 4 of this Constitution when considering any matter.

DECISION MAKING BY THE CABINET

Subject to paragraph 8 below, the Cabinet will follow the Cabinet
Procedure Rules set out in Part 4 of this Constitution when
considering any matter.

DECISION MAKING BY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANELS
Overview and Scrutiny Panels will follow the Overview and Scrutiny
Procedure Rules set out in Part 4 of this Constitution when

considering any matter.

DECISION MAKING BY OTHER COMMITTEES AND PANELS
ESTABLISHED BY THE COUNCIL

Other Council committees and panels will follow those parts of the
Council Procedure Rules set out in Part 4 of this Constitution as
applied to them.

30

138



ARTICLE 14 -
FINANCE, CONTRACTS AND LEGAL MATTERS

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

The management of the Council's financial affairs will be conducted in
accordance with the Code of Financial Management set out in Part 4
of this Constitution.

CONTRACTS

Every contract made by the Council will comply with the Code of
Procurement set out in Part 4 of this Constitution.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Legal Services Manager or their nominated representative is
authorised to institute, defend or participate in any legal proceedings
in any case where such action is necessary to give effect to decisions
of the Council or in any case where he/she considers that such action
is necessary to protect the Council's interests and in particular, to
ensure that all procedural and evidential requirements are carried out
in connection therewith.

COMMON SEAL OF THE COUNCIL

The Common Seal of the Council shall be kept in a safe place in the
custody of the Legal Services Manager.

The Seal shall not be affixed to any document unless the sealing has
been authorised by a resolution of the Council or of the Cabinet,
committee or sub-committee to which the Council have delegated
their powers in this behalf, or by a decision of an officer to which the
Council, Cabinet, committee or panel similarly have delegated their
powers.

The Head of Paid Service or the Legal Services Manager or their
nominated representatives shall attest every document which is being
sealed and any entry of the sealing of every document to which the
Common Seal has been attached shall be made and consecutively
numbered in a book to be provided for that purpose and each entry
duly attested. The book shall be open for inspection by every
member of the Council.

31

139



SIGNING OF CONTRACTS AND AUTHENTICATION OF
DOCUMENTS FOR LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

All contracts required to be entered into in writing by the Council as
provided in the Code of Procurement shall be signed by two officers
and the Head of Paid Services and the Legal Services Manager or
nominated representative shall be authorised as the agent of the
Council to sign such contracts. (This article does not apply where a
Chief Officer has authority to issue a written order in accordance with
the Councils Code of Financial Management or Code of
Procurement.)

Where any document will be a necessary step in legal proceedings
on behalf of the Council, it shall be signed by the Head of Paid
Service or the Legal Services Manager or their nominated
representative unless any enactment otherwise requires or
authorises, or the Council gives the necessary authority to some
other person for the purpose of such proceedings.

32

140



ARTICLE 15 -
REVIEW AND REVISION OF THE CONSTITUTION

DUTY TO MONITOR AND REVIEW THE CONSTITUTION

The Head of Paid Service and Monitoring Officer will monitor and
review the operation of the Constitution to ensure that the aims and
principles of the Constitution are given full effect.

The Monitoring Officer will ensure that the Constitution is kept up to
date and has the delegated power to ensure that it is amended to

reflect changes in legislation and fact, and decisions of the Council
and the Executive

33

141



34

ARTICLE 16 -
SUSPENSION, INTERPRETATION AND
PUBLICATION OF THE CONSTITUTION

SUSPENSION OF THE CONSTITUTION

(@)

(b)

(€)

Limit to Suspension - the Articles of this Constitution may not be
suspended. The Rules specified below may be suspended by the
Council to the extent permitted within those Rules and the law.

Procedure to Suspend - a motion to suspend any Rules will not be
moved without notice unless at least two thirds of the whole number of
Councillors are present. The extent and duration of suspension will be
proportionate to the result to be achieved, taking account of the
purposes of the Constitution set out in Article 1.

Rules Capable of Suspension - the following Rules may be suspended
in accordance with this Article - the Council Procedure Rules.

INTERPRETATION

The ruling of the Chairman of the Council, after consultation with the
Monitoring Officer or his/her nominee, as to the construction or application of
this Constitution or as to any proceedings of the Council should not be
challenged at any meeting of the Council. Such interpretation will have regard
to the purposes of this Constitution contained in Article 1.

PUBLICATION

(@)

(b)

Each member of the Council, upon delivery of the individual's declaration
of acceptance of office on the member first being elected to Council, will
be provided with the details of where to view a copy of the Constitution
on the Council's website by the Monitoring Officer.

Copies of this Constitution will be available for inspection on the
Council’s website, and at Council offices, libraries and other appropriate

locations., and can be purchased by members of the local press and the
public on payment of a reasonable fee.

34

142



35

Part 3

Responsibility for Functions

35

143



36

RESPONSIBILITY FOR FUNCTIONS

1. Scheme of delegation to committees

Introductory Notes

All functions that are not specifically reserved in this constitution to Council, a
committee or the Cabinet (formerly known as the Executive) are delegated to Officers
in accordance with the Officer Scheme of Delegation set out in this Constitution.

A committee or subcommittee may delegate some of its functions to officers and if so
these will be recorded by the Monitoring Officer

The terms and reference of a committee may provide that a matter need only be
referred to the committee if objections or representations have been received or if, for
example, the matter or the proposed decision will have a significant, major or material
impact or might represent a significant or major departure from certain plans of policies.

In these instances there is discretion to be exercised as to what is major, significant,
material or relevant and so whether a particular matter needs to be referred to a
committee or not. That discretion is to be exercised by the relevant Corporate Director
(or their authorised representative) in consultation with the relevant committee
chairperson.

36

144



174"

1. Responsibility for Local Choice Functions

Function Decision Making Delegation of Functions*
Body
Appeals against disciplinary action against Corporate Directors and Service Managers and Appeals Sub- None
appeals in respect of grievances of Corporate Directors and Service Managers Committee
Functions relating to contaminated land. Council Head of Community

Functions relating to the control of pollution or the management of air quality

Licensing and
Protection Committee

Head of Community

Service of an abatement notice in respect of a statutory nuisance

Licensing and
Protection Committee

Head of Community

Passing of a resolution that Schedule 2 to the Noise and Statutory Nuisance Act 1993 should
apply in the Authority’s area

Licensing and
Protection Committee

None

Inspection of the Authority’s area to detect statutory nuisances

Licensing and
Protection Committee

Head of Community

Investigation of complaints as to the existence of statutory nuisances

Licensing and
Protection Committee

Head of Community

Obtaining of information under Section 330 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as to Cabinet Head of Development
interests in land

Obtaining of information under Section 16 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Cabinet Heads of Service

Act 1976 as to interests in land

Appointments to Outside Bodies and revocation of such appointments Cabinet Executive Leader

The making of agreements with other local authorities for the placing of staff at the disposal of Cabinet Managing Director and

those authorities.

Heads of Service

* Delegations to officers are as set out in the Scheme of Delegation to Officers

37




arT

2. Responsibility for Council Functions

Committee/Panel and Functions Delegation of
Membership Functions
Council In addition to the functions set out elsewhere in the Constitution None
o Exercise of the Council’s functions in relating to parishes and parish councils under Part Il of
the Local Government & Rating Act 1997
o Exercise of powers on the following electoral matters:-
o Division of parliamentary constituencies and local government wards or electoral divisions N
into polling districts one
o Approval of pilot schemes for local elections
o Making recommendations to the Electoral Commission in ward boundary reviews, electoral
division reviews and parliamentary constituency reviews
e Any other matters relating to elections set out in Part D of Schedule 1 of the Local Authorities R?ft.urnmg
(Functions and Responsibilities) (England) (Regulations) 2000 Officer
e Making and amending Standing Orders, Standing Orders Relating to Contracts and Financial | None
Regulations.
e Appointment of Head of Paid Service, the Monitoring Officer and the Section 151 Officer are Appointment of
reserved to full Council on the recommendation of the Senior Officers Committee. other staff is
e Appointment of Corporate Directors is delegated to the Senior Officers Committee unless the aelegatfeg t%
post includes the duties of either the Monitoring Officer or the Section 151 Officer in which Sea' orFal
case it is reserved to Council. ervice
o Designation of officers as the Monitoring Officer and Section 151 Officer None
e Appointment of Electoral Registration Officer and Returning Officer for Local Government
Elections
Council e Appointment of officers for particular purposes(“proper officers”) M'anaging
e Determining the scheme for travelling and subsistence allowances, conference attendance Director
None

allowances and members scheme of expenses
e Approve the dismissal of the Head of Paid Service, Monitoring Officer and Chief Finance

38




LV1

Committee/Panel and Functions Delegation of
Membership Functions
Officer following the recommendation of such a dismissal by the Senior Officers Committee of | None

the Council appointed for that purpose.

Development Management
Committee

16 members of the Council
including at least 1 member of
the Cabinet

Functions relating to town and country planning and development control as specified in Schedule
1 Part A to the Local Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 2000 as
amended (the Functions Regulations).

Powers relating to the protection of important hedgerows and the preservation of trees

Powers relating to the regulation of the use of highways and public rights of way as set out in the
Functions Regulations.

See scheme of
delegation to
Officers

Licensing Committee

12 members of the Council
including at least 1 member of
the Cabinet (who shall be the
same as the membership of the
Licensing and Protection
Committee).

Functions of the Council as a Licensing Authority under the Licensing Act 2003 and the Gambling
Act 2005 (with the exception of those functions which are reserved to Council), and
miscellaneous matters as set out in the Functions Regulations.

To discharge the functions of the The Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013 (Relevant Sub-Committee to
be convened when appropriate to deal with contested applications and hearings.)

Determining the amount of any charge to be made for any approval, consent, licence, permit or
registration within the terms of reference of the Committee.

In relation to the functions set out above, determining whether and in what manner to enforce any
failure to comply with any approval, licence, permission or registration granted by the Committee
(or an officer acting under delegated powers) or any failure to comply with a condition, limitation
or term to which any such approval, consent, licence, permission or registration is subject.

See Scheme of
Delegation to
Officers

Licensing Sub-Committee

The sub committee shall consist
of 3 members - drawn from the
Licensing Committee

The Licensing Committee has delegated the following functions to a Sub-Committee in
accordance with the Licensing Act 2003 -

To determine an application for the renewal of a personal licence where an objection notice is
submitted by the Police (S121)

See scheme of
delegation to
Officers

39




(174

Committee/Panel and
Membership

Functions

Delegation of
Functions

To revoke a personal licence (S124)

To determine an application for a premises licence where relevant representations are received
(S18)

To determine an application for a provisional statement where relevant representations are
received (S31)

To determine an application to vary a premises licence where relevant representations are
received (S35)

To determine an application to vary a premises licence in relation to a premises supervisor where
relevant representations are received (S39)

To determine an application to transfer a premises licence where relevant representations are
received (S44)

To cancel an interim authority notice where an objection is submitted by the Police (S48)
To determine an application for the review of a premises licence (S52)
To determine a review of a premises licence following a closure order (S167)

To determine an application for a club premises certificate where relevant representations are
received (S72)

To determine an application to vary a club premises certificate where relevant representations are
received (S85)

To determine an application for the review of a club premises certificate (S88)

To issue a counter notice to a temporary events notice where an objection notice is submitted by
the Police (S105)

To determine applications for Premises Licences in respect of which representations have been
made (and not withdrawn) (S163)

40




6vT

Committee/Panel and
Membership

Functions

Delegation of
Functions

To attach a condition to a Premises Licence or exclude a default condition (S163)

To determine an application to vary a Premises Licence in respect of which representations have
been made (and not withdrawn) (S187)

To determine an application for a transfer of a Premises Licence in respect of which
representations have been made (and not withdrawn) (S188)

To reinstate a lapsed Premises Licence in respect of which representations have been made (and
not withdrawn) (S195)

To review a Premises Licence and determine action following review (S 201 and 202)

To determine application for provisional statement in respect of Premises Licence where
representations have been made (and not withdrawn) (S204)

To issue a counter notice in response to Temporary Use Notice (S224)

To make an Order to remove exemptions from specified premises in respect of which
representations have been made (and not withdrawn) (S284)

To determine an application for a Club Gaming Permit and a Club Machine Permit and for
renewal of a permit in respect of which representations have been made (and not withdrawn)
(Schedule 12 — Para 5, 10 and 24)

To determine an application for the variation of a Club Gaming Permit and Club Machine Permit
where representations have been made (and not withdrawn) (Para 15)

To cancel a Club Gaming Permit and Club Machine Permit in respect of which representations
have been made (and not withdrawn) (Para 21)

To cancel Licensed Premises Gaming Machine Permit or variation of number or category of
machines in respect of which representations received (and not withdrawn) (Para 16)

To determine an application for a personal licence with unspent convictions (S120)

To determine an objection notice from the Police in response to convictions after the grant of a

41




0ST

Committee/Panel and Functions Delegation of
Membership Functions
personal licence (S124)
To decide to object when the local authority is a consultee and not the relevant authority
considering the application (S13 (4)(9))
Standards Committee The promotion and maintenance of high standards of conduct within the Council None

If the decision is to retain the
Standards Committee

8 members of the Council to
include 1 member of the
Executive. 2 parish councillors
appointed as co-opted and non-
voting members of the
Committee to represent the
interests of town and parish
councils in Huntingdonshire.

To advise the Council on the adoption or revision of its Codes of Conduct for Members

To monitor and advise the Council about the operation of its Code of Conduct for Members in the
light of best practice and changes in the law.

To ensure that all members and co-opted members of the Council have access to training in all
aspects of the Members Code of Conduct, that this training is actively promoted and that
members are aware of the standards expected from them under the Code.

Functions relating to standards of conduct of members under any relevant provision of, or
regulations made under, the Localism Act 2011.

To advise the Council on the adoption or revision of a Protocol for Member/Officer relations.

To advise the Council on the adoption of a Code of Conduct for Planning and monitoring
operation of the Code. The promotion and maintenance of high standards of conduct within the
town and parish councils within Huntingdonshire

Determination of the Council’s Customer Feedback Procedure, monitoring compliance with the
procedure, compensatory payments to complainants and formulation of recommendations to the
Cabinet or Council on any action to be taken as a consequence. (if Standards Committee merged
with CGP approval of procedure will be Cabinet function — performance monitoring to be through
Finance and Performance Overview & Scrutiny Panel)

Consideration of reports by the Local Government Ombudsman including compensatory
payments

To review the District and Parish electoral arrangements including boundaries

Matters relating to the powers of a Parish Council, number of Parish Councillors and new Parish

42




161

Committee/Panel and
Membership

Functions

Delegation of
Functions

Councils and Parish Wards

District and District Ward boundaries arising from any review.

Employment Committee

8 members of the Council
including at least 1 member of
the Cabinet

To discharge the strategic overview of the people management and workforce decisions and
issues within the Council.

Specifically to:-

conduct research and analyse employment practice within the Council and elsewhere
taking account of best practice;

liaise with and where necessary to request information and reports from the Council's
Joint Liaison Group to support their analysis;

report to/make recommendations to Council and/or Cabinet in relation to the employment
and workforce practices within the Council; and

See scheme of
delegation to
Officers

Corporate Governance
Committee

If the decision is to retain a
standards committee

8 members of the Council

To discharge the functions of the Council in relation to the Corporate Governance of the Council
and to be the Council’s “Audit” Committee.

These responsibilities include:

1.

Governance - Regularly reviewing the Council’'s Code of Corporate Governance and
recommending any changes to the Council and approving the annual governance statement
and reviewing the achievement of any outstanding improvements.

Ensuring there are effective arrangements for the management of risk across the Council.

Ensuring there are effective arrangements for the system of internal audit of the Council
including:

considering a regular review of its effectiveness
reviewing and approving the internal audit charter;
approving internal audit plans and receiving reports on progress in delivery.

Receiving and considering external audit reports including the adequacy of management
response to issues identified.

Final Accounts - Approving the accounting policies, statement of accounts and considering
any matters arising from the external audit.

See Scheme of
Delegation to
Officers

43




A1)

Committee/Panel and
Membership

Functions

Delegation of
Functions

Corporate Governance
Committee to also include the
following if Standards
Committee remit is to be
incorporated in CGP

10.

11.

12.

The promotion and maintenance of high standards of conduct within the Council
To advise the Council on the adoption or revision of its Codes of Conduct for Members

The promotion and maintenance of high standards of conduct within the town and parish
councils within Huntingdonshire

To advise the Council on the adoption or revision of a Protocol for Member/Officer relations.

To advise the Council on the adoption of a Code of Conduct for Planning and monitoring
operation of the Code. (See Article 9 for further detail.)

Consideration of reports by the Local Government Ombudsman including compensatory
payments

Consider the periodic electoral review and review District and Parish electoral arrangements
including boundaries and other electoral matters

Standards Sub- Committee
To include Independent Person
and Parish Council reps

Functions relating to standards of conduct of members under any relevant provision of, or
regulations made under, the Localism Act 2011.

Senior Officers Committee
comprises

4 Members of the Council (and
the relevant Executive Councillor
in relation to the post to be filled).

To manage the appointment and dismissal of, and take disciplinary action against senior officers*
in accordance with the Officer Employment Procedure.

Specifically to:

appoint senior officers including starting salary and remuneration packages;
dismiss senior officers;

suspend senior officers;

undertake hearings and take disciplinary action in the case of senior officers; and

set senior officer salaries and determine pay rises, bonuses and other benefits

in accordance with the Officer Employment Procedure Rules.

44




eat

Committee/Panel and
Membership

Functions

Delegation of
Functions

Such terms of reference to be reviewed on an annual basis by the Panel.

* For these purposes, senior officers means Head of Paid Service, Managing Director,

Monitoring Officer, S151 Officer and Corporate Directors.

Senior Officers Committee
Independent Panel

At least two independent persons
and at least one member of the
Cabinet. The panel membership
must be agreed 20 working days
prior to a meeting

e To investigate proposed disciplinary action against a Chief Officer, Monitoring Officer or Chief

Finance Officer.

o To offer advice, views or recommendations to Council on the proposed course of action,
including any proposal for dismissal on the grounds of conduct, capability or some other

substantial reason.

45




121"

3.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR EXECUTIVE FUNCTIONS

Who is Responsible?

Functions

Onward Limit of Delegations

Executive Leader

All functions of the Council which are not the responsibility of any
other part of the Council as defined in the Constitution.

Cabinet and Executive
Councillors.  Delegations  to
Officers as set out in the
scheme of delegations to
Officers

Executive Leader

Appointment of Deputy Executive Leader and members of the
Cabinet and allocations of executive responsibilities

Deputy Executive Leader

All functions of Executive Leader in his/her absence or that position
being vacant

Cabinet

Membership as appointed by
Executive Leader

Subiject to the role of the Executive Leader as set out above and the
operation of the call-in mechanism, to collectively determine all
matters which are within the Council’s Policy Framework and Budget
other than those reserved by this Constitution to the Council or
various committees of the Council.

Delegations to Officers as set
out in the scheme of delegation
to Officers

Executive Councillors

Functions as may be delegated by the Executive Leader or Cabinet
as specified in part 3 of the Constitution

Delegations to Officers as set
out in the scheme of delegation
to Officers

Treasury and Capital
Management Group

Membership: Executive
Leader, Deputy Executive
Leader and Executive
Councillor - Resources

To review the Council’'s Treasury Management Activity and Capital
Programme. To review, support and guide the development and
operation of the Commercial Investment Strategy.

Decisions on disposal or acquisition of Land and property with values
between £500,000 and £2,000,000

Delegations to Officers as set
out in the scheme of delegation
to Officers

Licensing and Protection
Committee

12 members of the Council
including at least 1 member

Functions relating to licensing and registration as set in the Functions
Regulations. Taxi, food and miscellaneous licensing, street trading,
environmental health, anti-social behaviour, and community safety

Functions relating to Health and Safety under any "relevant statutory
provisions" within the meaning of Part | of the Health and Safety at

Delegations to Officers as set
out in the scheme of delegation
to Officers

46




Qa1

Who is Responsible?

Functions

Onward Limit of Delegations

of the Cabinet

Work Act 1974, to the extent that those functions are discharged
otherwise than in the Council's capacity as employer.

The approval of the Food Safety service plan
Determining the amount of any charge to be made for any approval,
consent, licence, permit or registration, or other activity for which the

Council as the ability to levy a legal charge within the terms of
reference of the Committee.

Licensing and Protection
Sub-Committee

The sub committee shall
consist of 3 members, drawn
from the Licensing and
Protection Committee

The Licensing and Protection Committee has delegated the following
functions to a Sub-Committee.

The determination of applications, ,renewals, suspensions and

revocations of licences regarding Hackney Carriage and private Hire
vehicles, drivers and operators

Delegations to Officers as set
out in the scheme of delegation
to Officers

47




4. SCHEME OF DELEGATIONS TO OFFICERS

4.1 The authority for delegating functions to the Cabinet, Committees, Panels and Officers
is contained in Section 101 of the Local Government Act 1972 and Section 14 of the
Local Government Act 2000 and these sources have generally been quoted except
where it was convenient or considered helpful to quote the source of the power
delegated. The authority for the delegation of functions by the Licensing Committee is
contained in Sub Section 10 (1) of the Licensing Act 2003. Certain other delegations
are implicit in Standing Orders, the Code of Financial Management and Code of
Procurement. The date of delegation which is given in each case is the original date of
delegation by a Committee or by the new date of delegation by the Council, Cabinet,
Committee and Panels as a result of the introduction of the Cabinet style of executive
administration.

4.2 In the case of absence by an appropriate Executive Councillor, the requirement for an
Officer to consult before carrying out any action or function shall be replaced by a
requirement to consult with the Executive Leader of the Council.

4.3 In the case of absence by the Executive Leader of the Council, the requirement for an
Officer to consult before carrying out any action or function shall be replaced by a
requirement to consult with the Executive Deputy Leader of the Council.

4.4 The term appropriate executive councillor means the Member appointed by the Cabinet
to the position of executive councillor for those functions relative to the requirement for
consultation to take place.

4.5 (Regarding the functions of the 'Proper Officer' and unless otherwise referred to in the
Scheme, the Head of Paid Service or in her absence, the Monitoring Officer shall be

appointed as the Proper Officer for the purposes of Section 270(3) of the Local
Government Act 1972 and in relation to any other statute or matters indicated herein.)

48

156



5. COUNCIL FUNCTIONS - SCHEME OF DELEGATION BY MANAGING DIRECTOR
(AS HEAD OF PAID SERVICE) TO OFFICERS OF COUNCIL FUNCTIONS AND
LOCAL CHOICE FUNCTIONS WHICH ARE NOT THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE
EXECUTIVE.

5.1 GENERAL PRINCIPLES

a)

b)

d)

f)

The Managing Director has delegated to her all the powers of the Council other
than those reserved to full Council or delegated to Committees and has in turn
delegated to officers in accordance with the scheme set out at Annex A below.

This scheme is made by the Managing Director (as Head of Paid Service). It
delegates to officers the powers and duties of the Council which, by virtue of the
Local Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 2000
or any amendments to them (the “Regulations”) are not to be the responsibility
of the Council’s Cabinet; together with those local choice functions which are
not the responsibility of the Cabinet.

This scheme is made, under section 101(1)(a) of the Local Government

Act 1972. It is made in accordance with section 151 of that Act, and all other

provisions relating to functions held by the Council; and shall be construed in

accordance with any legislation amending, or substituted for, any of those
provisions, or any legislation having a similar purpose or made for similar
purposes.

This scheme does not delegate to officers:

i. any matter reserved to full Council;

ii. any matter which by law may not be delegated to an officer;

iii. any matter expressly reserved to a committee by the Council’s
Standing Orders or Financial Regulations, or withdrawn from delegation
by this scheme or by a committee;

iv.  any power to change fees, charges or concession policies;

v. any power to make a decision on permanent savings in a budget;

vi. any power to make an order for the compulsory acquisition of land;

vii.  any power to acquire land in advance of requirements;

viii.  any power to confirm any order, or to issue or grant any permission,
consent, licence or other determination, which is the subject of a
statutory right of objection that has been duly exercised.

In respect of any matter falling within the parameters of this scheme, the

Managing Director may in writing make such detailed delegations to officers

concerning functions and activities within a given area of responsibility (“internal

delegations”) as he considers appropriate.

The Managing Director may, in writing, delegate any function of the Council (or
local choice function not the responsibility of the Executive) which has been

49

157



5.2

5.3

9)

h)

delegated to him/her, and which is not otherwise delegated under this scheme,
and he may vary in writing any delegation made under this scheme.

This scheme delegates powers and duties within broad functional descriptions.
It includes powers and duties under all legislation, present and future, within
those descriptions, and all powers and duties incidental to that legislation, as
well as authorising the affixing of the Common Seal.

This scheme includes an obligation on officers to keep Members of the Council
properly informed of activity arising within the scope of these delegations.

GENERAL LIMITATIONS

a)

b)

d)

An officer, in exercising delegated powers, shall consult other appropriate
officers and shall have regard to any advice received.

Any exercise of delegated powers shall be subject to any policy framework
approved by the Council from time to time, including the authority’s employment
policies and disciplinary procedures, equal opportunities policies, and any
service delivery policies; and shall be guided by relevant Codes of Conduct or
protocols produced or adopted from time to time by the Council (including any
Code or protocol which has been included within the Council’s constitution) and
the Corporate Plan.

Any exercise of delegated powers shall be subject to:

i.  any statutory restrictions
ii. the Council’'s Standing Orders
iii. the Financial Regulations
iv.  the Code of Procurement
v. the provisions generally of Part 4 of the Constitution

In exercising delegated powers, officers shall not go beyond the provision made
in the revenue or capital budgets for their service, except to the extent permitted
by the Financial Regulations or the Code of Procurement.

DELEGATIONS TO OFFICERS

a)

b)

The functions or activities listed in Annex A to this scheme and varied from time
to time are hereby delegated to the officers in the posts named in Annex A.

Limitation of delegations - The powers delegated to officers under this
scheme do not include any power to take a decision which is properly a matter
for the Council, or a committee or sub-committee. Officers are, in the context of
this scheme, responsible for the management of their services, the provision of
advice to the Council and Members, and the implementation of Council policies
and decisions. A decision which an officer takes, under a delegation made by or
under this scheme, must:

implement a policy previously approved or decision previously taken,
by the Council, or a committee or sub- committee (or by or with the
Executive); or

facilitate, or be conducive or incidental to, the implementation of a policy or
decision previously approved, or decision;

relate to the management of the human, material or financial resources
made available for the functions for which the Council is responsible;

50

158



iv.  any officer exercising powers or duties in pursuance of full sub- delegation
will be politically restricted under section 2(1)(g) of the Local Government
and Housing Act 1989.

5.4 FURTHER PROVISIONS

a) Individual Delegations

An officer to whom a delegation has been made by, or in accordance
with, this scheme may (subject to the terms of any applicable internal
delegation) further delegate in writing all or any of their delegated functions to
another officer (described by name and post), either fully or under the general
supervision and control of the delegating officer. Delegations made under this

sub-paragraph (“individual delegations”) may be made across service
boundaries.

b) Register of Internal and Individual Delegations

Subject to paragraph 5.4c below, all internal delegations made under paragraph
5.1 above, and individual delegations made under paragraph 5.4a above, shall
be recorded in a register kept by the Monitoring Officer in accordance with
section 100G of the Local Government Act 1972. (See also paragraph 5.4e
below).

c) Continuation of existing delegations

A delegation to an officer which existed at the date of the introduction of
this scheme shall, to any extent that it remains unaltered by (and is not
inconsistent with) any delegation (or variation to a delegation) made by or
under this scheme, shall continue to have effect.

d) Deemed delegations

Where in respect of a given function or activity, no delegation is in effect, and
an officer has a management responsibility in relation to the exercise of that
function or activity, the exercise of any delegated authority necessary to carry
out the function or activity effectively shall be deemed to have been delegated
to that postholder.

e) Other provisions

i.  All action taken under the terms of these delegations (and not falling within
the description of an internal delegation in paragraph 1d above, or an
individual delegation in paragraph 5.4a above) shall be properly
documented in accordance with arrangements approved by the Monitoring
Officer.

ii. It shall always be open to a senior officer to consult the appropriate
Chairman of a Committee, or other appropriate Member, on the exercise
of a delegated function; or, not to exercise a delegated function but to refer
the matter back to a sub-committee (or other Member grouping), Committee
or the Council.

iii. In this scheme, “officer” means the holder of any post to which a function or
activity, or powers and duties in relation to such a function or activity, may
be delegated.

o1

159



Vi.

Where a function or activity has been specifically delegated by or under this
scheme to an officer, that function or activity shall not be exercised by
another officer without the consent of the former, other than in
circumstances of the death or incapacity of that officer or, in an emergency,
where the officer to whom the delegation was made is absent or otherwise
unavailable.

An authority delegated to officers includes management of the human and
material resources made available for the service/portfolio areas and
any function concerned; to the extent of that authority, within the limitations
of this scheme, and subject to any specific delegations made by or in
accordance with this scheme to another officer.

In each case, a delegated authority excludes any determination of policy,
any exception to policy, or of any budget by the officer concerned.

52

160



Annex A - Council Functions

Delegations to Officers

MANAGING DIRECTOR

10.

11.

To be Head of the Paid Service.

To be the Electoral Registration Officer and Returning Officer for District Council
Elections.

Within the overall resources allocated by the Council and in direct support of the
Council's objectives, to act on behalf of the Council on all matters including those
which have been delegated to any other Officer PROVIDED THAT

3.1 the Managing Director may not exercise a power which is reserved by
statute to another Officer;

3.2 before exercising the power of another Officer, the Managing Director shall
consult with that Officer if available;

3.3 the Managing Director when exercising any powers may authorise the
incurring of expenditure in an emergency even if there is no specific
provision in the budget of the Council.

In consultation with the Executive Leader or in their absence with the Deputy
Leader to act in a case of urgency in respect of any matter affecting the
Council/Cabinet respectively, subject to a report on the circumstances being made
to the next Council/Cabinet meeting.

To keep under constant review the needs of the District and its community in
relation to all those services provided by the Council and to take all such action
which in his/her judgement is necessary to ensure that those needs are met within
the framework of any policies agreed by the Council.

To lead on strategies for change whether from within the authority or externally
influenced.

To make arrangements for dealing with any matter raised by the Government or
local authority association calling for a view or decision by the Council.

To be responsible for the overall organisational structure of the Council.

To be responsible via the Corporate Director (Delivery) and Corporate Director
(Services) for determining and issuing guidance to Officers for the management of
human resources, including recruitment, training, conditions of service, staff
development/appraisal, disciplinary matters, health and safety, employee welfare
and any other matter concerning staff.

To ensure the provision of professional advice to all parties in the decision-making
process.

Together with the Monitoring Officer to be responsible for a system of record-
keeping for all local authority decisions

53

161



12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

NB:

To represent the Council on partnership and other bodies.
To be responsible for the health and safety of all employees of the District Council.

To sign any document on behalf of the Council and to witness affixation of the
Council’s Common Seal to any document.

In consultation with appropriate Members of the Council to make appointments to
member bodies forming part of the Council's official structure and to fill casual
vacancies on member bodies forming part of the Council's approved structure in
accordance with Sections 15-17 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989?77

To be the Proper Officer of the Council, except where legislation or arrangements
names another Officer.

The following functions or activities are delegated by the Managing Director to the
following officers:

References below to “the Regulations” are to the Local Authorities (Functions and
Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 2000 (SI 2000 No. 2853).

CORPORATE DIRECTOR (DELIVERY)

1.

3.

To exercise the functions of the Council in relation to common land, and town and
village greens, as specified in paragraphs 51-53 of Part Two of Schedule 1 (Other
Miscellaneous Functions) of the Regulations

To exercise all the functions of the Council relating to town and country planning and
development control specified in paragraphs 5-23 of Schedule 1A (Functions relating to
town and country planning and development control) of the Regulations, except for the
following:

i. determination of planning applications, or proposals in accordance with
the development plans, where objections or contrary observations are raised by
other local authorities (including parish councils or parish meetings),
statutory consultees, persons adversely affected by the proposals
(provided that the objection or observation is on planning grounds and
the objection or observation has not been previously considered and
discounted by the authority), or an appropriate local Member;

ii. determination of minerals and waste applications requiring Environmental
Impact Assessments;

iii. determination of applications for District Council development where objections
are raised to the proposals;

iv.  approval of major departures from development plans arising from planning
applications and proposals.

To exercise the licensing and registration functions of the Council as specified in
paragraphs 22, 26- 27, 31, 43-46, and 56 of Schedule 1B (Licensing and Registration
Functions) of the Regulations.

54

162



To exercise the functions of the Council in relation to the approval of premises for the
solemnisation of marriages, as specified in paragraph 36 of Schedule 1B (Licensing
and Registration Functions) of the Regulations.

CORPORATE DIRECTOR (SERVICES)

To be the Monitoring Officer in accordance with Local Government and Housing Act
1989.

To be the Proper Officer of the Council, except where legislation or the Scheme of
Delegation names another postholder, and to authorise the making and issue of any
formal documents.

HEAD OF RESOURCES

To exercise the proper administration of the Council’s financial affairs under Section
151 of the Local Government Act 1972 Section 114 of the Local Government Finance
Act 1988 and Regulation 5 of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003.

To maintain an adequate and effective system of internal audit in accordance with
Financial Regulations.

To be the Proper Officer under section 115 of the Local Government Act 1972.

55

163



6.1

6.2

EXECUTIVE FUNCTIONS - SCHEME OF DELEGATION, BY MANAGING DIRECTOR
TO OFFICERS, OF EXECUTIVE FUNCTIONS AND LOCAL CHOICE FUNCTIONS
WHICH ARE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE EXECUTIVE LEADER AND CABINET

GENERAL PRINCIPLES

a)

b)

c)

d)

f)

9)

The Managing Director has delegated to her all the powers of the Executive
other than those reserved to the Cabinet by statute or this Constitution and has
in turn delegated to officers in accordance with the scheme set out at Annex B
below. In the event of the Council being without a Leader the Managing Director
has delegated authority to exercise any necessary executive powers until a new
Leader is elected.

This scheme is made by the Managing Director of the authority. It delegates
powers and duties in relation to executive functions and local choice functions
exercisable by the Executive to officers. It may be read with Part 3h of the
authority’s Constitution, which delegates powers and duties in relation to
executive functions and local choice functions to the Executive Leader and
Cabinet. Where their functions are common, Members of the Executive and
officers exercise those functions as a partnership, subject to their differing roles
(for example, in decision-making).

This scheme is made, as part of the executive arrangements of the authority
under section 15(2)(d) of the Local Government Act 2000. It is made in
accordance with that section and with the Local Authorities (Arrangements for
the Discharge of Functions) (England) Regulations 2000 (SI 2000 No. 2851). It
shall be construed in accordance with any legislation amending, or substituted
for, either of those provisions; or any legislation having a similar purpose or
made for similar purposes.

In respect of any matter falling within the parameters of this scheme, the
Managing Director may in writing make such detailed delegations to officers
concerning functions and activities within a given area of responsibility (internal
delegations) as he considers appropriate.

The Managing Director may in writing delegate any executive function which
has been delegated to him/her, and which is not otherwise delegated under this
scheme. He/she may vary in writing any delegation made under this scheme.

This scheme delegates powers and duties within broad functional
descriptions. It includes powers and duties under all legislation, present and
future, within those descriptions, and all powers and duties incidental to that
legislation, as well as authorising the affixing of the Common Seal.

This scheme includes an obligation on officers to keep members properly
informed of activity arising within the scope of these delegations.

GENERAL LIMITATIONS

a)

b)

An officer, in exercising delegated powers, shall consult other appropriate
officers and shall have regard to any advice received.

Any exercise of delegated powers shall be subject to any policy framework

approved by the Council, or the policies approved by the Cabinet from

time to time, including the authority’s employment policies and

disciplinary  procedures, equal opportunities policies, and any service
56

164



6.3

6.4

delivery policies; and shall be guided by relevant Codes of Conduct or
protocols produced or adopted from time to time by the authority
(including any Code or Protocol which has been included within the authority’s
Constitution) and the Corporate Plan.

c) Any exercise of delegated powers shall be subject to any statutory restrictions,
and to the provisions of Part 4 of the Constitution.

d) In exercising delegated powers, officers may not go beyond the provision made
in the revenue or capital budgets for their service, except to the extent permitted
by the Financial Regulations and Contracts Standing Orders.

DELEGATIONS TO OFFICERS

a) The functions or activities listed in the Annex to this Scheme of Delegation, and
as varied from time to time, are hereby delegated to the officers in the posts
named in the Annex.

b) Limitation of delegations

The powers delegated to officers under this scheme do not include the power
to take a key decision. Officers are responsible, in the context of this scheme,
for the management of their services, the provision of advice to the Executive
and to Members, and the implementation of Council and Executive policies and
decisions. A decision which an officer takes, under a delegation of an executive
function, must:

i. implement a policy previously approved, or decision previously
taken, by the Cabinet or a Cabinet Member; or by or with the Council,
or a committee or sub-committee; or

ii. facilitate, or be conducive or incidental to, the implementation of a
policy previously approved, or decision previously taken, by the
Cabinet or a Cabinet Member; or by or with the Council, or a
committee or sub-committee; or

iii. relate to the management of the human, material or financial
resources made available for the functions for which the Executive are
responsible.

c) Any officer exercising powers or duties in pursuance of full sub- delegation will
be politically restricted under section 2(1)(g) of the Local Government and
Housing Act 1989.

FURTHER PROVISIONS

a) Individual Delegations

An officer to whom a delegation has been made by, or in accordance with,

this scheme may (subject to the terms of any applicable internal delegation) further

delegate in writing all or any of their delegated functions to another officer

(described by name and post), either fully or under the general supervision and

control of the delegating officer. Delegations made under this sub-paragraph

(“individual delegations”) may be made across service boundaries.

b) Register of Internal and Individual Delegations

57

165



Subject to paragraph 3c below, all internal delegations made under paragraph 6.1
above, and individual delegations made under paragraph 6.4a above, shall be
recorded in a register kept by the Monitoring Officer. (See also paragraph 6.4e
below).

c) Continuation of existing delegations

A delegation to an officer which existed at the date of the introduction of this
scheme shall, to any extent that it remains unaltered by (and is not inconsistent
with) any delegation (or variation to a delegation) made by or under this scheme,
shall continue to have effect.

d) Deemed delegations

Where in respect of a given function or activity, no delegation is in effect and an
officer has a management responsibility in relation to the exercise of that function or
activity, the exercise of any delegated authority necessary to carry out the function
or activity effectively shall be deemed to have been delegated to that postholder.

e) Other provisions

i.  All action taken under the terms of these delegations (and not falling
within the description of an internal delegation in paragraph 1c above, or
an individual delegation in paragraph 3a above) shall be properly
documented in accordance with arrangements approved by the
Monitoring Officer.

ii. Itis always be open to a senior officer to consult the appropriate Cabinet
Member on the exercise of a delegated function; or, not to exercise a
delegated function, but to refer the matter to the Cabinet or an
appropriate Cabinet Member.

iii.  Inthis scheme, “officer” means the holder of any post to which a function
or activity, or powers and duties in relation to such a function or activity,
may be delegated.

iv.  Where a function or activity has been specifically delegated by or under
this scheme to an officer, that function or activity shall not be exercised
by another officer without the consent of the former, other than in
circumstances of the death or incapacity of that officer or, in an
emergency, where the officer to whom the delegation was made is
absent or otherwise unavailable.

v.  An authority delegated to officers includes management of the human
and material resources made available for the service/portfolio
areas and any function concerned; to the extent of that authority, within
the limitations of this scheme, and subject to any specific delegations
made by or in accordance with this scheme to another officer.

vi. In each case, a delegated authority excludes any determination of
policy, or exceptions to policy, or of any budget by the officer concerned.

58

166



Annex B - Executive Functions - Delegations to Officers

The following functions are delegated to the following officers by the Managing
Director.

CORPORATE DIRECTOR (DELIVERY)

1. Within the overall resources allocated by the Council and in direct support of the

2.

Council’'s objectives to act on behalf of the Council on all matters relating to the
discharge of the Council’s functions relating to the following service delivery functions,
unless that function has been specifically delegated to another officer:

o Development

o Community

o Leisure and Health

To be responsible for the Health and Safety of employees

CORPORATE DIRECTOR (SERVICES)

1.

Within the overall resources allocated by the Council and in direct support of the
Council’'s objectives to act on behalf of the Council on all matters relating to the
discharge of the Council’s functions relating to the following service delivery functions,
unless that function has been specifically delegated to another officer:

e Operations

e Customer Services

e Resources

To be responsible for the Health and Safety of Employees
To be the Monitoring Officer

In conjunction with the Managing Director to be responsible for a system of record
keeping for all the local authority decisions.

HEAD OF RESOURCES

1.

Within the overall resources allocated by the Council and in direct support of the
Council’s objectives and policies to act on behalf of the Council on all matters relating
to Accountancy. Internal Audit and Risk, Procurement, Legal Client management and
Property and Estate Management.

To exercise the proper administration of the Council’s financial affairs under section
151 of the Local Government Act 1972 and section 114 of the Local Government
Finance Act 1988.

To be the Proper Officer under section 115 of the Local Government Act 1972.

To have responsibility for the overall management of the internal audit function in
accordance with the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 (or any amending or
substituted legislation, or legislation with a similar purpose or made for similar
purposes).

To have responsibility for borrowing and lending within limits approved by the authority.

To make various determinations on an annual basis relating to capital expenditure
59

167



7. In consultation with the Head of 3C Legal Shared Service, to authorise the
acquisition, re-use, appropriation and disposal of the Council's land and buildings,
together with the granting or taking assignment or surrender of leases, tenancies,
licences, easements, wayleaves and variations of rent of the Council's land and
buildings.

HEAD OF CUSTOMER SERVICES

1. Within the overall resources allocated by the Council and in direct support of the
Council’s objectives to act on behalf of the Council on all matters relating to the
discharge of the Council’s functions relating to Customer Services, Revenues and
Benefits, Housing Needs, Document Centre and ICT shared service client
management

HEAD OF OPERATIONS

1. Within the overall resources allocated by the Council and in direct support of the
Council’s objectives to act on behalf of the Council on all matters relating to the
discharge of the Council’s functions relating to: Refuse, Recycling & Garden Waste
Collections, Waste Management, Street Cleansing, Parks, Open Spaces & Amenity
Areas, Bulky Waste Collection Service, Car Parks, Vehicle Fleet & Mechanical
Plant and Markets.

HEAD OF DEVELOPMENT

1. Within the overall resources allocated by the Council and in direct support of the
Council’s objectives to act on behalf of the Council on all matters relating to
Planning Policy, Development Management, Building Control client management,
Housing Strategy and Economic Development.

2. To determine matters in accordance with the scheme of delegation of planning
decisions and actions approved by the Development Management Panel.

HEAD OF COMMUNITY

1. Within the overall resources allocated by the Council and in direct support of the
Council’s objectives to act on behalf of the Council in relation to the discharge of
the Council’s functions and responsibilities for Environmental Health, Animal
Welfare and Pest Control, CCTV, Community Safety, Community Development and
Licensing, including issuing and ensuring compliance with licenses on whatsoever
nature other than those licenses falling within the responsibility of another Head of
Service in accordance with a Scheme of Delegation of Officers as determined by
the Licensing and Protection Committee, or Licensing Committee.

HEAD OF LEISURE AND HEALTH

1. Within the overall resources allocated by the Council and in direct support of the
Council’s objectives to act on behalf of the Council in all matters relating to the
discharge of the Council’s functions and responsibilities relating to sports and
leisure centres, sports and active lifestyles and Health and Well-being..

CORPORATE TEAM MANAGER

1. Within the overall resources allocated by the Council and in direct support of the
Council’s objectives to act on behalf of the Council in all matters related to the

60

168



discharge of the Council’s functions and responsibilities relating to policy and
performance, corporate communications, marketing, programme and project
management, democratic services and elections.

To manage administration of the Council’s complaints including issues of
maladministration.

HEAD OF LEGAL SHARED SERVICE

1.

To act as Solicitor to the Council and to settle on appropriate terms any litigation or
claim taken by or against the Council.

In consultation with the Managing Director/relevant Corporate Director to authorise
the institution, defence, withdrawal, compromise or any other action relating to
claims or legal proceedings, civil or criminal (except in relation to prosecutions
where the authorisation of prosecutions is expressly delegated to another Head of
Service).

To authorise Officers of the Council to appear before Magistrates' Courts or County
Courts.

To issue or serve statutory notices on behalf of the Council in relation to any of its
functions.

To be the Proper Officer of the authority, except where legislation, or a delegation
made by or under this scheme, names another officer; and to authorise the making
and issue of any formal documents.

HEAD OF 3C ICT SHARED SERVICE

Within the overall resources allocated by the Council and in direct support of the

Council’s objectives to act on behalf of the Council in all matters related to the

discharge of the Council’s functions and responsibilities relating to the delivery of

ICT services, information management, Freedom of Information requests and street
naming and numbering.

To have overall responsibility for the Council's Information Management Systems.

61

169






Part 4

Rules of Procedure

63

171






2.1

2.2

COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULES
(STANDING ORDERS)

SCOPE

These rules apply to meetings of the Council

ANNUAL MEETING OF THE COUNCIL

Timing and Business

In a year when there is an ordinary election of Councillors, the annual meeting
will take place within 21 days of the retirement of the outgoing Councillors and
normally will be held on the third Wednesday in May of each year
commencing at 6.00 pm.

The annual meeting will:-

()

(ii)
(iii)
(iv)
(v)

(vi)
(Vi)

(viii)

(ix)

elect a person to preside if the Chairman of the Council is not present;
elect the Chairman of the Council;

appoint the Vice-Chairman of the Council;

approve the minutes of the last meeting;

receive any announcements from the Chairman and/or Head of Paid
Service;

elect the Executive Leader;

appoint members to Overview and Scrutiny Panels, the Standards
Committee, the Licensing Committee and such other committees as the
Council considers appropriate to deal with matters which are neither
reserved to the Council nor are executive functions (as set out in Part 3
of this Constitution) and to alter their membership at any ordinary
meeting;

agree the scheme of delegation or such part of it as the Constitution
determines it is for the Council to agree (as set out in Part 3 of this
Constitution); and

consider any business set out in the notice convening the meeting in the
order in which it appears in the Council summons but that order may be
varied at the discretion of the Chairman or by resolution of the Council.

Selection of Councillors on Committees and Panels

At the annual meeting, the Council will:-

(i)

decide which committees and panels in addition to the Licensing
Committee should be established for the ensuing municipal year;

65

173



(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

decide the terms of reference for those committees/panels with the
exception of the Licensing Committee;

decide the allocation of seats to political groups in accordance with the
political balance rules;

receive nominations of Councillors to serve on each committee and
panel; and

appoint to those committees and panels annually.

ORDINARY MEETINGS OF THE COUNCIL

Ordinary meetings of the Council will take place in accordance with the annual
programme of meetings. Ordinary meetings will:-

(i)

(i)
(iii)
(iv)
V)

(vi)
(Vi)

elect a person to preside if the Chairman or Vice-Chairman are not
present;

approve the minutes of the last meeting;

receive any declarations of interest from members;

receive any announcements from the Chairman or Head of Paid Service

receive reports from the Executive Leader, Deputy Executive Leader or
other member of the Cabinet and Chairmen of the Overview and
Scrutiny Panels, committees and other panels, receive questions and
answers on any of those reports and consider any recommendations
contained therein.

consider motions;

consider any other business specified in the summons to the meeting in
the order in which it appears in the Council summons; but that order may
be varied at the discretion of the Council or by resolution of the Council
including consideration of proposals from the Cabinet in relation to the
Council's budget and policy framework and reports of the Overview and
Scrutiny Panels for debate

EXTRAORDINARY MEETINGS

Calling Extraordinary Meetings

Those listed below may request the Head of Paid Service to call Council
meetings in addition to ordinary meetings:-

(i)

(i)
(i)
(iv)

the Council by resolution;
the Chairman of the Council;
the Monitoring Officer; and

any five members of the Council if they have signed a requisition
presented to the Chairman of the Council and he/she has refused to call
a meeting or has failed to call a meeting within seven days of the
presentation of the requisition.

66

174



4.2

9.1

9.2

Business

The summons to an extraordinary meeting of the Council shall set out the
business to be considered thereat and no business other than that set out in
the summons shall be considered at that meeting.

TIME AND PLACE OF MEETINGS

The time and place of meetings will be determined by the Head of Paid
Service and notified in the summons. Meetings of the Council normally shall
be convened for 7 pm. In special circumstances, the Head of Paid Service
(after consultation with the Chairman) may fix some other hour of
commencement of any meeting of the Council.

NOTICE OF AND SUMMONS TO MEETING

The Head of Paid Service will give notice to the public of the time and place of
any meeting in accordance with the Access to Information Rules. At least five
clear days before a meeting, the Head of Paid Service will send a summons
signed by him or her by post to every member of the Council or leave it at their
usual residence. The summons will give the date, time and place of each
meeting and specify the business to be transacted and will be accompanied
by such reports as are available.

CHAIRMAN OF MEETING

The person presiding at the meeting may exercise any power or duty of the
Chairman. Whenever the Chairman rises during debate a member then
standing shall resume his seat and the Council shall be silent. Where these
Rules apply to panel and committee meetings, references to the Chairman
also include the Chairman of such panel and committee.

QUORUM

The quorum of a meeting will be one quarter of the whole number of
members.  During any meeting if the Chairman counts the number of
members present and declares that there is not a quorum present, then the
meeting will adjourn immediately. Remaining business will be considered at a
time and date fixed by the Chairman. If he/she does not fix a date, the
remaining business will be considered at the next ordinary meeting of the
Council.

QUESTIONS BY MEMBERS

Oral Questions on Reports of the Cabinet, Committee or Panel

A member of the Council may ask the Executive Leader, a member of the
Cabinet with portfolio responsibility, or the Chairman of a Committee or Panel
any question, without notice, upon an item of the report of the Cabinet or a
Committee or Panel when that item is being received or under consideration
by the Council.

Oral Questions on Recommendations of the Cabinet, Committee or Panel
or Other Reports to the Council

67

175



9.3

9.4

Before a recommendation of the Cabinet, Committee or Panel or a report that
is otherwise included on the agenda is open for consideration by the Council,
a Member of the Council may ask a question, without notice, on the
recommendation or report to:-

(i) the Executive Leader, a member of the Cabinet with portfolio
responsibility, or the Chairman of a Committee or Panel, as appropriate;
and/or

(i)  the author of the report in the case of a report that is otherwise included
on the agenda for the meeting.

Oral Questions

At each ordinary meeting of the Council (excluding the annual meeting or any
special meeting convened to consider a specific issue), there shall be a period
for oral questions. A member of the Council may ask the Executive Leader or
a member of the Cabinet with portfolio responsibility any question, without
notice, on any matter relevant to the Council’'s powers and duties. The conduct
of oral question time shall be regulated by the Chairman of the Council

a.  All questions —

. must be relevant to matters for which the Council has powers or
duties;

. must not relate to an item which is included elsewhere on the
Council agenda since they can be raised at that point in the
meeting;

. should be limited to obtaining information or pressing for action;

. must not exceed two minutes in duration.

b.  Questions should not —

. be incapable of being adequately answered in two minutes;

contain offensive expressions;

. divulge, or require to be divulged, confidential or exempt
information.

*

c.  Any facts on which a question is based should be identified briefly when
the question is asked. A member who asks a question may be asked to
verify the authenticity of any factual statement. A ten minute period for
guestions to each presenting Executive Councillor, the balance of the 30
minutes will be used for questions to the Cabinet generally.

d. Where a member considers that the subject matter demands a
comprehensive detailed answer, the question should be submitted to
Monitoring Officer by noon at least 8 clear days in advance of the
meeting.

Response

An answer to an oral question may take the form of:

(@) adirect oral answer of up to a maximum of two minutes’ duration;
68

176



9.5

9.6

9.7

9.8

9.9

(b) where the desired information is in a publication of the Council or other
published work, a reference to that publication; or

(c) where the reply cannot conveniently be given orally, a written answer
circulated later to the questioner and made available to all members of
the Council and the public.

Written Questions

Subject to Rule 9.6, a member of the Council may ask the Chairman, the
Executive Leader, a member of the Cabinet with executive responsibility or the
Chairman of any Committee or Panel a question, in writing, on any matter in
relation to which the Council has powers or duties or which affects the District.

Notice of Questions
A member may only ask a question under Rule 9.5 if, either -

(@) he has given notice in writing of the question to the office of the
Monitoring Officer not later than 12 noon on the 8th clear working day
before the date of the meeting; or

(b) Where a question relates to a matter of urgency, a member must seek
the agreement of the Chairman of the Council and the member to whom
the question is to be put that he is prepared to accept the question as a
matter of urgency. If agreement is forthcoming, the content of the
guestion must be given in writing to the office of the Corporate Director
(Services) & Monitoring Officer at least one hour before the scheduled
start of the meeting.

Response to Questions

A response to a written question shall take the form of a written reply by the
member concerned which shall be made available to members of the Council
and to the public prior to the start of the meeting.

Where an urgent question has been submitted under Rule 9.6(b), a written
response will be made available to members of Council and to the public as
soon as practicable.

Members will seek to respond to questions as fully as possible but shall not be
required to divulge confidential or exempt information.

Supplementary Questions

A member asking a question under Rule 9.1 or Rule 9.3 may ask one
supplementary question without notice of the member to whom the first
guestion was addressed. The supplementary question must arise directly out
of the original question or the reply and shall be limited to a maximum of one
minute’s duration. An oral response will be limited to two minutes.

QUESTIONS BY MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC

69

177



10.

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

Any person who lives, works or owns property in the District shall be able to
ask a question at ordinary meetings of the Council using the same criteria as
set out in Rules 9.1 and 9.7 but subject to notice of the question being
submitted to the office of the Monitoring Officer five days prior to the
meeting. Questions by members of the public will be dealt with in accordance
with the guidelines published on the Council’s website.

NOTICES OF MOTION
Notice

Except for motions which can be moved without notice under Rule 11, written
notice of every motion, shall be given in writing, signed by the member giving
the notice and delivered not later than noon on the 8th clear working day (i.e.
excluding Saturdays, Sundays and Bank Holidays) before the meeting at
which it is to be considered, to the office of the Monitoring Officer by whom it
should be dated, numbered in the order in which it is received and entered into
a book which shall be open for inspection by every member of the Council.
The submission of a written notice of motion via e-mail addressed to the
Monitoring Officer will be acceptable.

Motions set out in agenda

The Head of Paid Service shall set out in the summons for every meeting of
the Council all motions of which notice has been duly given in the order in
which they have been received, unless the Member giving such notice
intimated in writing when giving it, that he proposed to move it at some later
meeting, or subsequently had withdrawn it in writing.

Scope

Every Motion shall be relevant to some matter of major significance in relation
to which the Council has powers or duties or which is of more general concern
affecting the District and shall only be submitted in circumstances when the
subject matter would not be referred to elsewhere at the meeting in a report
from the Cabinet, Overview and Scrutiny Panel, Committee or Panel etc.

Failure to Move

If a motion set out in the summons is not moved either by the member who
gave notice thereof or by some other member on his behalf it shall, unless
postponed by consent of the Council, be treated as withdrawn and shall not be
moved without fresh notice.

Reference to Cabinet, Committee or Panel

(i)  Subject to paragraph 10.5 (iii) post, if the subject matter of any motion of
which notice has been duly given is within the terms of reference of the
Cabinet, an Overview and Scrutiny Panel, a committee or panel, it shall,
upon being moved and seconded, stand referred without discussion to
the Cabinet, Overview and Scrutiny Panel, committee or panel as the
Council may determine, provided that such Cabinet, Overview and
Scrutiny Panel, committee or panel shall report on the matter with
recommendations to an ensuing meeting of the Council.

70

178



11.

(i)
(iii)

This Rule shall have precedence over Rule 11.5.

The Chairman may, if he/she considers it convenient and conducive to
the despatch of business, allow the Motion to be dealt with at the
meeting at which it is brought forward.

MOTIONS WITHOUT NOTICE

The following motions may be moved without notice:-

(@)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)

(f)

(¢)]
(h)

(i)
()
(k)
()
(m)
(n)

(0)

(P

(@)

to appoint a Chairman of the meeting at which the motion is moved;
in relation to the accuracy of the minutes;

to change the order of business in the agenda;

to refer something to an appropriate body or individual;

to appoint a committee or panel or member arising from an item on the
summons for the meeting;

to receive, defer or refer back reports or adoption of recommendations of
the Cabinet, Overview and Scrutiny Panels, committees, panels or
officers and any subsequent motions and amendments arising
therefrom;

to withdraw a motion;

to amend a motion; (the text of the proposed amendment to be
forwarded to the Head of Paid Service, or in her absence, the Monitoring
Officer prior to the commencement of the meeting of the Council and a
copy circulated to the meeting to ease understanding of the proposed
text);

to proceed to the next business;

that the question be now put;

to adjourn a debate;

to adjourn a meeting;

to suspend a particular Council procedure rule;

to exclude the public and press in accordance with the Access to
Information Rules;

to not hear further a member named under Rule 20.3 or to exclude them
from the meeting under Rule 20.4;

to give the consent of the Council where its consent is required by this
Constitution;

to invite a member to remain;

71

179



11.

111

11.2

11.3

114

115

116

(r) torecord a vote in accordance with Rule 14.4;

(s) in connection with voting on appointments in accordance with Rule 14.6;
and

(t) to extend the time limit for speeches.

RULES OF DEBATE

Standing to Speak

When a member speaks at full Council they must stand and address the
meeting through the Chairman. If more than one member stands, the
Chairman will ask one to speak and the other must sit. Other members must
remain seated whilst another member is speaking unless they wish to make a
point of order or a point of personal explanation.

Chairman Standing

When the Chairman stands during a debate any members speaking at the
time must stop and sit down. The meeting must be silent.

Right to Require Motion in Writing

Unless notice of the motion has already been given, the Chairman may
require it to be written down and handed to him/her before it is discussed.

Seconder's Speech

When seconding a motion or amendment, a member may reserve their
speech until later in the debate.

Content and Length of Speeches

Speeches must be directed to the question under discussion or to a personal
explanation or point of order. No speech may exceed 5 minutes in length
without the consent of the Chairman given by reason of the exceptional
importance of the subject it shall be within the discretion of the Chairman to
permit up to a further 5 minutes. This rule shall not apply to the member of the
Cabinet with executive responsibility in presenting the annual budget
statement and statutory and non-statutory plans to the Council.

When a Member May Speak Again

A member who has spoken on a motion may not speak again whilst it is the
subject of debate, except:-

(a) to speak once on an amendment moved by another member;

(b) to move a further amendment if the motion has been amended since
he/she last spoke;

72

180



11.7

11,8

(c)

(d)
(€)
(f)

if his/her first speech was on an amendment moved by another member,
to speak on the main issue (whether or not the amendment on which
he/she spoke was carried);

in exercise of a right of reply;

on a point of order; and

by way of personal explanation.

Amendments to Motions

(@)

(b)

(€)

(d)

(e)

An amendment to a motion must be relevant to a motion and will either
be:-

0] to refer a subject of debate to the Cabinet, Overview and
Scrutiny Panel, committee or panel for consideration or
reconsideration;

(i) to leave out words;
(iii) to leave out words and insert or add others; or
(iv) to insert or add words.

as long as such omission, insertion or addition of words does not have
the effect of negating the motion before the Council.

Only one amendment may be moved and discussed at any one time.
No further amendment may be moved until the amendment under
discussion has been disposed of.

If an amendment is not carried, other amendments to the original motion
may be moved.

If an amendment is carried, the motion as amended takes the place of
the original motion. This becomes the substantive motion to which any
further amendments are moved.

If an amendment has been carried, the Chairman will read out the
amended motion before accepting any further amendments, or if there is
none, put it to the vote except in the case of such an amendment as is
referred to in 11.7(a)(i) when no further amendment may be moved.

Alteration of Motion

(@)

(b)

(c)

A member may alter a motion of which he/she has given notice with the
consent of the meeting. The meeting's consent will be signified without
discussion.

A member may alter a motion which he/she has moved without notice
with the consent of both the meeting and the seconder. The meeting's
consent will be signified without discussion.

Only alterations which could be made as an amendment may be made.

73

181



11.9

11.10

11.11

11.12

Withdrawal of Motion

A member may withdraw a motion which he/she has moved with the consent
of both the meeting and the seconder. The meeting's consent will be signified
without discussion. No member may speak on the motion after the mover has
asked permission to withdraw it unless permission is refused.

Right of Reply

(&) The mover of a motion has a right to reply at the end of the debate on
the motion, immediately before it is put to the vote.

(b) If an amendment is moved, the mover of the original motion has the right
of reply at the close of the debate on the amendment, but may not
otherwise speak on it.

(c) The mover of the amendment has no right of reply to the debate on his
or her amendment.

(d) A member exercising a right of reply shall not introduce new matters.

Motions which may be moved during debate

When a motion is under debate, no other motion may be moved except the
following procedural motions:-

(@) to withdraw a motion;

(b) to amend a motion;

(c) to proceed to the next business;
(d) that the question be now put;
(e) to adjourn a debate;

(f) to adjourn a meeting;

(g) to exclude the public and press in accordance with the Access to
Information Rules; and

(h)  to not hear further a member named under Rule 20.3 or to exclude them
from the meeting under Rule 20.4.

Closure Motions

(&) A member may move, without comment, the following motions at the
end of a speech of another member:-

(1) to proceed to the next business;
(ii) that the question be now put;
(iii) to adjourn a debate; or
(iv) to adjourn a meeting.

74

182



11.13

11.14

12.

12.1

12.2

12.3

(b) If a motion to proceed to next business is seconded and the Chairman
thinks the item has been sufficiently discussed, he or she will give the
mover of the original motion a right of reply and then put the procedural
motion to the vote.

(c) If a motion that the question be now put is seconded and the Chairman
thinks the item has been sufficiently discussed, the Chairman will put the
procedural motion to the vote. If it is passed the Chairman will give the
mover of the original motion the right of reply before putting his/her
motion to the vote.

(d) If a motion to adjourn the debate or to adjourn the meeting is seconded
and the Chairman thinks the item has not been sufficiently discussed
and cannot reasonably be so discussed on that occasion he/ she will put
the procedural motion to the vote without giving the mover of the original
motion the right of reply.

(e) If a motion to adjourn the meeting is seconded and the Chairman thinks
that the remaining business before the meeting cannot be sufficiently
discussed on that occasion he shall put the adjournment motion to the
vote without giving the mover to any motion under discussion his/her
right of reply. If the motion for the adjournment is carried, the remaining
business shall stand adjourned to a time fixed by the Chairman at the
time the meeting is adjourned, or otherwise, to the next ordinary meeting
of the Council.

Point of Order

A member may raise a point of order at any time. The Chairman will hear
them immediately. A point of order may only relate to an alleged breach of
these Council Rules of Procedure or the law. The member must indicate the
rule or law and the way in which he/she considers it has been broken. The
ruling of the Chairman on the matter will be final.

Personal Explanation

A member may make a personal explanation at any time. A personal
explanation may only relate to some material part of an earlier speech by a
member which may appear to have been misunderstood in the present
debate. The ruling of the Chairman on the admissibility of a personal
explanation will be final.

ANNUAL STATE OF THE DISTRICT ADDRESS

Procedure

The Chairman will invite the Executive Leader to address the Council at its
summer meeting on the State of the District.

Response

The Chairman will invite the Leader(s) of the Opposition to respond to the
address.

Discussion

75

183



13.

13.1

13.2

14.

14.1

14.2

14.3

14.4

14.5

14.6

The ensuing discussion in which a Member may speak once and to which only
paragraphs 11.5, 11.13 and 11.14 of the Rules of Debate will apply will be
chaired by the Chairman.

PREVIOUS DECISIONS AND MOTIONS

Motion to Rescind a Previous Decision

A motion or amendment to rescind a decision made at a meeting of the
Council within the previous six months cannot be moved unless a notice of
motion is signed by at least 7 members of the Council.

Motion Similar to One Previously Rejected

A motion or amendment in similar terms to one that has been rejected at a
meeting of Council in the previous 6 months cannot be moved within a further
period of 6 months.

VOTING

Majority

All matters will be decided by a simple majority of those Members voting and
present in the room at the time the question was put.

Chairman's Casting Vote

If there are equal numbers of votes for and against, the Chairman will have a
second or casting vote. There will be no restriction on how the Chairman
chooses to exercise a casting vote.

Show of Hands

Unless a recorded vote is demanded by legislation or under Rule 14.4 the
Chairman will take the vote by a show of hands, or if there is no dissent by the
affirmation of the meeting.

Recorded Vote

If at least one third of members present demand it and before a vote is taken,
the names for and against the motion or amendment or abstaining from voting
will be taken down and entered into the minutes.

Right to Require Individual Vote to be Recorded

Where any Member requests it immediately after the vote is taken, their vote
will be so recorded in the minutes to show whether they voted for or against
the motion or abstained from voting.

Voting on Appointments

If there are more than two people nominated for any position to be filled and

there is not a clear majority of votes in favour of one person, then the name of
the person with the least number of votes will be taken off the list and a new

76

184



15

15.1

15.2

15.3

154

vote taken. The process will continue until there is a majority of votes for one
person.

PETITIONS
Definition

For the purposes of these procedural Standing Orders a petition shall be
defined as a document embodying a formal written request for some form of
action or the consideration of some matter by the Council. The submission of
a petition is seen by many as lending weight to a particular viewpoint and
demonstrating that the view is shared by others. Both written and electronic
petitions will qualify under this scheme. Petitions made under any specific
enactment such as that calling for a referendum on the form of executive of
the Council, will not be dealt with under this procedure.

Scope

Every petition shall be relevant to some matter of major significance in relation
to which the Council has powers or duties or which is of more general concern
affecting the District, its Council Tax or NNDR payers or concerns a matter on
the agenda for the Council meeting to which the petition is to be submitted.

Eligibility

The District Council will not accept petitions which are vexatious, abusive or
otherwise inappropriate or which relate to a specific or identifiable person or
otherwise are considered to be an abuse of its powers, responsibilities or
obligations. Petitions shall not be admissible where petitioners are
representing personal or prejudicial issues, matters associated with political
parties or organisations, where the matter involves a right of appeal to the
courts, a tribunal or to a Government Minister or which in the opinion of the
Monitoring Officer is of a quasi-judicial nature. The interpretation of the above
criteria by the Corporate Director (Services) is final. Additionally, the following
matters will be excluded from the scheme:-

(a) any matter relating to a planning decision;

(b) any matter relating to a licensing decision; or

(c) any other matter relating to an individual or entity in respect of which that
individual or entity has a right of recourse to a review or right of appeal
conferred by or under any enactment.

Petitions may be co-ordinated by individuals or by local organisations. If

considered to be eligible, a petition will be referred to the first appropriate

meeting after its submission.

Form

The petition shall clearly state the purpose for which it is submitted and shall
be addressed to the District Council.

A written petition shall contain the name, address and signature of each
person who signed it. The name and address shall be in legible format. An

77

185



155

15.7

on-line petition shall contain the name and address of each person who is
party to it and shall remain open for signature on the Council’s website for a
period of 90 days. A petition shall indicate which one of the signatories is to
present the petition. If the petition organiser, or his/her nominee, indicates that
they are unable to present the petition at the relevant meeting, the petition will
still be considered. The petition shall be sent to the office of the Monitoring
Officer who will place it upon the agenda for the next Council meeting
provided that the requirements are satisfied.

A maximum of three petitions will be presented at any meeting.

A petition shall not be presented to a meeting of the Council unless it is
delivered to the office of the Monitoring Officer no later than noon on the tenth
clear working day before the meeting at which it is to be considered. The
petition shall be acknowledged in writing by or on behalf of the Corporate
Director (Services) within ten clear working days of receipt of the petition. On
line petitions will automatically be submitted to the Council for
acknowledgement once the petition has been closed for signature.

No petition may be considered by the Council which effectively duplicates a
previous petition submitted to the Council in the preceding six months.

Procedure

Any resident who lives, works or studies (including those under 18) or who
owns or occupies commercial premises in the District may present a petition to
a meeting of the Council provided that it bears at least 50 sighatures of people
who either live or whose place of work or study is located in the District and
satisfies the conditions of paragraphs 10A.3 and 10A.4 above.

Petitions which are considered at a meeting of the Council shall be presented
at the conclusion of the receipt of any announcements by the Chairman. A
summary of the wording of the petition shall be incorporated on the Agenda for
the meeting. If the petition relates to an item on the Agenda for a Full Council
meeting, the presentation will be made at the beginning of that item.

On being called by the Chairman, the person(s) presenting the petition may
speak for a total of no more than five minutes in support of the petition.
District Councillors may question the person(s) presenting the petition for a
period of up to five minutes thereafter. The period for questions may be
extended at the discretion of the Chairman.

Other than to respond to questions asked by District Councillors, petitioners
shall not participate in debate nor discussion of the item to which their petition
relates.

Petitions shall be presented to Council in the order in which they have been
received.

Petitions which are not the responsibility of the Council
Petitions concerning a matter that the Council does not have direct control

over, which relates to the functions of another local authority or concerning a
matter delivered in partnership with any of the Council’s partner organisations

78

186



16.

16.1

16.2

16.3

17.

18.

19.

20.

20.1

will be submitted to the Monitoring Officer who shall determine what steps the
Council should take. The Monitoring Officer's decision on the matter is final.
The Petition Organiser will be notified of any actions that have been taken.

MINUTES
Signing the Minutes

The Chairman will sign the minutes of the proceedings at the next meeting.
The Chairman will move that the minutes of the previous meeting be signed as
a correct record. The only part of the minutes that can be discussed is their
accuracy.

No Requirement to Sign Minutes of Previous Meeting at Extraordinary
Meeting

Where in relation to any meeting, the next meeting for the purpose of signing
the minutes is a meeting called under paragraph 3 of Schedule 12 to the Local
Government Act 1972 (an extraordinary meeting), then the next following
meeting (being a meeting called otherwise than under that paragraph) will be
treated as a suitable meeting for the purpose of paragraphs 41 (1) and (2) of
Schedule 12 relating to the signing of minutes.

Form of Minutes

Minutes will contain all motions and amendments in the exact form and order
the Chairman put them.

RECORD OF ATTENDANCE

All members present during the whole part of the meeting must sign their
names on the attendance sheet before the conclusion of every meeting to
assist with the record of attendance.

EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

Members of the public and press may only be excluded either in accordance
with the Access to Information Rules in Part 4 of this Constitution or Rule 19
(Disturbance by the Public).

PHOTOGRAPHY, BROADCASTING AND RECORDING OF MEETINGS

The Council supports the principles of openness and transparency in its
decision making and permits filming, recording and the taking of photographs
at its meetings that are open to the public. It also welcomes the use of social
networking and microblogging websites (such as Twitter and Facebook) to
communicate with people about what is happening at meetings. . These
arrangements will operate in accordance with guidelines at Annex (VI). These
guidelines will be published on the Council's website.

DISORDERLY CONDUCT

General Disturbance

79

187



20.2

20.3.

20.4

21.

21.1

21.2

22.

22.1

22.2

If there is a general disturbance making orderly business impossible, the
Chairman may adjourn the meeting for as long as he/she thinks necessary.

A member shall comply with the adopted Members' Code of Conduct
reproduced in Part 5 of the Constitution. Further to the Code of Conduct, a
Member must withdraw from a meeting room during the consideration of any
item of business in which he/she has a disclosable pecuniary interest.
Member not to be heard further

If a member persistently disregards the ruling of the Chairman by behaving
improperly or offensively or deliberately obstructs business, the Chairman may
move that the member be not heard further. If seconded, the motion will be
voted on without discussion.

Member to leave the Meeting

If the member continues to behave improperly after such a motion is carried,
the Chairman may move that either the member leaves the meeting or that the

meeting is adjourned for a specified period. If seconded, the motion will be
voted on without discussion.

DISTURBANCE BY THE PUBLIC

If there is a general disturbance making orderly business impossible, the
Chairman may adjourn the meeting for as long as he/she thinks necessary

Removal of Member of the Public

If @ member of the public interrupts proceedings, the Chairman will warn the
person concerned. If they continue to interrupt, the Chairman will order their
removal from the meeting room.

Clearance of Part of Meeting Room

If there is a general disturbance in any part of the meeting room open to the
public, the Chairman may call for that part to be cleared.

SUSPENSION AND AMENDMENT OF COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULES
Suspension

All of these Council Rules of Procedure except Rule 14.5 and 15.2 may be
suspended by motion on notice or without notice if at least two thirds of the
whole number of Members of the Council are present. Suspension can only
be for the duration of the meeting.

Amendment

Any motion to add to, vary or revoke these Council Rules of Procedure will,

when proposed and seconded, stand adjourned without discussion to the next
ordinary meeting of the Council.

80

188



23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

APPOINTMENT OF SUB-COMMITTEES, SUB-GROUPS AND ADVISORY
GROUPS

(&) The Council, Cabinet and any committee or panel may appoint such
sub-committees or sub-groups as they may consider necessary from
time to time and shall specify the purpose and terms of reference of
such sub-committee or sub-group;

(b) The Council, Cabinet and any committee or panel may appoint such
advisory groups as they may consider necessary from time to time and
shall specify the purpose, duration and terms of reference of such
advisory group, except that such advisory group shall be of a
deliberative nature only and shall report back with or without
recommendations to the body that appointed them.

(c) The appointment of members to any sub-committee, sub-group or
advisory group, shall be in accordance with legislative or regulatory
requirements for the representation of political groups and shall have
regard in particular to (b) above.

APPLICATION TO COMMITTEES AND PANELS

The Licensing Committee has resolved to adopt the Rules that apply to the
proceedings of Committees, Panels, etc of the Council but separate
proceedings will apply to the hearings of its Sub-Committees.

The following Rules also apply to committees, panels, sub-committees and
sub-groups.

MEMBERSHIP

The Executive Leader, Deputy Executive Leader and any member of the
Cabinet shall not be elected as Chairman of any committee or panel other
than any that may be appointed by the Cabinet.

Every member of the Council shall be appointed to serve on a minimum of one
Overview and Scrutiny Panel, committee or panel of the Council or of the
Cabinet.

ITEMS ON COMMITTEE AGENDA

Any member wishing to have an item placed on an agenda for a meeting of
the Cabinet, committee or panel (other than by way of a Notice of Motion in
accordance with Rule 9) shall contact the Head of Paid Service, or in her
absence the Monitoring Officer requesting that an item be placed on the next
available agenda for that body and the decision of the Head of Paid Service,
or in her absence, the Monitoring Officer shall be final as to whether that item
falls within the terms of reference of the Cabinet, committee or panel and
whether the item should be included on the agenda for a meeting of that body.

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT APPLICATIONS

(@) Public Speaking at Council
81

189



28.

In those circumstances where a planning application is to be determined
by full Council, the Council’'s Head of Development or Planning Service
Manager (Development Management) or his representative and other
relevant Officers shall be permitted to present reports to the Council and
the public speaking process adopted by the Development Management
Committee be applied;

(b) Consideration of Departures from the Development Plan

Planning applications for the following types of development should be
referred to the Secretary of State if the Development Management
Committee is minded to approve them under the Town and Country
Planning (Consultation) (England) Direction 2009 unless the application in
question is considered by the Head of Development and Corporate
Director (Services) to be so 'significant' that it should remain the decision of
the Council to refer the application to the Secretary of State. The
Development Plan shall, on the recommendation of the Development
Management Committee, be considered by the Council having regard to
advice received from the Head of Development and Corporate Director
(Delivery) and guidelines on the Council’s website).

CASUAL VACANCIES
A casual vacancy on any committee or panel occasioned by the resignation of
a member from that body will be filled by a resolution of the Council. The

Executive Leader may vary the membership of Cabinet at any time and may
fill any vacancy that arises.

82

190



COMMITTEE PROCEDURE RULES

1. SCOPE

These rules apply to the meetings of Overview and Scrutiny Committees, the
Standards Committee, the Planning Committee, the Licensing Committee and
any Sub-Committees that are appointed by them and all other Committees
appointed by the Council. The Licensing Committee has resolved to adopt the
Rules that apply to the proceedings of Committee Panels of the Council but
separate proceedings will apply to the hearings of its Sub-Committees.

2. MEETINGS OF COMMITTEES

2.1 The meetings of Committees shall be held on the dates set out in the annual
programme of meetings approved.

2.2 If the Chairman of the Committee considers that the day fixed for a Committee
meeting is no longer suitable for that purpose or if there is insufficient business
to justify the holding of the meeting, they shall, after consultation with the
Leaders of Political Groups and the Managing Director cancel the holding of
that meeting and, if appropriate, fix an alternative day for the holding of that
meeting.

2.3  The Chairman of a Committee may call an extra-ordinary meeting of their
Committee at any time.

2.4 If the Chairman does not call an extra-ordinary meeting of the Committee after a
requisition for that purpose, signed by at least three Members of the Committee,
has been [resented to them then the three Members of the Committee may
forthwith require the Managing Director to summon than extra-ordinary meeting
to discuss the matters referred to in the requisition to the Chairman.

2.5 Unless otherwise specified by a Committee or by a Chairman of the Committee
the time and place of the meeting will be determined by the Head of Paid
Service and notified in the summons. Meetings shall normally commence at
7:00pm.

3. THE CHAIR AND VICE CHAIR OF COMMITTEES
3.1 The Chairman of a Committee shall preside over meetings of that Committee.

3.2 Any powers and duties assigned to the Chairman of a Committee under these
Committee Procedure Rules shall, in the absence of the Chairman, be
undertaken by the Vice Chairman.

3.2 Where both the Chairman and Vice Chairman are absent from a meeting the
Committee shall as the first item of business at that meeting appoint another
Member of the Committee to act as a Chairman for that meeting and that
person shall, for the duration of that meeting, be entitled to exercise all the
powers and duties of the Chairman under these Committee Procedure Rules
in relation to that meeting.

83

191



4.1

5.1

5.2

6.1

6.2

6.3

7.1

QUORUM

The quorum of a meeting will be one quarter of the whole number of members.
During any meeting if the Chairman counts the number of Members present and
declares that there is not a quorum present, then the meeting will adjourn
immediately. Remaining business will be considered at the time and date fixed
by the Chairman. If he/she does not fix a date, the remaining business will be
considered at the next ordinary meeting of the Council. In no case should the
guorum of Sub Committees and Sub Groups be less than three Members.

SUMMONS AND AGENDA FOR MEETINGS OF COMMITTEES

The Head of Paid Service will give notice to the public of the time and place of
any meeting in accordance with the Access to Information Rules. At least five
clear days before a meeting, the Head of Paid Service will send a summons
signed by him or her by post to every member of the Council or leave it at their
usual residence. The summons will give the date, time and place of each
meeting and specify the business to be transacted and will be accompanied by
such reports as are available.

No business other than that specified in the summons and the agenda shall be
transacted at the meeting of the Committee except urgent items.

MINUTES
Signing the Minutes

The Chairman will sign the minutes of the proceedings at the next meeting. The
Chairman will move that the minutes of the previous meeting be signed as a
correct record. The only part of the Minutes that can be discussed is their
accuracy.

No requirement to Sign Minutes of Previous Meeting at Extraordinary
Meeting.

Where in relation to any meeting, the next meeting for the purpose of signing
the Minutes is a meeting called under paragraph 3 of Schedule 12 to the Local
Government Act 1972 (an extraordinary meeting), then the next following
meeting (being called otherwise than under that paragraph) will be treated as a
suitable meeting for the purpose of paragraphs 41 (1) and (2) of Schedule 12
relating to the signing of Minutes.

Form of Minutes

Minutes will contain all motions and amendments in the exact form and order
the Chairman put them in.

VOTING
Any guestion at any meeting of any Committee shall be determined by a show

of hands by a majority of the Councillors and co-opted Members (where they
are entitled to vote) present and voting.

84

192



7.2

7.3

8.1

8.2

10.

10.1

Where immediately after a vote is taken any councillor requires, there shall be
recorded in the minutes whether that person cast their vote for the question or
against the question or whether they abstained from voting.

If there are equal numbers of votes for and against, the Chairman will have a
second or casting vote. There will be no restriction on how the chairman
chooses to exercise a casting vote.

ATTENDANCE BY MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL AT MEETINGS OF WHICH
THEY ARE NOT MEMBERS

A Member of the Council shall be permitted to attend a meeting of the Cabinet,
Overview and scrutiny Panels, committees, panels, sub-committees and sub-
groups of the Council of which he/she is not a member but he/she shall not be
entitled to take part in any discussion or vote on any matter under
consideration. A Member of the Council may, however, address a meeting of
the Cabinet, Overview and Scrutiny Panel, committee, panel sub-committee or
sub-group of which he/she is not a member on a specified item or items of
business where written notice has been given to and prior permission obtained
from the Chairman of the cabinet, Overview and Scrutiny Panel, committee,
panel, sub-committee or sub-group.

MOVER OF MOTION MAY ATTEND MEETING

A member of Council who has moved a motion which has been referred by the
Council to the cabinet, Overview and Scrutiny Panel, committee or panel shall
receive notice of the meeting of the Cabinet, Overview and Scrutiny Panel,
committee or panel at which it is proposed to consider the motion. He/she shall
have the right to attend the meeting and if he/she attends shall have an
opportunity of speaking to the motion and exercising the right of reply under
Rule 12.9.

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT APPLICATIONS

Public Speaking at Development Management Panel

Where a planning application falls to be determined by the Development
Management Panel and where appropriate notice has been given, an elected
Member of the relevant town and parish council/meeting, the District Ward
Member, the objector(s), the applicant(s) or their representatives shall be
permitted to address the Panel on the application under the direction of the
Chairman having regard to the guidelines published on the Council’s website.

PUBLIC REPRESENTATIONS — LICENSING COMMITTEE

The provisions of the Committee Procedure Rule shall only apply to
consideration by the Licensing Committee of any matters relating to the grant,
refusal, variation or revocation of any licence, permit or approval falling within
its terms of reference including the terms and conditions attached to the same.

The applicant (or any representative on their behalf) shall be given an
opportunity to make representations to the committee and call any witnesses.
The following persons shall also be permitted to make representations to the
Committee:-

i. members of the public

85

193



11.

12.

12.1

12.2

12.3

12.4

12.5

ii. Councillors who are not members of the Committee or acting as
substitutes

iii. Representatives of the Police or fire Authority

iv. Council Officers

All persons who make representations to the Committee may be asked
guestions by members of the Committee or by other persons making
representations.

After everyone else has made representations and answered questions, the
applicant shall be permitted to make a final statement to the committee, after
which everyone shall withdraw except the members of the Committee and the
representatives of the Monitoring Officer while the Committee considers its
decision. The decision will be announced to the applicant and the other
persons who have made representations and confirmed in writing by the
Proper Officer to the applicant.

The Monitoring Officer shall be authorised to produce detailed Procedure
Notes for the different types of applications considered by the Licensing
Committee incorporating principles set out in this Committee Procedure rule.

RULES OF DEBATE

The rules of debate in this Committee Procedure Rule shall apply to all the
meetings of Committees and the references in the Committee Procedure Rule
to “Member” shall also include co-opted Members.

RULES OF DEBATE FOR COMMITTEE MEETINGS

Speaking at Committee Meetings

A Member wishing to speak will raise their hand. If two or more Members
indicate that they wish to speak, the Chairman will call them in turn to speak.

Content of Speeches

A member shall speak on the question under discussion or a personal
explanation or to a point of order.

Motions and Amendments

A motion or amendment shall not be discussed unless it has been proposed
and seconded, and unless notice has already been given in accordance with
Committee Procedure rules it shall, if required by the Chairman be put into
writing and handed to the Chairman before it is further discussed or put to a
meeting.

Seconder’s Speech

A Member when seconding a motion or amendment may reserve their speech
until a later period of the debate.

Amendments to Motions

Every amendment shall be relevant to the motion on which it is moved and
shall be:-

86

194



i. To leave out words; or
ii. To leave out words and insert and add others; or
ili. Toinsert or add words;

but such omission, insertion or addition of words shall not have the effect of
negating the motion before the Committee.

12.6 Two or More Amendments

Only one amendment may be moved and discussed at a time and no further
amendments shall be moved until the amendment under discussion has been
disposed of.

12.7 Position if an Amendment is Lost or carried

If an amendment is lost, other amendments may be moved on the original
motion. If an amendment is carried, the motion as amended shall take the
place of the original motion and shall become the motion upon which any
further amendment may be moved.

12.8 Withdrawal of the Motion

A motion or an amendment may be withdrawn by the mover with the consent
of their seconder and no member may speak upon it after it has been
withdrawn.

12.9 Alteration of Motion

A Member may, with the consent of both the meeting and their seconder, alter
a motion or amendment which they proposed or of which notice had been
given. Only alterations which could have been moved as an amendment may
be made.

12.10 Motions Which May be Moved During Debate

When a motion is under debate, no other motion shall be moved except the
following procedural motions:-

i. to withdraw a motion
ii. toamend a motion
iii. to proceed to the next business
iv. that the question be now put
v. to adjourn a debate
vi. to adjourn a meeting
vii. to exclude the public and press in accordance with the Access to
Information rules; and
viii. to not hear further a Member named under rule 18.3 or to exclude them
from the meeting under Rule 18.4

12.11 Closure Motions
(@& A member may move, without comment, the following motions at the

end of a speech of another member:-
i. to proceed to the next business;

87

195



12.12

12.13

12.14

12.15

ii. thatthe question be now put;
ii. to adjourn a debate; or
iv. to adjourn a meeting.

(b) If a motion to proceed to next business is seconded and the Chairman
thinks the item has been sufficiently discussed, he or she will give the
mover of the original motion a right of reply and then put the procedural
motion to the vote.

(c) If a motion that the question be now put is seconded and the Chairman
thinks the item has been sufficiently discussed, the Chairman will put the
procedural motion to the vote. If it is passed the Chairman will give the
mover of the original motion the right of reply before putting his/her
motion to the vote.

(d) If a motion to adjourn the debate or to adjourn the meeting is seconded
and the Chairman thinks the item has not been sufficiently discussed
and cannot reasonably be so discussed on that occasion he/ she will put
the procedural motion to the vote without giving the mover of the original
motion the right of reply.

(d) If a motion to adjourn the meeting is seconded and the Chairman thinks
that the remaining business before the meeting cannot be sufficiently
discussed on that occasion he shall put the adjournment motion to the
vote without giving the mover to any motion under discussion his/her
right of reply. If the motion for the adjournment is carried, the remaining
business shall stand adjourned to a time fixed by the Chairman at the
time the meeting is adjourned, or otherwise, to the next ordinary meeting
of the Council.

Resumption after Adjournment
On resumption of an adjourned debate the Member who moved the
adjournment is entitled to speak first.

Point of Order

A member may raise a point of order at any time. The Chairman will hear
them immediately. A point of order may only relate to an alleged breach of
these Council Rules of Procedure or the law. The member must indicate the
rule or law and the way in which he/she considers it has been broken. The
ruling of the Chairman on the matter will be final.

Personal Explanation
A member may make a personal explanation at any time. A personal
explanation may only relate to some material part of an earlier speech by a
member which may appear to have been misunderstood in the present
debate. The ruling of the Chairman on the admissibility of a personal
explanation will be final.

Irrelevance, repetition and limitation on speakers

In speaking to any motion or amendment Members are to confine their
remarks strictly to such motion or amendment and shall not introduce
irrelevant matters or indulge in needless repetition. The Chairman’s ruling on
this is final.

If three speakers have spoken consecutively in support of, or in opposition to a
motion, the Chairman may call for a speaker to the contrary. If no such
speaker is forthcoming and after the mover has had a right of reply, the motion
must be put. Members speaking must, if called upon to do so by the chairman,

88

196



12.16

12.17

15

151

15.2

15.3

154

15.5

15.6

15.7

announce whether they are speaking in support of, or against the motion of
amendment being debated.

Officers of the Council
Officer of the Council may speak during a debate at the Committee meetings.

Oral Reports
With the consent of the Chairman, Officers may make an oral report on a
matter of importance and urgency.

DISORDERLY CONDUCT

General Disturbance

If there is a general disturbance making orderly business impossible, the
Chairman may adjourn the meeting for as long as he/she thinks necessary.

A member shall comply with the adopted Members' Code of Conduct
reproduced in Part 5 of the Constitution. Further to the Code of Conduct, a
Member must withdraw from a meeting room during the consideration of any
item of business in which he/she has a disclosable pecuniary interest.

Member not to be heard further

If a member persistently disregards the ruling of the Chairman by behaving
improperly or offensively or deliberately obstructs business, the Chairman may
move that the member be not heard further. If seconded, the motion will be
voted on without discussion.

Member to leave the Meeting

If the member continues to behave improperly after such a motion is carried,
the Chairman may move that either the member leaves the meeting or that the
meeting is adjourned for a specified period. If seconded, the motion will be
voted on without discussion.

DISTURBANCE BY MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC

If a member of the public interrupts the proceedings at any meeting the
chairman shall warn them. If they continue the interruption the Chairman shall
order their removal from the room in which the meeting is being held. In case
of general disturbance in any part of the room in which the meeting is being
held open to the public the Chairman shall order that part to be cleared.

RESCISSON OF RESOLUTIONS

No resolution taken at a previous meeting of Committee shall be rescinded or
varied within six months unless notice has been given on the agenda for the
meeting of the intention of the body to reconsider the matter.

RECORD OF ATTENDANCES
Every member of the Council and co-opted Member attending a meeting of a
Committee shall sign their name in the attendance book or sheet.

CASUAL VACANCIES

A casual vacancy on an Overview and Scrutiny Panel, committee or panel
occasioned by the resignation of a member from that body may be filled by a
resolution of the Council. The Executive Leader may vary the membership of
Cabinet at any time and may fill any vacancy that arises.

89

197






ACCESS TO INFORMATION PROCEDURE RULES

SCOPE

These Rules apply to all meetings of the Council, the Cabinet, panels and
committees, sub-committees and sub-groups. The Licensing Committee has
resolved to adopt the Rules for the purpose of its meetings but separate
proceedings will apply to the hearings of its sub-committees.

ADDITIONAL RIGHTS TO INFORMATION

These Rules do not affect any more specific rights to information contained
elsewhere in this Constitution or the law.

RIGHTS TO ATTEND MEETINGS

Members of the public may attend, record and report all meetings subject only
to the exceptions in these Rules.

NOTICES OF MEETING

The Council will give at least five clear days' notice of any meeting by posting
details of the meeting at the Council's offices at Pathfinder House, Huntingdon

ACCESS TO AGENDA AND REPORTS BEFORE THE MEETING

The Council will make copies of the agenda and reports open to the public
available for inspection at the designated office at least five clear days before
the meeting. If an item is added to the agenda later in cases of urgency, the
revised agenda will be open to inspection from the time the item was added
to the agenda. Where reports are prepared after the agenda has been sent
out, the Elections and Democratic Services Manager shall make each such
report available to the public as soon as the report is completed and sent to
Councillors.

SUPPLY OF COPIES
The Council will supply copies of:-
(a) any agenda and reports which are open to public inspection;

(b) any further statements or particulars necessary to indicate the nature of
the items in the agenda; and

(c) if the Corporate Director (Services) thinks fit, copies of any other
documents supplied to Councillors in connection with an item

to any person on payment of a reasonable charge for postage and any other
costs.

ACCESS TO MINUTES ETC AFTER THE MEETING

The Council will make available copies of the following for six years after a
meeting:-

91

199



8.1

8.2

10.

10.1

10.2

(@) the minutes of the meeting or records of decisions taken, together with
reasons, excluding any part of the minutes of proceedings when the
meeting was not open to the public or which disclose exempt or
confidential information;

(b) asummary of any proceedings not open to the public where the minutes
open to inspection would not provide a reasonably fair and coherent
record,

(c) the agenda for the meeting; and

(d) reports relating to items when the meeting was open to the public.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

List of background papers

Every report shall list those documents (background papers) relating to the

subject matter of the report, except published works or exempt or confidential

information (as defined in Rule 10), which:-

(@) disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an important part of
the report is based; and

(b)  which have been relied on to a material extent in preparing the report.
Public inspection of background papers

The Council will make available for public inspection for four years after the
date of the meeting one copy of each of the documents on the list of
background papers.

SUMMARY OF PUBLIC'S RIGHTS

A written summary of the public’s rights to attend meetings and to inspect and
copy documents shall be kept at and available to the public at the Council's
offices at Pathfinder House, Huntingdon and on the Council’s website.
EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC FROM MEETINGS

Confidential information — requirement to exclude public

The public must be excluded from meetings whenever it is likely in view of the
nature of the business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings that
confidential information would be disclosed.

Confidential information means information given to the Council by a
Government Department on terms which forbid its public disclosure or
information which cannot be publicly disclosed by Court Order.

Exempt information — discretion to exclude public

The public may be excluded from meetings whenever it is likely in view of the

nature of the business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings that
exempt information would be disclosed.

92

200



Where the meeting will determine any person’s civil rights or obligations, or
adversely affect their possessions, Article 6 of the Human Rights Act 1998
establishes a presumption that the meeting will be held in public unless a
private hearing is necessary for one of the reasons specified in Article 6.

10.3 Meaning of exempt information

Exempt information means information falling within the following 7 categories,
subject to the relevant condition(s) and so long, as in all the circumstances of
the case, the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the
public interest in disclosing the information:-

Category Condition

=

Information relating to any individual.

2. Information that is likely to reveal the
identity of an individual.

3. Information relating to the financial or | Information is not exempt

business affairs of any particular person | information if it is required to

(including the authority holding that | be registered under —

information).

(a) The Companies Act 1985

(b) The Friendly Societies Act
1974

(c) The Friendly Societies Act
1992

(d) The Industrial and
Provident Societies Act
1965 - 1978

(e) The Building Societies Act
1986; or

() The Charities Act 1993.

4. Information relating to any consultations
or negotiations, or contemplated
consultations  or  negotiations, in
connection with any labour relations
matter arising between the authority or a
Minister of the Crown and employees of,
or office holders under, the authority.

5. Information in respect of which a claim to
legal professional privilege could be
maintained in legal proceedings.

6. Information which reveals that the
authority proposes —

(a) to give under any enactment a notice
under or by virtue of which
requirements are imposed on a
person; or

(b) to make an order or direction under
any enactment.

93

201



11.

12.

13.

14.

14.1

7. Information relating to any action taken
or to be taken in connection with the
prevention, investigation or prosecution
of crime.

Information is not exempt information if it relates to proposed development for
which the local planning authority may grant itself planning permission
pursuant to Regulation 3 of the Town and Country Planning General
Regulations 1992.

EXCLUSION OF ACCESS BY THE PUBLIC TO REPORTS

If the Head of Paid Service or his/her nominee thinks fit, the Council may
exclude access by the public to reports which in his/her opinion relate to items
during which, in accordance with Rule 10, the meeting is likely not to be open
to the public. Such reports will be endorsed "Not for publication" together with
the category of information likely to be disclosed.

APPLICATION OF RULES TO THE CABINET

Rules 13 — 24 apply to the Executive Leader, Cabinet, its committees and
executive councillors. If the Executive Leader, Cabinet, its committees and
executive councillors propose to meet to take a key decision then it must also
comply with Rules 1 — 11 unless Rule 15 (general exception) or Rule 16
(special urgency) apply. A key decision is defined in paragraph 3 (b) of Article
13 of this Constitution.

If the Cabinet or its committees meet to discuss a key decision to be taken
collectively, with an officer present or the Executive Leader or an executive
councillor propose to take a key decision, within 28 days of the date according
to the Notice of Executive Decisions by which it is to be decided, then it must
also comply with Rules 1 — 11 unless Rule 15 (general exception) or Rule 16
(special urgency) apply.

PROCEDURE BEFORE TAKING KEY DECISIONS

Subject to Rule 15 (general exception) and Rule 16 (special urgency), a key
decision may not be taken unless:-

(@) a notice (in the form of a Notice of ‘Executive Decisions’) has been
published in connection with the matter in question;

(b) at least 28 clear days have elapsed since the publication of the Notice;
and

(c) where the decision is to be taken at a meeting of the Cabinet or its
committees, notice of the meeting has been given in accordance with
Rule 4 (notice of meetings).

NOTICE OF EXECUTIVE DECISION

Period of Notice

94

202



14.2

15.

16.

The Executive Leader will give 28 clear days’ notice of the intention to make a
key decision and notice of any intention to hold part of the Cabinet meeting in
private. Such notice to include a statement as to why any specific matter is
being dealt with in private. The Notice will be available for inspection at the
District Council’s offices and published on the District Council’'s website.

Content of the Notice

The Notice will contain matters which the Executive Leader has reason to
believe will be the subject of a key decision to be taken by himself/herself, the
Cabinet, a committee of the Cabinet, individual members of the Cabinet,
officers, or under joint arrangements in the course of the discharge of an
executive function during the period covered by the Notice. It will describe the
following particulars in so far as the information is available or might
reasonably be obtained:-

(@) the matter in respect of which a decision is to be made;

(b) where the decision taker is an individual, his/her name and title, if any,
and where the decision taker is a body, its name and details of
membership;

(c) the date on which, or the period within which, the decision will be taken;

(d) alist of the documents submitted to the decision taker for consideration
in relation to the matter;

(e) the address from which, subject to any prohibition or restriction on their
disclosure, copies of, or extracts from, any document listed is available;
and

() the steps any person might take who wishes to make representations to
the Cabinet or decision taker about the matter in respect of which the
decision is to be made, and the date by which those steps must be
taken.

Exempt information need not be included in the Notice and confidential
information cannot be included.

GENERAL EXCEPTION
If a matter which is likely to be a key decision has not been included in the
Notice, then subject to Rule 16 (special urgency), the decision may still be

taken if:-

(&) At least five clear days public notice of the decision to be taken is given
at the Council’s Offices and on the website; and

(b) the Head of Paid Service has given notice in writing to the Chairman of a
relevant Overview and Scrutiny Panel, or if there is no such person,
each member of that Panel in writing, by notice, of the matter to which
the decision is to be made.

SPECIAL URGENCY

95

203



17.

17.1

17.2

17.3

18.

If by virtue of the date by which a decision must be taken Rule 15 (general
exception) cannot be followed, then the decision can only be taken if the
decision taker (if an individual) or the Chairman of the body making the
decision, obtains the agreement of the Chairman of a relevant Overview and
Scrutiny Panel that the taking of the decision cannot be reasonably deferred. If
there is no Chairman of a relevant Overview and Scrutiny Panel, or if the
Chairman of each relevant Overview and Scrutiny Panel is unable to act, then
the agreement of the Chairman of the Council, or in his/her absence the
consent of the Head of Paid Service or her nominee will suffice. Decisions
taken as a matter of urgency must be reported to the next available meeting of
the relevant Overview and Scrutiny Panel, together with the reasons for
urgency. Once agreement has been obtained that the making of the decision
is urgent and cannot be reasonably deferred, Notice to this effect must be
made available at the District Council’'s Offices and published on the website.

REPORT TO COUNCIL
When an Overview and Scrutiny Panel can require areport

If an Overview and Scrutiny Panel thinks that a key decision has been taken
which was not:-

(@) included in the Notice of Executive Decisions;
(b) the subject of the general exception procedure; or

(c) the subject of an agreement with a relevant Overview and Scrutiny
Panel Chairman or the Chairman of the Council or the Head of Paid
Service or her nominee under Rule 16;

(e) the Panel may require the Executive Leader to submit a report to the
Council within such reasonable time as the Panel specifies. The power to
require a report rests with the Panel, but is also delegated to the Corporate
Director (Services), who shall require such a report on behalf of the Panel
when so requested by the Chairman or any three members. Alternatively,
the requirement may be raised by resolution passed at a meeting of the
relevant Overview and Scrutiny Panel.

Executive Leader Report to Council

The Executive Leader will prepare a report for submission to the next available
meeting of the Council. However, if the next meeting of the Council is within
seven working days of receipt of the written notice, or the resolution of the
Panel, then the report may be submitted to the meeting after that. The report
to the Council will set out particulars of the decision, the individual or body
making the decision, and if the Executive Leader is of the opinion that it was
not a key decision the reasons for that opinion.

Quarterly Reports on special urgency decisions

In any event the Executive Leader will submit annually reports to the Council
on executive decisions taken in the circumstances set out in Rule 16 (special
urgency). The report will include the number of decisions so taken and a
description of the matters in respect of which those decisions were taken.

RECORD OF DECISIONS
96

204



18.1

18.2

19.

20.

20.1

20.2

20.3

21.

21.1

After any meeting of the Cabinet or its committees or a decision is taken by
the Executive Leader or an executive councillor, the Elections and Democratic
Services will produce a record of every decision taken as soon as practicable.
The record will include a statement of the reasons for each decision, any
alternative options considered and rejected at that meeting details of any
conflict of interest declared by any Member and, if applicable, a note of any
dispensation in respect of a conflict of interest which has been granted by the
Monitoring Officer.

After an Officer has taken a decision closely associated with the discharge of
an executive function, and where that decision is not exempt from publication,
a record of the decision shall be published on the Council's website.

CABINET MEETINGS IN PUBLIC

All meetings of the Cabinet will be held in public, except where the business to
be transacted would disclose confidential or exempt information under Rule
10.

DECISIONS BY INDIVIDUAL MEMBERS OF THE CABINET AND
OFFICERS

Reports intended to be taken into account

An individual member of the Cabinet shall not make a decision and an officer
shall not make a key decision until he/she has taken into account a written
report and he/she will not make the decision until at least five clear days after
receipt of that report.

Provision of copies of reports to Overview and Scrutiny Panels

On giving of such a report to an individual decision maker, the person who
prepared the report will give a copy of it to the Chairman of every relevant
Overview and Scrutiny Panel as soon as reasonably practicable, and make it
publicly available at the same time.

Record of individual decision

As soon as reasonably practicable after an executive decision has been taken
by an individual member of the Cabinet or a key decision has been taken by
an officer, he/she will prepare, or instruct the Elections and Democratic
Services Manager to prepare, a record of the decision, a statement of the
reasons for it and any alternative options considered and rejected. The
provisions of Rules 7 and 8 (inspection of documents after meetings) will also
apply to the making of decisions by individual members of the Cabinet. This
does not require the disclosure of exempt or confidential information.

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANELS ACCESS TO DOCUMENTS
Rights to Copies
Subject to Rule 22.2 below, an Overview and Scrutiny Panel (including its sub-

panels) will be entitled to copies of any document which is in the possession
or control of the Cabinet and which contains material relating to:-

97

205



21.2

22.

22.1

23.2

23.3

(@) any business transacted at a meeting of the Cabinet; or

(b) any decision taken by an individual member of the Cabinet.

Limit on Rights

An Overview and Scrutiny Panel will not be entitled to:-

(@) any document that is in draft form; or

(b) any part of a document that contains exempt or confidential information,
unless that information is relevant to an action or decision they are
reviewing or scrutinising or intend to scrutinise.

ADDITIONAL RIGHTS OF ACCESS FOR MEMBERS

Material relating to previous business

Any document which is in the possession or under the control of the Cabinet

and contains material relating to any business to be transacted at a meeting of

the Cabinet or relates to any key decision shall be open to inspection by any

Member of the Council unless it appears to the Corporate Director (Services)

and Monitoring Officer that it discloses exempt information.

Notwithstanding paragraph 23.1, the document will remain open to inspection

if the information it contains falls within paragraphs 3 or 6 of Schedule 12A to

the Local Government Act 1972 (with the exception of information relating to

any terms proposed or to be proposed by or to the authority in the course of

negotiations for a contract).

Material relating to key decisions

All members of the Council will be entitled to inspect any document (except

those available only in draft form) in the possession or under the control of the

Cabinet or its committees which relates to any key decision unless paragraph

23.1 applies.

Nature of rights

These rights of a member are additional to any other right he/she may have.

98

206



11

1.2

13

1.4

15

1.6

CABINET PROCEDURE RULES

OPERATION OF THE CABINET

Who May Make Executive Decisions

The arrangements for the discharge of executive functions may be set out in
the executive arrangements adopted by the Council. The Executive Leader
will decide how they are to be exercised and will provide the Monitoring Officer
with a copy of the list setting out who of the following is responsible for
particular Executive Functions:

(i) the Cabinet as a whole;

(i)  acommittee of the Cabinet;

(i) anindividual member of the Cabinet;

(iv) an officer;

(v) joint arrangements; or

(vi) another local authority.

Delegation of Executive Functions

Where the Cabinet, individual Cabinet member or a committee of the Cabinet
is responsible for an executive function, they may delegate further to an
Officer.

Cabinet Meetings - Frequency and Venue

The Cabinet will meet at least ten times per year at times to be agreed by the
Executive Leader. The Cabinet shall meet at the Council's main offices or
another location to be agreed by the Executive Leader.

Meetings of the Cabinet

The Access to Information Rules in Part 4 of this Constitution set out the
requirements covering meetings of the Cabinet.

Quorum

The quorum for a meeting of the Cabinet or a committee of it shall be one
quarter of the total number of members of the Cabinet or three whichever is
the larger.

Decision Taking by the Cabinet

(a) Executive decisions which have been delegated to the Cabinet as a

whole will be taken at a meeting convened in accordance with the
Access to Information Rules in Part 4 of the Constitution.

99

207



2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

(b) Where executive decisions are delegated to a committee of the Cabinet,
the rules applying to executive decisions taken by them shall be the
same as those applying to those taken by the Cabinet as a whole.

CONDUCT OF CABINET MEETINGS
Chairman

If the Executive Leader is present, he/she will preside at meetings of the
Cabinet. In his/her absence then the Deputy Executive Leader will preside. In
the absence of both the Executive Leader and the Deputy Executive Leader,
the Cabinet will appoint a person from among those present to preside at that
meeting.

Attendance

The details are set out in the Access to Information Rules in Part 4 of this
Constitution.

Business
At each meeting of the Cabinet, the following business will be conducted:-

(i)  consideration of the minutes of the last meeting;
(i)  declarations of interest (if any);

(i) any matters referred to the Cabinet (whether by an Overview and
Scrutiny Panel or by the Council) for reconsideration by the Cabinet in
accordance with the provisions contained in the Overview and Scrutiny
Procedure Rules or the Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules
set out in Part 4 of this Constitution;

(iv) consideration of reports from Overview and Scrutiny Panels; and

(v) matters set out in the agenda for the meeting and which shall indicate
which are key decisions and which are not in accordance with the
Access to Information Procedure Rules set out in Part 4 of this
Constitution.

Consultation

All reports to the Cabinet from any member of the Cabinet or an officer on
proposals relating to the budget policy framework must contain details of the
nature and extent of consultation with stakeholders and relevant Overview and
Scrutiny Panels and the outcome of that consultation. Reports about other
matters will set out the details and outcome of consultation as appropriate.
The level of consultation required will be appropriate to the nature of the
matter under consideration.

Cabinet Agenda ltems
The Executive Leader may put on the agenda of any Cabinet meeting any

matter which he/she wishes, whether or not authority has been delegated to
the Cabinet, a committee of it or any member or officer in respect of that

100

208



matter. The Head of Paid Service will comply with the Executive Leader's
requests in that respect.

Any member of the Cabinet may require the Head of Paid Service to make
sure that an item is placed on the agenda of the next available meeting of the
Cabinet for consideration. If he/she receives such a request, the Head of Paid
Service will comply.

The Head of Paid Service will make sure that an item is placed on the agenda
of the next available meeting of the Cabinet where a relevant Overview and
Scrutiny Panel or the full Council have resolved that an item be considered by
the Cabinet.

Any member of the Council may ask the Executive Leader to put an item on
the agenda of a Cabinet meeting for consideration and, if the Executive
Leader agrees, the item will be considered at the next available meeting of the
Cabinet. The notice of the meeting will give the name of the Councillor who
asked for the item to be considered. This individual will be invited to attend
the meeting and may speak of so invited by the Executive Leader.

The Monitoring Officer and/or the Chief Finance Officer may include an item
for consideration on the agenda of a Cabinet meeting and may require the
Head of Paid Service to call such a meeting in pursuance of their statutory
duties. In other circumstances, where any two of the Head of Paid Service,
Monitoring Officer and Chief Finance Officer are of the opinion that a meeting
of the Cabinet needs to be called to consider a matter that requires a decision,
they may jointly include an item on the agenda of a Cabinet meeting. If there
is no meeting of the Cabinet soon enough to deal with the issue in question
then the person(s) entitled to include an item on the agenda may also require
that a meeting be convened at which the matter will be discussed.

101

209



102

210



BUDGET AND POLICY FRAMEWORK PROCEDURE RULES

1. THE FRAMEWORK FOR EXECUTIVE DECISIONS

The Council will be responsible for the adoption of its budget and policy
framework as set out in Article 4. Once the budget or a policy framework is in
place, it will be the responsibility of the Cabinet to implement it.

2. PROCESS FOR DEVELOPING FRAMEWORK

The process by which the budget and policy framewaork shall be developed is:-

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(€)

(f)

The Cabinet will publicise by including in the Notice of Executive
Decisions and/or publication at the Council's offices or by other means
e.g. on its website or in the local press, a timetable for making proposals
to the Council for the adoption of any plan, strategy or budget that forms
part of the budget and policy framework and its arrangements for
consultation after publication of those initial proposals. The Chairman of
the relevant Overview and Scrutiny Panel also will be notified. In the
absence of the Chairman, the Vice-Chairman of the relevant Panel will
be notified. The consultation period shall in each instance be relevant to
the proposals to be considered and sufficient for meaningful
consultation.

At the end of that period, the Cabinet will then draw up firm proposals
having regard to the responses to that consultation. If the relevant
Overview and Scrutiny Panel wishes to respond to the Cabinet in that
consultation process then it may do so. As the Overview and Scrutiny
Panels have responsibility for fixing their own work programme, it is
open to an Overview and Scrutiny Panel to investigate, research or
report in detail with policy recommendations before the end of the
consultation period. The Cabinet will take any response from an
Overview and Scrutiny Panel into account in drawing up firm proposals
for the submission to the Council, and its report to Council will reflect the
comments made by consultees and the Cabinet's response.

Once the Cabinet has approved firm proposals, the Chief Finance
Officer will refer them at the earliest opportunity to the Council for
decision.

In reaching a decision, the Council may adopt the Cabinet's proposals,
amend them, refer them back to the Cabinet for further consideration, or
in principle, substitute its own proposals in their place.

If it accepts the recommendation of the Cabinet without amendment, the
Council may make a decision which has immediate effect. Otherwise it
may only make an in-principle decision. In either case, the decision will
be made on the basis of a simple majority of votes cast at the meeting.

The decision will be publicised within three working days of the meeting
in accordance with Article 4 and a copy shall be given to the Executive
Leader.

103

211



(9)

(h)

(i)

()

An in-principle decision will automatically become effective within five
working days from the publication of the Council's decision, unless the
Executive Leader informs the Head of Paid Service in writing within that
period of five working days that he/she objects to the decision becoming
effective and provides reasons why.

In that case, the Head of Paid Service will call a Council meeting within a
further 15 working days. The Council will be required to reconsider its
decision and the Executive Leader's written submission. The Council
may:-

() approve the Cabinet's recommendation by a simple majority of
votes cast at the meeting; or

(i) approve a different decision which does not accord with the
recommendation of the Cabinet by a simple majority.

The decision shall then be made public in accordance with Article 4, and
shall be implemented immediately.

In approving the budget and policy framework, the Council will also
specify the extent of virement within the budget and degree of in-year
changes to the policy framework which may be undertaken by the
Cabinet, in accordance with paragraphs 5 and 6 of these Rules
(virement and in-year adjustment). Any other changes to the policy and
budgetary framework are reserved to the Council.

DECISIONS OUTSIDE THE BUDGET OR POLICY FRAMEWORK

(@)

(b)

Subject to the provisions of paragraph 5 (virement), the Executive
Leader, the Cabinet, committee of the Cabinet, individual members of
the Cabinet and any officers or joint arrangements discharging executive
functions may only take decisions which are in line with the budget and
policy framework. If any of these bodies or persons wishes to make a
decision which is contrary to the policy framework, or contrary to or not
wholly in accordance with the budget approved by full Council, then that
decision may only be taken by the Council, subject to paragraph 4
below.

If the Executive Leader, the Cabinet, committee of the Cabinet,
individual members of the Cabinet and any officers or joint arrangements
discharging executive functions want to make such a decision, they shall
take advice from the Monitoring Officer and/or the Chief Finance Officer
as to whether the decision they want to make would be contrary to the
policy framework, or contrary to or not wholly in accordance with the
budget. If the advice of either of those officers is that the decision would
not be in line with the existing budget and/or policy framework, then the
decision must be referred by that body or person to the Council for
decision, unless the decision is a matter of urgency, in which case the
provisions in paragraph 4 (urgent decisions outside the budget and
policy framework) shall apply.

104

212



4.

URGENT DECISIONS OUTSIDE THE BUDGET OR POLICY FRAMEWORK

(@)

(b)

The Executive Leader, the Cabinet, a committee of the Cabinet, an
individual member of the Cabinet or officers or joint arrangements
discharging executive functions may take a decision which is contrary to
the Council's policy framework or contrary to or not wholly in accordance
with the budget approved by full Council if the decision is a matter of
urgency. However the decision may only be taken:-

() if it is not practical to convene a quorate meeting of the full
Council; and

(i)  if the Chairman of a relevant Overview and Scrutiny Panel agrees
that the decision is a matter of urgency.

The reasons why it is not practical to convene a quorate meeting of full
Council and the Chairman or the relevant Overview and Scrutiny Panel's
consent to the decision being taken as a matter of urgency must be
noted on the record of the decision. In the absence of the Chairman of
a relevant Overview and Scrutiny Panel, the consent of the Chairman of
the Council, and in the absence of both, the Head of Paid Service or
his/her nominee's consent will be sufficient.

Following the decision, the decision taker will provide a full report to the
next ordinary Council meeting explaining the decision, the reasons for it
and why the decision was taken as a matter of urgency.

VIREMENT

(@)

(b)

The Code of Financial Management in Part 4 of this Constitution
includes provisions which set out the rules for moving monies between
budgetary allocations including contingencies (virement).

Steps taken by the Executive Leader, the Cabinet, a committee of the
Cabinet, an individual member of the Cabinet or an officer or joint
arrangements discharging executive functions to implement Council
policy shall not exceed those financial allocations to each budget head.
However, such bodies or individuals shall be entitled to vire resources as
follows:-

0] within a service at the discretion of the relevant head of service;
and
(ii) between services and/or defined activities up to £50,000 in any

financial year at the discretion of the Cabinet.

In all other cases virement will require the approval of the Council.

IN-YEAR CHANGES TO POLICY FRAMEWORK

The responsibility for agreeing the budget and policy framework lies with the
Council, and decisions by the Executive Leader, the Cabinet, a committee of
the Cabinet, an individual member of the Cabinet or officers or joint
arrangements discharging executive functions must be in line with it. No

105

213



changes to any policy and strategy which make up the policy framework may
be made by those bodies and individuals except those changes:-

(@)

(b)

(c)

which will result in the closure and discontinuance of a service or part of
service to meet a budgetary constraint;

necessary to ensure compliance with the law, ministerial direction or
government guidance; or

in relation to the policy framework in respect of a policy which would
normally be agreed annually by the Council following consultation, but
where the existing policy document is silent on the matter under
consideration.

In each case a report on the action taken will be reported by the Cabinet to the
next ordinary meeting of the Council.

CALL-IN OF DECISIONS OUTSIDE THE BUDGET OR POLICY
FRAMEWORK

(@)

(b)

(€)

Where an Overview and Scrutiny Panel is of the opinion that an
executive decision is, or if made would be, contrary to the policy
framework, or contrary to or not wholly in accordance with the Council's
budget, then it shall seek advice from the Monitoring Officer and/or Chief
Finance Officer.

In respect of functions which are the responsibility of the Cabinet, the
Monitoring Officer's report and/or Chief Finance Officer's report shall be
to the Cabinet with a copy to every member of the Council. Regardless
of whether the decision is delegated or not, the Cabinet must meet to
decide what action to take in respect of the Monitoring Officer's report
and to prepare a report to Council in the event that the Monitoring Officer
or the Chief Finance Officer conclude that the decision was a departure,
and to an Overview and Scrutiny Panel if the Monitoring Officer or Chief
Finance Officer conclude that the decision was not a departure.

If the decision has yet to be made, or has been made but not yet
implemented, and the advice from the Monitoring Officer and/or the
Chief Finance Officer is that the decision is or would be contrary to the
policy framework or contrary to or not wholly in accordance with the
budget, the Overview and Scrutiny Panel may refer the matter to
Council. In such cases, no further action will be taken in respect of the
decision or its implementation until the Council has met and considered
the matter. The Council shall meet within 10 working days of the
request by the Overview and Scrutiny Panel. At the meeting it will
receive a report on the decision or proposals and the advice of the
Monitoring Officer and/or the Chief Finance Officer. The Council may
either:-

(i) endorse a decision or proposal of the executive decision taker as
falling within the existing budget and policy framework. In this
case no further action is required save that the decision of the
Council be minuted and circulated to all Councillors in the normal
way; or

106

214



(ii)

(iii)

amend the Council's Code of Financial Management or policy
concerned to encompass a decision or proposal of the body or
individual responsible for that executive function and agree to the
decision with immediate effect. In this case no further action is
required save that the decision of the Council be minuted and
circulated to all councillors in the normal way; or

where the Council accepts that the decision or proposal is contrary
to the policy framework or contrary to or not wholly in accordance
with the Council's budget, and does not amend the existing
framework to accommodate it, require the executive decision taker
to reconsider the matter in accordance with the advice of either the
Monitoring Officer and/or Chief Finance Officer.

107

215



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PROCEDURE RULES

ARRANGEMENTS FOR OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY

The Council will have Overview and Scrutiny Panels as set out in Article 6 and
will appoint members to them as it considers appropriate from time to time.

MEMBERSHIP OF OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANELS

Each Overview and Scrutiny Panel will comprise no more than 16 members of
the Council with seats allocated to political groups in proportion to the number
of seats held by each group on the Council as a whole. All Councillors except
members of the Cabinet may be members of an Overview and Scrutiny Panel.
However, no member may be involved in scrutinising a decision in which
he/she has been directly involved.

MEETINGS OF OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANELS

Ordinary meetings of the Overview and Scrutiny Panels shall be held on such
dates and times as may be specified in the Council's calendar of meetings.
However, such dates and times may be varied at the discretion of each Panel
or its Chairman. In addition, extraordinary meetings may be called from time to
time as and when appropriate. An Overview and Scrutiny Panel meeting may
be called by the Chairman of the relevant Overview and Scrutiny Panel, by
any 3 members of the Panel or by the Head of Paid Service if he/she
considers it necessary or appropriate.

QUORUM

The quorum for an Overview and Scrutiny Panel shall be as set out for
Committees etc in the Council Procedure Rules in Part 4 of this Constitution.

CHAIRMEN AND VICE-CHAIRMEN OF OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
PANELS

The Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Panels will be
drawn from among the Councillors sitting on the Panel and, subject to this
requirement, each Panel may appoint such persons as it considers
appropriate as Chairman and Vice-Chairman.

WORK PROGRAMME

The Overview and Scrutiny Panels will be responsible for setting their own
work programme and in doing so shall take into account the wishes of all
members on that Panel irrespective of any political affiliation.

AGENDA ITEMS

A member may raise an item on an Overview and Scrutiny Panel agenda in

accordance with the Councillor Call for Action (CCFA) procedure, as detailed
in the guide to CCFA attached to the Council Procedure Rules as Annex (iv).

108

216



10.

11.

12.

REQUESTS FROM COUNCIL/CABINET TO REVIEW AREAS OF ACTIVITY

The Overview and Scrutiny Panels must respond as soon as their work
programme permits to requests from the Council and, if it considers it
appropriate, the Cabinet to review particular areas of Council activity. Such
requests will be put in writing to the Chairman of the relevant Overview and
Scrutiny Panel. Where a request is agreed to, the Overview and Scrutiny
Panel shall report their findings and any recommendations back to the Council
and/or Cabinet. If practicable, the Council and/or the Cabinet shall consider
the report of the Overview and Scrutiny Panel at their next ordinary meeting
after its receipt or at the ordinary meeting after that.

POLICY REVIEW AND DEVELOPMENT

The role of the Overview and Scrutiny Panels in relation to the development of
the Council's budget and policy framework is set out in detail in the Budget
and Policy Framework Procedure Rules. In relation to the development of the
Council's approach to other matters not forming part of its policy and budget
framework, Overview and Scrutiny Panels may make proposals to the Cabinet
for developments insofar as they relate to matters within their terms of
reference.

Overview and Scrutiny Panels may hold enquiries and investigate the
available options for future direction in policy development and, provided
appropriate financial provision is available in the budgetary framework, may
appoint advisers and assessors to assist them in this process. They may go
on site visits, conduct public surveys, hold public meetings, commission
research and do all other things that they reasonably consider necessary to
inform their deliberations. They may ask witnesses to attend to address them
on any matter under consideration and may pay to any advisers, assessors
and witnesses a reasonable fee and expenses for doing so within the
allocation of funds approved by the Council.

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL REPORTS

The flowcharts at Appendix A show the process for Overview and Scrutiny
Panels to report their recommendations on proposals for consideration by
Cabinet, Council or individual Cabinet Members with delegated decision
making powers.

CABINET CONSIDERATION OF ISSUES ARISING FROM OVERVIEW &
SCRUTINY

Overview and Scrutiny Panels will have access to the Cabinet's Notice of
Executive Decisions and timetable for decisions and intentions for
consultation. Comments from Overview and Scrutiny Panels relating to items
on the Cabinet's agenda will be included for consideration in the relevant
Cabinet reports.

RIGHTS OF OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL MEMBERS TO
DOCUMENTS

In addition to their rights as Councillors, members of Overview and Scrutiny
Panels have the additional rights to documents and to notice of meetings as

109

217



13.

14.

15.

set out in the Access to Information Procedure Rules in Part4 of this
Constitution.

Nothing in this paragraph prevents more detailed liaison between the Cabinet
and an Overview and Scrutiny Panel as appropriate depending upon the
particular matter under consideration.

MEMBERS AND OFFICERS GIVING ACCOUNT

An Overview and Scrutiny Panel may scrutinise and review decisions made or
actions taken in connection with the discharge of any Council functions. As
well as reviewing documentation, in fulfilling the scrutiny role a Panel or its
Chairman (or in his/her absence, the Vice-Chairman) may require any
member of the Cabinet, the Head of Paid Service and any senior officer to
attend before it to explain in relation to matters within their remit:-

(a) any particular decision or series of decisions;

(b) the extent to which the actions taken implement Council policy; and/or
(c) their performance;

and it is the duty of those persons to attend if so required.

Where any member or officer is required to attend an Overview and Scrutiny
Panel meeting under this provision, the Chairman (or in his/her absence, the
Vice-Chairman) of that Panel will inform the Performance, Policy &
Transformation Manager (Scrutiny). The Performance, Policy &
Transformation Manager (Scrutiny) shall inform the member or officer in
writing giving at least 5 working days' notice of the meeting at which he/she is
required to attend. The notice will state the nature of the item on which he/she
is required to attend to give account and whether any papers are required to
be produced for the Panel. Where the account to be given to the Panel will
require a report to be produced, the member or officer concerned will be given
sufficient notice to allow for preparation of that documentation.

Where, in exceptional circumstances, the member or officer is unable to
attend on the required date, then the Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny
Panel (or in his/her absence, the Vice-Chairman) shall, in consultation with the
member or officer, arrange an alternative date for attendance to take place
within a maximum of two months from the date of the original request.

Where an Overview and Scrutiny Panel is reviewing work of the Council which
is not a function of the Cabinet, it should not normally scrutinise individual
decisions made by the Council or any committee or panel thereof, particularly
decisions in respect of development management, licensing, registration,
consents and other permissions. In making reports and recommendations on
functions which are not the responsibility of the Cabinet, such reports and
recommendations should normally be used as part of wider policy reviews.

ATTENDANCE BY OTHERS

An Overview and Scrutiny Panel may invite other people to address it, discuss
issues of local concern and/or answer questions. It may, for example, invite
Councillors who are not members of the Cabinet, residents, stakeholders,
members or officers in other parts of the public sector to attend.

CALL-IN
110

218



16.

17.

When a decision is made by the Executive Leader, Cabinet, an individual
Cabinet Member or a committee of the Cabinet or a key decision is made by
an officer with delegated authority from the Cabinet or under joint
arrangements, the decision shall be published, made available at the Council’s
main offices and sent to Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Panels within
three working days of being made. The notice of decisions will bear the date
on which it is published and will specify that the decision will come into force
and be implemented on the expiry of five working days after publication,
unless called in by a relevant Panel as shown in Appendix B.

CALL-IN AND URGENCY

The call-in procedure set out above shall not apply where the decision being
taken by the Executive Leader, the Cabinet, an individual Member of the
Cabinet, a committee of the Cabinet or a key decision by an officer with
delegated authority from the Cabinet or under joint arrangements is urgent. A
decision will be urgent if any delay likely to be caused by the call-in process
would seriously prejudice the Council's or the public's interests. The record of
the decision and the notice by which it is made public shall state whether in
the opinion of the decision-making person or body, the decision is an urgent
one and therefore not subject to call-in. The Chairman of the relevant
Overview and Scrutiny Panel or in his/her absence the Chairman of the
Council must agree both that the decision proposed is reasonable in all the
circumstances and to it being treated as a matter of urgency. In the absence
of both the Chairman of the relevant Overview and Scrutiny Panel and the
Chairman of the Council, the Head of Paid Service or his/fher nominee's
consent shall be required. Decisions taken as a matter of urgency must be
reported to the next available meeting of the relevant Overview and Scrutiny
Panel together with the reasons for urgency.

PROCEDURE AT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL MEETINGS

Overview and Scrutiny Panels shall consider the following business:-

(@) minutes of the last meeting;

(b) declarations of interest;

(c) consideration of any matter referred to the Panel for a decision in
relation to call-in of a decision;

(d) responses of the Cabinet and the Council to reports of the Overview and
Scrutiny Panel; and

(e) the business otherwise set out on the agenda for the meeting.

Where an Overview and Scrutiny Panel conducts investigations (e.g., with a
view to policy development), the Panel may also ask people to attend to give
evidence at Panel meetings which are to be conducted in accordance with the
following principles:-

(@) that the investigation will be conducted fairly and all members of the
Panel will be given the opportunity to ask questions of attendees and to
contribute and speak;

(b) that those assisting the Panel by giving evidence shall be treated with
respect and courtesy; and

(c) that the investigation be conducted so as to maximise the efficiency of
the investigation or analysis.

111

219



Following an investigation or review, an Overview and Scrutiny Panel may, if
appropriate, prepare a report for submission to the Cabinet and/or Council as
appropriate and may choose to make its report and findings public.

18. MATTERS WITHIN THE REMIT OF MORE THAN ONE OVERVIEW AND
SCRUTINY PANEL

Where a matter for consideration by an Overview and Scrutiny Panel also falls
within the remit of one or more other Overview and Scrutiny Panels, the
decision as to which Overview and Scrutiny Panel will consider it will be
resolved by the advisory group comprising the Chairmen and Vice-Chairmen
of the Panels in accordance with Article 6.05 of this Constitution.

Appendix A —reporting Overview and Scrutiny recommendations on
proposals

Matters that Council is responsible for:
(/ O&S Panel prepares report on a
matter Council is responsible for

Copy forwarded to Head of Paid Service

v

Executive Leader served with notice that
the matter is to be referred to Council

The Cabinet has one month
to respond to the O&S report
and the Council will not
consider it within this period

\ 4

Council considers the O&S proposals,
along with any response from the Cabinet

112

220



Matters that Cabinet is responsible for:

O&S Panel prepares report on a
matter Cabinet is responsible for

Panel ch lish irectl
_O&Sf co_osesto_pubzep(idlrect v > Report and recommendations published

O&S Panel agrees final report Report not agreed by Panel
* * ﬂ&s Panel must give written notice that they
Single report to Cabinet produced Majority and minority reports produced ‘ require the Cabinet to consider the report and

recommendations and respond indicating what
action (if any) they propose to take

> Report(s) produced <

—l
If Cabinet are due to consider If Cabinet are not due to consider h 4
the matter within 2 months the matter within 2 months
¢ ¢ Cabinet consider report and recommendations
Report(s) scheduled for Cabinet meeting Report(s) scheduled for next available
when matter is due to be considered Cabinet meeting v
Not considered by Cabinet Not considered by Cabinet Cabinet must publish response within two
Item submitted | within 2 months Item submitted | within 2 months months of receiving written notice
T\
\ 4
- Head of Paid Service calls Council
- meeting to consider the report
\ 4
Cabinet considers \ _ Council considers the report and makes
report * a a recommendation to the Cabinet

* The Overview and Scrutiny Panel Chairman or his/her representative shall have a right to attend and address the Cabinet meeting on the report or
recommendations of the Panel and shall be entitled to speak for up to five minutes.

Following consideration by Cabinet, the relevant Executive Councillor will provide a written response to each of the Overview and Scrutiny Panel's
recommendations, including reasons where recommendations are not accepted.

113

221



Appendix B — pre-decision scrutiny and Call-In processes

Call-in: The Head of Paid Service shall call
in a decision for scrutiny by a Panel if so
requested by any three Members of a
relevant Panel and shall then notify the
decision-taker of the call-in. A Member of
a relevant Panel who has a qualifying

Scrutiny of item
Pre-Decision

v

O&S Panel considers report, makes
comments and/or recommendations

v

Panel comments and recommendations
on item are submitted to decision
making persons or bodies

\{\

The Panel’s views are taken into
consideration in making the decision

A\ 4

Decision published
(within 3 working days)

* The Call-in period and process also

pecuniary
decision under the Code of Conduct for

requesting that the decision be called in.

interest in a

be prohibited from

Call-in period *
(5 working days of publishing decision)

Called in

Not called in

v

O&S Panel meeting called by Head of
Paid Service within 10 working days

No meeting
takes place

Meeting held

A 4

Executive Councillor and Senior Officer

Panel considers matter with the relevant

who are required to attend the meeting**

Panel does not refer matter on

Panel refers back to

Panel refers matter to Council

Cabinet

A 4

applies to decisions made by the Executive
Leader, the Cabinet, an individual member
of the Cabinet or a committee of the
Cabinet or to key decisions made by an
officer with delegated authority from the
Cabinet or under joint arrangements.
References to Cabinet below can be
replaced with reference to these other

decision making persons or bodies.

** Unless otherwise directed by
the Chairman of the relevant

—»

Decision confirmed

No meeting

Referred to Council for meeting
within 10 working days***

takes place
A -

A 4

Referred to Cabinet, with the nature of the

concerns set out in writing. Cabinet meeting

to be held within 10 working days.

Meeting
Held

| Council refers

Council does not object

Cabinet reconsider matter and make final
decision, either amending it or not

back to Cabinet

114

222

Panel (or in his/her absence by the
Vice-Chairman)

*** The Council has no
locus to make decisions
in  respect of an
executive decision
unless it is contrary to
the policy framework
or contrary to or not
wholly consistent with
the budget. Unless that
is the case, any decision
to which it objects will
be referred back to the
decision-making person
or body.



Code of Financial Management

1.

1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

1.4

1.5.

1.6.

Financial responsibilities

General

Before any proposal that affects the Council’s financial position is made the
body or person(s) responsible for making that decision, or for making a
recommendation to that body or person(s), shall consider a written report,
approved by the officer accountable for the appropriate budget, detailing the
financial implications.

The Council

Will:

e determine the Council's Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS),
approve the annual budget and set the level of the council tax.

e approve the Council’s treasury management strategy (TMS) and
prudential indicators.

e approve changes to this code.

The Corporate Governance Panel

Will:

e ensure that the financial management of the Council is adequate and
effective.

e ensure that the Council has a sound system of internal control including
arrangements for the management of risk.

e consider the Council’s code of corporate governance and approve the
annual statement.

e approve the internal audit charter and the annual internal audit plan and
comment on the external audit plan.

e approve the Council’'s Annual Financial Report (AFR), which includes the
statutory accounts.

e consider reports from the external auditor.

e recommend changes to this code to the Council.

The Cabinet:

Will propose to the Council:

e the MTFS.

e the annual budget and council tax level.

e acombined annual report including the TMS, treasury management
policy, and the prudential, treasury management and commercial
investment strategy indicators.

e after considering the views of the appropriate Overview and Scrutiny
panel and representatives of the business community, set financial
priorities, allocate and re-allocate resources in accordance with the limits
in this code, monitor and review financial performance.

e approve the risk management strategy.

Overview and Scrutiny Panels
Will contribute to the development of, and review the effectiveness of, the
Council's MTES, treasury management and annual budget.

Cabinet and Committees (and sub-committees)

Will ensure that all decisions within their remit are made within the relevant
budgets and are consistent with achieving the Council’s corporate plan and
adopted policies. If they wish to make proposals that will require additional

115
223



1.7

1.8

1.9.

1.10.

1.11.

1.12.

1.13.

1.14.

1.15.

resources, these will need to be subject to officers, the Cabinet or the Council
making these available through the normal process.

Budget Managers and Executive Councillors

Will own and manage the budgets within their responsibility. Specifically, they
will effectively plan and control financial activity to ensure efficient and
effective use of resources. Budget managers should ensure that the full
financial implications of all decisions are properly assessed and highlighted to
decision makers.

Will take lead responsibility for planning the budgetary cycle, including
monitoring and forecasting of revenue activity so far as it is related to those
budgets.

Members and Employees

Will contribute to the general stewardship, integrity and confidence in the
Council's financial affairs and comply with this code and any systems,
procedures, or policies relating to the financial management of the Council.

Specifically, they shall bring to the attention of the Responsible Financial
Officer (RFO) any act or omission that is contrary to the provisions of this code
or the maintenance of high standards of financial probity, and provide
information or explanation on matters within their responsibility to him/her, the
Monitoring Officer (MO), Internal Audit Service or the Council’s external
auditors.

Any member or employee who is involved in a transaction with the Council, or
who has an interest in a transaction between a third party and the Council,
shall declare the nature and amount to the MO before any decision on the
matter is made by the Council. The MO will advise the member or employee of
any actions they should or must take.

For the purpose of this section an interest also includes any interest of a
member of your family or a close associate or acquaintance. This shall be
interpreted as anyone whom a reasonable member of the public might think
you would be prepared to favour or disadvantage.

The Monitoring Officer (MO) or, in their absence, the Deputy Monitoring
Officer (DMO).

Will report to the Council on any proposal, decision or omission that in their
view is likely to result in a contravention of the law or any code of practice
enacted under it, fails to comply with a legal duty, represents
maladministration or is unjust, in accordance with section 5 of the Local
Government and Housing Act 1989.

For these purposes he/she shall have full and unrestricted access to all
Council assets, systems, documents, information, employees and Members.

The Responsible Financial Officer (RFO) or, in their absence, the Deputy
Responsible Financial Officer (DRFO).

Will be responsible for the proper administration of the Council's financial
affairs, prescribe appropriate financial systems, protocols, procedures and
policies, maintain an internal audit service and report to the Council in the
event of a decision or action leading to unlawful expenditure, a loss or
deficiency or an unlawful accounting entry (in accordance with section 151 of
the Local Government Act 1972, section 114 of the Local Government Act
1988 and the Accounts and Audit Regulations).

116
224



1.16.

1.17.

1.18.

1.19.

Will be responsible for ensuring the final accounts are completed and
published by the statutory dates and reporting the details of any material
amendments specified by the external auditor to the Corporate Governance
Panel.

For these purposes they shall have full and unrestricted access to all Council
assets, systems, documents, information, employees and Members.

The DRFO officer will be responsible for detailed and operational aspects of
the administration of the Council’s financial affairs on behalf of the RFO,
approving new financial systems and undertaking such duties as are set out in
this code.

Budget Managers (Team Managers, Heads of Service, Corporate
Directors and Managing Director)

The Council’s management structure is based on Team Managers, Heads of
Service, Corporate Directors and the Managing Director taking responsibility
for a service and its related budget. For the purpose of this Code they are
referred to as budget managers. Whilst they retain ultimate responsibility they
will often delegate appropriate tasks to their members of staff.

The budget manager responsible for a budget:

e will be responsible for proper financial and resource management and the
prevention of fraud and corruption within the services and functions under
their control and will be responsible for informing the Internal Audit & Risk
Manager of all suspected or notified cases of fraud, corruption or
impropriety.

o will be responsible for preparing and submitting the capital project
appraisal form to the Finance Governance Board (FGB) for approval.

e will be responsible for developing and submitting a detailed business case
to the FGB if required (following approval of the capital project appraisal
form).

e may incur financial commitments and liabilities in accordance with this
Code, the Council's scheme of delegation and resources allocated in their
budgets. In particular they may make purchases of goods and services,
subject to the requirements of the code of procurement, and employ staff,
in accordance with HR policies and any CMT requirements.

o will need approval from their Head of Service in consultation with
Corporate Director for appointments for vacant posts at Grade D and
below.

o will need approval from CMT for the appointment to vacant posts of
Grades E and above.

o will be responsible for regular and effective monitoring and forecasting of
the financial position relating to their services.

¢ will, in accordance with the risk management strategy determine the
inherent risks within their services, to the achievement of the Council’s
priorities and establish, maintain and document adequate systems of risk
management and internal control, in consultation with the Internal Audit
service, and ensure that relevant employees or Members are familiar with
such systems.

o will be responsible for providing in a timely manner, the information
necessary to ensure that the final accounts can be completed by the
statutory deadlines.

117
225



1.20.

1.21.

will be responsible for improving the value for money and efficiency of
their services and in discussion with their accountant, ensuring that any
budget adjustments are included in the following years budget process.
will be responsible for identifying opportunities and then bidding for grants
or contributions from other bodies to support the achievement of the
Council objectives through their services.

annually review their services to identify any aspects that are not currently
charged for, but could be and the appropriateness of the current charges.
annually review their fees and charges in consultation with the Executive
Councillors, with any changes being included in and approved with the
annual budget. Changes within the financial year will be subject to
consultation with the Executive Councillors and approved by the RFO. In
doing so, they:

. shall ensure that relevant legislation that specifies the charges to
be made or constrains them in any way is complied with.

. shall, after having regard to the charges of any alternative service
providers with whom the Council is competing, seek to maximise
income, net of applicable costs, unless it will have a clearly
detrimental impact on the achievement of the Council objectives.

. may introduce differential pricing to particular client groups where
these are expected to stimulate demand and generate additional
net income which would otherwise not be obtained.

. may set prices lower than could be reasonably achieved if this is
demonstrably the most cost effective way of achieving Council
objectives and the necessary funding is available. Use of this
option requires approval of Cabinet.

. may set fees and charges that allow an element of discretion if it
can be demonstrated that this will lead to an overall benefit to the
Council. It is important that any use of discretion is recorded so
that it can be clearly shown that decisions have been made fairly
and consistently.

. shall keep appropriate records to demonstrate that the required
actions have been undertaken and how the decisions were
reached.

will be accountable for the delivery of services, projects, contracts within
the budgets set by the Council.

will be accountable for financial performance and ensuring, wherever
possible, appropriate comparisons are made against service standards or
other organisational comparators.

Internal Audit

Will be responsible for providing an independent and objective opinion on
internal control, risk management and governance systems. It will act in
accordance with the internal audit charter and undertake reviews that focus on
areas of greatest risk to the Council’s control environment as contained within
a programme agreed annually by the Corporate Governance Panel after
consultation with the RFO and budget managers.

For these purposes internal audit shall have free, full and unrestricted access
to services and functions and all Council assets, systems, documents,
information, employees and Members. All employees are required to assist
internal audit to carry out its role.

Financial and service planning

118
226



2.2.

2.3.

2.4,

2.5.

3.1.

3.2.

3.3.

3.4.

3.5.

In the Summer - Overall review

The Cabinet shall review the financial performance of the Council in the
previous year, compared with the annual budget, on the basis of the
provisional outturn report prepared by the DRFO in conjunction with budget
managers.

In the Autumn — Preparation of the draft budget and MTFS

The RFO in conjunction with budget managers will review and prepare the
draft annual budget and the MTFS for review by Cabinet after consultation
with the relevant Overview and Scrutiny panel.

In the Winter - Annual budget, MTFS and service plans

The Cabinet shall, after consultation with the relevant Overview and Scrutiny
Panel, recommend to the Council an annual budget for the next financial year
and a MTFS for the succeeding four years, incorporating both capital and
revenue expenditure, which is consistent with corporate and service
strategies. Following approval of the annual budget each budget manager
shall update their service plan(s) to reflect the approved budget and how the
resources allocated will be used to meet service objectives in the forthcoming
year.

In the Spring — Annual Financial Report (AFR)

The DRFO in conjunction with the budget managers will prepare the AFR.
The AFR includes the statutory annual accounts which subject to external
audit will be approved by both the RFO and Corporate Governance Panel.

Controlling financial plans

Financial Monitoring

Budget managers will be responsible for regular and effective monitoring and
forecasting of the financial position relating to their services. Where it is
identified that there will be a significant overspend or underspend, this will be
promptly reported to the RFO by the budget manager. If it is considered
necessary by the RFO in delivering projects or programmes, the same
discipline will apply.

On a monthly basis the financial and overall performance of the Council will be
reviewed by the budget managers and the relevant Executive Councillors.
This will include trend and forecast data and, where available comparative
data.

The CMT will review, on a monthly basis, the Financial Performance
Monitoring Suite (FPMS). The FPMS will be reported to Cabinet on a quarterly
basis. The FPMS will be prepared by the DRFO, in consultation with each
Head of Service and budget manager to include comparisons with other
service providers and local trend data.

Commitments to Expenditure in Future Years
No new commitment to expenditure beyond the current budget year may be
made unless it:

e is consistent with the achievement of the Council’s objectives and other
relevant strategies, and
e is compatible with the Council's MTFS.

Grants, Cost Sharing and S106/CIL agreements
Where a budget manager proposes to take advantage of:
119

227



3.6.

3.7.

3.8.

3.9.

3.10.

3.11.

e receipts of grants, contributions and other forms of external funding, or
e enter cost sharing arrangements,

with other organisations, and where such arrangements will deliver additional
or improved services, consistent with their service plan without creating any
current or future commitment to net expenditure they may do so subject to:

e the relevant Head of Service being satisfied that the project funding meets
with corporate objectives and that the resource required to produce the
bidding documents is reasonable.

e the funds being dependent upon a particular project or service being
provided but, in the case of S106/CIL agreements, the location or some
other aspect is at the Council’s discretion.

e informing the DRFO of the details.

e consulting the relevant Executive Councillor(s) if the proposal exceeds
£30,000 revenue or £50,000 capital in any one year with any capital
having been previously agreed by the FGB or any discretionary element
of a S106/CIL agreement.

A budget manager may utilise sums of money received under S106/CIL, or
equivalent agreements where there is no discretion. The DRFO should be
informed of the details including:

e A copy of all information that supports the grants received (grant letter etc)
so a decision can be made in respect of the correct accounting treatment.

¢ Documentation confirming how they plan to meet any grant conditions,
including suitable monitoring and reporting arrangements.

Approvals for additional spending with a net impact

The Managing Director, or in their absence, the RFO, may incur expenditure
for the immediate alleviation of hardship or suffering in the case of peacetime
emergency in the district. Any exercise of this power must be reported to the
Cabinet (under £500,000) or the Council (over £500,000) at the first
opportunity.

The Managing Director, or in their absence, the RFO, may incur expenditure
of up to £500,000 for any purpose which is urgent and demonstrably in the
Council’s best interests to do so following consultation with the Executive
Leader or Deputy Executive Leader. Any exercise of this power must be
reported to the Cabinet at the first opportunity.

Approvals for additional spending with compensating savings
Proposals that require initial funding but will then result in net surpluses or
savings that are at least sufficient to produce a break-even position will be
supported in principle if they are:

e consistent with increasing the achievement of the Council’s objectives and
compatible with relevant strategies.

e achievable within the Council’s MTFS.

e supported by a robust business case which includes a risk assessment.

e supported by the CMT.

The RFO may approve such a scheme following consultation with the relevant
Executive Councillor for the service and the Executive Councillor for
Resources. The relevant budget(s) and MTFS will be appropriately adjusted.

120
228



3.12.

3.13.

3.14.

3.15.

3.16.

3.17.

Budget Virements

The process of moving budget resources between different areas within the
budget year is called a virement. The virement of resources within, or
between, any of the types of budgets is supported in principle when it will
make it more likely that the Council will achieve its service objectives and
targets or enhance value for money.

These limitations are:

e The salary budgets (pay, national insurance and pension) represent the
Councils approved establishment list. As such the salary budgets cannot
be vired to other areas of the budget. A positive salary budget variance
may be used to cover the additional temporary staffing costs incurred due
to vacant posts.

o The corporate finance budgets are those budgets that are necessary to
the operation of the Council and have limited controllability. Such budgets
included with this area are; minimum revenue provision, interest, pension
liability and levies. Changes to the corporate budget can only be made by
the RFO following consultation with the Head of Paid Service.

¢ Not from capital to revenue.

A budget manager may approve a budget virement within and between the
budgets they are responsible for providing it is:

e Consistent with increasing, or at least maintaining the achievement of
service objectives and compatible with the Council's financial and other
relevant strategies.

¢ Only a movement of establishment posts to another service as part of a
service restructure.

¢ Notified to the DRFO.

e Each virement is over £5,000.

e  Within the following limits if between service budgets:

o Revenue to revenue £75k
o Revenue to capital £75k
o Capital to capital £75k

The CMT may, subject to the same criteria, except for the enhanced limits
shown below, approve budget virements between any budgets:

o Revenue to revenue £250k
o Revenue to capital £250k
o Capital to capital £250k

Cabinet may approve budget virements of up to:

o Revenue to revenue £500k
o Revenue to capital £500k
o Capital to capital £500k

In all cases, any previous transfers in the same financial year relating to those
budgets shall be aggregated for determining whether the limit has been
exceeded. Providing there is no increase in the “budget requirement”, Cabinet
can approve the application of reserves to meet additional expenditure in line
with the reserves strategy.

121
229



3.18.

3.19.

3.20.

3.21.

4.1.

4.2.

4.3.

4.4.

4.5.

4.6.

4.7.

In all other cases the approval of the Council will be required.

Price Base Changes
Inflation will be included, if necessary during the budget process as directed
by the RFO.

Capital Programme
The FGB will review and recommend to CMT those schemes that should be
included in the capital programme, the MTFS and be approved by Cabinet.

FGB may recommend changes to existing schemes or the introduction of new
schemes during the financial year based on the performance of, or delays
incurred within the delivery of the approved capital programme plan. Changes
to the schemes in the MTFS will be approved by Cabinet.

Cash and credit management

Banking

The RFO is responsible for all Council banking arrangements and shall
maintain an account(s) with an appropriate bank(s) as defined in the TMS. All
transactions involving income or expenditure shall be dealt with through the
Council's bank account(s).

Income

All employees receiving money (including cash, cheques, credit card
payments etc.) must comply with the relevant procedures issued by the RFO
to ensure that the sums are properly recorded, receipted and banked.

No cash payment in excess of £1,000 will be accepted.

The Head of Customer Services will manage the Council Tax and Non-
Domestic Rating collection service on behalf of the Council; including the
billing and debt recovery procedures.

The DRFO shall manage a sundry debt collection service on behalf of the
Council and all sums due must be registered by raising an invoice on the
Council's financial management system.

All budget managers are required to ensure that:

¢ Invoices and invoice adjustments are raised promptly.

e Invoice queries are answered promptly.

e The Sundry debt team are informed of any information that may affect the
recovery of any invoiced sums.

e All debts are collected in a timely fashion.

e They periodically consider, in liaison with the Sundry debt team, whether
there would be a more effective or efficient way of collecting sums due
(e.g. cash in advance).

Treasury Management

All treasury management activities will be undertaken in accordance with the
Council’'s annual TMS, which includes the policies, objectives, risk
management approach, and the prudential, treasury management and
commercial investment strategy indicators. The strategy will comply with the
Code of Practice for Treasury Management and the Prudential Code for
Capital Finance, both published by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance

122
230



4.8.

4.9.

4.10.

4.11.

4.12.

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

5.4.

and Accountancy (CIPFA), and reflect any published Government advice. The
execution and administration of treasury management is delegated to the
DRFO.

The Council shall have overall responsibility for treasury management and will
formally approve the annual TMS and receive an annual and mid-year report
on treasury management activities.

The Cabinet will be responsible for the implementation and regular monitoring
of treasury management activity. The Treasury & Capital Management Group
will include:

e the Executive and Deputy Leaders and the Executive Councillor
responsible for resources. Other members can be co-opted onto the
group at the discretion of the Executive Leader.

¢ the RFO and the DRFO, and as and when necessary the Managing
Director and/or Corporate Director (Services). Other officers can be co-
opted onto the group at the discretion of the Managing Director or the
RFO.

The Overview and Scrutiny (Financial and Performance) Panel will be
responsible for the scrutiny of treasury management.

Payments

All payments made by the Council must be made either:

e through the Council's purchase ledger system, with payments being made
direct to the supplier's bank account wherever this is practicable.

e by procurement card.

e by direct debits or standing orders (after agreement from the DRFO).

o by some other system specifically approved by the DRFO.

In each case complying fully with the relevant procedures for that system (e.g.
appropriate authorisation), particularly the requirement to obtain official VAT
receipts, as determined by the DRFO. Advice can be sought from the DRFO.

Accounting requirements

Best Practice

The Council will follow the best practice guidance contained in the Accounting
Code of Practice and other relevant publications produced by CIPFA in the
preparation and maintenance of its accounts.

Records

Each budget manager is responsible for maintaining records of their financial
transactions and commitments, that they are in the appropriate financial period
and with the appropriate account codes. Each budget manager is responsible
for ensuring that the financial management system is used only by authorised
individuals and for proper council purposes.

Retention of Documents
Documents required for the verification of accounts, including invoices, will be
retained for six years plus current year.

Contingent Assets and Liabilities
Any officer who is aware of a material and outstanding contingent asset or
liability shall notify the DRFO, who shall include details in the Council's

123
231



5.5.

5.6.

5.7.

5.8.

5.9.

5.10.

5.11.

5.12.

5.13.

5.14.

accounts or in a Letter of Representation to be presented to the Council's
external auditors in respect of those accounts.

Stock

The DRFO shall determine, after consultation with the relevant budget
manager, when stock accounts shall be maintained. This will normally be
where the value of the items are significant or the items are considered to be
vulnerable to loss or theft.

In such cases the relevant budget manager shall ensure that a certified stock-
take is carried out at the end of March each year, and that records of receipt
and issue of all stock are maintained throughout the year in a manner agreed
with the DRFO.

Insurance

The Internal Audit Manager shall obtain insurance to protect the Council or
minimise its potential losses from risks including those to employees, property,
equipment and cash. Any decision not to insure significant risks must be
based on a detailed risk assessment and reported to the Executive Councillor
for resources.

Write-off of Irrecoverable Debts

The Head of Service where the debt originated or the DRFO is authorised to
write-off debt with an individual value up to £5,000. Greater than £5,000
requires consultation with the Executive Councillor for Resources.
Appropriate steps must be taken to ensure that the debt is irrecoverable or
cannot be recovered without incurring disproportionate costs.

Accounts Closure, Accounting Accruals and Estimates
The AFR will be produced in line with both statutory regulations and relevant
Codes of Practice.

The DRFO will ensure that there is appropriate liaison with service teams prior
to closure, including the hosting of relevant training and the issue of closure
guidance and timetables. The accruals de-minimis limits will be adhered to by
all services, and where estimated accruals are to be issued they are to be
supported by accurate calculation. Other accounting estimates will be
calculated by finance staff in line with professional advice.

Provisions, either for bad debts or other purposes will be calculated in line with
the guidelines approved by the DRFO. Earmarked reserves will be operated in
line with the reserves strategy.

Assets

An asset is an item of land, building, road or other infrastructure, vehicle or
plant, equipment, furniture and fittings or information and communications
technology (hardware and software) with a life exceeding one year.

The acquisition and disposal of assets will be completed in accordance with
the Disposal and acquisition policy.

The financial thresholds for both disposals and acquisitions are as follows:

e Managing Director (as Head of Paid Service) & Head of Resources (as
RFO), following consultation with Executive Councillor for Resources £0 -
£500,000

124
232



5.15.

5.16.

5.17.

5.18.

5.19.

5.20.

5.21.

e Treasury and Capital Management Group £500,000 to £2,000,000
e Cabinet £2,000,000 +

Each budget manager is responsible for ensuring that the assets relating to
their services are properly safeguarded, managed and maintained, and used
only to achieve the Council’s objectives. This will include establishing and
maintaining appropriate security, control systems and records. They will need
to consult relevant officers in relation to specialist items and, where vehicles
are concerned, the officer holding the Council’s operating certificate who has
specific statutory responsibilities.

Heads of Service must keep up to date records so a physical verification of all
capital assets, and their condition, is possible.

Once the asset is disposed of, the relevant budget manager will inform the
DRFO within 10 working days of the disposal of any asset included in the
asset register.

Capital Expenditure

The purchase or improvement of any asset will normally be treated as capital
expenditure. However, expenditure of less than £10,000 will not normally be
treated as capital expenditure unless the DRFO considers it is in the Council’s
interests to do so.

Leases
Finance and operating leases are to be used only if they are in the Council's
financial interest and with the prior formal approval of the DRFO.

Valuations

In order to comply with accounting requirements assets will need to be
revalued at regular intervals. A three year “phased” revaluation programme
will be followed, other than for:

e those assets that are categorised as “investment” properties (e.g.
industrial units), which must be revalued every year, or

e where, following significant capital investment or disinvestment in an asset
within an asset group, whereby the whole asset group will be revalued.

All capital asset revaluations for the AFR will be obtained by the DRFO.

125
233






CODE OF PROCUREMENT

1. INTRODUCTION

11

1.2

1.3

14

15

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

The Code of Procurement defines the regulatory and legal framework for
procurement. It has been adopted in accordance with the requirements of
Section 135 (2) of the Local Government Act 1972.

Throughout the Code, reference to Manager shall mean Managing Director,
Corporate Director, Head of Service or Budget Manager as appropriate. A
Manager shall be responsible for procuring all goods and services that require
the quotation or tender procedures as set out in this Code to be followed.

No Manager shall procure any goods or services valued at £5,000 or more
unless they have attended training provided by the Procurement Manager and
consider themselves to have such detailed knowledge and understanding of
this Code and how it shall be applied in respect of the total value of the
procurement being considered.

This Code applies to the procurement, commissioning, hire, rental or lease of -

land and buildings, roads or other infrastructure;

vehicles or plant;

equipment, furniture and fittings;

construction and engineering works;

information and communication technology - hardware and software;
goods, materials and services;

repairs and maintenance;

® & & & & o oo o

consultants, agents and professional services.

This Code does not apply to purchases made from internal management units.

The Code applies also to the sale of assets and goods by the Council where the
appropriate Manager estimates that the assets, goods or services to be sold
exceed £1,000. Where the value is estimated to be less than £1,000 then the
‘Sale of Equipment’ procedures contained within the Inventory procedures shall
be followed.

The Council includes the Cabinet, Panels, Committees or other body or
person(s) acting in accordance with delegated authority on behalf of the
Council.

All procurements or sales made by or on behalf of the Council shall comply with
this Code, subject to any overriding requirements of the Council’'s Rules of
Procedure and Code of Financial Management and British or European Union
law or regulation.

Throughout the Code, reference to contractor(s) or sub-contractor(s) shall mean
any person, company or supplier who has -

¢ requested to be on an approved or ad-hoc approved list of tenderers;

¢ been approached to provide a quotation or tender;
127

235



1.10

2.1

2.2

¢ provided a quotation or tender; or
¢ been awarded a contract in accordance with the provisions of this Code.

The Monitoring Officer shall annually review all the financial values contained in
the Code to take account of the impact of inflation. The Monitoring Officer shall
inform all Managers of any amendments to the values prior to the 1st April from
which they shall be operative.

REPORTING AND ADVERTISING

Heads of Service shall provide the following information to the Procurement
Manager

¢ No later than the 1 April each year, details of each contract expected to
be advertised in the following year; and an estimate of the total value for
each discrete procurement area where the spend is likely to exceed
£100,000.

¢ new or additional requirements likely to meet or exceed EU thresholds
as they arise.

The Public Procurement Regulations 2015 (Statutory Instrument no. 102 2015)
requires that contracts above EU threshold are advised in the Official Journal of
the European Union and that any contract opportunity above £25,000 is
advertised in the Cabinet Office’s portal “Contracts Finder”. For requirements
estimated as above £5,000 Managers shall advertise in the Contracts Register
where needed to stimulate competition and obtain best value. There is no
requirement to advertise competitions run using frameworks or approved lists.

Threshold

Media Supplies and Works and Light Touch
Services Concessions Regime Services

Official Journal of the
European Union (OJEU)

Contracts Register £5,000 £5,000 £5,000

Contracts Finder £ 25,000 £ 25,000 £25,000

£ 164,176 £ 4,104,394 £597,609

(1 January 2016)

3.

3.1

‘BEST VALUE’ AND SOURCING POLICY
The Council seeks ‘Best Value’ in all procurement activity. ‘Best Value’ being:

The opportunity to obtain leverage (better prices and) for volume.
Regulatory compliance.
¢ Transparent and efficient procurement processes.

128
236




3.2

3.3

(b)
(©)
3.4

¢ Appropriate social, environmental and equality outcomes.
¢ Minimum procurement overhead.

Achieving ‘Best Value’ needs valid competition and valid competition is
dependent on the existence of an ‘open’ market with the selected contractors
having the interest, capability and capacity for the work or business being
offered. Wherever possible a minimum of three competitive tenders or
guotations shall be sought. In selecting contractors to provide a tender or
guotation Managers shall ensure that wherever possible -

¢ the selection process they are using is fair and equitable, and that no
favouritism is shown to any one contractor (e.g. the requirement is not an
extract of a contractor’s product specification).

¢ checks are made to ensure that contractors are interested in this type of
business;

¢ repeat or ‘automatic’ invitations to the ‘same’ contractor or group of
contractors are avoided, particularly where previously invited to bid and
had failed to do so;

¢ ‘new’ contractors are sought and invited to tender or quote;
the geographic area of the search for potential contractors is widened;
and

¢ ‘no-bids’ are checked for the reasons for a contractor’s failure to bid.

Sourcing policy is determined by the needs of ‘Best Value’ and in order of
preference is:

(a) Adopted catalogues or framework contracts. An adopted catalogue
or framework is the preferred contract for the Council’s business within a
defined category (a type or group of goods or service). The Procurement
Manager shall make available adopted catalogues or framework contracts on
the e-marketplace or publish details of the contract or framework in
Procurement Protocols & Guidelines. Managers shall ensure that orders for
such categories are placed through the e-marketplace using appropriate
‘adopted’ catalogue or framework contract. The Procurement Manager shall
keep under review the continued suitability of any such catalogues, contracts or
framework agreements.

Collaborative procurements with other public bodies or authorities.
Council let corporate contracts.

Some categories are managed corporately by specialist areas. The
Procurement Manager shall provide a list of specialist categories and Managers
shall ensure all requirements for such categories are referred to the relevant
specialist.

Market Sounding

3.5

3.6

Market engagement is encouraged to help achieve Best Value though trying to
understanding the market, the suppliers, their business models and their costs

Supplier Meetings/Briefings. To avoid the risk of unfair competitive advantage,
any such meeting should be structured as an open event; all questions and
answers recorded and with a minimum of 2 officers present. If pre-competition
a minimum of 3 suppliers shall be invited and during a competition, all
participating contractors shall be invited.

129
237



4.1

4.2

5.1

5.2

METHODS OF ORDERING
All orders shall be placed through one of the following recognised methods:

An order raised on the e-marketplace.
A procurement card order.

A manual purchase order.

* & o o

A purchase order raised on the financial management system.

Where there is an exception requirement and the relevant Corporate Director or
Head of Service considers that the work is of an emergency nature necessary
to enable the service to continue and none of the ordering methods are suitable,
the relevant Corporate Director or Head of Service shall record the details of the
exceptional requirement and the action taken for future audit.

CONTRACTS REGISTER

In compliance with the Local Government Transparency Code 2013, Managers
shall keep a record using the Contracts Register, for all tenders and quotes
greater than £5,000 (and subsequent contract extensions); of:

¢ the reasons (if appropriate) for not advertising on the Council's ‘Latest
Opportunities’ internet site;
all those contractors that were requested to quote or tender;

¢ the reasons why those particular contractors were selected to quote or
tender;

¢ if applicable, the reasons why less than three contractors were selected to
quote or tender;

¢ if the selected contractor is a Small or Medium Enterprise, voluntary or
third sector organisation or charity;

if the selected contractor is VAT registered,;
contract renewal date (if appropriate);

summary details of a single tender/quote (if appropriate), and

* & o o

file or other reference to the contract and location of the documents and
contract.

Any procurement estimated to exceed £75,000, which is not covered by the
exceptions in paragraph 6 below, must be referred to the Procurement Manager
before the procurement process is commenced. If a Manager does not wish to
accept the Procurement Manager’s advice on any significant aspect the matter
will be determined by the relevant Corporate Director. The discussion will cover:
Scope and objectives of the procurement;

Budget and costing;

Tender methods;

Product and market information;

* & & oo o

Timescales; and

130
238



¢ Deliverables.

5.3  Where there is no adopted contract or framework, Managers shall, wherever
practicable, seek to maximise contract values with other Managers to secure
lower costs. The Council nevertheless wishes to balance the effort of going to
the market with the effort and efficiency of the procurement process. Managers
after determining the proposed contract’s total value shall then follow one of the
procurement procedures detailed below. These procedures shall be used in all
procurements or sales bar those exceptions at paragraph 6.

Estimated
Procedure Total Value of Requirement
Procurement
At least 1 written estimate or offer (e-
(a) Estimate Up to £5,000 marketplace, email, web or paper) shall
be sought and recorded.
Request for At least 3 written estimates or offer (e-
(b) Price £5,000 up to marketplace, email or headed paperwork)
(Informal £25,000 shall be sought.
Quote)
At least 3 formal quotations or offers shall
be invited, unless the Manager has
complied in full with paragraph 6 of this
Reglie(z)?tefor £95 000 to Code. The Manager will consider whether
(© ' the nature of the procurement is such that
(Formal £75,000 L ; .
Quote) a full competitive tendering would be I|k_ely
to be beneficial to the Council by reducing
cost (by more than the cost of tendering)
or risk.
Competitive tenders shall be obtained
£75,000 to EU using one of the tendering options in this
(d) Tender Procurement Code, and a formal written contract
Threshold prepared in accordance with paragraph
13.2.
© EU tender w?egt?old and The appropriat_e EU procurement directive
shall be complied with.
above

54 Total value is the cost of all elements of the procurement (e.g. installation,
testing, training, maintenance, etc). The Manager shall ensure that a
procurement is not split or otherwise disaggregated and may choose to
competitively tender requirements less than £75,000.

5.5 A Manager shall not invite quotations or tenders from any contractor or sub-

contractor who has participated in the preparation of documentation or were
involved in other preparatory work for the contract, unless they have, in writing,
explained to the Monitoring Officer why this does not constitute an unfair
competitive advantage or a conflict of interest and obtained agreement, in

131
239



6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

writing, that the contractor/sub-contractor may compete in the quote/tender
process.

TENDER AND REQUEST FOR QUOTATION PROCEDURES
Exceptions. Nothing in this Code shall require tenders/quotes to be sought: -

(a) for purchases made from a Public Purchasing Body (ESPO, PRO5,
Crown Commercial Service) where:

¢ there is a single supplier 'call-off contract' or catalogue created with fixed
prices, or
¢ the contract is created to our requirements;

(b) for purchases through local authority, government body or agency,
police, health or other similar public authority, where the procurement
rules of that organisation have been approved by the Procurement
Manager and the contract is created in co-operation, agreed joint
requirements or partnership;

(© for purchases made at public auction.
Provided that a compliant procurement process is underway a contract may be

extended to complete procurement and contract negotiations by up to 3 months
subject to agreement of the Procurement Manager.

Single Tenders/Quotes. All single tenders/quotes shall be reported to and
recorded by the Procurement Manager in a register kept for that purpose.

Head of Service Approval. A Head of Service can approve a single
tender/quote:
@) if the Head of Service considers that the work is of an emergency nature

or is necessary to enable the service to continue and is reported to the
next meeting of Cabinet.

(b) for ongoing maintenance of propriety systems provided:

there is evidence that it is a propriety system;
the initial contract award was compliant with this Code;

the renewal is for a period not greater than 4 years (this is the time
interval the EU uses to calculate contract value for ongoing contracts);

¢ the total ongoing value does not exceed the EU threshold.

(c) where a single expression of interest is received for a competition run in
accordance with the quote procedures (paragraphs 5.3 (a) & (b)) provided
that:

¢ a clear description of the requirement has been advertised (paragraph
2.2) for an adequate period;

the sole prospective supplier is kept unaware of their status;
¢ the process for seeking the quote is compliant.

132
240



6.5

and

7.1

(d)

where a new extension is proposed to a contract awarded under quote
procedures (paragraphs 5.3 (a) & (b)) provided:

the value of the proposed and all previous extensions to the contract are
not greater than 10% of the advertised requirement;

the extension does not materially change the nature of the contract;
the initial contract award was compliant with this Code.

the extension is recorded in the Contracts Register.

Monitoring Officer Approval. A Head of Service after consulting the
Monitoring Officer may obtain a single tender or quotation when:

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

(f)

9

Prices are wholly controlled by trade organisations or government order
and no reasonably satisfactory alternative is available.

Work to be executed or goods, services or materials to be supplied
consist of repairs to or the supply of parts of existing proprietary
machinery, equipment, hardware or plant and the repairs or the supply
of parts cannot be carried out practicably by alternative contractors.

Specialist consultants, agents or professional advisers are required

there is no satisfactory alternative; or
evidence indicates that there is likely to be no genuine competition; or

it is in the Council’s best interest to engage a particular consultant, agent
or adviser.

Products are sold at a fixed price, and market conditions make genuine
competition impossible.

The proposed contract shall form part of a serial programme. The contract
terms shall be negotiated with a contractor, using as a basis for
negotiation the rates and prices contained in an initial contract that was
awarded following a competitive tendering process that complied with this
Code. No more than two serial contracts shall be negotiated from an initial
contract.

No satisfactory alternative is available. If the single quote/tender option is
used, the Manager shall:

seek approval of the Monitoring Officer;

retain records that demonstrate that the best price or value for money has
been obtained from the negotiations with the contractor.

With the Monitoring Officer's agreement, considers that it is in the
Council’s best interest in negotiating a further contract for works, supplies
or services of a similar nature with a contractor who is currently
undertaking such work and is reported to the next meeting of cabinet

LIST OF APPROVED TENDERERS

Tenders shall be invited from at least three contractors selected from an
approved list established in accordance with this paragraph of the Code. Vetting
is not normally required as the contractor was vetted to join the list.

133
241



7.2

7.3

7.4

8.1

8.2

9.1

The Council uses 2 types of list of approved contractors:

(a) Third party vetted lists of contractors that are compiled and maintained
by an external organisation. Only external organisations approved by
the Procurement Manager, after consultation with other relevant
Manager(s) shall be adopted. The Procurement Manager shall ensure
that the external organisation and approved list of contractors is detailed
in Procurement Protocols & Guidelines.

(b) Ad-hoc list of approved tenderers. If a Manager believes that the
approved list of tenders does not allow him to obtain sufficient
competition for ‘Best Value’, the Manager shall write to the Procurement
Manager seeking approval to source additional contractors or create an
ad-hoc list of approved tenderers.

Subject to approval as required in paragraph 7.2(b) the Manager shall:
¢ issue a public notice inviting applications for inclusion on a specific

approved list for the supply of goods, services or materials.

¢ vet (as detailed at paragraph 9.1) all contractors replying to the public
notice or who have requested within the previous 12 months to be
considered for work of a similar nature;

only include contractors satisfactorily completing the checks;
tell all potential suppliers how the approved list operates

¢ ensure the ad-hoc list shall only be used for seeking tenders for the
supply of goods, services or materials specifically detailed within the
original public notice;

The Procurement Manager in conjunction with the relevant Managers shall
review the continued suitability of any List of Approved Tenderers periodically
and at least prior to the third anniversary of its initial or further adoption.

FRAMEWORKS

All contractors on the framework (or lot if split into lots) shall be invited to submit
a tender or quotation unless:

¢ the framework explicitly permits direct award;

¢ the proposed award is less than the tender threshold (£75,000); and

¢ the Head of Service can show both objective reasons for the selection of a
supplier and evidence of best value.

No public notice is required and general Terms & Conditions are set in the
original framework contract but additional Terms & Conditions specific to the
requirement may be permitted. Vetting is not normally required as the
contractor was vetted as part of the original framework competition.

COMPETITION

Shortlisting and Restricted Tenders

(a) Restricted (shortlisting) tenders are not permitted for competitions below
the EU threshold.

134
242



9.2

9.3

9.4

(b)

L 2

* & o o

(d)

Where allowed, the Manager shall undertake sufficient vetting to ensure
that all contractors:
comply with minimum standards of Insurance;

have the necessary Health & Safety policy and performance and (where
applicable) membership of the Contractor's Health and Safety Scheme or
equivalent health and safety standard;

are financially viable based on a risk based assessment;
have an appropriate environmental policy;

comply with equalities legislation and policy; and
possess the experience and capacity required.

The Procurement Manager shall provide an appropriate questionnaire for
the purpose of vetting contractors.

Managers wishing to have a Pre-Qualification Questionnaire returned in
electronic format (eg: Excel) must tell bidding suppliers to use the
designated email address “procsupport@huntingdonshire.gov.uk” and
inform the Procurement Manager of the closing date. The Procurement
Manager shall forward the Pre-Qualification Questionnaires to the
Manager after the closing date.

Open Tenders/Quotes

(b)

(a)Provided the Manager complies with paragraph 2.2 and is satisfied
that Expressions of Interest received represent contractors with genuine
interest and capacity, then no further public notice is required.

Otherwise public notice may be given in one or more newspapers and/or
in an appropriate trade journal. The notice shall state the nature and
purpose of the contract, where further information and documentation
can be obtained, and state the closing date for the process.

An Invitation to Tender (ITT) or Request to Quote (RFQ) shall be sent to
all contractors expressing an interest. ITTs and RFQs may include an
appropriate suitability questionnaire. The Procurement Manager shall
provide a suitable questionnaire.

Invitations to Tenders (ITT) and Requests for Quotations (RFQ)

Managers shall ensure that all ITTs and RFQs include;

@)

(b)

approved contract terms in accordance with paragraph 13.2 of this
Code;

a clear statement that explains if the bid is to be evaluated on the basis
of the most economically advantageous tender (best value).

Evaluation Criteria

Except where the Cabinet decides otherwise, all formal quotations or tenders
that are being sought shall:

(@)

be based on a definite written specification, which shall include
consideration (where relevant to the requirement) of:

135
243



9.5

10.
10.1

10.2

11.
111

¢ environmental performance including low energy and water consumption
and the elimination of substances hazardous to health and the
environment.

¢ delivery of social benefit (for services only)

¢ inclusion of Small & Medium sized Enterprises

(b) include award criteria,

(© include specific weightings applied to individual award criteria, and
(d) if appropriate, include a requirement for a performance bond and

liquidated damages

Non-Traditional Procurement

If a Manager believes that by following one of the procurement procedures
detailed in paragraph 9 above that the procurement process will not provide him
with the most appropriate method of delivery, the most competitive prices, allow
for continuous improvements in delivery, or stifle innovation, then they may
suggest alternative procurement strategies.

The Manager shall produce in accordance with guidance issued by the
Procurement Manager and prior to proceeding with the procurement, a written
acquisition strategy that shall be approved by the Monitoring Officer and the
Cabinet.

SUB-CONTRACTS AND NOMINATED SUPPLIERS

Quotations or tenders for sub-contracts to be performed or for goods, services
or materials to be supplied by nominated sub-contractors shall be invited in
accordance with this Code.

The relevant Manager is authorised to nominate to a main contractor a sub-
contractor whose quotation or tender has been obtained in full accordance with
this Code.

RECEIPT AND OPENING OF TENDERS AND QUOTATIONS

Contractors shall be notified that tenders or formal quotations are invited in
accordance with this Code. No tender or formal quotation will be considered
unless -

(a) it has been received via the e-marketplace ‘sealed quote’ facility; or

(b) it is contained in a plain envelope/packet which shall be securely sealed
and shall bear the word “Tender” or “Quotation”, the Unique Reference
Number (URN) from the Contracts Register; and the envelope shall not
bear any distinguishing matter or mark intended to indicate the identity of
the sender. Such envelope shall be addressed

¢ impersonally to the Legal Services Officer if it contains a “Tender”, or

¢ the appropriate Manager if it contains a “Quotation”; or

(c) RFQs (Formal Quotations) may be sent electronically to a specific e-mail
address, which the appropriate Manager shall obtain from the IMD
Service Manager. The IMD Service Manager shall ensure that the e-mail
address is secure.

136
244



11.2

11.3

114

11.5

12.
12.1

12.2

12.3

12.4

All Officers shall comply with the procedure note ‘Procedure for the Receipt of
Tenders and Formal Quotations’ which can be found on the Procurement
internet pages..

All tenders or quotations upon opening shall be recorded in writing on either a
tender or quotation opening record unless the Contracts Register is being
completed contemporaneously. The format of the opening record shall have
been previously agreed with the Monitoring Officer and Legal Services Officer.

Any tenders or quotations received after the specified time may in exceptional
circumstances be accepted by Legal Services Officer, otherwise they shall be
returned promptly to the contractor by the Legal Services Officer or his
nominated officer in respect of tenders, or by the appropriate Manager or his
nominated officer in respect of a formal quotation.

Late tenders shall be rejected once any other tender/quotation has been
opened. The tender or quotation may be opened to ascertain the name of the
contractor but no details of the tender or quotation shall be disclosed.

ACCEPTANCE OF TENDERS AND QUOTATIONS

The appropriate Manager shall evaluate all the tenders or quotations received
in accordance with the award criteria set out in the bid documentation and shall
accept, subject to the provisos set out in this paragraph, the most economically
advantageous tender or quotation, as evaluated against the award criteria.

Tenders or quotations exceeding the approved estimate may only be accepted
once approval to further expenditure is obtained.

If the most economically advantageous quotation exceeds £75,000 but -

¢ is within 15% of the original estimate and budget, the appropriate Head of
Service may accept the quotation without seeking further competition; or

¢ is in excess of 15% of the original estimate then the Head of Service shall
consult the Procurement Manager and obtain the approval of the
Monitoring Officer that the quotation can be accepted otherwise a
competitive tender exercise in accordance with paragraph 9.1 above shall
be carried out.

A tender or quotation shall not be accepted -

(a) where payment is to be made by the Council and it is not the most
economically advantageous tender or quotation in accordance with the award
criteria set out in the tender or quotation documentation; or

(b) if payment is to be received by the Council and the tender or
guotation is not the highest price or value;

(©) unless —

¢ the Cabinet have considered a written report from the appropriate Head of
Service/Service Manager, or

¢ in cases of urgency, the Monitoring Officer has consulted and obtained
the approval of the relevant executive councillor. Tenders or quotations
accepted in this way shall be reported by the appropriate Manager to the
next meeting of the Cabinet.
137

245



13.
13.1

12.6
@)

(b)

(€)

(d)

(€)

Arithmetical Errors and Post-Tender Negotiations

Contractors can alter their tenders or quotations after the date specified
for their receipt but before the acceptance of the tender or quotation,
where examination of the tender or quotation documents reveals
arithmetical errors or discrepancies which affect the tender or quotation
figure. The contractor shall be given details of all such errors or
discrepancies and afforded an opportunity of confirming, amending or
withdrawing his offer.

Post-tender negotiations shall not be used to degrade the original
specification unless:

the capital or revenue budget is exceeded; or
other special circumstances exist;

in which case the Monitoring Officer and Procurement Manager shall
decide which of those contractors who originally submitted a tender or
guotation shall be given the opportunity to submit a further bid based
upon a degraded specification. This decision shall be recorded in writing.

In evaluating tenders, the appropriate Manager may invite one or more
contractors who have submitted a tender to submit a revised offer
following post-tender negotiations.

All post-tender negotiations shall:

only be undertaken where permitted by law and where the appropriate
Manager and Monitoring Officer and Legal Services Officer consider
additional financial or other benefits may be obtained which over the
period of the contract shall exceed the cost of the post-tender negotiation
process;

be conducted by a team of officers approved in writing by the Monitoring
Officer and Legal Services Officer;

be conducted in accordance with guidance issued by the Legal Services
Officer; and

not disclose commercially sensitive information supplied by other bidders
for the contract.

The appropriate Manager shall ensure that all post-tender negotiation
meetings are properly minuted with all savings and benefits offered clearly
costed. Following negotiations but before the letting of the contract,
amendments to the original tender submitted shall be put in writing by the
contractor(s) and shall be signed by him.

TERMS OF BUSINESS AND THE FORM OF CONTRACTS

All orders placed by the Council shall be on the Council’s Terms and Conditions
(T&Cs). Managers shall not use Contractor's documentation to order,
acknowledge, instruct to proceed or make any other commitment where the
documentation makes any reference to the Contractor's T&Cs. Where a
contractor formally insists on trading on T&Cs other than the Council’s T&Cs,
the Procurement Manager shall be informed, except for -

138
246



13.2

13.3

13.4

13.5

13.6

14.
14.1

¢ Any contract where the estimated total value is likely to exceed £75,000,
where paragraph 13.2 shall apply.

¢ Any framework or contract formally adopted by the Council.

¢ Purchasing Agency (e.g. ESPO, Crown Commercial Service) arranged
contracts and orders.

¢ Orders of a total value of less than £ 25,000 where the goods or service
are purchased on a ‘retail’ basis on terms available to the general public.

¢ Orders for software where the licence is for ‘standard’ product but not
where customisation, development or on-site service is required for the
‘standard’ product.

Every contract that exceeds £25,000 shall use the Council’s Standard Terms
and Conditions. If the contract value is greater than £75,000; or where
significant risk to performance or delivery is identified; or if a specialist category
(eg: works, IT, professional services, concessions), then the contract shall be in
writing in a form approved by the Legal Services Officer. Managers shall
ensure that advice of the Legal Services Officer is sought at a stage as early as
practicable (normally before the issue of an Invitation to Tender).

In the case of any contract likely to exceed £75,000 for the execution of works
or for the supply of goods, services or materials, the Manager after consulting
with the Procurement Manager and the Monitoring Officer shall consider
whether the Council should require security for its due performance and shall
either certify that no such security is necessary or shall specify in the
specification of tender the nature and amount of the security to be given. In the
latter event, the Council shall require and take a bond or other sufficient security
for the due performance of the contract.

Managers shall produce the final version of all contracts in 2 copies. Where the
total value of a contract exceeds £75,000 both copies shall be presented to the
Head of Resources for signature. Once signed by the contractor, the signed
contract, all original documents, including specifications, drawings, tender
documents and correspondence relating to shall be forwarded by the Legal
Services Officer. Where the total value of the contract is less than £75,000 the
relevant Manager shall make arrangements for the retention of all the original
documentation.

Managers shall maintain a record (in the form detailed in the Procurement
Protocols & Guidance) for their area of each contract or agreement (both written
and verbal agreements).

Managers shall include the specific T&Cs listed in the Procurement Protocols &
Guidance in all contracts. Where a Manager considers a term or condition
inappropriate they shall seek advice of the Legal Services Officer on the
modification or deletion of the term or condition.

LETTERS OF INTENT

Letters of intent provide a contractor with the authority to proceed prior to the
award of a contract. However, letters of intent have two main disadvantages:-

(a) if the contract is not awarded the contractor is entitled to payment
regardless as to whether the work was actually needed,;

(b) the Council’s negotiating position is weakened as the contractor may
believe actual award of contract is a formality and therefore, the

139
247



14.2

15.1

16.
16.1

17.

18.
18.1

18.2

contractor may refuse to accept conditions that are seen as
disadvantageous.

Managers shall ensure that:-

(a) all letters of intent are in a form approved by the Legal Services Officer;
and

(b) all letters of intent are signed by the appropriate Budget Manger with
sufficient authority for either the value of the intended contract or the
estimated value of any ‘extension’ period defined in the letter of intent if
below £75,000, otherwise by the Head of Resources.

POST-COMPETITION DEBRIEFS
For all contracts greater than £25,000, Managers shall maintain records of
selection and evaluation scoring and where requested by participating
suppliers, provide a suitable post-tender debrief in writing. For contracts greater
than £75,000, unsuccessful tenderers shall be advised in writing of the winning
supplier, the value of the contract awarded and the strengths and weaknesses
of their tender and the advice of the Procurement Manager shall be sought on
the format and scope of the debrief.

PUBLISHING CONTRACT AWARDS
Contract Award Notices shall be published within 90 days of contract award in
the appropriate online system:

¢ Contracts Register if greater than £5,000, and.

¢ Contracts Finder if greater than £25,000 (including awards under mini-
competition using a framewaork) or if advertised in Contracts Finder, and

¢ The Official Journal of the European Union if greater than the promulgated
EU threshold.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT — COMMUNITY RIGHT TO CHALLENGE

The Local Government Act permits relevant bodies (charities, community
bodies, town & parish councils and staff) to submit Expressions of Interest to
provide Council services. The Procurement Manager shall maintain and publish
a timetable for the submission of Expressions of Interest. All Expressions of
Interest received from relevant bodies should be forwarded to the Policy,
Performance and Transformation Manager (Scrutiny).

RETENTION OF DOCUMENTS

Managers shall ensure that every contract or quotation is assigned the Unique
Reference Number (URN) from the Contract Register, which is to be used in all
correspondence. Any Division or reference may be included in addition to the
URN shall comprise abbreviation for the Division and year. Formal amendments
to a contract or order should also be given uniqgue numbers showing the order
in which the amendments were made.

Documentation retention periods are dictated by the Statute of Limitations and
(where applicable) EU requirements. The following rules apply:-

(a) retention for 12 years from the date of completion of the contract for
contracts made under deed:;

(b) retention for 6 years from the date of completion of the contract:-

e Contract Documents
140
248



19.

20.
20.1

20.2

e Hire/Rental Agreements
e Successful Tenders
e Summary of Tender Opening
e Disposal Board papers
e All selection and evaluation scoring and reports
e Goods Received Notes
¢ HM Customs and Excise Import documentation
¢ Invitations to Tender/Quotation Requests
e Maintenance/Software licence agreements
e Specifications
e Successful Quotations
e Suppliers' Advice Notes;
(© retention for 3 years after the last entry:-
e Stock and Purchase Record Cards or Registers

(d) retention for 2 years after the financial year to which the document
relates:-

e Unsuccessful Quotations.

e Unsuccessful Tenders.

FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT 2000 (FOIA)

Managers shall ensure that the handling of requests for procurement
information complies with the detailed guidance published as Procurement
Protocols & Procedures and the general FOIA guidance published by the
Council’s Freedom of Information Officer.

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

Where a potential conflict is declared by an officer or otherwise recognised, the
HoS shall ensure the relevant company and businesses areas are identified.
Other business areas are exempt from the procedure.

The following procedure is applied according to value:
(a) Low value (less than £75k)
e HoS shall arrange for specifications/evaluation criteria written by

the affected officer to be independently vetted;

e HoS shall appoint 2 independent officers to evaluations were the
relevant company participates; and

e HoS shall ensure independent vetting of evaluations were the
relevant company becomes the preferred bidder.

(b) High Value (greater than £75k). Where the relevant company bids or is
considered likely to bid the HoS shall ensure participation by the affected
officer is limited to providing specialist advice.

141
249



20.3

21.
21.1

21.2

22.
22.1

22.2

If a conflict of interest becomes apparent once a procurement is underway but
before contract award the HoS shall seek the advice of the Procurement
Manager and Legal Services Officer on how to proceed. If discovered after
contract award, the HoS shall refer the matter to the Monitoring Officer.

CONSULTANTS

It shall be a condition of the engagement of any consultant, agent or
professional adviser who is to be responsible to the Council for the
management or supervision of a contract on its behalf, that in relation to that
contract he shall -

¢ comply with this Code as though he were an employee of the Council;

¢ at any time during the carrying out of the contract produce to the
appropriate Manager, on request, all the records maintained by him in
relation to the contract; and

¢ on completion of the contract transmit all records that he has produced or
received that relate to the contract to the appropriate Manager.

¢ that the terms and conditions of their contract indemnifies the Council
against any costs arising from the consultant being classified an
‘employee’ under Inland Revenue rules.

The Manager responsible for appointing any consultant, agent or professional
adviser under paragraph 21.1 shall provide them with a copy of this Code.

PROCUREMENT TRAINING

The Procurement Manger shall create, maintain and arrange the delivery of
training for Officers undertaking procurement duties.

Managers shall ensure that all Officers routinely undertaking purchasing or

procurement duties where the gross value of the procurement is £5,000 or more
shall have undertaken appropriate training.

142
250



A.

OFFICER EMPLOYMENT PROCEDURE RULES

RECRUITMENT AND APPOINTMENT

1.

Declarations

(@)

(b)

The Council will draw up a statement requiring any candidate for
appointment as an officer to state in writing whether they are the
parent, grandparent, partner, child, step-child, adopted -child,
grandchild, brother, sister, uncle, aunt, nephew or niece of an
existing Councillor or officer of the Council or of the partner of such
person.

No candidates so related to a Councillor or an officer will be
appointed without the authority of the relevant chief officer or an
officer nominated by him/her.

Seeking Support for Appointment

(@)

(b)

(c)

Subject to paragraph (c), the Council will disqualify any applicant
who directly or indirectly seeks the support of any Councillor for
any appointment to the Council. The content of this paragraph will
be included in any recruitment information.

Subject to paragraph (c), no Councillor will seek support for any
person for any appointment with the Council.

Nothing in paragraphs (a) and (b) will preclude a Councillor from
giving a written reference for a candidate for submission with an
application for appointment.

Recruitment of Head of Paid Service and Chief Officers

Where the Council proposes to appoint the Head of Paid Service or a
chief officer and it is not proposed that the appointment be made
exclusively from among their existing officers, the Council will:-

(@)

(b)

(€)

draw up a statement specifying:-
(i)  the duties of the officer concerned; and

(i) any qualifications or qualities to be sought in the person to
be appointed;

make arrangements for the post to be advertised in such a way as
is likely to bring it to the attention of persons who are qualified to
apply for it; and

make arrangements for a copy of the statement mentioned in
paragraph 3 (a) to be sent to any person upon request.

143

251



B.

Appointments
Head of Paid Service

(@) The full Council will approve the appointment of the Head of Paid
Service following the recommendation of such an appointment by
a committee of the Council appointed for that purpose and before
an offer of appointment is made to the selected candidate and any
salary packages that exceed £100,000 are proposed. That
committee must include the relevant Executive Councillor.

Other Chief Officers and Heads of Service

(b) A committee of the Council appointed for that purpose will appoint
chief officers (other than the Head of Paid Service) and heads of
service or their equivalent. That committee must include the
relevant Executive Councillor in relation to the post to be filled and
be politically balanced.

Other Employees

(c) Appointment of employees below heads of service level is the
responsibility of the Head of Paid Service or his/her nominee, and
may not be made by Councillors.

Assistants to Political Groups

(d) In the event of an appointment of an assistant to a political group
such appointment shall be made in accordance with the wishes of
that political group.

Cabinet Notification

(e) An offer of appointment as Head of Paid Service, Chief Officer or
head of service shall not be made by the Council or panel (as
appropriate) until -

() the Council or committee has supplied the Head of Paid
Service with details of the proposed appointment;

(i) the Head of Paid Service has supplied Members of the
Cabinet with details of the proposed appointment and
allowed a period for objection to the offer by the Executive
Leader on behalf of the Cabinet; and

(i)  the Executive Leader has informed the Head of Paid Service
that there is no objection to the offer, such an objection has
not been received within the requisite period or the Council
or panel is satisfied that any objection is not material or well-
founded.

DISCIPLINARY ACTION

1.

Head of Paid Service, Monitoring Officer and Chief Finance Officer

144

252



Disciplinary action in respect of the Head of Paid Service, Monitoring
Officer and Chief Finance Officer may be taken only by the full Council
or a committee of the Council appointed for that purpose in accordance
with the Council's disciplinary policy and procedure and their terms and
conditions of employment. No disciplinary action, other than suspension,
may be taken except after consideration of a recommendation in a report
made by a designated independent panel under the Local Authorities
(Standing  Orders)  (England)(Amendment)  Regulations 2015
(investigation of alleged misconduct).

An officer may be suspended by the Council or committee for the
purpose of investigating alleged misconduct but the suspension must be
on full pay and of no more than two months duration.

Other Chief Officers and Heads of Service

Disciplinary action against other Chief Officers and Heads of Service
(with the exception of those to which paragraph Bl applies) shall be
dealt with under the Council's disciplinary policy and procedures and
their terms and conditions of service. In the case of suspension, such
action may be taken by the Senior Officers Committee.

Other Employees

Disciplinary action in respect of other employees may be taken in
accordance with the Council’s disciplinary procedure and rules adopted
by the Employment Committee but such action may not involve
councillors.

C. DISMISSAL

1.

Head of Paid Service, Monitoring Officer and Chief Finance Officer

The full Council must approve the dismissal of the Head of Paid Service,
Monitoring Officer and Chief Finance Officer following the
recommendation of such a dismissal by the Independent Panel of the
Council appointed for that purpose. The Panel must include at least one
member of the Cabinet.

Other Chief Officers and Heads of Service

A committee of the Council appointed for that purpose may approve the
dismissal of a Chief Officer or Head of Service (not included in section
C1 above) or their equivalent. That committee must include at least one
member of the Cabinet.

Other Employees

The dismissal of other employees below heads of service level is the
responsibility of the Head of Paid Service or his/her nominee, and may
not be made by Councillors.

Cabinet Notification

145

253



F.

A notice of the dismissal of a Chief Officer, Monitoring Officer, S151
Officer or Head of Service shall not be made by the Council or
committee (as appropriate) until —

(i)  the Council or committee has supplied the Head of Paid Service
with details of the proposed dismissal;

(i) the Head of Paid Service has supplied members of the Cabinet
with details of the proposed dismissal and allowed a period for
objection to the dismissal by the Executive Leader on behalf of the
Cabinet; and

(i)  the Executive Leader has informed the Head of Paid Service that
there is no objection to the dismissal, such objection has not been
received within the requisite period or the Council or committee (as
appropriate) is satisfied that any objection is not material or well-
founded.

APPEALS

An appeal by any employee, other than statutory officers, against any
disciplinary action or dismissal by the Council, a Panel or the Head of Paid
Service or his/her nominee may be heard by an Appeals Panel comprising the
Managing Director, the Corporate Director or Head of Service excluding the
Corporate Director or Head of Service in whose Service the employee was
employed at the time of his/her dismissal and a representative of the Staff
Council but not from the Division from which the employee is employed
convened by the Elections and Democratic Services Manager under the
Council’s disciplinary procedure rules.

SUPPLEMENTARY

In the event of the above Rules applying to a case involving an appointment or
dismissal in relation to the Head of Paid Service, the references relating to the
action to be taken in these Rules by the Head of Paid Service shall be
undertaken by the Corporate Director (Services) & Monitoring Officer, paying
regard to the recommendations made by the Independent Panel.

INDEPENDENT PANEL

The Panel as described in the above Rules should be comprised of at least two
independent persons and must include at least one member of the Cabinet. The
Panel membership must be agreed 20 working days prior to a meeting and will
be arranged by the Corporate Director (Services) or in the case if any action
against that officer, by the Deputy Monitoring Officer.

Terms of Reference for the Panel

To investigate proposed disciplinary action against a Chief Officer,
Monitoring Officer or S151 Officer.

1)) To offer advice, views or recommendations to Council on the proposed

course of action, including any proposal for dismissal.

146

254



Part 5

Codes and Protocols

147

255



This page is intentionally left blank

148

256



Selflessness

Honesty and
integrity

Objectivity

Accountability

Openness

Personal
judgement

Respect for
others

Duty to uphold
the law

Stewardship

Leadership

THE NOLAN PRINCIPLES
(Ten Principles of Public Life)

Members should serve only the public interest and
should never improperly confer an advantage or
disadvantage on any person.

Members should not place themselves in situations
where their honesty and integrity may be questioned,
should not behave improperly and should on all
occasions avoid the appearance of such behaviour.

Members should make decisions on merit, including
when making appointments, awarding contracts or
recommending individuals for rewards or benefits.

Members should be accountable to the public for their
actions and the manner in which they carry out their
responsibilities and should co-operate fully and
honestly with any scrutiny appropriate to their
particular office.

Members should be as open as possible about their
actions and those of their authority, and should be
prepared to give reasons for those actions.

Members may take account of the views of others,
including their political groups, but should reach their
own conclusions on the issues before them and act in
accordance with those conclusions.

Members should promote equality by not
discriminating unlawfully against any person and by
treating people with respect, regardless of their race,
age, religion, gender, sexual orientation or disability.
They should respect the impartiality and integrity of
the authority's statutory officers and its other
employees.

Members should uphold the law and, on all
occasions, act in accordance with the trust that the
public is entitled to place in them.

Members should do whatever they are able to do to
ensure that their authorities use their resources
prudently and in accordance with the law.

Members should promote and support these
principles by leadership and by example, and should
act in a way that secures or preserves public
confidence.

149
257



This page is intentionally left blank

150

258



MEMBERS’ CODE OF CONDUCT

INTRODUCTION

Huntingdonshire District Council (the Authority) has adopted this Code of Conduct
pursuant to Section 27 of the Localism Act 2011 to promote and maintain high
standards of behaviour by its members and co-opted members whenever they are
acting in their capacity as a member of the Authority or when they claim to act or give
the impression of acting as a representative of the Authority.

This Code is based on the principles of selflessness, integrity, objectivity,
accountability, openness, honesty and leadership.

1. Application
This Code of Conduct applies to you whenever you are acting, claim to act or
give the impression you are acting in your capacity as a Member of the
Authority, including —
1.1 at formal Meetings of the Authority
1.2 when acting as a representative of the Authority
13 in taking any decision as a Cabinet Member or a Ward Councillor
1.4 in discharging your functions as a Ward Councillor
1.5 when corresponding with the authority other than in a private capacity.

2. Meeting

In this Code “Meeting” means any meeting organised by or on behalf of the
Authority, including —

2.1 any meeting of the Council, or a Committee or Sub-Committee of
Council

2.2 any meeting of the Cabinet and any Committee of the Cabinet
2.3 atany briefing by Officers; and
2.4  at any site visit to do with the business of the Authority.
3. General Conduct
You must —

3.1 provide leadership to the authority and communities within its area, by
personal example

3.2 respect others and not bully or threaten or attempt to bully or threaten
any person

3.3 respect the confidentiality of information which you receive as a Member
by —

151

259



3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.3.1 not disclosing confidential information to third parties unless
required by law to do so or where there is a clear and over-riding
public interest in doing so; and

3.3.2 not obstructing third parties’ legal rights of access to information

not conduct yourself in a manner which is likely to bring the Authority
into disrepute.

use your position as a Member in the public interest and not for personal
advantage.

comply with the Authority’s reasonable rules on the use of public
resources for private and political purposes.

exercise your own independent judgement, taking decisions for good
and substantial reasons by —

3.7.1 attaching appropriate weight to all relevant considerations
including, where appropriate, public opinion and the views of
political groups;

3.7.2 paying due regard to the advice of Officers, and in particular to the
advice of the statutory officers, namely the Head of Paid Service,
the Chief Finance Officer and the Monitoring Officer; and

3.7.3 stating the reasons for your decisions where those reasons are not
otherwise apparent

do nothing that causes the Authority to act unlawfully

to comply with the Council’s codes and protocols.

Registration of Interests

4.1

4.2

Within 28 days of this Code being adopted by the Council, or your
election (if later), you must register with the Monitoring Officer any
interests listed in Appendices A and B.

You must ensure that your register of interests is kept up to date and
notify the Monitoring Officer in writing within 28 days of becoming aware
of any change in respect of any interests listed in Appendices A and B.

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests

5.1

You have a disclosable pecuniary interest if it is of a description
specified in regulations made by the Secretary of State (attached at
Appendix A) and either:

(a) itis an interest of yours, or

(b) itis aninterest of:

0] your spouse or civil partner; or
(i) a person with whom you are living as husband and wife; or

152

260



(i)  a person with whom you are living as if you were civil
partners;

and you are aware that other person has the interest.

5.2 You must -

5.2.1 comply with the statutory and the Authority’s requirements to
disclose and withdraw from patrticipating in respect of any matter
in which you have a disclosable pecuniary interest.

5.2.3 make a verbal declaration of the existence and nature of any
disclosable pecuniary interest at any meeting at which you are
present at which an item of business which affects or relates to
the subject matter of that interest is under consideration, at or
before the consideration of the item of business or as soon as the
interest becomes apparent.

5.2.4 Where you have a disclosable pecuniary interest, whether the
interest is registered or not, you must not (unless you have
obtained a dispensation from the Authority’s Monitoring Officer) —
(i)  participate, or participate further, in any discussion of the

matter at the meeting; or
(i)  remain in the meeting room whilst the matter is being
debated or participate in any vote taken on the matter at
the meeting.
6. Non Statutory Disclosable Interests
6.1 In addition to the requirements of Paragraph 5, if you attend a meeting at
which any item of business is to be considered and you are aware that
you have a “non-statutory disclosable interest in that item, you must
make verbal declaration of the existence and nature of that interest at or
before the consideration of the item of business or as soon as the
interest becomes apparent.
6.2  You have a “non-statutory disclosable interest” in an item of business of

your authority where —

6.2.1 a decision in relation to that business might reasonably be
regarded as affecting the well-being or financial standing of you
or a member of your family or a person with whom you have a
close association to a greater extent than it would affect the
majority of the Council Tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of
the ward or electoral area for which you have been elected or
otherwise of the authority’s administrative area, or

6.2.2 it relates to or is likely to affect any of the interests listed in the
Table in Appendix A to this Code, but in respect of a member of
your family (other than a “relevant person”) or a person with
whom you have a close association; or

6.2.3 it relates to or is likely to affect any of the interests listed in

Appendix B to this Code and that interest is not a disclosable
pecuniary interest.

153
261



7.

Gifts and Hospitality

7.1

7.2

You must, within 28 days of receipt, notify the Monitoring Officer in
writing of any gift, benefit or hospitality with a value in excess of £50
which you have accepted as a Member from any person or body other
than the authority.

The Monitoring Officer will place your notification on a public register of
gifts and hospitality.

154

262



APPENDIX A

DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS

The duties to register, disclose and not to participate in respect of any matter in which a
member has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest are set out in Chapter 7 of the Localism
Act 2011.

Disclosable pecuniary interests are defined in the Relevant Authorities (Disclosable
Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012 as follows —

Interest Prescribed description

Employment,  office, trade, Any employment, office, trade, profession or
profession or vocation vocation carried on for profit or gain.

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial

benefit (other than from the relevant authority)
made or provided within the relevant period in
respect of any expenses incurred by M in carrying
out duties as a member, or towards the election
expenses of M.

This includes any payment or financial benefit
from a trade union within the meaning of the
Trade Union and Labour Relations
(Consolidation) Act 1992).

Contracts Any contract which is made between the relevant
person (or a body in which the relevant person
has a beneficial interest) and the relevant
authority—

(@) under which goods or services are to be
provided or works are to be executed; and

(b) which has not been fully discharged.

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the
area of the relevant authority.

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy
land in the area of the relevant authority for a
month or longer.

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to M’s knowledge)—

() the landlord is the relevant authority; and

(b) the tenant is a body in which the relevant
person has a beneficial interest.

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of a body
where—

155

263



(@) that body (to M’s knowledge) has a place of
business or land in the area of the relevant
authority; and

(b) either—

(i) the total nominal value of the securities
exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the
total issued share capital of that body; or

(i) if the share capital of that body is of more
than one class, the total nominal value of
the shares of any one class in which the
relevant person has a beneficial interest
exceeds one hundredth of the total
issued share capital of that class.

For this purpose —
“the Act” means the Localism Act 2011;
“body in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest” means a firm in
which the relevant person is a partner or a body corporate of which the relevant
person is a director, or in the securities of which the relevant person has a
beneficial interest;

“director” includes a member of the committee of management of an industrial
and provident society;

“land” excludes an easement, servitude, interest or right in or over land which
does not carry with it a right for the relevant person (alone or jointly with
another) to occupy the land or to receive income;

“M” means a member of a relevant authority;

“member” includes a co-opted member;

“relevant authority” means the authority of which M is a member;

“‘relevant period” means the period of 12 months ending with the day on which
M gives a natification for the purposes of section 30(1) or 31(7), as the case

may be, of the Act;

‘relevant person” means M or any other person referred to in section 30(3)(b) of
the Act;

“securities” means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds,
units of a collective investment scheme within the meaning of the Financial

Services and Markets Act 2000 and other securities of any description, other
than money deposited with a building society.

156
264



APPENDIX B
NON STATUTORY DISCLOSABLE INTERESTS
An interest which relates to or is likely to affect any body:-
(a) exercising functions of a public nature; or
(b) directed to charitable purposes; or

(c) one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion or
policy (including any political party or trade union

of which you are a member or in a position of control or management.

157

265



This page is intentionally left blank

158
266



CODE OF CONDUCT COMPLAINT PROCESS

CONTEXT

Under Section 28 of the Localism Act 2011, the Council must have in place
“arrangements” under which allegations that a Member or co-opted Member of
the authority or of a parish council (the “subject Member”) within the authority’s
area has failed to comply with that authority’s Code of Conduct can be
investigated and decisions made on such allegations.

THE CODE OF CONDUCT

The Council has adopted a Code of Conduct for Members, which is published
on the Council’'s website and available for inspection on request from the
Council’s Offices (see address below).

Each parish council is also required to adopt a Code of Conduct. If you wish
to inspect a parish council’'s Code of Conduct, it should be available on any
website operated by the parish council or request the parish clerk to allow you
to inspect a copy at their offices.

MAKING A COMPLAINT
If you wish to make a complaint, please write to:

The Monitoring Officer
Huntingdonshire District Council
Pathfinder House

St Mary’s Street

Huntingdon

PE29 3TN

or email: CodeofConduct@huntingdonshire.qgov.uk

159
267


mailto:CodeofConduct@huntingdonshire.gov.uk

COMPLAINTS PROCEDURE FLOWCHART

L VTe) acknowledges complaint normally within 5-:

Complaint with i working days and seeks additional ;
supporting evidence i information/supporting evidence if required i
received in writing by the i (or referred in first instance to town/parish council i
Monitoring Officer (MQ) | = ' for possible local resolution if complaint about a !
iparishcouncillon | _ :

Prellmlnary Tests -

: e Acting in capacity as Member?
i ¢« Was Member in office at time of alleged
: conduct?

. ¢ Very minor or trivial matter?

Szgjnegclt\gzn;gfr : e Vexatious or malicious?

response 1 o Historical? Is alleged breach more than 6

! months old?
: Potential breach of Code?
i ® Assessment of public interest?

i e Has parish council complaints procedure been
! exhausted or impractical for parish council to
: deal with/any action taken reasonable

.
e = s = 3 T - -

|
Y

Independent Person (IP) to
consider complaint and
response and advise MO

Complaint
rejected
with
reasons
given

y
Decision by MO within 20 working days
of fully evidenced complaint
(Discretion to consult with Member of the
Standards Committee in sensitive cases)

evidence
e Conclusion whether or not
a breach of the code

I | __ _____________

[lnvestigation  report  to |
+ include - .
! !
! e Agreed facts I
or { » Facts not agreed and !
i corresponding conflicting ;
i i
! I
I i

. Investigating
MO explores POt.e n_t|a||y Officer (10)
- criminal .
informal appointed,
. conduct/breach
resolution conducts
et of other . L
(eg mediation, - investigation
apology, etc) ‘gl - and issues
pology. referral to Police
report

A
i
i
i
i
i
i
i
i
i
i
i

-

MO (in consultation with IP)
agrees informal resolution or
no further action

Panel to arbitrate on facts
and conclude whether a ;
breach of the Code of!

OR < Conduct occurred. 1
Referred to Standards Committee 1
Hearing Panel Decision made in !

consultation with IP and,
in parish council matters, |
with  co-opted parish !
member (both of whom
i
are present throughout)
i

Options for Panel -

(i) Action;
(ii) No further action;
(i) Informal resolution

160
268

[ormrmrm e




MEMBERS’ PLANNING CODE OF GOOD PRACTICE
INTRODUCTION

The aim of this shortened version of the code of good practice is to ensure
that in the operation of the planning process there are no grounds for
suggesting that a decision has been biased, partial or not well founded in any
way. The full version is available in the Members’ Handbook.

The key purpose of planning is to control the development and use of land in
the public interest. Your role as a member of the Planning Authority is to
make all planning decisions openly, impartially, with sound judgement and for
justifiable reasons.

If you have any doubts about the application of this Code to your own
circumstances you should seek advice early, from the Monitoring Officer or
one of her staff, preferably well before any meeting takes place.

1. Relationship to the Members’ Code of Conduct

* Do apply the rules in the Members’ Code of Conduct first and
then apply the rules in the Planning Code of Good Practice,
which seek to explain and supplement the Members’ Code of
Conduct for the purposes of dealing with all planning matters.

2. Development Proposals and Interests under the Members’ Code

* Do disclose the existence and nature of your interest at any
relevant meeting, including informal meetings or discussions
with employees and other members.

* Do then act accordingly. Where your interest is a
disclosable pecuniary interest:-

- Do disclose the interest and withdraw immediately from
the room or chamber where a meeting is being held for
the duration of any discussion and/or voting in the
matter.

- Don’t attempt to improperly influence the meeting.

- Don’t get involved in the processing of the application.

- Don’t seek or accept any preferential treatment, or
place yourself in a position that could lead the public to
think you are receiving preferential treatment, because
of your position as a councillor.

- Do be aware that, whilst you are not prevented from
seeking to explain and justify a proposal in which you
have a disclosable pecuniary interest to an appropriate
officer, in person or in writing, the Code places greater
limitations on you in representing that proposal than
would apply to a normal member of the public.

- Do notify the Monitoring Officer in writing of your own
interest (your own application or one submitted by your
spouse/partner or other direct relative) and note that:

161

269



" notification to the Monitoring Officer should be
made no later than submission of the application;

. the application will always be submitted to the
Development Management Panel for
determination and not dealt with by officers under
delegated powers; and

" it is advisable that you employ an agent to act on
your behalf on the proposal in dealing with
officers.

Fettering Discretion in the Planning Process

*

Don’t fetter your discretion and therefore your ability to
participate in planning decision-making at the Council by
making up your mind, or clearly appearing to have made up
your mind on how you will vote on any planning matter prior to
formal consideration of the matter at the meeting of the
planning authority and of hearing the officer’'s presentation and
evidence and arguments on both sides.

Do be aware that you are likely to have fettered your discretion
where the Council is the landowner, developer or applicant and
you have acted as, or could be perceived as being, a chief
advocate for a proposal.

Do also be aware that, whilst the Members’ Code of Conduct
provides for a presumption that you may regard yourself as not
having a disclosable pecuniary interest in matters which relate
to the organisations mentioned below -

= another local or public authority of which you are a member,
or

* a body to which you have been appointed or nominated by
the Council as its representative

- you must exercise your discretion in deciding whether or

not to participate in each case and where:

= you have been significantly involved in the preparation,
submission or advocacy of a planning proposal on
behalf of such a body; or

= you are a trustee or company director of the body
submitting the proposal and were appointed by the
Council

- you would be advised always to disclose a non

pecuniary interest and may consider whether it would be
appropriate for you to withdraw from the meeting.

Do consider yourself able to take part in the debate on a
proposal when acting as part of a consultee body (where you

are also a member of the town or parish council, for example,
or both a district and county councillor), provided:

162

270



- the proposal/policy does not substantially affect the well
being or financial standing of the consultee body;
- you make it clear to the consultee body that:

= your views are expressed on the limited information
then before you;

= you must reserve judgement and the independence
to make up your own mind on each separate
proposal, based on your overriding duty to the
whole community and not just to the people in that
area, ward or parish, as and when it comes before
the Development Management Panel or the District
Council and you have had the opportunity to
consider all of the relevant information. and

= you will not in any way commit yourself as to how
you or others may vote when the proposal comes
before the Development Management Panel or the
District Council; and

- you disclose the non pecuniary interest regarding your
membership or role when the Development
Management or District Council comes to consider the
proposal.

Don’t speak and vote on a proposal where you have fettered
your discretion. You do not also have to withdraw, but it would
be preferable for you to do so.

Do explain that you do not intend to speak and vote because
you have or you could reasonably be perceived as having
judged (or reserve the right to judge) the matter elsewhere, so
that this may be recorded in the minutes.

Do take the opportunity to exercise your separate speaking
rights as a member under the Council Procedure Rules where
you have represented your views or those of local electors
before the meeting and fettered your discretion, but do not have
a disclosable pecuniary interest. Where you do:

- you must give written notice to and obtain the prior
permission of the Chairman that you wish to speak in
this capacity before the meeting commences;

- remove yourself from the member seating area for the
duration of that item, and

- ensure that your actions are recorded.

4. Contact with Applicants, Developers and Objectors

L 2

2

Do refer those who approach you for planning, procedural or
technical advice to officers.

Do try and avoid any meeting with applicants, developers or
groups of objectors unless it has been organised by Officers.

In addition and in respect of presentations by
applicants/developers:

163

271



Do try and avoid attending a planning presentation unless an
Officer is present and/or it has been organised by officers.

Do ask relevant gquestions for the purposes of clarifying your
understanding of the proposals but do not express any strong
view or state how you or other members might vote.

5. Lobbying of Councillors

2

Do explain to those lobbying or attempting to lobby you that,
whilst you can listen to what is said, you cannot express an
intention to vote one way or another or such a firm point of view
that it amounts to the same thing.

Do remember that your overriding duty is to the whole
community not just to the people in your ward.

Don’t accept gifts or hospitality from any person involved in or
affected by a planning proposal.

Do copy or pass on any lobbying correspondence you receive
to the Head of Development or Planning Service Manager
(Development Management) at the earliest opportunity.

Do inform the Monitoring Officer where you feel you have been
exposed to undue or excessive lobbying or approaches
(including inappropriate offers of gifts or hospitality), who will in
turn advise the appropriate officers to follow the matter up.

Do note that, unless you have a disclosable pecuniary interest,
you will not have fettered your discretion or breached this
Planning Code of Good Practice through:

- listening or receiving viewpoints from residents or other
interested parties as long as you make yourself equally
available to those of differing viewpoints if requested to
do so;

- making comments to residents, interested parties, other
members or appropriate officers, provided they do not
consist of or amount to pre-judging the issue and you
make clear you are keeping an open mind; or

- seeking information through appropriate channels.

6. Lobbying by Councillors

2

Don’t become a member of, lead or represent an organisation
whose primary purpose is to lobby to promote or oppose
planning proposals.

Do join general interest groups which reflect your areas of
interest and which concentrate on issues beyond particular
planning proposals, but disclose a non pecuniary interest where
that organisation has made representations on a particular
proposal and make it clear to that organisation and the
Development Management Panel or Council that you have
reserved judgement and the independence to make up your
own mind on each separate proposal.

164

272



10.

2 Don’t lobby fellow members in advance of the meeting at which
any planning decision is to be taken.

4 Don’t decide or discuss how to vote on any planning matter at
any sort of political group meeting, or lobby any other member
to do so.

Site Visits

4 Do try to attend site visits organised by the Council where
possible.

2 Do ask the officers at the site visit questions or seek
clarification from them on matters which are relevant to the site
inspection.

2 Don’t hear representations from any other party with the
exception of a ward member.

4 Don’t express opinions or views to anyone.

2 Don’t enter a site which is subject to a proposal other than as

part of an official site visit or by invitation. If you feel it is
essential to accept an invitation to visit a site other than through
attending an official site visit do exercise caution and ensure
you comply with these good practice rules.

Public Speaking at Meetings

* Don’t allow members of the public to communicate with you
during the Development Management Panel or Council’s
proceedings (orally or in writing) as this may give the
appearance of bias.

* Do ensure that you comply with the Council’s procedures in
respect of public speaking.

Officers

* Don’t put pressure on officers to put forward a particular
recommendation.

. Do recognise and respect that officers involved in the

processing and determination of planning matters must act in
accordance with the Council’'s Code of Conduct for Employees
and their professional codes of conduct, primarily the Royal
Town Planning Institute’s Code of Professional Conduct.

Decision-Making

*

2

Do come to meetings with an open mind and demonstrate that
you are open-minded.

Do comply with section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory
Purchase Act 2004 and, where regard is to be had to the
Development Plan, make decisions in accordance with the
Development Plan unless material considerations indicate
otherwise.

Do come to your decision only after due consideration of all of
the information reasonably required upon which to base a
decision.

165

273



* Don’t vote or take part in the meeting’'s discussion on a
proposal unless you have been present to hear the entire
debate, including the officers’ introduction to the matter.

2 Do make sure that if you are proposing, seconding or
supporting a decision contrary to officer recommendations or
the development plan that you clearly identify and understand
the planning reasons leading to this conclusion/decision.
These reasons must be given prior to the vote and be recorded.
Be aware that you may have to justify the resulting decision by
giving evidence in the event of any challenge.

11. Training

2 Training on planning matters will be provided and updated as
necessary. Specialised training is mandatory for Members who
wish to serve on the Development Management Panel.

166

274



MEMBERS’ LICENSING CODE OF GOOD PRACTICE

BACKGROUND

The enactment of the Licensing Act 2003 and Gambling Act 2005 transferred
substantial additional responsibilities for licensing to local government and established
the Council as the licensing authority for the regulation of various forms of licensable
activities. These responsibilities are undertaken by the Licensing Committee and its
sub-committees. However the Council has other licensing responsibilities that are
undertaken by the Licensing and Protection Panel and associated application sub-
groups. Whichever the forum, Members are acting in a quasi-judicial capacity in
carrying out the Council’s licensing functions.

This Code of Good Practice is designed to apply the principles contained in the
Members Code of Conduct to Members’ licensing responsibilities and to support and
maintain high ethical standards in local government. It applies to the actions of the
Council both in its statutory capacity as the licensing authority via the Licensing
Committee and its non-executive functions that are the responsibility of the Licensing
and Protection Panel. For the purposes of this Code, the Council is collectively
described as the licensing authority.

This Code has regard to both the Members Planning Code of Good Practice previously
adopted by the Council and LACORS’ guidance on the role of elected members in
relation to Licensing Committee hearings under the Licensing Act 2003.

INTRODUCTION

The aim of the Code is to ensure that in the operation of the licensing process there are
no grounds for suggesting that a decision has been biased, partial or not well founded
in any way.

The key purpose of licensing is to regulate certain activities in the public interest and to
promote the licensing objectives defined in the legislation. In addition, the authority
must have regard to statutory guidance issued by the Secretary of State and the
Gambling Commission.

Your role as a member of the licensing authority is to make decisions openly,
impartially, with sound judgement and for justifiable reasons.

This Code of Good Practice also applies to Members at all times when involving
themselves in the licensing process. It applies equally to licensing enforcement and
licensing policy issues as it does to licensing applications. This includes taking part in
decision-making meetings of the licensing authority and when involved in less formal
occasions, such as meetings with officers or the public and consultative meetings.

References to officers in this Code of Good Practice relate to employees of the
Council.

If you have any doubts about the application of this Code to your own circumstances
you should seek advice early, from the Monitoring Officer or one of his staff, preferably
well before any meeting takes place.

167

275



1.

Relationship to the Members’ Code of Conduct

* Do apply the rules in the Members’ Code of Conduct first: these must
always be complied with.
* Do then apply the rules in this Licensing Code of Good Practice, which

seek to explain and supplement the Members’ Code of Conduct for the
purposes of dealing with all licensing matters. If you do not abide by this
Code of Good Practice, you may put:

- the licensing authority at risk of proceedings as to the legality or
maladministration of the related decision; and

- yourself at risk of either being named in an Ombudsman’s report
made to the Corporate Governance Panel or Council or, if the
failure is also likely to be a breach of the Code of Conduct, a
complaint to the Monitoring Officer.

Licensing Proposals and Interests under the Members’ Code

Your interest in a licensing matter may take a variety of forms. As a member of
the Cabinet or the relevant executive councillor, you may have either collective
or individual responsibility for premises in the Council's ownership or a
licensable activity which the Council is promoting for which a licence is required
or has already been granted. You may be a member of another organisation or
body that is applying for a licence or is carrying out a licensable activity. You
may be an employee of a responsible authority defined in the legislation or you
may be an interested party because you live or have business premises in the
vicinity of an application site or licensed premises. You may be a member of a
lobby group or campaign. You may be the applicant for a licence or the
provider of a licensable activity yourself or a member of a registered club that is
doing so. You may be a supplier of goods to an applicant or an existing
licensee or club or you may act in some capacity on their behalf. You may also
be an existing licensee or a member of a club whose business may be affected
if a licence or club premises certificate is granted for a similar activity
elsewhere.

Whatever your interest,

* Do disclose the existence and nature of your interest at any relevant
meeting, including informal meetings or discussions with employees and
other members.

* Do then act accordingly.

* Where your interest is a disclosable pecuniary interest:-

- Do disclose the interest and withdraw immediately from the room
or chamber where a meeting is being held for the duration of any
discussion and/or voting in the matter.

- Don’t participate, or give the appearance of trying to participate,
in the making of any decision on the matter by the licensing
authority.

- Don’t represent an applicant or responsible authority at a
licensing sub-committee hearing or applications sub-group
meeting.

168

276



- Don’t try to represent an interested party if you have played an
active role in supporting or opposing an application for a licence.
Ask another member to do so in your place.

Don’t get involved in the processing of the application or the
review of a licence or certificate that has already been issued.

- Don’t seek or accept any preferential treatment, or place
yourself in a position that could lead the public to think you are
receiving preferential treatment, because of your position as a
councillor. This would include, where you have a disclosable
pecuniary interest in a proposal, using your position to discuss
that proposal with officers or members when other members of
the public would not have the same opportunity to do so.

- Do be aware that, whilst you are not prevented from seeking to

explain and justify a proposal in which you have a disclosable
pecuniary interest to an appropriate officer, in person or in
writing, the Code places greater limitations on you in
representing that proposal than would apply to a normal member
of the public. (For example, where you have a disclosable
pecuniary interest in a proposal to be put before a hearing or
meeting, you will have to withdraw from the room or chamber
whilst the hearing or meeting considers it, whereas an ordinary
member of the public would be able to observe the meeting’s
consideration of it from the public gallery.)

- Do notify the Monitoring Officer in writing of your own interest
and note that:

. notification to the Monitoring Officer should be made no
later than submission of the application; and

. it is advisable that you employ an agent to act on your
behalf on the proposal in dealing with officers.

3. Fettering Discretion in the Licensing Process

L 2

Don’t fetter your discretion and therefore your ability to participate in
licensing decision-making by making up your mind, or clearly appearing
to have made up your mind (particularly in relation to an external interest
or lobby group), as to how you will vote on any licensing matter prior to
its formal consideration at a hearing or meeting of the licensing authority
and hearing the representations and evidence on both sides. Fettering
your discretion in this way and then taking part in the decision will put
the licensing authority at risk of a finding of maladministration and of
legal proceedings on the grounds of there being a danger of bias or pre-
determination or a failure to take into account all of the factors enabling
the proposal to be considered on its merits.

Do be aware that you are likely to have fettered your discretion where
the Council is the landowner, developer or applicant and you have acted
as, or could be perceived as being, a chief advocate for a proposal.
(This is more than a matter of membership of both the proposing and
licensing determination bodies, but because through your significant
personal involvement in preparing or advocating the proposal you will
be, or could be perceived by the public as being, no longer able to act
impartially or to determine the proposal purely on its licensing merits.)
Do also be aware that, whilst the Members’ Code of Conduct provides
for a presumption that you may regard yourself as not having a

169

277



disclosable pecuniary interest in matters which relate to the
organisations mentioned below -

= another local or public authority of which you are a member; or
= a body to which you have been appointed or nominated by the
Council as its representative.

You must exercise your discretion in deciding whether or not to participate in
each case and where:

= you have been significantly involved in the preparation, submission
or advocacy of a licensing proposal or in an activity that has been
licensed on behalf of such a body; or

= you are a trustee or company director of the body submitting the
proposal and were appointed by the Council.

You should always disclose the interest and consider whether it is appropriate
to withdraw from the meeting.

*

Don’t sit as a member of a licensing sub-committee or applications sub-
group if the applicant lives or the premises are situated in the Ward that
you represent or if an application is being made to review a licence or
certificate held by a resident or premises in your Ward.

Don’t sit as a member of a licensing sub-committee or applications sub
group where you have fettered your discretion. Because of the limited
size of licensing sub-committees and applications sub-groups, you
should advise officers as soon as it becomes apparent to you that you
have fettered your discretion and certainly before the meeting
commences to enable an alternative sub committee to be convened.
You do not have to withdraw from the room where the meeting is taking
place, but it would be preferable for you to do so.

Do take the opportunity (if you not sitting on the licensing sub-committee
or applications sub group or you do not have a personal and prejudicial
interest) to exercise your rights as a member to speak on behalf of an
applicant or interested person even if you have represented your views
or those of others before the meeting and fettered your discretion.

Contact with Applicants, Developers and Objectors

*

L 2

Do refer those who approach you for licensing, procedural or technical
advice to officers.

Don’t attend any meeting with applicants or interested parties if you are
a member of a sub-committee or sub-group. Pre-application
discussions, if held for clarification purpose will involve officers only who
will ensure that those present are advised from the start that the
discussions will not bind the authority to any particular course of action,
that the meeting is properly recorded on the application file and the
record of the meeting is disclosed when the application is considered by
the sub-committee or application sub-group.

Do otherwise meet with an applicant or interested party if you are
considering representing their interests or speaking on their behalf at a
hearing of a sub-committee or meeting of an applications sub-group of
which you are not a member.

170

278



5.

Lobbying of Councillors

*

Do explain, if you are a member of a sub-committee or sub-group, to
those who may be attempting to lobby you that you cannot listen to what
is said as this will prejudice your impartiality and therefore your ability to
participate in the decision making process.

Do remember that, as a member of the Licensing Committee or
Licensing and Protection Panel, you will probably be unaware whether
an application will be determined by a sub-committee or sub-group or
whether you will be a member of that determining body until you have
been notified by officers. If you have been lobbied by an applicant or
interested party, you should notify officers as soon as it comes to your
attention that you have been invited to sit on a relevant sub-committee
or sub-group. In such circumstances, you should not take part in that
hearing or meeting and officers will make arrangements for the
application to be dealt with by another sub-committee or for another
member to take your place on a sub-group.

Don’t feel constrained, if you are not a member of a sub-committee or
sub-group, to receive an approach from an applicant or interested party
and, having considered the information that they have supplied, to agree
to speak or make representations on their behalf at a meeting of a sub-
committee or sub-group.

Do remember, if you are a member of a sub-committee or sub group,
that your overriding duty is to the whole community and, taking account
of the need to make decisions impartially, that you should not improperly
favour, or appear to improperly favour, any person, company, group or
locality.

Don’t accept gifts or hospitality from any person involved in or affected
by a licensing application or who may be providing a licensable activity.
If a degree of hospitality is entirely unavoidable, ensure it is of a
minimum; its acceptance is declared as soon as possible and remember
to register the gift or hospitality with the Monitoring Officer where its
value is over £50 in accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct.

Do copy or pass on any lobbying correspondence you receive if you are
a member of a sub-committee or sub-group to the Elections and
Democratic Services or Licensing Manager at the earliest opportunity in
order that it can be placed on the appropriate licensing file and is open
for inspection before a decision is made.

Do inform the Monitoring Officer where you feel you have been exposed
to undue or excessive lobbying or approaches (including inappropriate
offers of gifts or hospitality), who will in turn advise the appropriate
officers to follow the matter up.

Do note that, unless you are a member of a sub-committee or sub-group
or you have a disclosable pecuniary interest, you will not have fettered
your discretion or breached this Licensing Code of Good Practice
through:

- listening or receiving viewpoints from residents or other
interested parties as long as you make yourself equally available
to those of differing viewpoints if requested to do so;

- making comments to residents, interested parties, other
members or appropriate officers, provided they do not consist of
or amount to pre-judging the issue and you make clear you are
keeping an open mind; or

- seeking information through appropriate channels.

171

279



Lobbying by Councillors

*

Don’t become a member of, lead or represent an organisation whose
primary purpose is to lobby to promote or oppose licensing proposals. If
you do, you will have fettered your discretion and are likely to have a
personal and prejudicial interest and have to withdraw.

Do join general interest groups which reflect your areas of interest and
which concentrate on issues beyond particular licensing proposals, such
as a local civic society, but disclose a personal interest where that
organisation has made representations on a particular proposal and
make it clear to that organisation and the licensing authority that you
have reserved judgement and the independence to make up your own
mind on each separate proposal.

Don’t excessively lobby fellow members regarding your concerns or
views nor attempt to persuade them how they should vote in advance of
the meeting at which any licensing decision is to be taken.

Don’t decide or discuss how to vote on any licensing application or
policy matter at any sort of political group meeting, or lobby any other
member to do so. Political group meetings should never dictate how
members should vote on any licensing issue.

Site Visits

L 2

L 2R 4

Public

Do try to attend site visits organised by the licensing authority if you are
a member of the licensing sub-committee or applications sub-group. If
you are unable to take part in a site visit, you will be unable to take part
in the sub-committee hearing or sub-group meeting. You should
therefore notify the Elections and Democratic Services Manager as soon
as it comes to your attention that you are unable to attend a site visit
that has been organised. Where a site visit takes place, Members will
be accompanied by officers of the authority.

Do ensure that you treat the site visit only as an opportunity to observe
the site.

Do ask the officers at the site visit questions or seek clarification from
them on matters which are relevant to the site inspection.

Don’t hear representations from the applicant or an interested party at
the site visit. Where you are approached by the applicant or an
interested party, direct them to or inform the officer present.

Don’t express opinions or views to anyone.

Do exercise your discretion, if you are not a member of the sub-
committee or sub-group, as to whether to accept an invitation to visit a
site which is the subject of an application or provides a licensable
activity. Where you do accept an invitation, do exercise caution and
ensure you comply with these good practice rules.

Speaking at Meetings
Don’t allow members of the public to communicate with you in isolation
if you are a member of a sub committee or sub-group during the hearing

or meeting proceedings (orally or in writing) as this may give the
appearance of bias.

172

280



10.

Officers

*

Don’t put pressure on officers to put forward a particular
recommendation. (This does not prevent you from asking questions or
submitting views to the Elections and Democratic Services Manager and
Licensing Manager but hearing or meeting reports will contain only
representations that have been submitted in the manner prescribed by
the legislation. Your attention is drawn to the danger of fettering your
discretion on a matter which is covered in Section 3 of this Code.)

Do recognise that officers are part of a management structure and
discuss a proposal, outside of any arranged meeting, only with the
Elections and Democratic Services Manager or Licensing Manager or
those officers who are authorised by them to deal with the proposal at a
member level.

Do recognise and respect that officers involved in the processing and
determination of licensing matters must act in accordance with the
Council’'s Code of Conduct for Employees and the requirements of the
licensing legislation. As a result, licensing officers’ views, opinions and
recommendations will be presented on the basis of their overriding
obligation of professional independence and the promotion of licensing
objectives, which may on occasion be at odds with the views or opinions
of members.

Decision-Making

*

4

Do come to meetings with an open mind and demonstrate that you are
open-minded.

Do comply with the licensing legislation and make decisions in
accordance with statutory licensing objectives, having regard to
guidance that has been issued under the relevant legislation and the
authority’s statement of licensing policy.

Do come to your decision only after due consideration of all of the
information reasonably required upon which to base a decision. If you
feel there is insufficient time to digest new information or that there is
simply insufficient information before you, request that further
information and, if necessary, adjourn the hearing or meeting until the
information has been provided and you have had an opportunity to
consider it.

Don’t vote or take part in the hearing or meeting on a proposal unless
you have been present to hear the entire debate, including the officers’
introduction to the matter.

Do make sure that if you are proposing, seconding or supporting a
decision contrary to the licensing objectives or the statutory guidance
issued by the Secretary of State or Gambling Committee or the
authority’s statement of licensing objectives, that you clearly identify and
understand the reasons leading to this conclusion/decision. These
reasons must be given prior to the vote being taken and be recorded.
Be aware that you may have to justify the resulting decision by giving
evidence in the event of any challenge.

173

281



11.

Training

2

Training on licensing matters will be provided and updated as
necessary. All Members should endeavour to receive training to enable
them to carry out their role properly and effectively. Specialised training
is mandatory for Members who wish to serve on the Licensing and
Protection Panel/Licensing Committee. A review of training undertaken
by Members of the Panel/Committee will be maintained by the Elections
and Democratic Services Manager.

174

282



11

1.2

1.3

2.1

2.2

MEMBER/OFFICER PROTOCOL

Introduction

Government guidance for the preparation of local authority
constitutions refers to the perceived requirement for a protocol to
underpin  member/officer relations. This accords with the
recommendations of the Nolan Committee’s Report on Standards of
Conduct in Local Government that every local authority should have its
own written statement or protocol governing relations between
members and officers.

The guidance suggests that protocols should be developed locally to
reflect local political arrangements and approaches but gives an
indication of those areas that are expected to be covered in each
protocol. In adopting this protocol, the Council has had regard to
broad headings proposed in the guidance.

The purpose of this protocol is to guide members and employees of
the Council in their relationships with one another. It is not intended to
be prescriptive or comprehensive and seeks simply to offer guidance
on some of the issues that most commonly arise.

Principles Underlying Member/Employee Relations

The Nolan Report suggests that ‘No local authority can function
properly without a good relationship between its councillors and its
officers. Where the relationship breaks down, an atmosphere of
suspicion or dislike can make it very difficult to devise and implement
policies in any consistent way.” The general principles which govern
the conduct of members (selflessness, honesty and integrity,
objectivity, accountability, openness, personal judgement, respect for
others, duty to uphold the law, stewardship and leadership) which are
embodied in The Relevant Authorities (General Principles) Order 2001
require members to respect the impartiality and integrity of an
authority’s statutory officers and other employees. Those principles
are equally appropriate for employees in their dealings with members.

This protocol should also be read in conjunction with the Members
Code of Conduct and Employees Code of Conduct which are designed
to ensure high standards of conduct and probity within the Council.
Together they contribute to the effective and efficient transaction of
Council business and ensuring that the Council is not brought into
disrepute. Public confidence in the integrity and honesty of both
members and employees is critical to the Council’'s community
leadership role and compliance with the Codes and this Protocol will
serve to enhance local democracy.

175

283



3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

The Roles of Members and Employees

The roles of members and employees have changed with the Local
Government Act 2000 and the introduction of executive decision-making — on
occasions by individual members as opposed to collectively in committee. The
greater impact upon the time of individual members brought about by the new
system, together with the introduction of pensionable allowances, have tended
to blur the traditional distinction between the roles of members and employees.
Nevertheless members and employees do have separate roles which should be
readily distinguishable. These are defined more specifically in the Council’s
constitution.

Members are democratically elected and are accountable to the electorate for
their actions. An important feature of each member’s role is to represent the
interests of his/her constituents, irrespective of how they may have voted in an
election. The expectation is that members will be more aware of the views of
their constituents on major policy developments before decisions are taken
collectively at full Council meetings. The Executive Leader and other executive
councillors are responsible for the delivery of those policies. Members who sit
on overview and scrutiny have an important role in both holding the executive to
account and in contributing to policy development. Members of regulatory
panels make decisions on applications by the public for permissions and
licences of varying types.

Employees are responsible for day-to-day managerial and operational decisions
within the Council and should provide support to both the executive and all
members in their several roles. They are employed by and accountable to the
Council as a whole. The Cabinet system can create tensions and conflicts of
interest for employees servicing both the executive and overview and scrutiny
and the executive and the Council. Members should recognise the potential
difficulties that this can present and should respect the obligation placed on
employees to serve the Council as a whole.

In this protocol, any reference to a senior officer is a reference to the Head of
Paid Service, Corporate Directors and Heads of Service as defined in the
Council’s constitution.

Certain employees, commonly referred to as “statutory officers”, derive some
duties and responsibilities directly from legislation. The Council’s statutory
officers are —

* the Head of the Paid Service is the Council’s principal adviser on
matters of general policy;

& the Corporate Director (Services), who as the Council’'s Monitoring
Officer is required to report on any proposals, decisions or omissions
which in his view are likely to result in a contravention of the law or
which fail to comply with legal duties, are unjust or fail to take account of
an applicable code of practice; and

* the Head of Resources, who as the Council’s Chief Financial Adviser is
required to report on any proposal, decision or course of action which
would involve

incurring unlawful expenditure, or is unlawful or is likely to cause a loss or
deficiency or if the Council was proposing to enter an item of account
unlawfully.

176

284



3.6

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

5.1

5.2

There may be occasions when a Statutory Officer’s responsibilities may conflict
or not wholly correspond with a strategy, policy, decision or course of action
proposed/taken by the Council or a member. In those circumstances members
should acknowledge the primacy of the statutory responsibilities and treat the
Statutory Officer with the same courtesy and respect shown to them and to
other employees in all other dealings.

Employer/Employee Issues

Any dealings between members and employees should be conducted with
mutual respect, trust and courtesy. Members should recognise and have due
regard to their role as an employer in their dealings with employees and be
conscious that inappropriate conduct or behaviour on their part could lead to a
case being brought to an employment tribunal by an aggrieved employee. It is
proper for a member to make written or oral representations about a matter
affecting a constituent who also happens to be an employee but he/she should
avoid taking a proactive part or represent or act as an advocate on behalf of the
employee in any disciplinary or grievance procedures brought against the
Council by the employee.

Members should not place inappropriate pressure on employees and must
ensure that all communication between them (including written communication)
does not bring the Council into disrepute, cause any embarrassment to them, or
lead to a breakdown of mutual trust, respect and courtesy in member/employee
relations.

In seeking advice and support, members should recognise that, whilst those
employees owe an overriding duty to the Council as a whole, such duties are
first expressed to their respective line managers and the Head of Paid Service
and not to an individual member. For this reason, members should not give
direct instructions to employees, unless they are authorised to do so by the
Council’s constitutional arrangements. If so authorised, instructions should,
under normal circumstances, still be given to a senior officer and not to a more
junior employee.

In particular, members and employees should promote equality by not
discriminating unlawfully or otherwise against any person. They should treat
people with respect, regardless of their race, age, religion, gender, sexual
orientation or disability. Such principles will apply equally to the implementation
of personnel and other policies, recruitment and promotion as they apply to day
to day dealings with members of the public.

Personal Relationships

Guidance on personal relationships is contained in the Codes of Conduct.
Provided these are observed, more informal exchanges may be appropriate
between members and employees outside business meetings and formal
events.

It is important that there should be a close working relationship between
executive councillors, chairmen and leaders of political parties with the Head of
Paid Service, Corporate Directors and Senior Officers. However such
relationships should never be allowed to become so close, or appear to be so
close, as to bring into question the issue of impatrtiality into doubt.

177

285



6.1

6.2

6.3

7.1

7.2

7.3

Relationships between Cabinet and Employees

Any decision by an executive councillor or collectively by the cabinet must be
supported by a written report by the appropriate employee. An employee’s
obligation to the whole Council requires the advice to be tendered
professionally and impartially and executive councillors should not seek to
suppress or amend any aspect of such professional advice.

Reports to the Cabinet will normally be produced by employees but there may
be occasions when an executive councillor prepares a report. In either
situation, the appropriate employee shall place on record his/her professional
advice to the Cabinet and ensure that advice is considered when a decision is
taken.

As part of their duties, employees will represent (both internally and externally)
the decisions of the Cabinet or an individual executive councillor. Other
members should recognise that, in doing so, an employee is representing an
executive decision of the Council.

Relationships between Overview and Scrutiny and Employees

Overview and scrutiny plays an important role within the Council in holding the
executive to account and in the formulation of policy. The Council has
established a post of Scrutiny Officer exclusively to support the overview and
scrutiny process but the Panels may seek the advice of the Monitoring Officer
and the Chief Finance Officer where they consider there is doubt about the
legality or financial probity of any decisions or prospective decisions of the
executive or where these may be contrary to the Council’s policy and financial
framework.

When requiring employees to give evidence to an Overview and Scrutiny Panel,
the Panel and its Chairman shall not, without the consent of a Managing
Director or a senior officer, request the attendance of a junior employee. When
employees are required to give evidence before an Overview and Scrutiny
Panel, questions should be confined, so far as is possible, to questions of fact
and explanation of any professional opinion relating to policies and decisions.
Employees must respond to questions from members in an open, constructive
and helpful manner. Employees must not be misleading or economical with the
truth in their answers. The Chairman of an Overview and Scrutiny Panel shall
ensure that executive councillors and employees are not questioned (whether
through the nature, tone or language used) in such a manner as could be
considered by a reasonable person to be hostile, offensive, derogatory,
harassing, bullying, discriminatory or otherwise unacceptable or inappropriate.

Where they consider it appropriate, the Chairmen of the Overview and Scrutiny
Panels may ask the Head of Paid Service, Corporate Directors and Senior
Officers to explain any advice given to executive councillors and explain any
decision(s) that they may have taken under the Council’s scheme of delegation.
Any private or confidential matter must be dealt with in a private or confidential
manner.

Relationships between Other Panels and Employees

178

286



8.1

9.1

9.2

9.3

10.

10.1

10.2

10.3

Decisions made by other Panels, Committees etc. must be taken collectively,
normally following the receipt and consideration of a report by the appropriate
employee. Such advice will be independent and professional. Because of the
nature of the business conducted by the Development Management Panel, a
separate Code of Conduct for Planning has been approved by the Council.

Relationships between Political Groups and Employees

Political groups comprising members of an individual political party are a
recognised feature of local government and it is common practice for such
groups to give preliminary consideration to matters of business in advance of
their consideration by a relevant Council body.

Employees will not attend group meetings of District Council political parties.

Employee support to members of political groups must not extend beyond
providing information in relation to matters of Council business. When giving
advice in such circumstances, employees must demonstrate political impartiality
and must not suppress their professional advice in the face of political views.
Employees must not champion, defend, action or spend any resources of the
Council on, or be held responsible for actioning in any way whatsoever, the
decisions of a political group, unless and until such decisions have become the
formal decisions of the Council and any consequential provision has been made
in the Council’s Medium Term Plans and/or Revenue Budget.

Relationships between Individual Members and Employees

The Executive Leader, Deputy Executive Leader, executive councillor,
panel/committee chairman, group leader or such other members nominated by
a Group Leader may request a briefing from the Head of Paid Service,
Corporate Directors or senior officer on matters of policy which have already
been or may be discussed by the Council or within its decision-making or
advisory processes. All such requests should be addressed to the appropriate
senior officer.

Local members have an important role to play in representing the Council in
their constituencies, responding to the concerns of their constituents, in
meetings with partners and when serving on outside organisations. It is
essential for the efficient functioning of the Council that members should be fully
informed about matters on which they may be required to make decisions or
which affect their wards. Senior Officers should ensure that all relevant staff
are aware of the requirement to keep local members informed and that, as far
as practicable, the timing of such information allows members to contribute to
those decisions. Local members shall also be kept informed about matters
affecting their wards during the formative stages of policy development.
Whenever a public meeting is organised by the Council to consider a local
issue, all of the members representing the ward(s) affected should as a matter
of course be invited to the meeting.

Members will be asked by their constituents, from time to time, to pursue
matters on their behalf. Where such matters affect the Council, a member may
request information or advice from the appropriate employee and such a
request should only be refused if a member cannot demonstrate a ‘need to
know’ — see paragraph 11.2 post. Such action is without prejudice to the right

179

287



11.

111

11.2

11.3

114

11.5

12.

12.1

12.2

12.3

of a member to raise an item at any meeting of the Cabinet or another panel
and particularly an Overview and Scrutiny Panel.

Access to Documents and Information

A member’s right to access to documents and information is described in the
Access to Information Procedure Rules in the Council’s constitution.

In addition, a member has a right to inspect Council documents so far as his/her
access to the documents is reasonable necessary to enable the member
properly to perform his/her duties as a member of the Council. This principle is
commonly referred to as the ‘need to know’ principle. It applies equally to the
leaders of political party groups who, although they may be able more readily to
substantiate a requirement for information, still have to demonstrate that their
request is proper and reasonable and give adequate reasons for requiring the
information. Access to such information will vary from member to member and
will arise at different times. As such, a member's ‘need to know’ will be
considered on a case by case basis and will not last indefinitely.

The right of access to information is subject to an additional safeguard and if
the motive of the member in requesting to see documents is indirect, improper
or ulterior, a request to inspect documents will be refused. Furthermore the law
does not entitle a member to go on a ‘roving or fishing expedition’ or to receive
every working document that employees have access to or may have had
access to in the past.

A member is only entitled to see those documents that are relevant background
papers mentioned in any report to a meeting or which are to be taken into
consideration in the making of an executive decision by an executive councillor
or a key decision by an employee or where information would be available
under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. However, an overview and
scrutiny panel may request information that is exempt or confidential if it relates
to a matter that they are scrutinising.

Confidential information that is obtained by a member must not be disclosed to
another person. Any such breach of confidence may result in a complaint to the
Monitoring Officer or, if sufficiently serious, to a civil action against the member
and/or the Council for damages.

Relations with the Media

The Council’s current structure is designed to raise the public and media profile
of executive councillors and to make the members of the Cabinet both
collectively and individually directly accountable for the decisions taken. Media
support and presentation by employees will reflect this principle and advice to
executive councillors in relation to the media will be provided if required.

The Chairmen of Overview and Scrutiny Panels shall ensure that all media
statements relating to that function have the support of the relevant Panel. Any
such statements must be consistent with the Council’s intent that the overview
and scrutiny function shall help to achieve a culture of continuous improvement
throughout the Council.

The Council’s Corporate Team Manager and other employees will assist other
non-Cabinet members in their relations with the media. Any employee assisting

180

288



12.4

13.

13.1

14.

14.1

a member with media relations must act at all times in the interests of the whole
Council and in a politically impartial manner. Other than factual statements,
members should not seek assistance from an employee with the preparation or
issue of any media statement that will adversely affect the reputation of the
Council.

Members are also reminded of the need to comply with the Code of
Recommended Practice on Local Authority Publicity issued by the Secretary of
State, a copy of which is available on request and on the intranet.

Other Support

Members are provided with a range of information and communication
equipment and other support services to assist them in their policy and
representative roles. Members should not use such equipment and support in
connection with party political or campaigning activity or for purposes not
related to Council business.

Arbitration

Where necessary, the Head of Paid Service (or in her absence the Monitoring
Officer) will arbitrate on the interpretation of this protocol.

181

289






11

1.2

2.1

2.2

2.4

2.5

PROTOCOL FOR THE RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN THE
EXECUTIVE LEADER OF THE COUNCIL AND
THE HEAD OF PAID SERVICE

THE NEED FOR A PROTOCOL

The CIPFA/Solace publication on ‘Good Governance in Local Government’
forms the framework for the Council’s Code of Governance. It recommends the
development of a protocol to ensure that the Executive Leader and Head of the
Council’s Paid Service negotiate their respective roles early in their relationship
and that a shared understanding of roles and objectives is maintained.

The Council acknowledges that a successful working relationship is critical to its
success and the achievement of its policies and strategies both in terms of the
authority itself and its relationship with partners. Both roles are defined in
legislation and in the Council’s constitution which should be read in conjunction
with this protocol. A mutual understanding of each other’s responsibilities,
especially as incumbents change, is key to the development of respect,
tolerance and a shared appreciation of their respective roles both individually
and to set the tone for good member/employee relationships throughout the
authority.

SHARED VALUES

The Nolan Committee’s Report on Standards of Conduct in Local Government
which provides the backdrop for improved standards of conduct in local
government saw a need for a written statement or protocol governing relations
between members and officers. The Committee commented in their final report
that ‘one particular area that gave us cause for concern was the potential for
improper behaviour if the normal professional relationship between member
and officer became unsatisfactory by being too comfortable or too combative’'.
That is especially appropriate in the case of the Executive Leader and Head of
Paid Service.

Member standards of conduct are now governed by the Members Code of
Conduct based upon the statutory model code. Employee standards are set
by the Employees Code of Conduct. A protocol on member/employee
relations, again embodied in the constitution, sets out the importance of
effective relationships but there is a danger that these will founder if a good
example is not set at the highest level by the Executive Leader and Head of
Paid Service.2.3 Mutual respect and trust should be founded on the ten
principles of public life which the Executive Leader and Head of Paid Service
have undertaken to uphold. The principles, which apply equally to members
and employees

In addition, the Council has adopted a series of policies that apply equally to the
roles of the member and employee which includes a dignity at work policy and
corporate equality policy.

The Executive Leader and the Head of Paid Service subscribe to those general
principles and policies which underpin the high standards of behaviour and

183

291



2.6

2.7

2.8

29

relationships necessary for the Council to offer effective leadership in the
community and fulfil its statutory functions.

All dealings between the Executive Leader and the Head of Paid Service should
be conducted with mutual respect, trust, honesty and courtesy. Neither should
place inappropriate pressure on the other and, in their dealings with each other,
they should not do anything that brings the Council into disrepute, cause any
embarrassment either to themselves or the Council or lead to a breakdown in
member/employee relations.

The roles of each are defined in legislation but it is the sum of the parts that
makes the unique partnership that is effective local government. In furtherance
of that principle, the Executive Leader and Head of Paid Service undertake to
recognise —

e The need for a close working relationship

e The requirement for an understanding of each other's roles and

responsibilities

The desirability of regular liaison through both formal and informal means

The importance of effective communication

A respect for each other’s views, advice, guidance and integrity

The need for openness and mutual understanding

The desirability of maintaining impartiality and independence of role

The need to avoid bias and prejudice

The need to demonstrate effective leadership and their responsibility to set

an example for others

o That any tensions that arise in their relationship need to be resolved swiftly
and amicably

In addition, they acknowledge —

e The Executive Leader's position as leader of the majority political party
group

e The Head of Paid Service's wider role to serve the Council and members as
a whole, irrespective of political party.

To assist in that mutual recognition of each other’s roles and responsibilities,
these are summarised below.

184

292



3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

THE ROLE OF THE EXECUTIVE LEADER

The Council has chosen to adopt the executive leader and cabinet model of
executive arrangements under the Local Government Act 2000, as amended by
the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007.

Under these arrangements, the Executive Leader is elected by the Council from
among its membership for a four year term or until his term of office comes to
an end as a councillor or he is removed from office by the Council, whichever is
the earliest. The Executive Leader’s primary functions are to —

¢ Arrange for the discharge of the executive functions of the Council, including
the arrangements for executive responsibilities

Appoint a Deputy Executive Leader of the Council

Determine the size and membership of the Cabinet

Act as chairman of meetings of the Cabinet

Provide the political leadership of the Council

Act as the leader of his (usually the majority) political party group

These are explained in greater detail in Article 7 and the Cabinet Procedure
Rules contained in the Council’s constitution.

The Executive Leader is responsible for ensuring that the Council promotes the
economic, social and environmental well being of Huntingdonshire and its
inhabitants and its development through the effective exercise of collective and
individual responsibilities within the Council’s decision making processes.

Through the effective operation of the Cabinet, the Executive Leader is
accountable for -

e Proposing the Council’s policy framework and setting priorities and
objectives

e Overseeing the implementation of policies and strategies to achieve

priorities and objectives

Proposing the Council’s budget to achieve its objectives

Managing the process for allocating resources to policy priorities

Ensuring the Council fulfils its statutory duties

Creating strategic frameworks for effective partnership working

Publishing a Notice of Executive Decisions of future executive decisions

Making policy decisions in an open and accountable way

Ensuring continuous improvement in service standards and monitoring

performance

Providing political leadership of the Council

e Communicating and advocating the Council’s priorities, objectives and
decisions.

The Head of Paid Service, as principal policy adviser, will ensure that the
Executive Leader and Cabinet are provided with the appropriate advice and
information to enable them to take informed decisions and they will have regard
to such advice in reaching their decisions.

As leader of a party political group, the Executive Leader will not seek advice
from the Head of Paid Service in relation to party political business and will not

185

293



3.8

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

expect the Head of Paid Service nor any of his staff to attend a meeting of the
political group.

The Executive Leader has no line management responsibilities for Council
employees who are responsible to the Council as a whole. Any concerns over
the performance of employees either individually or collectively will be referred
by the Executive Leader to the Head of Paid Service to address as he
considers appropriate. Matters relating to the appointment, dismissal and
disciplinary action in respect of employees are contained in the Officer
Employment Procedure Rules set out in the Council’'s constitution. However
the Executive Leader, in conjunction with other leading Members, is responsible
for the annual assessment of the performance of the Head of Paid Service and
in the award of performance related salary increments.

THE ROLE OF THE HEAD OF PAID SERVICE

The Head of Paid Service has overall corporate management and strategic
responsibility for the Council and its delivery of services as defined in Article 12
of the Council’s constitution. She is responsible for the provision of professional
and impartial advice to all aspects of the decision making process and is
accountable to the Council for the implementation of strategies, policies and
decisions.

The Head of the Paid Service of the Council has certain defined responsibilities
under the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 to report on —

e The co-ordination of the discharge of the Council’s functions
e The level, organisation, grades and management of employees required to
discharge those functions.

The Head of Paid Service acts as the Council’s proper officer under the Local
Government Act 1972 and a variety of other legislation. The Managing Director
acts as the Electoral Registration Officer for the purposes of electoral
administration arrangements. She also carries the separate appointment of
Returning Officer for the purpose of elections to the Council.

The Head of Paid Service is accountable to the Council as a whole. Her post is
politically restricted inasmuch as she is not permitted to be an elected member
of another authority. While this does not prevent the Head of Paid Service from
being a member of a political party, it is recognised that this is inadvisable if she
is to maintain a politically impartial role in advising the Council. As such, the
Head of Paid Service is required to work effectively with all elected members
within the Cabinet and Scrutiny system of governance and to be able to
demonstrate political sensitivity and an ability to interpret political will.

The Head of Paid Service's performance will be monitored annually by the
Executive Leader and other leading members under the Council’s performance
related pay scheme and her terms and conditions of employment are defined in
the Officer Employment Procedure rules.

The Head of Paid Service has responsibility for promoting community cohesion
and undertaking an overview of the Council’s strategies by translating them into

service plans and practical actions, gaining corporate support and ensuring
compliance. The Head of Paid Service has leadership responsibility for

186

294



4.7

5.1

5.2

overseeing the Council’s statutory responsibilities under the Race Relations
(Amendment) Act 2000 to eliminate unlawful discrimination, promote equal
opportunities and promote good relations between people from different racial
groups.

The Head of Paid Service is responsible for ensuring that the following key
values and behaviours approved by the Council are upheld and complied with
both personally and by the Council’'s employees —

e Putting the customer first, both internally and externally
e Valuing, respecting and protecting dignity

¢ A willingness to challenge and change

o Delivering excellence and value for money
PUBLICITY

The Council has a Communications Strategy that deals with relations with the
media and its customers. It is acknowledged that one of the intentions of the
current legislative requirements for governance arrangements is to raise the
profile of the executive and make the Executive Leader and Cabinet
accountable for their decisions and actions. It follows that media presentation
and media support will reflect this. Advice to the Executive Leader in relation to
the media will be provided on a confidential basis if requested. Any employee
assisting the Executive Leader with media relations will act at all times in the
interests of the whole Council and in a politically impartial manner.

In particular, the Executive Leader and the Head of Paid Service will have
regard to any applicable Local Authority Code of Publicity made under the Local
Government Act 1986.

187

295



188

296



Part 6

Members' Allowances Scheme

189

297



MEMBERS' ALLOWANCES SCHEME

The payment of allowances to Members of the District Council will be made in
accordance with this Scheme.

A Member may by written notice to the Elections and Democratic Services Manager
elect to forego all or part of his or her entitlement to an allowance.

It is a condition of payment of all allowances that the duty for which they are paid will
have been approved before it is undertaken. The Council cannot decide afterwards
that an allowance should be paid.

1.

Operation of Scheme

This Scheme shall come into operation on 18th May 2011. Elected Members
of Huntingdonshire District Council may claim the following Allowances as
specified in this scheme:

Basic Allowance

Special Responsibility Allowance
Travel and Subsistence Allowance
Care Allowance.

* & o o

Basic Allowance

Each year a Basic Allowance shall be paid to each District Councillor. From
18th May 2011 the amount of the Basic Allowance shall be calculated at the
rate of £4,235 per annum.

Special Responsibility Allowances

Each year a Special Responsibility Allowance in the amount and to the District
Councillors specified in Schedule 1 to this Scheme shall be paid. No District
Councillor may receive more than one Special Responsibility Allowance other
than ordinary Members of the Development Management Panel who will be
entitled to receive an allowance of £620.00 per annum in addition to one other
Special Responsibility Allowance.

Annual Adjustment

The Basic Allowance and Special Responsibility Allowances in paragraphs 2
and 3 above respectively shall be adjusted annually with effect from the date
of the Annual Council Meeting commencing in 2012 to reflect any increase in
inflation using as an automatic index mechanism the percentage change for
spinal column point 33 approved by the National Joint Council for Local
Government Staff Services and negotiated as the pay award for local
government employees. Such mechanism will be applied until 30th April 2015
or until such time as the Independent Remuneration Panel recommends
otherwise.

190

298



Travel and Subsistence Allowances
General

Travel Allowances shall be payable where they are necessarily incurred in
performing the following duties -

3 attending a meeting of the Council, Cabinet or any Panel, Committee,
Sub-Group, Advisory Group or other appointed body;

. attending a meeting of any body to which the Council appoints
representatives, when attending as the Council's appointed
representative;

. attending any other meeting or joint meeting authorised by the Council
provided that Members of at least two political groups have been invited
to it;

. attending a meeting of any association, organisation or body of which
the Council is a member;

. undertaking any duty (including training courses, seminars, workshops
or other events) which a Member is invited to attend by a Managing
Director or Head of Service, provided that the duty has been approved
previously by the Corporate Director (Services);

. attending any approved Conference specified in Schedule 2 to this
Scheme;

. undertaking any duty which a Member is required to undertake by virtue
of their election or appointment to an office in accordance with the
Council’'s Standing Orders, Code of Financial Management, Code of
Procurement, Scheme of Delegation or other approved strategy, policy
or procedure; and

. undertaking any other duty or class of duty previously approved by the
Council in connection with the discharge of its functions.

Claims for travelling, Subsistence and motor mileage allowances will be
payable at the rate in force on the day on which the qualifying duty is
undertaken.

The following points should be noted:-

¢ The amount to be reimbursed in respect of qualifying duties is the actual
amount spent; and

. Receipts must be produced in respect of all claims for expenses
incurred otherwise claims may be returned to a Member unpaid.

Travel

Public Transport

The rate of travel by public transport shall not exceed the amount of the
standard class or ordinary fare or the most cost effective method that meets

the needs of a Member’s travel requirements.

The rate may be increased by supplementary allowances not exceeding
expenditure actually involved.

(@) On Pullman Car or similar supplements, reservation of seats and deposit
or portage of luggage; and

191

299



(b) on sleeping accommodation engaged by the Member for an overnight
journey, subject to a reduction by one third of any subsistence allowance
payable for that night.

Should Members be required to take journeys for which the rates
recommended above are not practical then approval for that journey must be
sought in advance from the Elections and Democratic Services Manager and
receipts provided for the reimbursement of any claims. Should prior approval
not be practicable actual reasonable costs will be met on the production of
receipts and approval by the Elections and Democratic Services Manager.

Taxi Cab or Hired Motor Vehicle
The rate for travel by taxi cab shall not exceed:-

+ in cases of urgency or where no public transport is reasonably available,
the amount of the actual fare and any reasonable gratuity paid; and

¢ in any other case, the amount of the fare for travel by appropriate public
transport.

The rate for travel by a hired motor vehicle other than a taxi-cab shall not
exceed the rate which would have been applicable had the vehicle belonged
to the Member and hired it, ie the private vehicle mileage.

Bicycle, Motor Cycles and Motor Cars
Where Members travel by bicycle, motorcycle, or carry passengers to

approved duties they shall be paid in accordance with the mileage rates
published by Her Majesty's Revenue and Customs.

Vehicle Type First 1(_),000 business miles Each bus_iness mile over
in the tax year 10,000 in the tax year
Cars and vans 45p 25p
Motor cycles 24p 24p
Bicycles 20p 20p

Two or more Members going by motor car to the same conference or meeting
shall be expected, unless there are special circumstances, to car share. This
similarly applies in the case of a Member travelling with an owner. The owner
of the vehicle used will make the claim.

Air Travel

Air travel will require prior authorisation by the Corporate Director (Services).
The rate for travel by air should not exceed the rate applicable to travel by
appropriate alternative means of transport. Provided that where the Elections
and Demaocratic Services Manager decides, that the saving in time is so
substantial as to justify the payment of the fare for travel by air, there may be
paid an amount not exceeding:

(a) the ordinary fare or any available cheap fare for travel by regular air
service, or

192

300




(b) where no service is available or in case of urgency, the fare actually paid
by the Member.

Subsistence Allowances
A Member shall be entitled to claim subsistence allowance on approved

duties outside the authority area in accordance with advisory rates published
by the East of England Regional Assembly as follows:-

Type of Allowance Maximum Amount
Breakfast £ 6.88
(more than 4 hours away before 11.00am)

Lunch — Actual amount up to
(more than 4 hours away including noon — 2.00pm) £9.50 (receipt required)
Tea £ 3.76

(more than 4 hours away including 3.00 — 6.00pm)

Evening Meal £11.77
(more than 4 hours away ending after 7.00pm)

On those occasions when Members are required to attend conferences out of
the District, reasonable actual expenditure incurred for subsistence shall be
reimbursed subject to the production of the requisite receipts. For Members
required to be absent from their usual place of residence overnight
accommodation should be pre-booked by the Authority. In the event that it is
not practical to make such arrangements in advance, reasonable actual costs
shall be reimbursed on production of receipts. In both circumstances, the
Elections and Democratic Services Manager shall determine the
reasonableness of claims submitted.

Care Allowances

With effect from 18th May 2011, Councillors who pay for childcare or for the
care of elderly and/or disabled dependants while they are engaged on Council
duty may claim the following -

+ for the purpose of childcare! the operative rates are as follows:-

° £5.80 - £5.93 an hour for workers aged 21 and over
. £4.83 - £4.92 an hour for workers aged 18 - 20
. £3.57 - £3.64 an hour for workers aged 16 — 17

+ for the purpose of care of elderly or disabled dependents - an allowance
calculated by reference to an hourly rate paid by Cambridgeshire County
Council to home care assistants.

Subsistence Rates

o No Subsistence - As per the revised Expenses and Allowances
Policy — March 2015 (copy attached)

Care Allowances

193

301



10.

11.

o NMW Rates — October 2014
= £6.50 an hour for workers aged 21 and over
= £5.13 an hour for workers aged 18 - 20
= £3.79 an hour for workers aged 16 - 17
o NMW Rates — October 2015
= £6.70 an hour for workers aged 21 and over
= £5.30 an hour for workers aged 18 - 20
= £3.87 an hour for workers aged 16 - 17
o NMW Rates — April 2016
£7.20 an hour for workers aged 25 and over
£6.70 an hour for workers aged 21 - 24
£5.30 an hour for workers aged 18 - 20
£3.87 an hour for workers aged 16 - 17

Standards Committee
(Parish Council Representatives and Independent Persons)

Parish Council representatives who serve on the Standards Committee shall
receive a basic allowance of £231 per annum and shall be entitled to claim
travel, subsistence and care allowances in accordance with this scheme.
Allowances shall also be paid for attendance at appropriate training events
and seminars under the scheme. The Independent Member Persons (IPs)
appointed by the Committee shall receive an annual allowance of £1,000
(Head IP) and £500 (Deputy IP) and shall also be entitled to claim travel and
subsistence for attending appropriate meetings and training events.

Pensions

District Councillors shall not be entitled to join the Local Government Pension
Scheme.

Members IT Support

District Councillors shall be entitled to IT and telephone support to assist them
in their roles as Members of the authority. Such support shall include ICT and
telephone equipment which shall be issued in accordance with the guidelines
appended to this scheme.

Claims and Payments

Basic and Special Responsibility Allowances shall be paid in 12 instalments
on the 15th of each month by BACS transfer, except in the year that a
Councillor is re-elected when the payment for May will be made in June (or in
a different month of the date of annual elections is changed for whatever
reason).

Travelling, Subsistence and Care Allowances will be paid by BACS transfer on
the 15th day of each month for claims received by the first day of that month.

Claims for Travelling, Subsistence and Care Allowances shall be made in
writing on a form provided by the Elections and Democratic Services Manager
within two months of the date on which the approved duty arises. The claim
shall include a disclosure that no other claim will be made in respect of that
duty.

194

302



12. Revocation

All earlier Schemes relating to the payment of Members’ Allowances are
revoked with effect from 17th May 2011.

Notes:

! Childcare allowances will only be paid to childminders who are not members
of the immediate family.

195

303



SCHEDULE 1

SPECIAL RESPONSIBILITY ALLOWANCES

SPECIAL RESPONSIBILITY ALLOWANCES*

The Executive
Executive Leader
Deputy Executive Leader
Other Cabinet Members

Chairmen

Overview and Scrutiny Panels
Development Management Panel

Council

Licensing and Protection Panel/Committee
Employment Panel

Corporate Governance Panel

Vice-Chairmen

Overview and Scrutiny Panels
Development Management Panel

Council

Licensing and Protection Panel/Committee
Employment Panel

Corporate Governance Panel

Opposition Group
Leader — Principal Opposition
Deputy Leader

Leader — Minor Opposition?
Group Leader

Development Management Panel
Ordinary Members?

Standards Committee
Chairman®
Vice-Chairman®

Co-Optees Allowances
Each co-opted Member and parish council
representative on the Standards Committee

Dependant Carer's Allowance

Each qualifying District Councillor with children or

elderly/disabled dependant

196

304

Remuneration
per annum
£

14,010.00
10,537.00
8,394.00

5,604.00
6,311.00
3,763.00
6,311.00
2,779.00
1,968.00

2,242.00
2,837.00
1,563.00
2,837.00
927.00
649.00

7,005.00
2,837.00

723.00

620.00

2,779.00
927.00

231.00

Up to a maximum of 7.5 hours per
week at the minimum wage level
in the case of childcare and for an
elderly or disabled dependant at
the County Council's
recommended "home carer" rate.



Notes
1. No Member may receive more than one Special Responsibility Allowance.

2. Subject to the party having a minimum of five Members (or at least 10% of the
Council's membership) and being registered as a political group.

3. Excluding the Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Panel and any Cabinet
Member appointed to the Panel.

4.  An Independent Member (non-elected) acting as Chairman/Vice-Chairman of the
Standards Committee shall receive a special responsibility allowance equivalent
to that payable to a Member elected to that post.

197

305



Part 7

Management Structure

306



MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE

The senior management structure of the Council comprises a Managing Director, two
Corporate Directors, Heads of Service and the Corporate Team Manager who together
comprise the Senior Management Team.

DESIGNATED POSTS

The Managing Director is also the Council's "Head of Paid Service" and for the
purpose of Section 4 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 is principal
adviser on matters of general policy who is required to report to Council on the manner
in which the discharge of the Council's functions is co-ordinated and the number and
grades of Officers required for the discharge of functions by the organisation. The
Managing Director is also the appointed Returning Officer and Electoral Registration
Officer

The Head of Resources is designated as the Council's Chief Finance Officer and is
required to report to the Council (or the Cabinet in the case of an executive function) if
he considers that any proposal, decision or course of action will involve incurring
unlawful expenditure, or is unlawful and is likely to cause a loss or deficiency or if the
Council is about to enter an item of account unlawfully.

The Corporate Director (Services) is designated as the Council’'s Monitoring Officer
and is required to report to the Council (or to the Cabinet in the case of an executive
function) on any proposals, decisions or omissions which in his view are likely to result
in a contravention of the law or which fail to comply with legal duties, are unjust or fail
to take account of an applicable Code of Conduct.

Other responsibilities are summarised in Article 12 of the Constitution and in the
Council's Scheme of Delegation.

The organisation is no longer structured within traditional directorates and Heads of
Service together with the Managing and Corporate Directors form the Senior
Management Team which meets regularly to consider cross cutting and strategic
issues affecting the authority. Heads of Service have equal access to support from the
Managing and Corporate Directors. A Corporate Management Team continues to
meet weekly. This comprises the Managing Director, Corporate Directors and the
Section 151 Officer. Heads of Service attend Team meetings as appropriate. A
representation of the organisational structure is presented overleaf.

199

307



Managing

Director

Jo Lancaster
Comporate Corporate Corporate Team
Director Director Manager
{Services) {Delivery) Adrian Dobbyne
Julie Slatter Nigel McCurdy Policy & Performance,

Communications &
Marketing, Programme
& Project Management,
Democratic Services, Land
Charges and Elections

80¢€

Head of Resources

Clive Mason
Accountancy, Audit &
Risk, Procurement, Legal,
Client Management,
Property & Estate
Management

Head of Cutomer

Services

John Taylor

Customer Services,
Revenues & Benefits,
Housing Needs,

IMD, Document
Centre, Freedom of
Information, Corporate
Fraud

Interim Head of

Operations
Alistair Merrick
Streetscene,
Operations,
Faglities & Energy
Management,
Green Space

Head of Development
Andy Moffat
Planning Policy,
Development
Management (incl.
Building Controf),
Housing Strategy,
Economic Dewelopment

Head of Community
Chris Stopford
Health Protection,
Animal Welfare & Pest
Control, Licensing,
CCTV, Community
Safety, Strategic

Asset Management,
Projects

A

Head of Leisure &
Health

Jayne Wisely

Leisure Centres,

Sport & Active
Lifestyles, Commu nity
Development






This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 9

Public
Key Decision - No

HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Title/Subject Matter:  Internal Audit Service: Internal Annual Plan
Meeting/Date: Corporate Governance Panel — 9 March 2016
Executive Portfolio:  Resources: Councillor J A Gray

Report by: Internal Audit & Risk Manager

Ward(s) affected: All Wards

Executive Summary:

This report details Internal Audit’'s annual planning process and seeks approval
for the Internal Audit Plan for the period 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017 (2016/17
plan).

As required by the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, the Internal Audit & Risk
Manager (IARM) has to prepare an annual audit plan for Panel review and approval.
The plan has to provide adequate coverage and scope across the Council’s risk
management, control and governance processes so that the IARM can prepare their
annual opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements.

The plan for the period April 2016 to March 2017 is attached.

Recommendation(s):

It is recommended that the Panel approve the Internal Audit Plan for 2016/17.

311




11

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

WHAT IS THIS REPORT ABOUT/PURPOSE?

This report is about the internal audit planning process and internal audit plan
for the year commencing April 2016.

WHY IS THIS REPORT NECESSARY/BACKGROUND

The Panel's terms of reference includes approving the internal audit plan and
its resourcing requirements.

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require that the Council ‘...must
undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk
management, control and governance processes, taking into account public
sector internal audit standards or guidance’.

The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) require the Internal Audit

& Risk Manager (IARM) to:

e Prepare at least annually, a risk-based plan to determine internal audit
priorities; and

e Provide adequate coverage across the Council’'s systems so as to allow
them to provide a written opinion on the overall adequacy and
effectiveness of the Council’s control environment.

OPTIONS CONSIDERED/ANALYSIS

The IARM maintains a strategic audit plan, listing all the risk and system areas
that are considered likely to affect the Council’s internal control environment.
The strategic plan shows the relative importance of each risk (as identified by
the risk register) and system area. To allow for more effective planning, a
number of audit areas have been combined so that audits can address
common risk themes across services, rather than be conducted on a service
by service basis.

Discussions have been held with the Senior Management Team to ensure that
the strategic audit plan is reflective of all issues across the Council and to
allow new areas to be identified. Panel Members have also been given the
opportunity to contribute to the planning process.

After completing the strategic plan review, the annual audit plan is prepared
by considering service delivery issues, individual risks, materiality and
previous audit review findings. The highest priority schemes which can be
delivered with the resources available are then included in the audit plan.

Past reports have included information about the overall resources required to
deliver the strategic audit plan over its four year term. That information has not
been prepared this year. This is due to the likelihood that the Internal Audit
Service will become part of a shared internal audit service during 2016/17 with
our 3C partners. The longer term audit planning process will be reviewed as
the shared internal audit service develops.

The audit plan does not include any technical computer audit reviews. Panel
were informed in December 2015 of the delays in re-tendering the contract for
this service. It is important that the Council undertakes technical computer
audit reviews as the IT network and infrastructure is key to the delivery of
services. It is expected that a contractor will have been appointed and be
undertaking reviews by September 2016. The Panel will be informed when an
appointment is made and the proposed IT audit work plan.

312



3.6

3.7

3.8

4.1

4.2

4.3

5.1

6.1

The audit plan needs to be dynamic to reflect changing circumstances. As in
previous years, there will be the need to advance, defer, add or remove audits
throughout the year. The audit plan for 2016/17 is attached. It is based on the
service retaining an establishment of 2.86 full time equivalent auditors and
delivering 462 audit days.

The audit plan lists all the areas that, without any change in circumstances,
require review during the year. Panel are recommended to approve this plan,
but allow the IARM to amend it as he considers necessary. As in past years,
the IARM will consult with both the Head of Resources and the Chairman of
the Panel on any amendments that are planned. Significant changes to the
plan will be reported to the Panel.

The internal audit plan does not contain any reviews that could be classified
as a ‘consultancy’ review within the terms of the Internal Audit Charter. If any
‘consultancy’ work is undertaken then the Head of Resources and Chairman
of the Panel will be informed.

The PSIAS requires that the audit plan planning process takes into account
other sources of assurance that will be available during the year. Managers
have been requested to provide details of any planned reviews from which
assurance could be obtained so as to avoid/minimise duplication of effort. With
the exception of the statutory external audit of the accounts and the housing
benefit grant claim, no other external assurances have been identified for
2016/17.

KEY IMPACTS/RISKS?
HOW WILL THEY BE ADDRESSED?

The non-delivery of the internal audit plan may lead to a shortfall in assurance
on the internal control environment and potential criticism from the external
auditors.

Having insufficient or inexperienced auditors to deliver the audit plan is a key
risk. Resources are sufficient to allow the annual plan to be delivered. Staff
resources are considered when progress against the plan is reviewed by the
IARM each quarter. If the IARM believes that staff resources are insufficient,
then the matter will be reported to the Panel.

The introduction of a shared internal audit service will provide greater
resilience. A larger team will assist in covering short term vacancies or any
staff absences that may arise.

WHAT ACTIONS WILL BE TAKEN/TIMETABLE FOR IMPLEMENTATION

The audit plan will be delivered from April 2016. Retendering the technical
computer audit contract will commence early in the new financial year so as to
be in place by August 2016 with work delivered from September 2016.

LINK TO THE CORPORATE PLAN

The Internal Audit Service through the audit plan contributes to all the strategic
themes and outcomes. Specifically it supports Corporate Management Team
and Heads of Service by undertaking reviews that provide assurance that:

¢ significant risks identified in the risk register are managed effectively;

¢ laws and regulations are being met,

313



7.1

8.1

9.1

9.2

10.

¢ business and financial processes and systems are managed
effectively; and
e assets are safeguarded.

It also improves the performance of the Council by assessing current risks,
considering emerging risks, identifying efficiency gains and process
improvements.

CONSULTATION

The IARM has consulted on audit plan coverage with all members of the
Senior Management Team. In addition, all members of the Panel have been
given the opportunity to raise any issues that they feel need to be included in
the strategic audit plan.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

The service budget is sufficient to deliver the audit plan.

REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDED DECISIONS
The Panel’s terms of reference require it to approve the internal audit plan.

The report sets out the process by which the 2016/17 plan has been prepared,
the resources that are currently available and the steps being taken to procure
computer audit coverage. The audit plan coverage is considered sufficient by
the IARM so as to allow the Panel to meet its terms of reference through
supporting the Managing Director and the Council in reviewing the
comprehensiveness and reliability of its governance structures and internal
control environment.

LIST OF APPENDICES INCLUDED

Appendix 1 — 2016/17 Internal audit plan

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Strategic audit plan
The Council’s risk register

CONTACT OFFICER

David Harwood, Internal Audit & Risk Manager
Telephone: 01480 388115

314



~Huntingdonshire

clIsTRICT CoOUNCIL

INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE

Internal Audit
&
Assurance Plan
2016 - 2017

315




Internal Audit & Assurance Plan 2016 — 2017

The Internal Audit & Assurance Plan for the period April 2016 to March 2017 has been
prepared in accordance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards.

The Standards require that Internal Audit provide an opinion on the overall adequacy
and effectiveness of the Council’s internal control environment and that the opinion
should inform the annual statement of assurance on corporate governance. The plan
has been developed to take account of this requirement and provides the opportunity
for reviews of corporate governance, risk management and operational controls to be
undertaken as well as the more traditional financial areas.

All the risks present in the risk register as at 12 February 2016 have been included
within the strategic audit plan, although not all of those risks, when considering the
service issues identified or alternative assurance available, are required to be audited.
Reviews that have clear links to risks within the risk register will consider the
effectiveness of the controls that are in place to manage the risks identified. They will
also consider the manager’s assurance opinion entered into the risk register.

The detailed audit plan will be prepared on a 3+9 basis — that is a detailed three month
frozen plan, supported by a rolling nine month fluid plan.

The annual assurance opinion that | provide will be based upon the findings of the
reviews carried out.

In addition to undertaking the audits detailed in the plan, time is also available for
Internal Audit to provide both specialist (e.g. on new systems or developments) as well
as general advice and assistance to managers, dealing with any whistleblowing
allegations received and attending quotation openings to observe managers
compliance with the Code of Procurement. The outcomes from this work will inform the
annual assurance opinion.

Whilst it is envisaged that all the audits contained in the plan will be undertaken, the
identification of any new risks or significant changes in residual risk scores, may
require changes to the proposed plan so as to ensure that reviews are undertaken of
areas identified as being of greatest risk to the achievement of Council objectives. The
Head of Resources and Chairman of the Corporate Governance Panel will be informed
of any changes before they are introduced.

David Harwood

Internal Audit & Risk Manager
March 2016

316



Vision

Reviews

Strategic
priorities

Reviews

Reviews

Financial

Reviews

Internal Audit and Assurance Plan 2016-17

To improve the quality of life for the people of Huntingdonshire and work

towards sustainable economic growth whilst providing value for money services

Safeguarding Service standards and value for money
Code of Corporate Governance Managing bribery risks
Prevention of fraud

A strong local Enablmg sustainable Working with our
economy communities

Ensuring we are
focused and

semce led council

One Leisure Energy management across the Council’s estate
Housing benefits The management of health & safety
Grants to outside bodies Implementation of policy initiatives
Management of street markets Flexi-time and work life balance
Choice based lettings Employee appraisal scheme
Planning application & S106 agreements
development control fees The management of ill health & sickness

Customer Service

Strategy / Service Shared Zero Income Facing the

Standards Lean Services Basing Generation Future

Employee training Client management of shared services
Document Centre Management of complaints and feedback
Lean initiative and outcomes Management of overtime expenditure
Business continuity planning Management of employee vacancies
Elected Member development Forecasting accuracy and assumptions
Purchasing and corporate cards Specialist IT audits (coverage to be determined)

Equipment Servicing

To reduce the Council’s reliance on Central Government Funding and in so doing

create a sustainable financial
Commercial Investment Strategy

In addition to the assurance that will be provided on the areas listed above, work will also be
undertaken on the following areas:

quarterly reviews of the significant controls within the following financial systems - main
financial system, accounts payable and receivable, council tax and business rates;
reviews of two specific contracts to ensure compliance with the Code of Procurement;
an effectiveness review of the S106 Advisory Group;

providing help and advice to managers;

follow-up reviews of agreed audit actions introduced,

attendance at quotation openings,

managing whistleblowing allegations;

reviewing and investigating National Fraud Initiative output;

guality assessment of audit work undertaken and file review; and

supporting the work of the Corporate Governance Panel through the delivery of
training, preparation of the annual governance statement, effectiveness reviews

and annual reporting.

317



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 10

Public
Key Decision — No

HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Title/Subject Matter:  Accounting Policies for the Annual Financial Report 2015/16
Meeting/Date: Corporate Governance Panel 9 March 2016

Executive Portfolio:  Resources: Councillor J A Gray

Report by: Finance Manager

Ward(s) affected: All Wards

Executive Summary:

Accounting Policies are the principles, bases, conventions, rules and practices
applied by an authority that specify how the effects of transactions and other events
are to be reflected in its statement of accounts.

Best practice requires the Council to regularly review the adopted accounting policies
to ensure that they remain appropriate and give due weight to the impact of a change
in accounting policy to ensure comparability between accounting periods. Such
review and approval should occur prior to the financial year-end, thus allowing
officers to produce the statement of accounts based on the approved accounting
policies.

As noted in paragraph 3.1, there are three minor changes to existing accounting
policies and two significant changes. Four of these changes will have no direct
impact on the Councils general fund balance; however one of these changes aims to
reduce the impact of the cost of borrowing for investment in commercial assets.

Recommendation(s):

It is recommended that the Panel approves the amendments to the accounting
policies noted within Appendix 1.

319




11

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

3.1

WHAT IS THIS REPORT ABOUT/PURPOSE?

Each year the Council is required to produce a statement of account which is
included in the Annual Financial Report. This has to be approved by the
Council’'s Responsible Financial Officer by the 30" June and then approved by
members and published by the 30" September. The accounts are required to
be produced based on regulations prescribed by statute and relevant
accounting standards.

BACKGROUND

Accounting policies are the principles, bases, conventions, rules and practices
applied by an authority that specify how the effects of transactions and other
events are to be reflected in its statement of accounts.

Except where specified in the “Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting
in the United Kingdom 2015/16” or in specific legislative requirements, it is for
an authority to select the accounting policies that are most appropriate to its
particular circumstances.

Best practice requires the Council to regularly review the adopted accounting
policies to ensure that they remain appropriate and give due weight to the
impact of a change in accounting policy to ensure comparability between
accounting periods. Such review and approval should occur prior to the
financial year-end, thus allowing officers to produce the statement of accounts
based on the approved accounting policies.

Consequently, the Panel are asked to approve the accounting policies for
2015/16 (shown in Appendix 1); taking the 2014/15 accounting policies as the
base.

OPTIONS CONSIDERED/ANALYSIS

Accounting Policies for 2015/16

Of the 27 accounting policies that were approved for 2014/15 (please refer to
the final copy of the Annual Financial Report approved by the Panel last
September), Table 1 below shows that for 2015/16 five policies require
amendment with two of these being considered significant.

Table 1: Changes in Accounting Policy

Reason for change in the Number of Accounting
accounting policy Policies categorised
under the reason for
change

No change 22 n/a

Minor update for formatting 3 ¢ General Principles

Accounting Policy Affected

or a change that does not
have a significant impact
e.g. change in references to
financial year

e Changes in Accounting
Policies, Prior Period
Adjustments, Estimates
and Errors

Significant change in
accounting policy e.g.
change in amounts (£)

e Defining of Fair Value
valuation in that
Operational Assets will
be valued under the
Current Value approach.

¢ Additional MRP Policy in
respect of the
Commercial Investment
Strategy.

320




3.2

3.3

4.1

5.1

6.1

7.1

8.1

It is envisaged that the proposed:

. minor changes to the accounting policies will not have any direct
financial implications.

. introduction of Current Value for Operational Assets may have impact on
the valuations of assets (and liabilities) on the balance sheet, but will not
have an impact on the General Fund. This change is prospective so will
not require a prior year restatement.

. MRP policy in respect of the Commercial Investment Strategy will not
have an impact in respect of 2015/16 closure. However, as the
Commercial Investment Strategy moves into 2016/17, this policy will
allow the Council to apply the regular loan repayment as a proxy for
Minimum Revenue Provision. This policy was approved by Cabinet in
December 2015 and subsequently by Council.

If during the closure process it transpires that further changes to the
accounting policies are required; where the change:

) Does result in a movement in the Council’s “cash reserves” or balances,
then this will be brought to the attention of the Responsible Financial
Officer, Portfolio Holder for Resources and the Chair of this Panel at the
earliest opportunity and then presented to members when the accounts
are presented for approval in September 2016.

° Does not result in a movement in the Council’s “cash” reserves or
balances,

this will be reported to the Responsible Financial Officer and then to members
when the accounts are presented for approval in September 2016.

KEY IMPACTS/RISKS?
HOW WILL THEY BE ADDRESSED?

During the preparation of the statement of accounts, the working papers,
practices and associated documents will be updated to reflect the changed
accounting policies to ensure that the statement of accounts are prepared to
the correct legislation and regulations.

WHAT ACTIONS WILL BE TAKEN/TIMETABLE FOR IMPLEMENTATION

Upon approval, these accounting policies will be included in the 2015/16
statement of accounts.

LINK TO THE CORPORATE PLAN

The Codes of Procurement and Financial Management come under the
“Ensuring we are a customer focused and service led Council delivering value
for money services” aspect of the Corporate Plan, and enabling the Council to
“Become more business-like and efficient in the way we deliver services”.
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

No legal implications are known at this time.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

Resource implication are noted within the report.

321



9. OTHER IMPLICATIONS
9.1 No other implications are known at this time.
10. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDED DECISIONS

10.1 It is recommended that Corporate Governance Panel reviews and approves
the changes to the accounting policies for 2015/16 statement of accounts.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Working papers are held in Resources.

CONTACT OFFICER

Clive Mason, Head of Resources
@ 01480 388157

Rebecca Maxwell, Finance Manager
@ 01480388117

322



€ce

Appendix 1

Accounting Policies Used within 2014/15 Annual
Financial Report

Based on the Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2014/15

Proposed Accounting Policies for 2015/16 Annual
Financial Report

Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the
United Kingdom 2015/16

Reasons for
change in
accounting policy
(see key at the end
of annex)

General Principles

The Statement of Accounts summarises the Council’s
transactions for the 2014/15 financial year and its position
at the year-end of 31 March 2015. The Council is required
to prepare an annual Statement of Accounts by the
Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011 in
accordance with proper accounting practices. These
practices comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2014/15 and the Service
Reporting Code of Practice 2014/15, supported by
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

The underlying concepts of the accounts include the:

. Council being a ‘going concern’ — all operations
continuing

. Accrual of income and expenditure — placing
items in the year they relate to rather than the
year they take place

. Primacy of legislative requirements — legislation
overrides standard accounting practice

The accounting statements are prepared with the objective
of presenting a true and fair view of the financial position
and transactions of the Council.

General Principles

The Statement of Accounts summarises the Council’s
transactions for the 2015/16 financial year and its position at
the year-end of 31 March 2016. The Council is required to
prepare an annual Statement of Accounts by the Accounts
and Audit (England) Regulations 2011 in accordance with
proper accounting practices. These practices comprise the
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the
United Kingdom 2015/16 and the Service Reporting Code of
Practice 2015/16, supported by International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS).

The underlying concepts of the accounts include the:

o Council being a ‘going concern’ — all operations
continuing

o Accrual of income and expenditure — placing
items in the year they relate to rather than the
year they take place

o Primacy of legislative requirements — legislation
overrides standard accounting practice

The accounting statements are prepared with the objective
of presenting a true and fair view of the financial position
and transactions of the Council.

B




vce

The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of
Accounts is principally historical cost, modified by the
revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and
financial instruments.

The accounting policies are reviewed on an annual basis to
ensure that they are appropriate, compliant with accepted
accounting practice and relevant to the Council’s ongoing
business activity.

The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of
Accounts is principally historical cost, modified by the
revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and
financial instruments.

The accounting policies are reviewed on an annual basis to
ensure that they are appropriate, compliant with accepted
accounting practice and relevant to the Council’s ongoing
business activity.

Changes in Accounting Policies, Prior Period
Adjustments and Estimates and Errors

Changes in accounting policies are only made when
required by proper accounting practices or the change
provides more reliable or relevant information about the
effect of transactions, or other events and conditions on the
Council’s financial position or financial performance. Where
a change is made, it is applied retrospectively, if material,
by adjusting opening balances and comparative amounts
for the prior period as if the new policy had always been
applied. For 2014/15, there are no new accounting policies
in respect of statutory requirements or to ensure local
circumstances are better reflected within the Annual Report.

Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for
prospectively, i.e., in the current and future years affected
by the change and do not give rise to a prior period
adjustment.

Material errors discovered in prior period figures are
corrected retrospectively by amending opening balances
and comparative amounts for the prior period.

Changes in Accounting Policies, Prior Period
Adjustments and Estimates and Errors

Changes in accounting policies are only made when
required by proper accounting practices or the change
provides more reliable or relevant information about the
effect of transactions, or other events and conditions on the
Council’s financial position or financial performance. Where
a change is made, it is applied retrospectively, if material, by
adjusting opening balances and comparative amounts for
the prior period as if the new policy had always been
applied. For 2015/16, there are no new accounting policies
in respect of statutory requirements or to ensure local
circumstances are better reflected within the Annual Report.

Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for
prospectively, i.e., in the current and future years affected
by the change and do not give rise to a prior period
adjustment.

Material errors discovered in prior period figures are
corrected retrospectively by amending opening balances
and comparative amounts for the prior period.




T4

No IFRS 13 accounting policy used in 2014/15

Current Value Measurement (IFRS 13)

Previously, all assets and liabilities were valued under the
principle of “fair value” which was defined as “the amount for
which an asset could be exchanged or liability settled
between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length
transaction”.

Although “fair value” remains as the approach to valuation
for a number of assets and liabilities, in respect of
Operational Assets IFRS 13 introduces “current value”. This
means such assets have to be measured in a way that
recognises their “service potential”.

No Minimum Revenue Policy (MRP) relating to the
Commercial Investment Strategy in 2014/15

MRP Policy in respect of the Commercial Investment
Strategy

For each capital investment undertaken under the
requirements of the Council’'s Commercial Investment
Strategy, MRP will be made that is equal to the principal
repayment for any loan finance supporting the investment.

Depreciation

Year of depreciation charge

The depreciation charge will generally commence in the
year after the addition of the asset, unless the in-year
depreciation charge would have a material impact.

Clarifications for Reasons for Changes to/New Accounting Policies

Key:
A: No change.

B: Minor update for dates, formatting or changes in accounting policy that do not have a significant impact on financial reporting.

C: Significant change in accounting policy.
D: New accounting policy.




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 11

Public
Key Decision - No

HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
Title/Subject Matter:  Progress on issues arising from the 2014/15 Annual
Governance Statement
Meeting/Date: Corporate Governance Panel — 9 March 2016
Executive Portfolio:  Resources: Councillor J A Gray
Report by: Internal Audit & Risk Manager

Ward(s) affected: All Wards

Executive Summary:

The 2014/15 Annual Governance Statement (AGS) included two areas for
improvement.

The two areas for improvement identified are:
i.  Develop robust and effective reporting arrangements for shared services; and
i. Improve project management practices including Officer compliance with the
project management toolkit.

Details of the action that has been taken against each improvement area is
contained in the main report.

Due to the good progress that has been made across both improvement areas it
is considered that they will be ‘achieved’ prior to the preparation of the 2015/16
AGS.

Recommendation(s):

It is recommended that the Panel note and take into account the progress that has

been made in introducing the key improvement areas arising from the 2014/15 AGS
when undertaking their 2015/15 governance review.

327




11

2.1

3.1

WHAT IS THIS REPORT ABOUT/PURPOSE?

This report informs the Panel of the progress that has been to date in
introducing the two key improvement areas that were contained in the 2014/15
Annual Governance Statement (AGS).

WHY IS THIS REPORT NECESSARY/BACKGROUND

The Panel need to be assured that sufficient action has been taken to deal
with the two areas for improvement identified.
i.  Develop robust and effective reporting arrangements for shared
services; and
ii.  Improve project management practices including Officer compliance
with the project management toolkit.

OPTIONS CONSIDERED/ANALYSIS

The current position is set out below. The deadline set for delivering both
areas for improvement was 31 March 2016.

i. Develop robust and effective reporting arrangements for shared
services.

Governance arrangements for Shared Service continue to develop. In July
2015 the Council approved governance arrangements as set out in the
Shared Services Overview report as follows:

It was agreed that a Joint Committee (to be called the Shared Services
Joint Group) should be established to oversee the operation of Shared
Services, supported by an officer Board, but the committee would not have
delegated powers or functions. This will formalise existing arrangements
but without any partner council delegating power to another entity. This
arrangement has the benefit of being a collaborative arrangement with all
parties represented equally, without favouring or representing the interests
of one particular.

The remit of the Joint Group is to provide advice, oversight, challenge and
endorsement of the shared services business plans and budget. It is
important to note that without any delegation or discharge of functions and
powers, they act as an advisory body to the three Councils only.

This means that each participating council would retain Executive decision-
making powers for their shared service functions. The Joint Group will
receive regular updates on the operation of the shared services and will
take reports and recommendations for decision to their respective
Executives (and full council, if appropriate), at agreed points and with the
engagement of each council’'s Scrutiny committees.

Meetings of the Joint Group are to be held in public from April 2016,
forming part of each council’s calendar of meetings. Membership would be
the Leaders of each Council with a nominated deputy/alternate attending in
their absence.

Following the July report further work has been undertaken to confirm the

Governance arrangements and the Joint Group is meeting in Shadow Form
from February 2016.

328



It is proposed to take the Terms of Reference for the Shared Service Joint
Group (Leaders’ Group) to Cabinet for approval in the April meeting cycle,
as part of the “shared service report pack”.

Initial drafts of the Shared Service business plans have now been
completed and are being considered by the Shadow Joint Group in
February 2016. They will then be reported through each Council’'s
committee cycle, during March and April 2016.

Work is continuing on the Shared Services partnership agreement and an
initial interim agreement will be taken forward to provide some clarity and

protection to all parties involved in shared services. There is some further
work ongoing for example on recharges and identification of assets, which
will form part of annexes to the initial agreement.

The Partnership Board comprising of Chief Executives/ Manging Directors
and the three Corporate Director leads continues to meet to provide
strategic oversight and develop recommendations for consideration and
approval by the Member Joint Group.

In addition a new 3C Management Board (Director-led) is now in place as
part of the governance structure. This is meeting monthly and is having a
positive impact in ensuring that operational decisions are made (within the
agreed parameters) at the right level and that consistency in leadership is
given across the shared services.

Shared Service budgets will be subject to approval by partner Councils
through the Council’s budget setting process in line with the agreed
Governance arrangements.

ii.  Improve project management practices including Officer
compliance with the project management toolkit.

Overview and Scrutiny Panel (Economic Well-Being) received a report in
November 2014 that raised a number of concerns about the project and
financial management of two large capital schemes. Following a further
review in January 2015 the Panel's five recommendations for improvement
were agreed by Cabinet in April 2015.

An update report was presented to the Panel in October 2015 when it was
reported that 4 of the 5 recommendations had been introduced:
¢ Project management guidance has been amended to require original
business case documentation to remain ‘live’
e Project updates are included in quarterly performance reports to the
Panel
e The Panel has received information on the role of the Programme
and Projects Manager.
e Updating of the Panel on progress with current projects, including
procurement processes and the effectiveness of highlight reports.

The remain recommendation - a review of project financial reporting and
the post-delivery stage — is being reported to the Panel meeting on 3
March.

In addition to the above, the following enhancements to the project
management process have been introduced.

329



3.2

4.1

5.1

6.1

7.1

Enhanced approval process

Projects funded from the approved Capital Plan are re-evaluated by the
Finance Governance Board to ensure that they remain ‘fit for purpose’ and
fully funded before commencement.

A pre-project proposition form is in place to ensure resources are allocated
to delivering Council priorities and objectives.

Oversight and review

All projects are reported quarterly to Corporate Management Team
followed by the relevant Overview and Scrutiny Panel before being
presented to Cabinet. Reporting includes a ‘RAG’ status that reflects both
the progress of the project and the completeness of the projects internal
monitoring site.

The Programme and Project Manager has monthly meetings with the
Managing Director to discuss progress of projects and ensure the
completeness of the projects list.

The Project Management Governance Board meets monthly to review
progress on individual projects, question lead officers when appropriate to
do so and generally oversees Project Managers compliance with the
agreed procedures as set-out with the project toolkit.

The Corporate Management Team are satisfied that the action taken to date
addresses the concerns recorded in the AGS.

KEY IMPACTS/RISKS?
HOW WILL THEY BE ADDRESSED?

If sufficient and timely action is not taken, this may lead to the actions having
to be repeated in the 2015/16 annual governance statement and
e adverse comments being reported by the external auditor;
e poor governance procedures remaining in place which may affect the
delivery of the Council’s objectives.

WHAT ACTIONS WILL BE TAKEN/TIMETABLE FOR IMPLEMENTATION
Action has already been taken.

LINK TO THE CORPORATE PLAN

Good corporate governance structures underpin everything that the Council
does. Effective delivery of the Corporate Plan requires sound procedures and
processes to be in place. These seek to ensure that decision making complies
with laws, regulations and proper governance practices.

REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDED DECISIONS

The Panel require assurance that the areas for improvement identified during
the 2014/15 annual governance review process are being addressed.

330



BACKGROUND PAPERS

Annual Governance Statement 2014/15

Report to Overview & Scrutiny Panel (Economic Well-being), 8 October 2015. Project
Management Select Committee — Six Month Review.

CONTACT OFFICER

David Harwood, Internal Audit & Risk Manager
Telephone: 01480 388115

331



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 12

Public
Key Decision — No

HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Title/Subject Matter:  Implementation of Audit Actions
Meeting/Date: Corporate Governance Panel — 9 March 2016
Executive Portfolio:  Resources: Councillor J A Gray
Report by: Internal Audit and Risk Manager

Ward(s) affected: All Wards

Executive Summary:

Performance information for the implementation of agreed internal audit actions for
the year ending 31 January 2016 is shown below (and in detail at Appendix 1).

Status of Action
Introduced on Introduced Not TOTAL
time Late introduced
Red Action 12 2 2 16
Amber Action 46 8 7 61
Total 58 10 9 77
% age 75% 13% 12%

9 actions have not been introduced.

The performance information has been prepared from the audit actions e-database.
This sits on the Council’s intranet and is managed by Internal Audit. It is designed to
be accessed and updated by Managers who have been allocated actions (through
the agreed final internal audit report).

The performance information is produced monthly. Managers are reminded at the
mid-point of each month to review any outstanding actions, to update the progress /

implementation status or to contact the Internal Audit team if they consider that they
are unable to achieve the agreed date.

Recommendation(s):

It is recommended that the Panel consider the report.

333




This page is intentionally left blank

334




11

2.1

3.1

3.2

3.3

4.1

4.2

WHAT IS THIS REPORT ABOUT/PURPOSE?

The report provides the Panel with details of the implementation rates
achieved by Managers in respect of agreed internal audit actions.

WHY IS THIS REPORT NECESSARY/BACKGROUND

The Panel were concerned about the poor performance with the introduction
of agreed internal audit actions. They requested in November 2014 that a
performance report be presented to each Panel meeting until such time that
they considered performance to be ‘satisfactory’.

ANALYSIS

Corporate Management Team have set a target of 100% of agreed internal
audit actions should be introduced on time.

The performance for the year ending 31 January 2016 shows that target has
not been achieved, with 75% (58 in number) of agreed audit actions
introduced on time. A further 13% (10 in number) of the agreed audit actions
have been introduced, but late. There remains 12% (9 in number) outstanding.
A detailed breakdown is available at Appendix 1.

Following a period of improvement, performance levels have declined, as the
graph below shows.

100

f—— \
30 N—

80 —— N

70 +*

EG'—.---_-'

50

40

Feb 15 Jan 16

— = % of all actions introduced
-_— = 9% of actions introduced on time

KEY IMPACTS/RISKS?
HOW WILL THEY BE ADDRESSED?

Monitoring the introduction of agreed audit actions is an important
management responsibility. The Panel need to have confidence that action is
being taken by the agreed deadline to improve the governance and internal
control framework and/or further mitigate unacceptable levels of risk.

The successful implementation of agreed internal audit actions is an indicator

of the control tone across the Council and enables it to demonstrate that it
maintains high standards of governance and internal control.

335



4.3 Management responses in relation to the outstanding actions indicate that
action is being taken, or is in hand to address the issues raised. Of those
actions which remain outstanding there is nothing which causes significant
concern to the Internal Audit and Risk Manager, or which requires further
action at this time.

5. LINK TO THE CORPORATE PLAN

51 The Internal Audit Service provides independent, objective assurance to the
Council by evaluating the effectiveness of risk management, control, and
governance processes. It identifies areas for improvement across these three
areas such that Managers are able to deliver the Corporate Plan objectives as
efficiently, effectively and economically as possible.

6. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
6.1 There are no legal implications arising from this report.
7. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

7.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report.

8. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDED DECISIONS

8.1 The report is for the Panel's consideration. It contributes to the Panels
understanding of the Council’'s governance and internal control framework.

13. LIST OF APPENDICES INCLUDED

Appendix 1 — Implementation of Agreed Internal Audit Actions as at 31
January 2016.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Agreed audit actions database
CONTACT OFFICER

David Harwood — Internal Audit and Risk Manager
Tel No. 01480 388115

336



LEE

Implementation of Agreed Internal Audit Actions as at 31 January 2016

Appendix 1

Actions Actions Actions Actions Not Introduced Total Actions
Head of Service Introduced on | Introduced on Introduced on Introduced on Duein 12
Time Time Time and Late Time and Late Month Period
Number Percentage Number Percentage Red Amber
Managing Director 1 33% 1 33% 1 1 3
Corporate Team Manager 12 75% 13 81% 0 3 16
Corporate Director, Services 0 0% 0 0% 0 1 1
Head of Resources 5 42% 12 100% 0 0 12
Head of Customer Services 32 100% 32 100% 0 0 32
Head of Operations -- -- 0
Corporate Director, Delivery
Head of Development -- -- 0
Head of Community 5 83% 5 83% 1 0 6
Head of Leisure & Health 3 43% 5 71% 0 2 7
Total 58 75% 68 88% 2 7 77
Target 100%

Red Actions: These are actions that must be implemented as the current exposure to risk is unacceptably high, indicating a major control weakness.

Actions will be given a red priority when the residual risk identified may adversely affect the annual governance statement, result in the loss of funds
or assets, or lead to service delivery failures which could adversely affect the Council’s reputation.

Amber Actions: These are actions that managers should consider introducing as the current risk exposure is high. Control weaknesses have been
identified that have the potential to compromise internal control, operational effectiveness or service delivery. Actions will be given amber priority
when the residual risk has identified non-compliance with established good practice, the lack or failure of performance management or reporting
systems, or failures in subsystems.



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	1 MINUTES
	4 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PANEL PROGRESS REPORT
	1. WHAT IS THIS REPORT ABOUT/PURPOSE?
	1.1 This report informs the Panel of the progress that has been to date in introducing the two key improvement areas that were contained in the 2014/15 Annual Governance Statement (AGS).

	2. WHY IS THIS REPORT NECESSARY/BACKGROUND
	3. OPTIONS CONSIDERED/ANALYSIS
	4. KEY IMPACTS/RISKS?
	HOW WILL THEY BE ADDRESSED?
	5. WHAT ACTIONS WILL BE TAKEN/TIMETABLE FOR IMPLEMENTATION
	6. LINK TO THE CORPORATE PLAN
	7 REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDED DECISIONS
	BACKGROUND PAPERS
	CONTACT OFFICER

	Progress Report - for March 2016 meeting

	5 EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2015/16
	External Audit Plan - Appendix

	6 GRANT CERTIFICATION 2014/15
	Grant Certification Report 14-15 - Appendix

	7 CODE OF FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND CODE OF PROCUREMENT FOR 2016/17
	Apx 1 - Code of Financial Management 2016.17 V7
	Apx 2 - Code of Procurement V29 Feb 16 Final Version

	8 REVIEW OF THE CONSTITUTION
	Hunts DC Constitution  draft Version 0.3 01Mar

	9 INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE: INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2016-17
	1. WHAT IS THIS REPORT ABOUT/PURPOSE?
	1.1 This report is about the internal audit planning process and internal audit plan for the year commencing April 2016.

	2. WHY IS THIS REPORT NECESSARY/BACKGROUND
	3. OPTIONS CONSIDERED/ANALYSIS
	4. KEY IMPACTS/RISKS?
	HOW WILL THEY BE ADDRESSED?
	5. WHAT ACTIONS WILL BE TAKEN/TIMETABLE FOR IMPLEMENTATION
	6. LINK TO THE CORPORATE PLAN
	 significant risks identified in the risk register are managed effectively;
	 laws and regulations are being met,
	 business and financial processes and systems are managed effectively; and
	 assets are safeguarded.
	It also improves the performance of the Council by assessing current risks, considering emerging risks, identifying efficiency gains and process improvements.

	7. CONSULTATION
	8. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
	9 REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDED DECISIONS
	10. LIST OF APPENDICES INCLUDED
	BACKGROUND PAPERS
	CONTACT OFFICER

	INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE
	David Harwood

	10 ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 2015/16
	11 PROGRESS ON ISSUES ARISING FROM THE 2014/15 ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
	1. WHAT IS THIS REPORT ABOUT/PURPOSE?
	1.1 This report informs the Panel of the progress that has been to date in introducing the two key improvement areas that were contained in the 2014/15 Annual Governance Statement (AGS).

	2. WHY IS THIS REPORT NECESSARY/BACKGROUND
	3. OPTIONS CONSIDERED/ANALYSIS
	4. KEY IMPACTS/RISKS?
	HOW WILL THEY BE ADDRESSED?
	5. WHAT ACTIONS WILL BE TAKEN/TIMETABLE FOR IMPLEMENTATION
	6. LINK TO THE CORPORATE PLAN
	7 REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDED DECISIONS
	BACKGROUND PAPERS
	CONTACT OFFICER


	12 IMPLEMENTATION OF AUDIT ACTIONS
	1. WHAT IS THIS REPORT ABOUT/PURPOSE?
	2. WHY IS THIS REPORT NECESSARY/BACKGROUND
	3. ANALYSIS
	4. KEY IMPACTS/RISKS?
	HOW WILL THEY BE ADDRESSED?
	5. LINK TO THE CORPORATE PLAN
	6. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
	7. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
	8. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDED DECISIONS
	13. LIST OF APPENDICES INCLUDED
	BACKGROUND PAPERS
	CONTACT OFFICER



